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JOINT COMMITTEE ON THE LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY.

4. A Message from the House of Assembly :—

Mg. PRESIDENT.

The House of Assembly having agreed to the following Resolution, begs now to transmit the
same to the Legislative Council, and to request its concurrence therein :—

¢“That a Committee of this House be appointed, to act in conjunction with a Committee of
the Legislative, Council, to enquire into all the eircumstances connected with the construction and
management or otherwise of the Launceston and Western Railway since.the date of the passing of
the Railway Act, No. 2, to the present period ; such Committee to have full power to enquire into
cvery circumstance connected with the Engineering and general management of the Railway
Works, the financial arrangements of the Launceston and Western Railway Company, and the
powers vested in the Commissioners and Directors under the Railway Acts; with power to call
for persons and papers : such Committee to report on or before the 21st September instant, as to
the best mode to be adopted for the completion and future management of the said Railway, and
to make such recommendations as they may deem necessary for the amendment of the Railway
Acts. The Committee on the part of this House to consist of Four Members.”

ROBERT OFFICER, Speaker.

7 September, 1869. .

Ordered, That the said Resolution be at once taken info consideration.
And the Council having, accordingly, proceeded to take the same into consideration ;
Lesolved, That the said Resolution be agreed to.

Ordered, That Mr. Kennerley,
Mr. Maclanachan,
Mr, Whyte, .
. Colonel Hutchins,
be of the Joint Committee ; and that Friday, the 10th instant, at 11 o’clock, in the Committee
Room, be the time and place for holding the first Meeting of the said Committee.

‘WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 1869. .

2. Ordered, That the time for bringing up the Report of the Joint Committee on the Launceston
and Western Railway- be extended to next Tuesday week, October 5.

Traurspay, Ocroser 23, 1869.

22. Ordered, That the time for bringing up the said Report be extended to Wednesday next,
October 13. '

MEMBERS:

Legislative Council. House of Assembly.
Covoner HuTcEINs. -+ Mgr. ARCHER.
Mr. KeyNERLEY. = MRg. DAvIEs.
Mr. MACLANACHAN. M=r. Lewis.
Mr. Wuyre. Mnr. Swan.
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TI{E Jornt CoMMITTEE of the Legzslatwe Council and the House of Assembly appomted
to enquire into’ all the circumstances connected with the construction and man-
. agement or. otherwise of the Launceston and Western Railway since the date .of
the passing of the Railway Act, No.-2, with full power to enguire into every
circumstance connected with the - engineering and general management of “the
Railway - Works ; the financial arrangements of the Launceston and Western
Railway Company ; and the powers vested in the Commissioners and Directors
under the Railway Acts,—the  Committce having been subsequently  further
empowered to enquire into all motters connected with the construction of the
Railway from the commencement of the negotiations upon - the subject .and till the
conclusion of the sittings .- of the Commitice,— have considered the matters to them
referred, and have agreed to the following

REPORT

1. Your Commlttee have taken into their’ earnest cons1derat10n the several matters 1eferred to
them, under a deep sense of the great responsibility devolved upon thew in conducting ‘an enquiry
1nvolvmg such important consequences to the Company and the Colony. They felt aware that great
caution was necessary in conducting their enquiries where it might be presumed conflicting interests
were involved, and-on a subject on which so much public and pnvate feeling has been expressed
and on which many of the parties concerned held such different opinions. 4

2. Your Committee conducted their enquiry over a period of nineteen days, during which they.
examined seven Witnesses, going car efully into every matter tending to throw any hght on the past .
management as bearing on the constrii¢tion of the Line; and have also beén careful in collecting
data enabling them to form their judgment on. the future prospects of the Company, into whose
financial condition, and what led t6 it, your Committee have carefully enquired. :

3. Your Committee, though having directed their investigations into the circumstances con-
nected with the negotm‘mons between the Company and the Government which ended in Parliament
sanctioning the issue of Bonds for £300,000 in aid of the Works, do not deem it necessary to refer
to these further than to say, that the credit of the Colony was not pledged to this extent till, under
“The Railway Act, No. 2,” the Commiissioners appointed for the purpose had " certified that the Line
could be completed for pubhc traffic for a sum not exceeding £350,000.

4. Your Committee directed their enquiries specially to the’ circumstances under which that
Certificate had been given. On this subject your Committee have to report that thie Contract
Engineers, Messrs. Doyne, Majm and Willett, submitted to the Directors of the Company and the
Commissioners plans and estimates for the complet1on of the Line, according to which the ¥ngineers
certified that the Line could be completed and open for public traffic at a sum of £ £350,000, including
in that amount a sum of £15,000 for contingencies. The Professional Commlsswnel M. Kemp,
had these: placed - before - Inm, and reported to His Excellency the Governor in Council that having .
inspected the country to be traversed by the Railway, with the  plans, specifications, and schedules
of quantities furnishéd by the Company’s Engineers,” and having tnade a careful estimate, he
found that the Line could be opened for pubhc traffic for a sum not exceeding £350,000. The‘
other Commissioners, in concirring with' this report, guardéd themselves by saying that there was
nothing in the Act obv1atmg the possibility of the actual expenditure exceeding ‘the sum 'stated by’
changes bemg miade in the: scale and miode in Whlch the Company mlgh’c carry out the undertaLlng-__

5. Your Commlttee found ﬁom the evidence of Mr Doyne that dev1at10ns to a certain-extent
had been made from these plans'in those on which the' Contract for the construction of the
Line had been let to Messrs, Overend & Robb; but, though your Committee made every enquiry '
as to the original plans, estimates, and relative documents, which had been returnied by the Cominis+
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sioners to the Company, they have been unable to obtain production of them, the evidence of the
Engineer-in-Chief, Mr. Doyne, being that they were destroyed or lost, no care having been taken of
them as they were deemed by him of no value. From this peculiar circumstance your Committee
found themselves baffled, at the threshold of their enquiry, in any attempt to discover in what
manner the sum originally stated by the Engineers, and certified to. by the Commissioners, proved
insufficient for the completion of the, Railway. They have it in evidence that the Contractors’ plans
differ from the original plans, but in what particular, or to. what extent, they have no means of
knowing ; and they are forced to the conclusion, that-if the original plans were sufficient for the
purpose of a good and substantial Line, there must have been some error in the estimated cost.
‘What that error was, or how caused, .your Committee are not in a position to say. Although
feeling satisfied that the Directors and Shareholders were: no parties to the deception, your Com-
mittee cannot acquit them of a great laxity in permitting the. affairs of the Company to be almost
.entirely under the control of their Secretary and Chief Engineer.

6. Your Committee have it in evidence, as well as in the Correspondence printed by the
authority of Parliament, that one of the Commissioners, Mr. Theodore Bartley, has been employed
by the }%ailway‘ Company, with the sanction of the Government, to act as Negotiator for the pur-
-chase of lands and settlement of compensation for larids required for the Launceston and Western
Railway. It is also in evidence that up to the present time the amount of remuneration Mr. Bartley
is to receive for the performance of the duties of Negotiator ‘has not been determined between the
‘Company and himself,—that it is in fact an open question entirely dependent upon the Company
how much Mr. Bartley shall receive for his services as Negotiator on the part of the said Company,
and Mr. Bartley himself states that he expects some amount between £250 and £500.

Although it would appear that in his cap'acity as Negotiator Mr. Bartley has performed his
-duties in a most satistactery manner, your Committee is of opinion that his position as between the
‘Government and the Company has been; and still is, most objectionable.

7. The present position of the Company’s affairs clearly derhonstrates that the opinion which
prevailed in the minds of the Shareholders, the landholders of the Railway Districts, and a majority
of the Members of the Legislature, that the Launceston and Western Railway would be constructed
for a sum not exceeding £350,000, was a most erroneous one.; and your Committee cannot but think
that the responsibility of having been by their acts instrumental in creating that erroneous opinion
mainly rests with Mr. W. T. Doyne, the Engineer-in-Chief, and the Secretary to the Company
.and one of its chief promoters, Mr. Dowling. .

Mr. Doyne, on the 5th November, 1868, addressed the following ILetter to the Com-
nissioners :— .

“ (FENTLEMEN,

Ix reply to the enquiries put to me to-day, I have the honor to inform you that I have made a
most careful estimate of the cost of constructing the Launceston and Western Railway, and such
-estimate shows that ©the said Railway can be opened for traffic for a sum not exceeding £350,000.’

This estimate is based on Zberal prices throughout, and in addition contains £15,000 for unfore-
:seen contingencies.
I have, &ec.,
. (Signed) W. T. DOYNE, Ehrgineer-in- Chief.

The Commissioners.”

In answer to a question put by the Chairman of your Committee, (Question 82, 21st September,
1869) Mr. Doyne stated : “ My view of the question 1s what I have explained. Weé were expected
‘to do what the Act required, and no more ; it being understood that I never relinquished my original
position stated in my Report of 1861, that the Railway to be completed satisfactorily would require
-£400,000, and this has never been in the slightest degree concealed by me ; on the contrary, it was
matter of daily conversation between myself and the principal Directors.”

Your Committee deem that any comment upon the foregoing statements is quite unnecessary.

Mr. Dowling has stated in his evidence, that he always considered it would require £400,000
to complete the Railway, and that he took his Shares in the Company in that belief. At the same
time, as Secretary to the Company, he was representing to the (iovernment that it could be
-constructed for £350,000. Taking into consideration the fact, that Mr. Dowling was constantly in
the habit of communicating with the Government on the most important questions connected with
the Company’s affairs without reference to the Board of Directors, to whom he afterwards submitted
his communications for approval as disclosed in his evidence, your Committee conclude that the
-Secretary was largely trusted by the Directors, and consequently is proportionately responsible.

8. Your Committee deem it also due to the Commissioners to say, that they appear to have
-exercised due care and precaution, and, with the information before them, were justified in their

«calculations that the sum of £350,000 would prove sufficient.
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9. Your Committee Liave observed with surprise the very great latitude that the Engineers
have assumed in deviating from the original plans and estimates submitted to the Commissioners.
_The weight of rails has been increased from 65 Ibs. to 72 lbs.,at an additional cost of £7521 14s. 6d.,
without the sanction or even knowledge of the Directors or Commissioners. In the same way
a large excess of expenditure, amounting to £17,111 15s. 6d. according to Mr. Kemp’s statement,
. has been made through unauthorised changes in the orders sent to England for the materials for the
Longford Bridge, as well as in- other matters,—the evil done having been always irremediable before
the Directors and Commissioners became aware of the deviations and substitutions. Through the
extra expenditure thus incurred there can be no doubt that the sum now required for the completion of
the Line has been very materially increased.

10. Though the works hitherto done on the Iine dppear to have been executed in a satisfactory
manner, as shown by the external examination of the Director of Public Works, your Committee
are of opinion that the system of supervision is excessively defective. . Your Committee have
formed a very decided opinion that in this, and various other respects, the powers vested in the
Commissioners are insufficient, and that, however much inclined, they are not possessed of an
adequate authority to enable them to protect ths public interest. ‘

11. Your Committee have to deplore the very unsatisfactory manner in which the business of
the Company has, from its inception, been carried on. There has been in some matters too much
looseness in the management, and want of sufficient care to fix responsibility. In other matters a
too literal interpretation has been put on the wording of the Act; while more liberality in the
construing of its terms would have been of advantage to the Company and the Colony, and have
secured greater harmony among those entrusted: with the administration of the Act. The mis-
understandings that have occurred between the Engineers—supported to a great extent by the
Directors—have had a most unfavourable effect on the progress of the Company’s works, and been
injurious to the interests of the undertaking, besides placing many obstacles in the way of your
Committee obtaining dispassionate testimony.

12. Your Committee need only refer to the Correspondence in evidence, as well as the printed
Correspondence No. 16 of 1868, and No. 24 of this Session, to show that there has been something
like a systematic effort to thwart the action of the Commissioners, and to ignore their powers. This
has led to a large increased expenditure that might have been avoided had the opinions of the Com-
missioners been more consulted.

13. Your Committee; however, while feeling it their duty to thus report on the circumstances
that have been forced on their notice, have come to the conclusion that it can now serve no good
purpose to refer to the past; and care must be taken to prevent the possibility of the recurrence of
similar circumstances.

14. It is now ‘estim‘ated‘by'the Directors that an additional sum of £67,000 will be required to
complete the Railway; and'the professional ‘Commissioner, Mr. 8. V. Kemp, states that in his
opinion £107,000 will be required.

Judging from. the past, your Committee is disposed to accept Mr, Kemp’s estimate as likely to
be nearer the probable additional cost of the completion of the Railway and Works than the estimate
of the Directors; but probably the correct amount will be found somewhere: between the two .
estimates.. : : ' '

Considering the magnitude of the Work, and the large interests involved in the completion or
non-completion of the Launceston and Western Railway, your Committee have no hesitation in
arriving at the conclusion that, in the interests of the public generally, and in the interests of the
landholders and others within the Railway District more particularly, the Work oughtto be carried
- out to completion with as little delay as possible. Therefore, your Committee recommend that
the amount required-to be raised for the purpose of fully and efficiently opening the Railway for
public traffic should be sanctioned by Parliament. but on such conditions as will effectually restrain
the Company’s Engineer-in-Chief from authorising any deviations from the Contract or substitu-
tions without the consent of the Commissioners, and the sanction of the Governor in Council.

15. Your Committee has had under its consideration a Bill embodying the foregoing conclusions,
but on discussion it was not deemed desirable that your Committee should commit itself to the
details of the measure. Your Committee, therefore, only transmits the Bill, with the Report, for the
consideration of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly. '

o ‘ ' JOHN DAVIES, Chairman.

JAMES WHYTE.
ALFRED KENNERLEY.
W. J. HUTCHINS.

J. MACLANACHAN.

D. LEWIS.

R. J. ARCHER.
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A BILL to amend 7he Launceston and Western
- Ravlway Act. |

PrEAMBLE. %&' HEREAS a further sum not exceeding £ . is required
to complete the Launceston and Western Railway, and to provide
sufficient Rolling Stock, Workshops, and appliances to secure the
economical and efficient working thereof : And whereas it is expedient to

~ make provision for raising the said sum, and also to amend ZThe Launceston 5
and Western Railway Act : Be it therefore enacted by His Excellency

. the Governor of Zasmania, by and with the advice and consent of the
Legislative Council and House of Assembly, in Parliament assembled,

as follows :(—
]Co‘f{ll)ag may -1 It shall be lawful for «“ The Launceston and Western Railway 10
POrTow ° Company, Limited,” to borrow a further sum not exceeding £

for the purposes of the said Railway and Works, in addition to the sum
of £300,000 which the said Company has already been empowered to
borrow. , g :

Moneyhowraised. 2 Such further sum as aforesaid shall be raised in like manner as the 15
said sum of £300,000 is by law authorised to he raised, and not
otherwise.
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-8 Such further. surh-as’ aforesaid; both-as to. the prm(npal and - all’
interest to accrue due-thereon, shall’ be secured ‘and ‘charged and made
payable, save as' hereinafter provided, in the same manner as the said

sum of £300,000 is secured, charged,: and made payable, -and as if ‘the

sum - orlgmally borrowed had been £ Y mstead of £300 000.:

4 The sald ‘sum of £ oy When S0 ralsed shall be retalned and
Lept by the Colomal T reasu1er for the t1me bemg ' P

5 The Colomal Treasulel shall out. of - the said sum of £ TN or
'so much thereof as from time to time' remains unexpended; pay such
0 sums as may. from time to time be certified by the Commissioners, and

Pr mclpal and
interest how
secured.

£ to be
kept in Treasury.

Treasurer to pay
on Certificate of
Commissioners.

sanctioned by the Governor. in Council; to- be due for or ‘in respect of -

the said Railway or any Works connected therewith.

6 Plans and- specifications ‘of ‘the 'Works now remaining to be com-
pleted shall be forthwith deposited. with the Commissioners on behalf
15 of the Government, and no- deviations of increase shall be made from
such plans and specifications for -the said Railway and Works; and no
new . Work shall be entered upon or undertaken without first obtamlng

the consent of the Governor in Council to every such deviation or new -

Work, as -the case may be, after a report from the Commissioners and
20 Directors as to the propricty of such deviation or new Work.

'7 It shall be lawful for every - Commlssmnel at all times to enter
upon and .inspect the said Rallway and all Works .connected therewith,

No deviations or
new works with-"
out the consent of
the Governor.

Powers of Com- .
missioners.

and all the books and accounts of the said Company ; and every such

Commissioner shall have all the powers of a Director. -

25 8 When any dispute arises between the said Company and the
Commissioners, it shall . be lawful for.the Governor in Councll to demde
the same ; and such decision shall be final.

9 The said Company shall from time to time pay and apply the

‘tnoneys received: by-them from the traffic receipts of the said Railway,

3050 far ds the said moneys shall extend in the followmg order of
priority :— - ' ; - :

1. In paynient'of the reasonable working expenses and costs of
keeping the said Railway and Works in repair :

2. In payment of interest on the said sum of £ - , OF SO
35 much thereof as may from time to time remain due:

3. In payment of interest on the said sum of £300,000:

4. In repayment of any rate imposed upon the District under this
Act or any Act incor p01a’ced herewith : ~

5. In payment of a d1v1dend not exceeding £6 per cent. on the
40 paid up amount of Shares :

6. In payment of the said principal sum of £
7. In satisfaction of the said sum of £300,000 :

8. In such manner as the Company sees fit.

10 Until the said sum of £ is fully paid and satisfied, the
45 said Company shall publish in the Gazette half-yearly accounts in detail

Disputes between
Company and
Commissioners
“how decided.

Application of’
monies by Com-

pany.

Half-yearly ac-
co unts published
in the Gazette.
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of the traflic upon the said Line, and of their receipts and expenditure ;
and such accounts shall be certified by the Commissioners. : x

Povwer for Main 11 In case.a Main Line of Railway is at any time constructed ‘or .

Line traffic to being constructed between Hobart Town -and the Northern side of -

passover Railway. T . . .

asmania by the Government or any Company, and such Main Line

meets the. Launceston and ‘Western Railway, it shall be lawful for the
Governor in Council to authorise all trains going along the Main Line
to pass over and along and to use any part of the said Railway and
the Works connected therewith upon payment of reasonable Compen-
sation for so doing ; and the amount of such Compensation shall, in 10
case of difference, be decided by Arbitration in the same  manner, as -
nearly as may be, as is provided.in Z%e Lands Clauses Act for the
settlement of disputes by Arbitration. :

5

Dower to connect I It shall be lawful for the Governor in Couneil to authorise the
g\{[ﬁ‘g%&g"sa“:lﬂl execution of such Works as may be necessary in order to connect such 13
v Main Line with the said Railway, subjecting such Railway to as little
' damage or inconvenience as possible ; and the said Company shall be
entitled to compensation for any such damage, and such compensation
shall be assessed in manner last aforesaid.

%;1 clgmpllleFion of  §3 From and after the completion of the said Railway and Works, 20

S e and so soon as the Board of Directors of the said Company ceases to be

Commissioner. @ permanent Board, there shall be One paid Commissioner only instead of

' Three as now by Law provided, at such Salary and Allowances as the
Governor in Council shall see fit, such Salary and Allowances to be
paid by the Company. : :

14 Until the said sum of £ is fully paid and satisfied, the
said Company shall have no power to make any appointments whatever
nor increase any existing Salaries without the sanction of the Governor
in Council.

Acts read 15 This Act and The Launceston and Western Railway Act, and 30

together, The Launceston and Western Railway Act, No. 2, and * The Laun-
ceston and Western Railway Act, No. 3,” save so far as the said Acts .
are altered hereby, shall be read together as one and the same Act.

Short Title. - 16 This Act may for all purposes be cited as “The Launceston and __
Western Railway Act, No. 4.” A 35



MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS.

No. 1.
. FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 1869.

The Committee met in the Office of the Clerk of the House of Assembly, at Eleven o’clock.

Present—Mr, Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr.
Lewis, Mr. Swan.

1. On the motion of Mr Kennerley, the Chalr was taken by Mr. Davies.

2. Paper No. 16, Session 1868 ; Bill No. 19, Session 1869; and Railway Acts, Nos. 1, 2, 3, & 4, laid before the
Committee.

:8. The Committee proceeded to, discuss the course which it would be de51rab1e to adopt in regard to the pro-
duction of Minute Books, Corresponden(-e, and - Documents by the Secretary to the Railway Company, and also to
summon the Commissioners, or one of them, to give evidence to the Comumittee,

Notice was taken of the presence of a Member of the Legislative (‘ouncil who was not a member of the Com~

mittee ; who, having been referred by the Chairman to the Rules, Whlch reqmred Members not on the Committee
to w1thdraw, left' the room.—(Mr. -Kennerley.)

4. Resolved, That the Chairman be instructed to summon the Secretary of the Launceston and Western Railway
Company to produce all Books, Papers, and other Documents including Accounts, and Minute Book or Books of
the Company and Board of Directors of the snid Company,—also Mr. Doyne the Company’s Engineer,—also the
Commissioners or any one of them ; and any Member or Members of the Board of ‘Directors.—(Mr. Whyte.)

5. Resolved, That application be made to the Parliament that the Committee be instructed to enquire into all
matters connected with the construction of the Launceston and Western Railway from the commencement of the
negotiations on the subject until the conclusion of the sitting of such Committee.—(Mr. Swan.)

6. Resolved, That it is desirable that a nominal return of all persons who have claimed compensation from the
Company, and the amount awarded or to be awarded, should be before the Committee,

The Committee adjourned at One o clock to Wednesday next at Eleven o’clock.

’

. No. 2.
" WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 1869,

The Committee met at fifteen minutes atter Eleven 0 clock

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Dav1es, Mr. Lewis,
Mr. Swan,

Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Notice being taken of the presence of Mr. Grubb, the Chairman called the attention of the Committee to the
ruling of the Hou. the President of the Legislative Council-on the question of Privilege submitted to him as follows :—

“1In the case of a Select Committee, the authority of the House by which-it has been appointed is necessary for
the exclusion of Members of the House (not being Members of such Select Committee) from its proceedings ; and it
appears to me that in the case of a Join? Commztfee, larger powers than those entrusted by each House to its-Select
Comimittee cannot be assumed unless with the previous sanction of both Houses. On the-22nd June, 1857,the Speaker
of the House of Commons, in affirming the rule that Hon, Members are privileged to attend in Commlttees, added
these words : ¢ The Hon. Member does not ask me 2 question as to an exercise of discretion on either side,’—meaning

that of the excluding Committee or the excluded Members,—¢and I therefore think it fitting to confine myself to
announcing what is “the rule of the House.’

“ For the same reason, I think it fitting to confine myself to the'question as-put by the Hon. Member for Tamar
announcing, in answer thereio, that as a Member of this Council he possesses the privilege of attending the Meetings
of the Joint Committee on the Launceston and Western Railway or any similar Committee.”

And it be'no' stated by certain Members of the Committee that Mr. Grubb is 2 Director of the Company, and

also Solicitor to the Contr actors, Mr. Kennerley moved that the following Resolution be submittéd to both Houses
of Parliament:—

“That when any matter shall arise on which any Joint Committee wish to debate, it shall be at their discretion
to require any person not being a Member ot the Committee to withdraw.” Agreed to.

Ordered, That Mr. Davies do bring the Motion before the House of Assembly.
Ordered, That Mr. Dowling be summoned to attend. on Tuesday next, at Eleven o’clock.
The Committee adjourned at Twelve o’clock to to-morrow at Eleven o’clock.

" No. 3. _
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 1869.
The Committee met at five minutes after Eleven o’clock.

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Madanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr.
Lewis. Mr. Swan.

Mr. Davies in the Chair,
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Resolved, That the Chairman be instructed to apply to the Government for a Short-hand Writer to take down
the Evidence. (Mr. Archer.)

Ordered, That Mr. Doyne be summoned for to- morlow, at Eleven o’¢lock.
The Committee adjourned at five minutes after Twelve o’clock to to-morrow at Eleven o’clock.

No. 4.
FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER ‘17, 1869. o : . !

The Committee met at thirteen minutes after Eleven o’clock. ' .

Preseni—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. \Iaclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archcr, Mr. Davies, Mr.
Lewis, Mr. Swan. .
" Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Mr. Doyne called in and examined.
" The Chairman informed the Committee that the Government had acceded to their request for a Short-hnnd

Writer, and the Committee appointed Mr. Cox.

The Chairman read a letter from Mr. Dowling having reference to the carriage of Books from the Office of the
‘Railway Compuny.

Orde: ed, 'That the Chairman commumcate with the Government, and request that all the Books connected thh
“the Railway may be forwarded by the Coach. ,

Mr. Doyne called in and examined. .

The Committee adjourned at two minutes after One o’clock to to-morrow at Eleven o’clock.

Y

No. 5.
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 1869. "

The Committee met at ten minutes after Eleven o’clock.

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kenneiley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Swan.
Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Mr. Doyne called in and examined.

Resolved, That Mr, Davies, in the House of Assembly, and Mr, Whyte, in the Council, apply for an extension
.of time to brmo' up the Report to the 5th October next.

The Committee adjourned at Twelve o’clock to to-morrow at Ten o’clock.

. No. 6.
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 1869.

The Committee met at twenty-three ininutes after Ten o’clock. .

Present— Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr, Ar che1 Mr. Davies, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Swan

Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Mr. Doyne called in and examined.

Mr. Doyne handed in document marked A. .

Orde: ed, That the Chairman be instructed to ask for leave for the Committee to sit on M ondays and Saturdays
until the enquiry is concluded.

. Ordered, 'That Messrs. Kemp and Bartley be summoned for Friddy and Satuuhy respectively.

. The Committee adjourned at One o’clock to to-morrow at Tea o’clock..

No., 7
THURSDAY SEPTEMBER "3 1869.

The Committee met at seventeen minutes after Ten o’clock. .

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr, Archer, My, Davies, Mr.
Tewis, Mr. Swan.

My, Davies in the Chair.

Mr. Dowling called in and examined.

Mr. Dowling handed in documént marked B. -

The Committee adjourned at One o’clock to Ten o’clock to-morrow..
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:No. 8.
FRIDAY, SEPTEMBEI__{- 24, 1869.

The Committee met at fifteen minutes after Ten o’clock. o -

~Présent—Colonel . Hutchins; ‘Mr. Kennerley, :Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr Dav1es, Mr.
Lems Mr. Swan.

Mr. Davies in the Chair.

- Mr. Dowling called in and examined. -
Mr. Dowling hands in documents marked C. D. E. Document marked D. was 1ead
The Committee adjourned at One o *clock to to-morrow at Ten o’clock. ’

* No. 9.

MONDAY SEPTEMBER 27, 1869,
The Commlttce met at twenty minutes after Ten o’clock.

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Dawes, My,
Lewis, Mr. Swan,

Mr. Davies in the Chair. . .
Mr. Dowling hands in documents marked F. G. H. L. J.
The Committee adjourned at fifteen minutes after Two o’clock to to-niorrow at Ten o’clock.

No. 10.
_TUESDAY, _SEPTEMBER'QS 1869.

'

The Committee met;

Present—Colonel Hutchms, M1 Kennerley, Mr, Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, '\dz. Archer, Mr. Davxes, Mr.
Lewis, Mr. Swan.

Mr, Davies in the Chair.

Mr, Bartley called in and examined.

Mr. Kemp called in and examined. ‘

The Committee adjourned at One o clock to to-morrow at Ten o’clock.

No. 11.

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 1869.
The Committee met at fifteen minutes after Ten o’clock.,
Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanach'm, Mr. Whyte, Mr, Da.Vle>,'Ml Lewis, Mr., Swan,
Mr. Davies in the Chair.
Mr. Kemp called in and examined.
Mr. Xemp handed in documents marked K. L. M. N. O. P.

Ordered, That the Chmrman be mstmcted to see Mr. Hunter and order him to pxoceed to Launceston to
inspect the Brickwork.

The Committee adjourned at twenty-ﬁve minutes after One o’clock to to-morrow at Ten o’clock.

N

No. 12.
' THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 1869,
The Committee met at fifteen minutes after Ten o’clock. .
_,Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. M aclanachan, Mr Whyte, M1 Alcher, Mr. Dawes, Mz Lewis,
Mr. Davies in the Chair.
Mr. Kemp called in and examined, = -~ - e
Mr. Kemp handed in documents marked Q. R. 8. T.

The Chairman informed the Committee that he had' applied to the Government for permission to 01d 1,
Direetor of Public Works to proceed to Launceston in the place of Mr. Hunter. ! or the

The Committee adjourned at One o clock to to-morrow at Ten o clock
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No. 13.
FRIDAY, OCTOBER '1,‘11‘869. ’

Th Committee met at thirty minutes after Ten o’clock. ‘ o

«Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Davxes, ‘Mr. Lewis, Mr.'Swan.
Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Mr. Innes called in and examined.
Mr. Tnnes handed in documents marked U. V.
The Committee adjourned at One o ‘clock to M onday next at Ten 0 clock

No. 14. ,
MONDAY, OCTOBER 4, 1869.

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr, Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr. Swan.
No quorum.

Committee adjourned to Thursday next at Ten o’clock.

No. 15.
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 7, 1869.

The Committee met at fifteen minutes after Ten.

Preseni—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr.
Lewis, Mr. Swan.

Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Messrs. Kemp, Butler, and Doyne called in and examinéd.

Mr. Kemp handed in documents marked W. X. Y. Z,

The Committee adjourned at forty minutes after One o’clock to to-morrow at Ten o’clock.

No. 16. .
FRIDAY, OCTOBER 8, 1869.
The Committee met at thirty minutes after Ten o’clock.

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr. Lewis,
Ordered, That Mr. Kemp’s account £19, and Mr. Bartley’s account £7, be paid.

No. 17.
MONDAY, OCTOBER' 11, 1869.

The Committee met at twenty minutes after Ten.

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Da.v1es, Mr.. Lewis.
Mr. Davies in the Chair.

Mr. Davies presented a Draft Report. )

The Committee adjourned at thirty minutes after One o’clock to to-morrow at Ten o’clock.

No. 18.
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 1869.

The Committee met at thirty minutes after Ten o’clock.
Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Whyte, Mr, . Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr. Lewis.
Mr. Davies in the Chair.
The Draft Report was amended and agreed to.
‘ The Committee adjourned at thirty minutes after Twelvé to to-morrow at thirty minutes atter Three o’clock.

No. 19.

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 1869

The Committee met at half-past Three o’clock. |

Present—Colonel Hutchins, Mr, Kennerley, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Archer, Mr. Davies, Mr. Lewis.
Mr. Davies in the Chair.

The Report was signed.




~ LAUNCESTON 'AND* WESTERN ‘RAILWAY ;tQINT COMMITTEE."

“EVTDENCEL S e

FRI.DAY SEPTEMBER 17, 1869

,Members present—Ml Davies (Chalrman), M;. Kennerley, Mr Maclanachan, Mr. Whyte, Colonel
. Hautchins, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Swan, Mr. Archer.

WILLIAM THOMAS DOYNE called in and ewammed

By J the Clzaw'man ~—1."What i your name ? William Thomas Doyne.

" 2. You are the Engmeel-m-Cluef and Contractmg Engineer for the -construction of' the Launceston
and Western Railway Company 7 Yes.

- 3. You made a Parliamentary Sulvey in 1862 and fmmshed Plans, and made a Repmt on ‘the
Launceston and Western Railway ? I.did. -

4. In that Report what was the estimate, and’ what did the estimate prov1de for 7-- Are you plepaled
to answer that question ? THave you your documents ? I have not.. 1 had not the least idea what I was
to be examined on. Mr. Dowling has the papers.

5. I will show you your own Report, and perhaps that will. assist you. Havmg your Report of 1862
before you, can you now say what was the estimate and what did the estimate provide for ? . I speak from
memory. The figures are not put down, they are all blank. There were two .copies at the time, and I
have not got one, but I take the total sum at £400,000. Mr. Dowling has all that.

6. Can I refresh your memory ? In the original estimate the sum is stated at £364,351, and that is
to include all works, bulldmgs rails, rolling stock, stations, terminal arrangements, and the engineering
and management required ? I will read from my Report of 25 February, 1861 :—¢ My estimate amounts to
£364,351, or £8287 per mile, and includes all works, buildings, rails, rolling stock, stations, and terminal
alrangements, and the engineering and management required to complete the rail and for one year after
the opening. This estimate I believed to be most ample, and to be one on which Contractors could be
found to undertake the works. My estimate provides for a single line of rail of the gauge adopted in
Victoria of 5 ft. 3 in. between the rails: it provides for sufficient terminal buildings at Launceston and
Deloraine, and eight intermediate stations, with double lines of rail at each end. This arrangement would
enable the Line to be worked with perfect safety and regularity by the addition of the telegraph.”

7. Since that period you have entered into a Contract with the Launceston and Western Railway
Company as Engineer-in-Chief? Yes.

8. Will you produce the Contract? I have not one here.
© 9. But you will produce it? I will if you require it, at the next meeting of this Committee.
10. Have you furnished working plans and detailed specifications under this Contract? Yes.

© 11. And I assume you will be able to lay them before this Commlttee” Yes, if required; they are
all appended to the Contract.

12. Did you give an estimate of that work at the time, and can you now state the amount? I don’t
‘understand you.

13. Did you give at the time you gave an estimate of the w01k an estimate of the amount the work
came to?° I don’t understand what time you refer to.
14. Have you furnished the plans and detailed specifications of the works you have carried out, and

nave you given an estimate of the amount of carrying out the works, the sum? I think not I have no
recollection., But T did afterwards.

15. In that communication you have given an estimate of the amount suﬁiclent to open up the Line
for traffic and leaving a balance of £10,613 for contingencies? Those are all pomts which the papers in
Mr. Dowling’s hands will show.

16. Did you lay before the Directors, at the time the tenders were opened any estimate. of the
amount? I did not. I gave an estimate of what the Contract might be, but not 1ncludmg all the other
items. On the day when the tenders were opened I was present at the Board, and I placed a document
on the table.

17. Can you produce that document, or a copy ? ? T think T can; I will try.

18. Are you enabled to say now, without reference to documents, whether you found that estimate to
be insufficient, the estimate you put in on the day of the opening of the tendels" I believe about £2000 '
or £3000, but the estimate will speak for itself. -

19. Can you inform this Committee in what respect your estimate has been exceeded and the cause
of the excess in the estimate? Not without reference to the documents.

20. You will be able to give that information when you get the documents? Yes.

21. Before the Contract was let, Surveyors were appointed to take the quantities, were they not?
Yes. ' .

22. Did these quantities tally with your own?., Proximately they did; they were very close, - -



23, Will you produce your estimate of the: quantities to tliis Committee; hereafter? Yes.

24. Is there any truth in the report that has been freely circulated in the Colony that those quantities
taken by the Surveyors are greatly in excess of the executed quantities ? T cannot speak of it without the
documents. I have no reason to believe they are ; the documents will show. All the Contractors who
wished to tender were provided with the quantities, so that any of the quantities given to a Contractor
shows the quantities of all. ' I

25. That is, the quantities that were taken out- by the- Surveyors were furnished to all parties, and
were the same quantities 7 Yes.

26. On taking out the quantities the Contractors had to pay for them, had they not ? Yes.

27. And is that the practice that obtains in the Colonies and elsewhere.? I don’t know ; it is their
own arrangement ; the Contractors met and agreed to appoint two Surveyors; I had nothing to do
with it. R : : ‘

28. Is it not usual for the Engineers to pay for this work, and not the Contractors ? It is not usual.

29. In your original Report, which you have before you, you propose that the. rails under con-
sideration should be 70 Ilbs. to the yard, and you afterwards recommended G5 lbs. but you afterwards
substituted rails 72 lbs. to the yard ; will you explain the causes of ‘these alterations 2 The question will
require reference to a great many documents, and I will explain at another time. I will take a note and
give you an answer in writing. S

30. Would not a rail of 65 lbs. to the yard, as put down in the first estimate, have saved the
Company £6000, all expenses connected therewith included ? Somewhere about that.

... 31. Had you any authority from the Board of Directors, or from any persons authorised under the
Launceston and Western Railway Acts, to alter this estimate, and thereby increase the amount of expendi-
ture £6000 ? I don’t know without going through all the correspondence.

32. But are you not able to say whether you had any direct authority to incur this additional expense
for the rails 7. Itis difficult to answer without going into a long explanation. :

33. Then you are not prepared to answer it, but will at the next examination? T shall.

84. And, of course, that means whether the alteration did take place ; and you will be able to say.on
what authority,—whether on your own responsibility, or how? Yes: I shall be able to say under what
circumstances. :

35. The cuttings you recommended were } to 1, were they not? Yes.

86. Will you have the kindness to give the Committee the reason why you adopted so slight a batter ?
Yes : during the survey of the Line we made trial shafts in all the principal cuttings. 'The indications given
by them were very uncertain,—showing in some instances that the material was good, and in others that
it was bad. Altogether the conclusion we arrived at was that many of the cuttings would stand almost
perpendicular, while some would require very flat slopes. We saw clearly that, if we were to let the
Contract under the assumption that all slopes would require to be taken out at a flat gradient, we should
certainly execute a great deal more work than was necessary. We therefore determined to let the Contract
on experimental slopes of } to 1,—thereby in no instance taking out more than was necessary to enable us
to judge on unquestionable evidence how each special case was to be dealt with. It has turned out, as
we expected, that some have stood, while others will require to be flattened. :

37. Did you communicate these facts to the Directory before the estimates were made or the contract
taken? T cannot answer that question without reference. . In the preparation of the drawings 1 never
consulted the Directors on any details. ' :

88. That is not the point. After the explanation you have just given the question arises, did you
communicate it to the Directory before the estimates were made, and before the contracts were taken?
{ am not sure: I don’t think I.did. While I was preparing the plans I was constantly in communication
with Mr. Kemp, but I did not think it necessary to communicate with the Board on all details. When
Mr. Dowling comes I shall be able to answer positively. .I was not in the habit of consulting the
Directors during the progress of the designs, upon the details of those designs.

39. Is the Committee to understand from that, that in all matters of departure from the original
estimate and report you acted on your own responsibility and without consultation with the Directors?
No: I am speaking of the first designs before the contracts were out. I was not in the habit of consulting
the Directors during their progress, but contented myself with submitting them when completed for the
approval of the Board.

40. Does the failure of this experiment form one of the items of excess in the cost of the rails on the
estimated cost; and if so, to what extent? I cannot admit that there is a failure: on the contrary, I
consider it-a great success. ’

41. You say you do not admit it is a failure? Yes.

42. Notwithstanding the previous explanation you have given? No: my previous answer said it
was as successful as I expected. ‘ ‘

*43. Has there not been'an estimate of a large additional cost of £12,000 to supply and make good

these embankments, in consequence of this experiment? There has been an additional expenditure
of £12,000 to flatten the slopes. ' '

44. You say there is no failure 'ip the experiment notwithstanding the additional cost of £12,000 in
regard to these slopes? T'sdy there is not an additional cost of £12,000 proposed to be incurred in the
construction of the work in consequence of this experiment,—for, on the contrary, -there is a saving of at

Teast £12;000. ° .
45. Will.you explain in what manner that is effected? Yes; if I had decided at once upon a rate of
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batter, or slope you may terin it, which would have rendered all .the cuttings safe, I should have had to
put it'at a slope which would involve taking out miany.cuttings to a flatter slope” than was necessary. I
never'$upposed that all the slopes would stand at } to'1, but I felt convinced that some of them, many of
them|, would. - Instead, thereforé, of proceeding empirically to decide ofi insufficient evidence what each
Wwould stand at, I determined tolet the Contract as a test of the' actual fagts., Now that the cuttings are
opened out and can be seen, and‘each judged of on its own merits, I have been enabled to instruct the
‘©ontractors on. each individual case : the actiial résult has been that & very large proportion of the cuttings
stand either at § to 1 or nearly so; proving, therefore, that if I had assumed that none would stand to
that batter. I should Lave thrown away much money which has iow been saved to the Company. -

.+ 46: Did you communicate to the Directors the probability of a larger expenditure being required in
flattening the slopes? . I never made any special réport. on’ the subject. R - ,

. . 47. Have you not given evidence before a Select Committee in- Queensland condemning the very
course you have adopted in Tasmania? . I have not. . S e

. 48. "Can you state what was the original estimate for the cuttings of this particular work, the estimate
on which the Contract has been taken? Not without the document. T e e

7" 49, Will that show the estimate for the cuttinigs } to 1 you made? Yes.

50." Can you say now, for the information of this Committee, what will be the additional cost of the
alterations, deepening the slopes? - Yes, approximately, about £12,000. Lo T

51. Still; may T ask you if you persist in making the statement, notwithstanding you have shown
an additional cost of £12,000 in deepening the slopes; that you saved the Company-a large sum of money ?
82, Are you of opinion, professionally as an Engineer, that the slopes as proposed to be altered will
stand? Generally, I think they will; but it is impossible to give you any positive opinion. I think thejy
will stand fairly, but there will be always a process of clearing out under. the maintenance contracts.

83. Did you not state at one of the meetings of the Board of Directors that the cost of altéring these
. slopes. would -not- exceed £5000, although you have since estimated the cost at £12,000? I cannot
answer that question. I cannot say. : '

54. Has not Mr. Kemp, the professional Commissioner, estimated the cost of alteringftliese slopes at
£20,000? He has. .

65. And you, notwithstanding that, still adhere to £12,0007? ApproximAately.. o

.- 96. Perhaps you will explain what you mean by approximately? It’s impossible to'be more definite :
you cannot make accurate estimates with earthwork. : -

57. Then by that observation is it not probable that Mr. -Kemp is nearer the mark than yourself?

Only in case of some revolution of nature which we cannot look forward to. I mean by approximately
within £500 or £1000 one way or the other. T ' '

58. Are the present altered slopes the slopes adoptod in other countries.on such s0il?  All those cases
are settled’ by the judgment of the engineer in every spécial instance. It is impossible to speak on
generalities. '

59. But from your geological knowledge of the various strata do you tell- the Committee the same
description of slopes you have adopted here are those adopted in other countries? I never saw exactly
similar soil, but from my experience in various countries, and of various kinds of material, I should say it
has been the best under the circumstances. There are no two cases so exactly similar as to enable me to
judge of one positively from the other.,

© 60. In your estimate for the Longford Bridge- you put down otiginally 200 tons of iron at a cost of
£6600, and you have increased it to 744 tons or thereabouts, and the Contract is taken at £18,440, is it
not? VYes, . .

61. Were the Board of Directors in any way consulted as to the alteration of this Contract? Thers
was no Contract. o

62. The first estimate,—were the Directors ever consulted when you made the deviation in the estimate
for the construction of that bridge? That is a question impossible for me to answer off-hand without
leading to confusion and misunderstanding. All the circumstances connected with that case are in print,
and without referring to the dates and circumstances I could not answer off-hand.. I am not prepared to
answer that question. '

63. ‘Were the additional estimates of weight and cost laid before the Directors and "Commissioners
previously-to the plans and specifications being forwarded to England ? I cannot answer now:

64. In your original estimates I think you failed to give estimates of the proposed expenditure for
freight and insurance? It was never in my department. I never made myself responsible for itin any
way. _

65. 1 must go back to your letter addressed to the Commissioners, 5th November, 1868. In that letter
you say, addressing the Commissioners,—‘‘ Gentlemen,—In reply to the enquiries you have put to me
to-day, I have the honor to inform you that I have again madeé a most careful estimate of the cost of
constructing the Launceston and Western Railway, and such estimate shows that the said Railway can be
opened for traffic for a sum not exceeding £350,000. - This estimate is based on liberal prices throughout,
and in addition contains £15,000 for unforeseen contingencies.” Can you now, knowing there is an applica~
tion to Parliament for £80,000 to complete the work, explain to this Committee the discrepancy between this
letter and the estimate of the proposed increase? Yes; the estimate of £350,000 was always understood,
and it is clear on all the evidence, that it meant to open a Line for traffic according to the terms of the
Act, which I think required one train per day each way. In my original estimate made in 1861 I provided
for a larger number of trains, and consequently there” were six Locomotive Engines and much larger



quantities of rolling-stock, superior stations, machinery for -keeping the plant in order, and a variety of
other matters ificident to a larger traffic. Having found, when this last estimate was made, that the
Parliament allowed the Debentures for £300,000 to be applied on condition that the Company provided.
£50,000; I altéred my estimates from that expenditure, which I should wish to enter into at once, to
that which the money at my disposal would admit, of, leaving the remainder to be provided afterwards;
that is, in fact, complying with the exact wording of the Act, hut not professing - to-have a sufficient quan-
tity -of rolling-stock ‘and stations for permanent purposes.. With some. trifling exceptions, that estimate
has proved to be correct. o S o .
66. Then do I understand you to say. that, to' comply with the letter of the Act of Parliament you
have referred to, it was the instruction of the Directors, or was that the spirit in which it was carried out?
My view of the question is what I have explained. We were expected to do what the Act required, and
no more ; it being understood that I never relinquished my original position stated in my report of 1861,
that the railway to be completed satisfactorily would réquire £400,000, and this has never been in the
slightest degree concealed by me: on the contrary, it-was a matter of daily conversation betiween myself
and the principal Directors; and durin[fr the time I was preparing the detailed drawings and spe¢ifications
at Melbourne, Mr. Kemp was constantly in my office ; every point of detail was freely discussed between
us; and more especially on this question of the slopes, Mr. Kemp gaye my plans and specifications his
expressed approval,—that is the plans and specifications under the present contract of Overend and Robb.

67. And though you stated in the early part of your examination to-day, in reference to ‘that report,
that the estimate in your original report was £364,000 to include all works and everything connected
with it?- That was the estimate of 1861. £400,000 was the sum named, but it was not in my estimate.
I have not got the details of the estitnate. The broad fact is, the sum I have always spoken of and looked
to was £480,000, and that I have never deviated from. The matter has got into confusion from having
separate estimates; the real fact.is that it was £400,000, which' included £200 only for lands’ com-
pensation. : : . ¥ o A

By Mr. Whyte.—068. You said the Directors were dcquainted with that fact, that :£400,000 was
the sum named ? Perfectly well, the Chairman especially. o

By the Chairman.—69. But the Directors ds a body; were they as a body acquainted with it? I
think only as a matter of conversation ; I never made a formal report on the subject. ' :

By My. Whyte.—~70. In fact the Directors were cognizant of that being your Aopin-;l.on’.' Perféctly. A

By Mr. Swan—71. Was that known to the Commissioners? To Messrs. Bartley and Kemp,
at least. '

" By the Chairman.—72. Mr. Kemp, in 18(_38, stated ‘that the line could be obened for public traffic
for not exceeding £350,0007 Yes. '

73. Now, what would you understand to be the meaning of the term “ opened for publié traffic ?”
To carry all persons who came to pay for their tickets, and all goods that were required to be carried.

74. Do you wish the Committee to understand that the opening of the line for public trafic is not
opening the line efficiently, as predetermined by the Promoters and Sharcholders? It would be most,
efficiently for the amount of traffic anticipated. I may say that what was the intention of my partners
and myself was to run three trains each day, with the materials at our disposal at the time of the opening ;
but we saw clearly we could not continue that for long : our locomotives and rolling-stock would suffer
so much that we should suddenly come to a stand in about two years. :

75. In what respect? The machirery would be worn out, not having a sufficient number to get
rest; with two engines, as long as they were in order, we could run three trains a day each way.

By Mr. Swan.—76. Then surely the Railway would not be efficient if liable to stop in that way?
Certainly not efficient. I always considered it would take another £50,000 to make it efficient, but we
could comply with the terms of the ‘Act with £350,000. '

By the Chairman.—77. Is it not in your belief that the public of this Colony anticipated that it was
to be an efficient Railway, open for traffic for £350,000; and can you say, from the conversations and
opportunities you have had of its being fully discussed, whether the Sharcholders are not under-the im-
pression that the Line was to be bond fide constructed for £350,000?7 I cannot answer that question at all.

78. And notwithstanding you say the Directors were acquainted with the circumstance that £400,000
was required, you yourself, acting with the Board of Directors, gave an estimate that it could be opened
to the public for £350,000? According to the terms of the Act. '

79. 1 draw your attention to the letter in which there is no mention of * the terms of the Act a
¢« And such estimate shows that the said -Railway can be opened for traffic for a swum not exceeding
£350,000. This estimate is based yon liberal prices throughout, and in addition contains £15,000 for
unforeseen contingencies?””  That vas always the understanding between myself and the Directors, and
Messrs. Bartley and Kemp. Mr. Kemp often discussed with me the number of engines that could be had
for that money. '

. By Mr. 8wan.—80.. Are we justified in supposing that it was intentionally caused to be understood
although £400,000 was the estimate that it was £350,000 for the purpose of bringing it within the Act?"
Certainly not. I deny that there is any understanding. I estimated for certain results, and contend it is
correct. - . . . . T . N i ]

By the Chairman.—81. Will'you produce that last estimate on which the £350,000 was based, the
details? I will if I can.” - ' T : ' ' ' o 5
" The Witness withdrew. ’

-W. T..DOYNE..
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Lo e : P ; . Hobart Town, 20th’ Septgmbgr,'1869,

Sirs, E R S : o cLs s :
WhEN 1’ was - examined ‘before :your Committee :on the 17th instant T understood that, on my next

meeting the Committee, I should be expected to give written explanations on the following points i—

© + 1. The altetation which has been 'made in the permanent Way rails. I

~ 2., Alterations in weights of the iron work for ‘Longfbrd Bridge,.and the reasons for including the
.erection by the English Contractors, together with the increased .cost involved by such a course.

3. Engineering supervision of the Works execiited uhgléi‘ Mésérs. Overend and Robb’s Q(')hti'lact.
All these points are ful--ly‘explaine(‘i ‘in-t.he printé_d Cor.resbonde,nce now: before Parliament ; and I do

‘not see that they can be made more clear by any additional statements from me: but to facilitate references
by.the Committee, I append a list of the principal explanatory documents under each head. S

(T. B. Bartley, to Colonial Secretary), page 20, paragraphs 13, 14, 15.

2. Letter No. 267 (T. B. Bartley to Colonial Secretary), page 153, pal-agl-d.i)lls 2 to 5 inclusive.
Enclosures-accompanying letter No. 177 (Engineers to Secretary), page 189, (Addenda). . .

1. Memo.. of Engineers enclosed by H. Dowling: in letter. No. 120, page 11. Letter No. 127

3. Engineers’ letter to Secretary, dated 23rd March, 1869, Ist par., page 111. Engineers to Sec-
retary, dated 24th April, 1869, par. 4, 5,7,.9, page 114. e « oo

I respectfully submit that, whereas difference of opinion arises as to the mode in which supervision is
to be effectually carried out, the only true solution is to be found in the answer to the question—has such
supervision. resulted in sound and good work? By that test I"am prepared to be judged. 'The chief
accusation which has been brought against us, regarding inefficient supervision, has been 1n the matter of
brickwork for bridges and culverts: With a view to enable the Committee to form a just conclusion on
this point, I am willing, if they so desire, that they should .employ Mr. Henry Hunter, Architect, Hobart
Town, to inspect the works and report upon them; he receiving his instructions from the Committee, and
I'personally undertaking to pay his charges for such Repott. ' ' :

I have named Mr. Hunter because I believé he has never been in any way associated with our works;
he has never seen them ; and I have not even had any personal acquaintance with him, until I called at
his office a few days ago to ascertain whether he would be prepared to make such a Report if required
to do so. a : o : . o a

I have respectfully to remind the Committee that, in consequence of my having been called upon to
give these explanations earlier than was first notified to me, I have been somewhat hwrried in their

preparation, but I shall be most happy to add any further information the Committee may desire.

X have the honor to be,
Sirs, .
Your obedient Servant, _ .
W. T. DOYNE, Engineer-in-Chicf, -
' : Launceston & Western Railway.
The Honorable the Chairman of the Joint Committee C o .
" apointed “to’ enquire into all Matters connected
with the Construction of the Launceston and
Western Railnay.”’

Tuespay, »SEPT}}I\_-{I‘.’»ER 21, 1869.

Present—Mr. Davies (Chairman), Mr. Kennerley,,Colonél Hutchins, Mr. Maclanachan; Mr. Lewis,
. . ’ Mr. Archer, Mr. Swan.- A S .-

.

MR. W. T. DOYNE re-called and examined.

By the Chairman~82. In your answer at your last examination (Question 66) you were asked,
¢ Then do I understand you to say that, to comply with the leiter of the. Act of Parliament you have .
referred to, it was the instruction of the Directors, or was that the spirit in which it was carried out?
And your answer was,—¢ My view of the question is what I have explained. We were expected to do
what the Act required, and no more ; it being understood that I never relinquishéd my original position
stated in my Report of 1861, that the Railway, to be completed satisfactorily, would require £400,000,
and this has never been in the slightest degree concealed by meé: on the contrary, it was matter of daily.
conversation .between myself-and the principal Directors.” Do I understand that you have made a’
selection  of Directors in communicating matters of this description to; and if so, who do you consider the
¥rincipal -Directors of the Company? T have not made any selection at'all; T have taken them just as I-
ound them’; but there are some of the Directors who -attend much more closely to the Company’s business
and attend the meetings more. frequently, and it is those I most communicate with. o Coees

83. Has there been any official statement or:feport to the Directors? I don’t think I ever made'a
written report, but I was in co nstant communication, in the Board. S 4

i
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) 84. Then will there be no record found of those proposals of yours, or was it simply casual conver.
sation with those Directors you were in the habit of meeting in the Board Room? That is all. :

By Colonel Hutchins.—85. But any oral statement made in the Board Room would be regarded as
official would it not? I suppose so. . : . - .

By the Chairman.—86. Were yom; statements made orally in the Board: Room to the Directors in
an official capacity or merely conversational? Merely conversational. '

87. Then you are not in a position to say that all these alterations and proposed alterations a8
referred to in answer 66 are recorded in'the minutes and proceedings of the Company? 1 cannot say
positively : on that point Mr. Dowling will be able to answer. ' - '

'(The Witness handed in answers to questions left open at the last examination.)

88. I refer you to page 115 of Paper 24, in a letter signed * Fred. M. Innes,” one of the Commis-
sioners, to the Secretary of the Company, he alludes to supervision in these words:—¢ The Contracting
Engineer, bound by his articles of agreement with the Company: (article 2) to employ the necessary staff,
superintend the construction of the said Railway and Works in a thoroughly efficient manner, either by
himself or properly qualified and competent assistants, to extend over the whole period of construction of
the said Railway.” Mr. Innes says above that, “That Mr. H. Conway officiates as Inspector of
Brickwork, and Mr. Tidy as Inspector of Earthworks, both being servants of the Contractors for the
construction of the Railway, and paid by them.” Is it usual for paid servants of Contractors to supervise
works for the Contracting Engineers? No, of course not; that supervision was for the Contractors. I
am personally supervising them myself. ’ :

89. Then X understand you by that to say the statement of Mr. Innes is incorrect? It is all untrue.
In that paper I handed you I draw attention to the replies. S :

90. Will you read it, and mark it A. B. and C.? Yes, I have marked it accordingly.

91. Will you read from that what you said in answer to the question? Itis calling attention to the
documents.

92. Will you read what you said? Yes.

93. Do I understand you to say that neither Conway nor Tidy, whom you asserted to be employed
by the Contractors, have nothing to do for the Engineers? Nothing whatever. They.were the Inspectors
of earthwork and brickwork for the Contractors. Mr. Major and myself alternately superintended these
works as Engineers; but Tidy and Conway were instructed in our presence by Mr. Robb, one of the
Contractors, to carry out our instructions immediately on their being given witliout any reference to
him. To that extent, and no more, were they acting for us.

By Mr. Kennerley—94. On instructions by the Engineers without reference to Mr. Robb? Yes;
they were Mr., Robb’s representatives, but had my instructions without referring to their Principal.

By the Chairman.—95. To whom did they make their report,—these Inspectors,—Conway and
Tidy ?  Their reports consisted in making requisitions for materials. I don’t know that they ever made
any formal reports: they were all verbal communications.

96. I see by your letter of the 28rd March, 1869, you decline to furnish a return of persons employed
by you in the supervision? I did. '

97. 'Will you state to the Committee how many persons are employed by yourself and firm in this
work as supervisors? Yes, I shall be most happy to explain the whole case. 1 declined to submit it to
Mr. Kemp and Mr. Innes, as T considered they had nothing to do with the conduct of the Company’s
works. To the Board of Directors and this Committee I am willing to place every information at their
disposal; but I considered their interference an impertinence,~that is, it was not pertinent to their
business. '

98. Will you state, if you can, what are the powers vested in those Commissioners to render their
conduct as you describe it? It is set forth in the Act. I judge by that.

© 99. The Clause runs in this way:— And such Commissioners shall have a seat at the Board of
Directors of the Company, and shall be entitled to sit and act in all respects as if they were Directors of
the Company.” Have you read that clause before? Yes, Sir.

100. And having read that, you think those gentlemen having all the powers of Directors, so far as
they are individually concerned, impertinent in asking questions as to carrying out the work? As regards
the carrying out the details of the work, I'think it is. -

101. Then do you think it impertinent for the Directors to ask? I do not admit the right of any
individual Director, but of the Board.

102. Do I understand you to say that in the event of any two of the Directors wishing for certain
information and writing officially for it, whether such Directors are officially appointed or elected, that
that is to be construed as an impertinence? I consider it to be irregular.

103. Then do I understand you from the answer you have given to ignore the right of a Director or
two Directors to ask officially for information as to the carrying out of the Contract? Yes, if they act
individually, and not through the Board. There are 15 Directors, and if each one were to pull at me as
they please, I deny their individual right to interfere with me in the management of the work. -

104. Then if Mr. Fred. M. Innes addresses the Secretary, drawing the attention of the Board of
Directors as a body to any particular object he may have in view, do you think it is irregular ? No.

105. You said you considered the interference of Messrs. Kemp and Innes impertinence, and decline to
answer questions put by them, but you would answer the Board; did not this application for information
come through the Board, as mentioned in the letter of Mr. Innes, page 1157

The Witness withdrew. :
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WeDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER' 22, 1869. ‘ .
Present—Mr. Davies (Chairman), Mr. Whyte, Mr. Kennerley,: Mr. Lewis; M. Swan, Mr. Archer;
L L - Mr. Maclanachan, Colonel Hutchins., -1 T -

'MR. WM. THOS. DOYNE re-called and cwamined.

- By the Chairman.—106. I was asking you, when the examination ‘closed yesterday, whether you
did not feel bound to’ give information to two Directors of the Company, when applied to through thé
medium of the Secretary; and you said you objected. to answer. individual Directors who put questions
with regard to the supervision. I now put it to you, whether you consider it is proper to object to an
application from two Directors writing officially to the Board for the ‘information? It 'depends. whether
it.is an instruction from the Board: I don’t recognise any two individuals, .

. 107. T want to know whether, two Directors. asking officially for information, you think you are
warranted in refusing it? I say not, if it’s an instruction of the Board. . .

108. Then I understand you to ignore altogether the right of any two. Directors to put official
questions to.you-through the medium of their Secretary ? I don’t see the bearing of the question.

109. I will try and make myself more explicit: for example, Mr. Innes and Mr. Kemp applied for
certain information, - through! the Secretary, regarding the supervision,—and in your letter of the 23rd
March you declined, and: denied the right of any person to demand such returns? Yes. o

110. Then the question I put is, Do you ignore the power of two Directors officially to ask for

information at your hands through the Secretary of the Company ?. Yes.

111. But you have since said that you are quite prepared to give'this Commiittee, and the Directors
as a Board, the information? Yes, any information 1 possess: I mean that on all subjects I am prepared
to answer any questions put to me. ‘

112. Are you aware that Mr. Innes and Mr. Kemp are, under the provisions of the Railway Act;
not only official Commissioners, representing the Colony, but have also the full powers of Directors ?
T don’t recognise those gentlemen as having the same powers as the Company’s Directors with regard to
controlling me in my department. I may be allowed to explain : the Commissioners were not parties to
the contract into which I entered with the Company,—that contract was made between myself and the
Directors appointed by the Shareholders. I view the duties of the Commissioners to be that of gnardians
of the public money which has been placed at the disposal of the Company, and to see that it is not

. misapplied in any way ; but I deny their right to]interfere with me in ‘the detail management of my
department.

113. And you say that in the full knowledge of the 6th Sect. of 80 Vict. No."28 :— Before any such
Guarantee is given, and so long as any Bond guaranteed in manner herein provided is outstanding, the
Governor in Council shall from time to time appoint Three Commissioners. for the purposes. hereinafter
mentioned, with such Salary and Allowances as the Governor in Council sees fit, and such Commissioners .
shall have a seat at the Board of Directors of the Company, and shall be entitled to sit and act in all
respects as if they were Directors of the Company; and the Governor in Council may at pleasure remove
any such Commissioners: Provided that in all acts required to be done by the Commissioners the act of
any two of such Commissioners shall be deemed to be the act of the Commissioners”’—* entitled to sit and
act in all respects as Directors,” I understand you to ignore that? If you will allow me, I will put my
own construction on it. I am by my agreement with the Company intrusted with enormots responsi-
bilities, and it’s absolutely necessary I should exercise sufficient discretion and power in the carrying out
of those duties to enable me to be hereafter responsible for my acts.. It is absolutely necessary, therefore,
that in view of there being 18 Directors including the Commissioners, I should at once decidedly resist
any attempt at interference with my management by any one or two particular Directors. So longas I
have the sanction of the majority of the %oard, I conceive I am acting rightly by acting on my own
judgment, and not allowing it to be interfered with. By the Board, I mean a majority of the Board. '

By Mr. Kennerley.—114. May 1 ask what is meant by a majority of the Board; is it when a

number of Directors meet and pass resolutions, carrying them by a majority ? T mean a decision of the
Board. : ,

By the Chairman.—115. You have said, Sir, that you supervised the whole of these works,—you and
your firm,—and that Mr. Conway and Mr. Tidy, simply by the courtesy of the Contractors, act under your
directions in certain matters? They act on my instructions without reference to their principals.

116. Do those gentlemen—Messrs. Conway and Tidy—receive any emolument from Doyne, Major,
and Willett? None whatever. : : S '

117. What is the extent, the area over which the works of the Launceston and Western Railway are
now proceeding—the length of mileage requiring supervision ? That’s very difficult to state.

118. Cannot you give an approximate notion of what extent of mileage: the length of the Railway
would indicate that, would it not? No, not at all. I can ouly answer it by a full explanation in detail.

119. I thir_lk you should give some approximate estimate, whether 15 or 20 miles in the aggregate,
and then explain what is the position of the country under supervision? I can’t attempt to put into
mileage ; I can describe it to you, and can give you the names of those who are engaged in supervision.

120. Perhaps you will give the Committee your explanation? Yes. The workmen are distributed
over the Line at intervals for a considerable portion of its length at the present time, but there ‘are long
intervals in many places where no work whatever is going on. The object of the Contractors, for purposes
of economy, is to construct their Line as much as possible and finish their works in one-locality. before
they move them on to the next. The actual length of work, summed up at all the points where it is in’
progress at one time, is exceedingly small. Works of this sort are progressive, and are never attempted’
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‘1o be executed simultaneously. -The ‘supervision: that I have-exercised over these works has been in the
first instance by myself and partners, general, throughout the whole extent; and we have employed
Assistant Engineers, Inspectors, and. Surveyors  from time to time, exactly in proportion to the state of
the works required. At first, the number of hands besides ourselves was very small; it has gradually
increased, until at the present time we have reached the maximum, and are beginning to reduce. I can
give a list of those who are at present employed on the works and have been for several months past by
the Engineers, the firm, our own staff. The following is a list of the present Engineering Staff on the
"Line, in addition to ‘the members of the firm, Messrs. Doyne, Major, and Willett:—Mr. W. B. Hull,
Civil Engineer, is the resident Engineer of the first section, that is from Lannceston to Longford, assisted
by Mr. Geo. Chamier. Mr. J. E. Day, Civil Engineer, is the resident Enginéer of the second section,
from Longford to Deloraine. Mr. Thomas Plummer is the general Inspector of timber and carpentery.
Mr. T. Bossléy is Inspector of permanent way, and is on the work at all hours with the men. Mu.
Borrodaile, Civil Engineer, took charge of the Liffey Viaduct, and the timber flood-openings at Longford,
and is now generally employed on the works. I may add, that the supervision that has been ‘devoted
to this work has been far beyond that of any railway I have ever known at home, and is, I contend, most
ample in every respect. [Witness here put in letter (A.) ] , :

121 There was an important cutting to Cameron’s Hill altered from a gradient of 1 in 70 to 1 in 50,
was there not? Yes.- B

122. Will you explain to the Committee why that™ alteration took place? Yes. The cutting was
originally designed: to be 60 feet in depth in (the deepest part. When we got down to a depth of about
45 feéet, we found the material there which was’ so slippery that it could not be possible to stand at any
ordinary-slope. Heavy slips had taken place, and there was every appearance of many others following;
and it became evident that not merely would it be a very difficult matter 'to complete the cutting to the
whole of that depth, but that it would become an endless source of expenditure for its maintenance
afterwards. On considering the matter carefully, we deemed that the safest and most economical way
was to raise the gradient at once, and leave the lower part of the cutting in. This raising of the gradient
involved an increase in the height of the adjoining bank, and as a portion of the cutting had already been
taken out of'it, involved the filling in of that again.

123. As now altered will there be less risk of further slopes or caving in? Yes; I consider the
cutting as it now exists safe against all but very slight slips.

: 124. If this alteration had. not taken place how much deéper. would the cutting have been than it is ?
About 15 to 17 feet. ‘ :

125. In the deep cutting where the slopes have had to be flattened is not the contract price per yard
considerably more than a shallow cutting ? I can’t answer that without reference to the Schedule.

126. If you look at pp. 43, 44, perhaps that will assist you ? No :- that is an imaginary Schedule.
I helieve Mr. Dowling has it. : _
. By Mr. Archer.—127. To what distance is it"usual to bore in testing the character of the soil before
deciding on the batter of such a cutting as that of Cameron’s Hill? That is invariably decided by the
judgment of the Engineer ; there is no rule. .

128. But surely it is usual to bore a certain distance ? I should say it is not usual ; I have scarcely.
ever known it to be done. There is no fixed rule. on the subject at all. In this case I made a special
request to the Directors to allow me to make the sinking. :

129. To what distance did you make the boring in this cutting ? I only made one ; the cowrse I
adopted in this case was to sink one shaft at every point on the line.

By the Chairman.—130. Were niot orders for flattening a great many of the slopes given by you
without consulting the Board of Directors ? Yes ; all of them.

- 181. Is it not customary for you to give orders to the Contractors without reference to the Board of
Directors in the prosecution of these works? I could not answer that generally, for the practice is
differeot in different cases. In the matter of the slopes I never consulted the Directors ; the slopes
invariably settled that question for themselves. I never ordered any of them to be taken down till there
was a necessity by their falling down or showed they were about to do so. Wherever it was reasonably
possible to consult the Directors hefore alterations were made I did so, but in the matter of cuttings it was
simply impossible to do it. »

182. Are you aware that a Resolution was passed by the Directors in October directing that no
orders should be given for extra work without being first submitted to the Board ? I don’t recollect it ;
there may be one, but I don’t recollect it. :

By Mr. Archer.—133. Is it the practice of your profession to estimate on the questionable results of
an experiment and call it a most careful estimate. I refer to the slopes 7 T could not answer that question.

134. Are mot such proceedings calculated to mislead the Government, the Company, and the
purchasers of serip, as in the. Launceston and Western Railway ? What proceedings do you refer to ?

185. With regard to the first question ? I cannot answer it.

136. Do you consider the experiment tried by you with regard to the slopes calculated to mislead the
Government, the Company, and the purchasers of scrip ? I ask that question on the result of it? I don’t
understand the question. . ' :

137. Can you call this experiment a careful estimate? An experiment is not an estimate. I sce no
connection between the two words. .

- By the Chairman.—138. 1T want to carry your attention back to the first day’s examination—yowr
answer to 47. Have you not given evidence before a Select Committee in Queensland condemning the
very course you have adopted in Tasmania? Your answer was, ¢ I have not.” Now do you mean by



that to say* you have given no evidence nor any written opinion to the Commission’ of 'thliirj, ot in any
othet manner to ‘the authorities of Queensland on that -point of battér ? I gave no evidence which con-

demned the course I am adopting in Tasmania.

'139. Did you %':ive evidence ‘b‘efoye a Committee? Yes,{and on the ”qué'sltion of .slop'es‘,mf)ut‘the two
cases are diametrically opposed. B o ' A oo -

140. Perhaps you will explain in what they are diametrieally opposed? .I will. In the Launceston
and Western Railway the whole of the cuttings we have had to deal with where slopes have occurred are
composed of soft clay, and had to be dealt with as such material is usually dealt with.

141. Is this your evidence, p. 107 (24) :—* Have you examined the cuttings on No. 5 Section of the
Southern and Western Railway in this Colony? I have examined twenty-four of them; commencing at
the upper part_of the section and going down. I have examined twenty-four of them. Do you think
they will stand at the slopes at which they have been taken by the Contractors? No.” That is. my
evidence. o ‘ ' ,

142. Now was not that 3 to 1?7 Yes.
143. But you éstimated % to 1 for the present work ? Yes.

144. But although you condemned 3} to-1 at Queensland, you still estimate 3tol on this Railway,
will you explain?. Yes. It isfully described in that evidence. -

. 145. What I: want to. know is, how is it that you have so materially altered your views? I have not
altered my views, but the circumstances are dissimilar. Tirst, as regards the Queensland Line, the question
put to me was—Of what kind of materials are these cuttings composed? -And my reply was, I think I
aay, perhaps, save time by reading over my diary of observations made at the time:—‘ Many of the
cuttings are in a most dangerous state ; nearly all of them must be flattened, walled, or-underpinned before it
would be safe to open for traffic. They pass through metamorphic rocks, shales, marls, &c., and are much
broken up by hard trap dykes. These materials are full of fissures and loss of cleavage, which admit the
rain, and as the action of air and water causes each of them to swell, and break up, slips must take place.
In many of the cuttings the rock is under-stratified with thick patches of marl, which almost turns to mud
in the action of the weather. This-will, doubtless, in time be washed away by the rains, the rock will be
undermined, and heavy falls'will take place, uiiless all soft material is reduced to slopes that will retain soil
and grass; for unless it is walled and the rock underpinned, all the soft material on the slopes, with the
exception of the dykes, will waste much on exposure, and consequently, if they -are not cured in some way,
there will be a constant expense in clearing the drains, and it will be impossible to keep the ballast from
being filled with mud:. In other places no stratification exists, the materials being upheaved into confused
heterogeneous masses, from which large fragments are certain to work away and fall into the cuttings, unless
some measures are taken to prevent them from doing so. Each of these cuttings requires, in my opinion,
special treatment, each being an engineering study in itself.”. The description of the materials at the
Launceston and Western Railway are totally different. " This extract as to Queensland in Mr. Innes’ letter
(11 June, 1869) does not bear on the question. I beg to refer to my answer to-question 59; on the first
day’s examination. :

146. On the 21st July last year, when you asked authority of the Board of Directors to alter the South
Esk Bridge, Longford, did you inform them you had altered the plans, and that a considérable increase in
wielight and cost would be the result? No, I did not. ‘When you say “altered the plans,” altered from
what? : S .
_ 147. From the original plans submitted to the, Board? It was the original plan that was ordered from
England. There was no alteration whatever from the working plans. But some confusion has crept in
in consequence of other plans made a long time before, and which were made for a special purpose; but
they were done away with. The plans on which we are now working, and on which the material was
ordered from England, are the only working plans that have ever been constructed. All the details of
those plans Mr. Igemp was fully acquainted with during the time they were being constructed; and when
they were finished they were laid before the Directors and Commissioners, and were hung up in the Town
Hall, Launceston, for a week, where Mr. Kemp attended almost every day and explained them to the
visitors. I repeat that from these plans no deviation whatever has been made. :

148. Can you tell us what the estimate was at that time, the estimate of cost of carrying out the work
on those plans ? * That is fully explained in print; there was a long Report to the Board on the subject,
but I can give it in very few words.

By Mr. Whyte.—149. Did you originally estimate the Longford bridge to be a bi'idge of 200 tons?
Yes, for the superstructure, '

By the Chairman.—150. That was the original estimate? It is all explained in the Report.

By Mr. Whyte.—151. Why then did you consider it necessary to order a bridge of 700 tons? I
refer you to my letter- of 17th March, 1869, wherein I .state: ¢ The estimate of 200 tons weight was.
supplied late in 1867,—long before we had determined upon bridging the River on the principle now
adopted. We then thought it might be done with shorter spans, and consequently with very much less
weight of iron in the superstructure ; but on fuller study of the whole question we considered it desirable
to execute it on the present designs, which involve a greater cost for the ironwork, but largely reduced
that for piers and abutments.”

152. Did you make that alteration from your belief that a bridge of 200 tons was not sufficient for the-
Railway purposes? Yes; the spans would be too short. I consulted with many gentlemen in the-
neighbourhood as to the floods, and was led to believe that we should not have water-way sufficient with
the former design. ° . . - . o

153. Before you made plans for the construction of that bridge, were the flood marks pointed out to-
you by the residents, the highest flood marks? Yes; I made very careful enquiries on that subject.
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- . 154, And, the .flood marks pointed . out,“ 0 Yol I SUppose youi have ,agcertained ito. be true?- ., 1
ascertamed ﬁom various .residents in. Wellington-street, Longford the;exact. her it to Whrch the water. had
risen in the two last great floods, as indicated by the1r doqr; steps,. the legs: of their beds, and the depth of
water on the floors of their houses. These were taken in 6 or 7 dlﬁ'erent pl ces, and compared with the
levels proved to me beyond a doubt that ‘the “levels wers cotrect. ~This had 1efe1 ence to, theé: ﬁood of 1861 :

that of 1863 I made careful observations on myself """

"' "By M. Kenn(ﬂrley —155. You mentloned in answer 6" 4 p1 ev1ous questlon on'this’ stleect that 1t was
for a spécial purpose the first plans and estimate for the br 1dge were made.1 I would ask’ what that specxal
purpose was? 1t wds to enable ‘the Commlssmners to make an apploxrmate ‘éstimate of the cost. -

156.Can you' inform’ the’ Commlttee what that approx1mate puce Was" It 1s all in Mr. Kemps
' eyldence, his estimate was’ £6168 4s 6d.

.....

157. That estimate I presume was. made for the specml pmpose of plans belng submltted by the
engineers fo the Commissioners? The special purpose was to furnish an approximate cost.to the
Commissjoners.

158. Then that estimate of the bridge ; formed 2 portlon of the sum, that Was estrmated to carry out the
whole of the work namely at £350,0007 " Yes. '~

159. Were the' Comunssmners, or ‘was Mr! Kemp, the meessmnal Commissioner, led ‘to, suppose that
it would be sufficient for the purpose—that there Was no probability of any alteration being made as to the
construction of ‘the work at that tiie. i 'Wiere the. Engineers of ‘opinion that there’ woiild 'not be any likeli-
hood of any alteration being made in the expenditure. at the time that estimate ‘was made?. "'We had formed
no.definite views ‘at-all ;- we merely -put'down a'sum_that ‘we' thought -might be sufficient ; we had not
declded anythmrr *it 'was'merely.an appr oximation.. We thought it would-be: sufficient. - :

160." Will you ‘inform'thé Committee what'i is the dlﬂ'el ence in the ‘cost. between that estlmate and the
one on’ which the bridge has'to be constr ucted” That M1 Doyrhng w111 give, you ﬁom the invoice. .. I
am not acquamted W1th i, ’ )

By y the Chasrman. —161, Ale you aware that on the 9th Febl uary Iast there Was a meetmg of. the
Directors of the Company, when they passed a resolution to, this, effect,. . That, the -Becretary. refer to the
Engineers for any infor, matlon they, may possess gs to, the difference between the. Contract cost of the South
Esk Bridge and that of the Engineers’ estimate of July, 1868 27 I can’t remember the date.

.162. “Have you. been apphedto" Yes., ;v . S
168. Have you comphed with the resolutlon,—has any ref'erence been made to yourself as Engmeer-

in-Chief, for information respecting the differérice Betwéen' the Coritract cost and your, estrmate of July,
1868 7 I have no recollectlon of it, but-I have ‘no doubt there has. -

164. Car you say whether' you,. the En ineers, have furnished the Board of Dlrectors w1th all the
coirespondence had w1t11 Mr. Hemans in London with regard.to, this partlcular Contract? Yes.

. 165.. Can. you say all the works have been. faithfally perf01med under the supewrsxon referred to"
They have been; I never saw any better work in my life.

-166. Are you in a position to say Whether the - specxﬁed quantltles and quahty of hme have been used .
mthemortal” I am. . . L o

167. Have the spemﬁed quantltles and quality of’ cement been used in the buckwork and has the
cement been gauged 7 The quantity of cement in the brlckwork is In excess of the spemﬁcatlon.

By Mr. Archer.—168. Should not the cement ‘mortar of the wings and bitices of the budge at
Longfmd riow bé-hard? ‘That is all lime, there is no cement in that ; -only’ the arches have cement, the
" whole of the other is in common lime.- '1‘0 reply to the othe1 part’ of the questlon 1t should not’ be hard
and will not be fora year or two:

By the Chairman. 169, Have the brlcks been burnt w1th coal m accordance w1th ihe spec1ﬁcat10n ?
Noj; they have all been burnt with wood. .

170. Will you, explaln to the Committee the reason for depal tmcr ﬁom that palt of the contract ? Yes 3
if the Engmee1 thinks fit in_ the. spemﬁcatron to state.that bricks. shall be burnt with’ coal,clauses of- that
description are mer ely 1nt10duced to give the Engmeel the power to enforce the use of. coal 1f the Contractors
are not making bricks equal to’ the quality he is bound to do. The bricks burnt at Longford are burnt
with wood and are of 4n unusually high ‘class, so much so that I doubt if thére would be any improvement
in burning them by coal, and it would certainly have taken a much 1onge1 tlme to get them made. -

171. Had the’ speclﬁcatlon said the*bricks should be barnt with wood, do you not thmk the ' contract
price would have been much less ? I don’t suppose it would.

172: Is wood ‘more readily and easxly obtained and at'a cheaper rate in the 1mmed1ate nelghborhoOd
of Longford where these bricks were burnt ? - T don’t know.” "The’ cost. of burning bricks'is’ not affected
solely’ by the price of’ the fuel 5 *there are many other- considerations which - very - largely affect the cost’;
for example, the details of*’ construction of the kilns especially ; and in allowing ' the ‘Contragtors to burn
with-wood we insisted on all the- arrangements being brought-to as hw'h a'-class a§ p0551b1e Thus it will
be seen that the difference between the price of coal “arid wood does not repr esent 1n tlns case the dlﬂ'erence
between the cost of the:production ‘of these: bricks being burnt by coal or wood. -

173. Did you consult the Board of Directors with 1ega1d to the alterationi of bmnmrr with wood
instead of coal? No, I qnever - consulted them ‘on any’ mele techmcal pomt whlch dld not lnvolve an
expenditure ofmoney LT S RN

"By Mr. Archer.—174. Will the brrdge dcross the river be abcve the helght of the Tevel of the h1 h
flood spoken of just now? The highest flood W111 not reach to W1thm three feet of the’ under sxde of .the
glrdels of the b11(1ge across the vver. o . o e
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~.175: How much above the he10'ht of? the hrghest ﬂood is the ‘Crowi: of the hmhest arch -I could not
say without:going to. the drawings. . IR A PP

176 How-high is:theilowest? The lowest is hwher than the.iron bridge. ..

177. How much of the'entire length of waterway is taken up by the-pies, embankments, &c  to the
foot of the hill called Clerke’s Hill to the Main Road leading from Lonufmd towards Carrlck” I can 't
tell';. the plans will show:to an inch.’ I .will.answer - you.another time.: '

178. I want to know what obstruetion there is to the original water-way across that ﬁat" ‘T canniot
tell without going into the plans..-The: clear. water—way is*800 feet ﬁee from anythmg L Wlll furnish
it from the plans;:

By the Chairman. —178. I must take you baek to Camerons Hlll Wﬂl the engines take the
same rate by the altered gradient, 1 in 50, as they would by the or 1g1na1 gradient of 1 in 707 No..

.. ..179. Then I assume from that the altel ed gradlent w111 add to the cost, of woﬂqng the Lme 7 No,
it will mot..

180. In what 1espeet will it militate agamst the wmkmg of the Llne, if it does militate a0'a1nst 1t
on this altered gradient? Practically it will produce no effect: nothing that could be estimated.

181. Then it is a matter of no moment? No moment whatever, on account, of the dlstance bemcr S0
short.

By Mr. Whyte. —-182 You had a Contract as L‘nvmeer tor a Rallway in Cantelbury, New Zealand"
I was Enrrmeel in the samie. manner- as on this.®

183. Weré the terms of the Contlaet preelsely the same s, that of the Launeeston and 'Westem
Railway 7. As nearly as possible. .
184, Wlth reference to the Launceston and Western Rallway, had you the dlseletlon of giving

instructions for, supplies and materials, and glvmg dn ections gs to the conditions on which they were to be
furnished ?  Yes. ,

. 185. Is it in accordance with pr ofess1ona1 usage for the englneer to share in the commlsswns aIIowcd
to Consulting Engineers at home? Not that I am aware of ; it is not my practice.

186. -Did you construct. a bridge over the Selwyn in. Canterbury, an iron bridge? I de‘ngned one,
and it was partlally erected under Mr. MaJor, who was then my 1epresentat1ve there, but it was never
completed by us.:

187. Was that bridge swept away afterwards by a ﬂood 7 It was, it bemrr in an mcomplete state,
it never was finished ; the Contractor neglected to do some.of the most essent1a1 portions of it.

188. Will you state the difference between your estimates for the whole of the bridges in 1862 and
1867, where differences exist? M. Dowling will produce the details of the. estimates of 1862 and the
Contractors’ Schedule under the present contract, which will give each:item exactly.

By Colonel Hutchins~—189. You promised an answer .to. questlons 32 and 33, lefenmg to the
authority under which the rails were altered ? I should not like to:speak from memory; Mr. Dowling is
fully in possession of everything that has takeén place, and I must leave it to Mr. Dowling to answer.

By Mr. Archeri—190. Do you not think your estimates; based as they were on questionablé results,’
ealculated to mislead the Government, the Companv, and the purchasers of scrip; -the shar eholders, T
refer to the slopes part1cular1y, on- the Launceston and Western ‘Railway ?  That is a matter ‘of. OmeOIl
altogether. :

“The Witness withdrew.

pod
S

MR HENRY DOWLIT\TG' called in and emaminetz'.

By ‘the Chairman.—191. Your name is Henry Dowhng 7 Yes.
192. You are the Secretary to the Launceston and Western Railway Company ? .1 am.

" 198. Do you produce, in accordance with the summons of this Joint Committee, the whole of the
books, papers, and vouchers of all descriptions whatever, for their information? I do,

194. And you riow hand them in? Yes; they are in the boxes.
195. Will you now produce the Minute Book" Yes.
The Witness w1thdrew

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 1869.

Present—Mr. Dav1es, (Chairman), Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Swan, Colonel Hntchms, Mr. Maclanachan
: Mr. Whyte, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Archer. : ,
MR HENRY DOWLING ‘called in and examined.
By the Chairman.—196. Your name is Henry Dowling 2 Yes.
197. You.were one of the omgmal Promoters. of the Launceston and Western Railway were you not 7
Yes, Sir.

198. And you have been connected with all the steps taken to get the several Railway Acts passed ?
Yes, my 1mpressxon is that T have. ,
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199. Were you Secretary or -Hon. Secretary of the embryo Company which preceded the formation
of the present one ? I ask the Chairman to kindly explain what he means by.an embryo Company.

200, Was there any other Railway Company, Provisional or otherwise, in:existence - prior..to” your
being Secretary to the present one, with which you were connected 7 All Compames have Provisional
Directors, as far as, I know.

901, Was there any other Company before the present one in’ Whrch you were - actmg as Secretary ?
Yes, but it was not really a Railway Company. ,

202.- You were one of the promoters of a Carrying Company 7 Yes

203. What are the salary and emoluments of your office as Secretary at present ? .£600 a year.
204. Was that the first salary fixed ? That was the first salary fixed. '

205. And so remains ?  And so remains.

206. Will you have the kindness to explain to the Committee what are your general duties as
Secretary ? My general duties as Secretary are those which generally appertain to the office of Sccretary,
comprising the general supervision of the office.

 207. I must refer again to your salary have you never, received any increase of salary since yowr
first appointment 7 Never. : ' ' :

208. Nor have you applied to the Board of Directors for one? No.

209. At what cost were the Company induced to believe a Railway could be constructed and provided
with requisite stations, engines, carriages, and the interest during the construction covered, when the first
Railway Act was passed? £400,351: as may be found page 14, Paper No. 41, of 1863, and in
Mr. Doyne’s Report to the Directors, of 25th Tebruary, 1861, which 1 Report corresponds exactly with the
Paper of 1863.

210. You are aware that the Act amending the Act 30 Vict, No. 28 reduccd the Sum wlnch entxtled
the Company to receive £300,000 from £100,000 to £50,000? Yes.

211. Why was the 1educt10n from ;£100 000 to £50 000 made—was it asked for by the Promoters ?
Certainly.

212, Was it the opinion of the Engineers that the undertaking could be efficiently completed for the
Sum of £850,0007 Certainly: efficiently, so far as the stability of the Railway works went, but not as
regards its future orklng for that the Dxrectors depended on I‘alSIIlg‘ the addmonal Cap1tal prescmbed
by 29 Vict. No. 24. -

213. Were the Shares of the Company generally taken up in the belief that £350,000 would suffice
to open the Railway? It is quite impossible for me to say what might be the genexal opmlon I can
only speak of my own, as a large shareholder, and that of the Directors.

214. What was the opinion’ of the Board of Directors on that subject? I believe that the Directors
fully confided in the Report of their Engineers, that the Line could be opened for traffic, and the Interest
paid during construction, within the £350,000; but I am sure, from- the official papers here, that they
always. looked to the raising of the additional .£50 000 when the opening of the Line had given confidence
to financial men, and as I have had the honor of communicating to the Government, as will be found in
Letters 161, 166, 177, and 301, of the Parliamentary Conespondence (24) of 1869.

215. Do I understand you to use the word efficient, the opening of the Lme efficiently? I use
the term efficient solely as to the construction of the woxks, which the Directors understood were to bie
as sound in every respect as an Dnglish Railway,—only that it wonld be a single Line, and including
sufficient stations and railway stock for the opening of the Line for traffic.

216. Do you mean by that that the line was to be efficiently opened, or merely opened to literally
comply with the provisions of the Railway Act? I mean that I have no doubt the Directors expected a
perfectly efficient Line of Railway and works, with rolling-stock, sufficient to meet the traffic of the Dis-
trict; but I also believe that the Directors felt that if they did not succeed in raising the additional capital,
of which they had no doubt, it would'be very trying on-the machmery and rolling-stock gener ally 5 as they
were aware that these were reduced to 2 minimum.

217. Were the Promoters or the Shareholders put in possession of those views, or rather were they
not deceived, because there was reticence on the part of the Directors in giving publicity to those peculiar.
jdeas? Iam not aware of any reticence on the part of the Drrectms, and therefore cannot understand
how there could be any deception.

218. Did the Directors make any such statement as that you have already detalled to the Pl omoters
and Shareholders with regard to the raising of the additional £50,000? 1 am not aware of any official
report to that effect. I will examine the papers of the Promoters, and if T find any such document I will
give it in.

219. Were the Directors elected when the first proposal of subscribing £100,000 was made? No,
not until after the passing of the Act 80 Vict. 28.

By r. Kennerley.—220. Who were negotiating with. the Govex nment at the period, with respect to
the conditions on which the loan wus to:be granted ? - The .original negotiation with the Govemment took
place on the part of a body of gentlemen at that time called Plomoters of the Launceston and Western
Railway: the names of the gentlemen replesentlng those Promoters aré in the Pleamble to Act 29 Viet.
No 24. S

" By the Chairman.—~221.-When did the Company. commence.its existence ?-- The Company actumlly
came into existence by the election of Directors on 25th March, 1867.

222. You are aware-of Mr.. Doyne’s .letter to the.Gommissioners, 5th Novembet, 1868; stating that
the Railway could be opened for traffic for a sum not exceeding £850,000 (page 13, paper 16 1868) (A ¢
am. .
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223, In the face of that knowledge the Dlrectors, a8’ you say, had the idea-of raxsmg the additional
£50,000 ‘after the. Line was openéd? 77 1 believe the’ Directors never altered their opinion on’that subject
_ From the time I have first:named; a8 w111 be found in’ thelr‘letters to the Government of a recent date, Whlch
A have.already given you. . "~ : I

224. Was the £50,000 paid into a Bank in comphance with the 4th Sectxon of 30 Vlct No. 28, to

" the credit ‘of the Launcestor and Western Rallway ‘Company and the Commissioners?. ' Yes. .I* pr oduce

the pass<book of the Bank, showing £50,000 paid  into the Union Bank on'January 80th, 1868 to the
credit of Launceston and Western Rallwav Company, Limited, and the Commissioners.

225. Was.that subsc ribed bond Jide, or was'the amount raised- partly by subscrlptron and partly by the
Directors becommg security ‘to the-Bank' for' the difference between the ‘amount subseribed” ard the
deficiency, if any ? - There was a bond fide subscription list registered i in the Supreme Court for- £52; 680,
the arrangement with respect to it béing that the subscribers should pay in eight instalménts of three toriths
-each, by promissory notes. Those securmes, as far as then  collected, ‘were lodrred with the Union Bank,
and twelve gentlemen entered into,.a joint and -several bond in the- penal sum of - £25,000. . The. £50, 000
was then paid by those gentlemen. to the Chairman and Directors of the Company, and the Chanman and
Directors gave. their cheque. to, the Union Bank: for the sum-set out in that pass-book.

226. Does the Union: Bank hold any Bond over the Rallway Woxks for' the repayment of that
:amount? None whatever, - o

227.- Nor otlier security whatever 2’ Nor other securrty whatever

228. Are you a Shareholder yourself, and if so, to what amount'? T hold 58 shares.in. the lStocli ‘of
the Company, £1160, all paid up. "

220, When you took shares were. you under the 1mpressmn that the Lme could be eﬁic1ently opened
for £350, 000? When I took shares I was under the precise 1mpress1on I stated I believed the Directors
to be under, and I still remain under that i 1mpressmn Co co

By M. Wlfyte —=230. That impression was that it- Would cost ' £400, 000 ? Yes.

, By Mr, Archer~231. Do you not think many persons were ; 1nduced to take shares under the
convictioir that £350,000 would: be all that would be requ]red for the . said Railway, for construction and
efﬁmently working ? * T don’t think so. " I'never heard an instance.  °

© By Mr. Lewis—232. Was, the ‘Shére List, ‘as, 'it"emsts at the present time, ﬁlled up befoxe the
reduction took” place from £400,000 to "£350, 000” Certamly not. It.was the difficulty of getting a
Share List for the original capltal which kept back in my opinion, many persons from subscribing, from
its entire "uncertainty. '~ ‘That led to the. appllcatxon to Government to ask the Parliament to allow the
Company to‘commence operations on raising £50,000 capltal When that consent was obtained, successful
efforts’ were ‘made to complete the £50,000° Subscnptron List.

233. Does it now appear to you to be practicable to obtain the sum required to complete the w01ks by
Shares 7" I do not think 1t practlcable, for the reason stdted in the Corlespondence, (No. 24.).

. By the Chairman.—234. Was your salary as Secretary to the Launceston and Western Rallway
Company. sanctioned by the', Comm1ssmners” I answer venelally it was, apploved and they have
always paid. . :

235. Was it wrth the concurrence of the Commrssmners" Yes, w1th the full concurrence of the
‘Commissioners ; their concurrence.has been practically shown -in-signing the cheques for the monthly
payments. The salary. was first ﬁxed 28th July, 1868. . I never received any until'then.” ...« . . -

. 236. Has the Comipany concluded all: its arrangements with the owners and- -occupiers of- puvate land
through Whlcll the Railway passes ? Very nearly so. There are but 2 remaining for settlement.

. 237. Have you a nominal listof: the'parties claiming’ compensation from the Railway Company, and

a list of the- amounts claimed? I have, showing acreage -amount of- claims, amounts awarded, and law'
costs in each case. (Paper B. handed in.) This paper is made up to the latest moment, and is about
£1000 in excess of the-estimate sent in on the 28th July..

. 9238. Did the Board of Directors send the, orders to England for the plant xallway stocl«., &c tlnouon
the Directory, or were they sent by the Engineers ? The Engineers in the first -place apphed to, the
Board of Directors for permission to order, and then reported: theu orders to the Board. .

+239. Was not.a Resolution -passed by the Directors:in October:last with: regard. to tlns subJect 7.
On the 18th October, 1868, there was a motion that, in the ordering of any materials for rallway work, it
be submitted to the Board for their, approval before any action was taken. - Ever, ytlnng had , been ordered
then except calrlawes, as will be seen by the Parl1amenta1 Y, gorr espondence /

"240. Have you in your capamty of Secr etary any-. emoluments by . ‘way of commissions or otherwise. on’
these Railway works 7 None whatever ; and I may say I am bound. to give my whole time in consideration_
-of the salary. . :

o 241 In 1efe111ng bach to this Resolutlon of 13 October, 1868 vsull you 1nfoun tlle Commlttee What
gave rise to sich a Resoluuon 7 My. 1mp1essmn is. that it arose- from .some Member of ; the Dn‘eetmy
considering that ‘detailed orders should go home through the Direcfory. ! -

- 242, Was not the Resolutlon arrived at in consequence of some mlsundel standmg about the 1nv1tat10ns
for tenders foir Railway carriages ? . I thmk not ; but the mlsundelstandmg was as to 01de1s whlch had
gone home: through-the Engineers. : ;

"~ 242. Haye the’ Comm1s51onexs been 1efused access to cer taln lettels when asked f01 Ln never, Lnew :
stich a ‘thing. - 1 refused Mr. Kemp once, and I; think I might put it to.the Committee’ whethel I might "
not state it. . You will see it by the_cor respondence, and the. Attorney-General’s opinion. Mr. Kemp was
refused tolook at & Colonial Sécretary’s letter ‘a_quiarter'of an hout' before the Board sat.”  The Com-
missioners were never refused, nor wére ‘the: Diréttors ‘ever refused.” ' The 'question “was* raiséd by “Mr.



Kemp whether he:had not a right as a Director to see any papers in-the office..: T had very good reason in
the interests of the Company f01 denying that Mr. Kemp, was:a Director. unless the Board was sitting, and
I refused him a letter which he would: have had the, opportunity of hearing read.in.the meeting of the- Board.
I refused it because he claimed to take copies of letters which had not been before the Board at all, and
then to use them.in his capaclty of Commissioner. . : . T

243. By that T assume, you d1d not recocrmse the Commlssmners as Du'ectoxs unhl they sat at the
Boazd unde1 ‘the-6th Sectlon 30; Vlct 287 Clearly 503.and the. Att01 ney-Gene1 al has fully conﬁrmed my
opinion.

244. In-the, pmnted comespondence (lettel 120 palatrraph 6 paper 24), you have styled yomself'

as ¢ Manager as well as Secretary,—will you state your authority for assuming that distinction?- It was

an.error on:my part; the word “ Manager” arising from the fact that the motion.on my appointment was

that, X should be appomted “ Secretary and Manager,” and I ovexlooked an amendment stating that I
should be ‘Secr etary. It avas never used except in that case. . ... o S

245. TIh the whole of the printed correspondence before * the Commlttee and ‘Governnient have you
expressed your.own views,. or those of the Directory for whom' you were- acting as Sec1eta1y” In general
cases, where time had allowed, I have submitted drafts of letteis to the: Boald but'in most cases, as the
Committee, will see, the Semetary is obliged to. take. the responsibility of  the corlespondence, waiting the
confirmation or otherwise of the Dlrectmy I am happy to say that in my case I never had a Tetter
rejected ; wherever a question has arisen my action has been confirmed.. I may therefore say the corre-
spondence really is the correspondence of ‘the Directors.

246. But was not a Board meeting held on the 24th Novembe last, at which a resolution was as passed
d1sapp10vmrr of your replying to the Government correspondence without pr ev1ously submitting it to the
Board? ~On-the 24th November it was moved, “That the Sécretary having replied to the concspondence
referredto the Directors by the Colonial Semetaly on-the 19th instant, the Board of Directors d¢ not ap--
prove of such reply having been made before the correspondence had beén considered by the Board.”
Motion put and lost. D1v1s1on .called for—Ayes 8, Noes 6. The names were, Ayes; Dodery, Scott,
Tyson; Nocs, Gleen, Grubb, Webster, Sherwin, C rookes Bartley. It was then proposed, ¢ That this.
Board approves of the letter of the Secretary in replylng' to the Colonial Secretary’s letter of the 19th.”
On a division, Ayes 6— Crookes, Gr een, Sherwin, Grubb, Robertson, Baltley, Noes 2= Scott, Dodery..

247. Was there not another occasion, 18th May, 1869, on which your, conduct was d1sappxoved of in
respect to correspondence ? 18th May, 1869, attention ‘was called by Mt. Scott to the Secretary’s letter
" of the 12th instant to the Colonial Secretary ; and he moved, “ That the letter addressed by the Secretary to
the Government of the 12th May, with reference to allowances to Comimissioners, exceeds the instructions
given to him by the Board,” and this being seconded by Mr. Tyson, was lost. -A.. division was called for-
Ayes 5—Scott, Tyson, Dodery, Kemp, Innés; Noes 6—Crookes, Gleen, W. Gibson, Robertson, Gr ubb,
. Bartley.

248. Did not some one or more of the Directors make complaint to the Board that 1uf'01 mation
respecting the Longford Bridge Liad been withheld at the last annual meeting. (Mmutes of 27th April or
4th May)? Onthe 27th Apul a question was raised, a question of ‘privilege by Mzr. Dodery, ¢ My. Dodery,
having brought under the notice of the Board that certain inforniation he had 4sked from the Secr. etary with
reference to the Longford Viaduct had been withheld by that Officer, the explanation of the Secretar y was
deemed by the Board perfectly satisfactory.”

249. On the 21st July, 1868, when Mr. Doyne asked authox ity to order the South Esk Br 1dcre, did he
inform the Board that he had altered the plans, and that a considerable increase of expenditure would be the
result? I don’t believe he did at that time ; there is nothlng on the Mlnutes—the I\/Enute is snnply' “ That
such authority be given.”

250. Was there any thing said a.t any time- Wlth regald to the incr eased cost on the altered. plans when
the authority was asked for sending home for the bridge? T first heard of the alteration .of the bridge in
March 1868.

251. Was it then intimated that additional cost would be the conseqnence” I don’t think it was.

252. But had it ever been intimated to the Board previous to sending home the order that there would
be an additional cost to that which was originally estimated? I don’t remember that anything came up
about it until the Contract was reported from England.

By Mr. Archer.—253. Was the Commissioners” consent obtained when the proposed alteration was
made in the cost of the bridge and rails -and before the same were ovdered by the Engineers? Not to my
knowledge, and in the corr espondence it says the Comimissioners represent that they knew nothing of it.

254. Did not the Act make it necessary that the consent of the Commissioners shiould be obtained
before any alteration was made in the Contract? Of course it does, but there was no alteration in the
terms of the Contract: there was no Contraét. :

955. Then you do not consider that the estimate of rails and brld%e formed part of .the said Contract
and construction of the Railway? It certainly formed no part of the Contract, inasmuch as it was always
determined that the Contractors for the works should not supply. the iron; I "wnderstand it never is done:
but the Commissioners had before them the estimates of the bridge and rails in J uly.

256' That is the latest estimates before the same were'ordered? Yes, before the same were ordered.

By Mr. Lewis—257. Did the Engineers give the extra weight and estimated extra cost of the bridge
as altered before they had the assent of the Directors to forward the order? I think not. I have stated
in the correspondence that I believe they were not aware of the weight until they got the quantities from .
hiome. I believe they were as much surprised as the Board as to the weight.

258. Did the Engineers submit the plan of the bridge as altered? Yes, .in the prevxous March.

259. Wlthout any estimate of the probable cost? Just the drawings.
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- By Mr. Archer.—~260. Then ‘you .consider the item' of rails ‘and bridge formed no part of the Con-
tract into. which .the .Company entered ‘with.'the Governinent for the. construction -6f the sdid. Line- for”
£350,0007,. There was.no. Contract-with the Government ;butthe Company mcluded the estlmate of ralls
anid brrdge in the £850,000. ¥ N I :

By.Mr. Kennerley.—261. But the orwmal estimate- of £6600:for the budge was: mcluded'? Yes 3
my:own opinion has always been .that.the - transposxtlon of thesé two-items’ of. £11,000 and - £6600 caused
the confusion;; .but.I do not beheve that-any official communicationt was made respecting the increased cost.

By the Chasrman.—262. I refer you to Mr. Kemp’s letter. 204, page 83-(24).? .. Yes ;. I have it.

+263. ' Will you read the 2nd. paragraph? Yes. ¢ After previous: correspondence -I will-not occupy

your attention with the.difference between myself and Messrs."Doyne -and Company as to-the increased

cost of the Longford v1aduct consequent on their change of -plans.. The extent.of .the.increase will shortly

be known, and until then I can. wait.. .- But the Directors, of the Company have shown, by: Resolutlon, that

THEY Weré taken unawares by change of plans; and I can confidently. repeat, that so was 1T relied that

the orders ‘wliich " they would ‘transmit ‘to England’ would not be’ different from' the schedile of | quantities
furnished to the" Commissioners.in' October; 1867, and the estimates of the 16th J u1y, 1868, prmted by

order of Parliament, otherwise I should not have failed to advise my fellow Commissioners.” "

+.264. Having read-that paragraph, what Minute was made by your ‘Board-of Directory i in consequence
of the action'taken by-thé surprise of the Directors?" On the 6th. October, Mr. Kemp ‘brought undér the
notice of the Board, that in the letter of the Engineers to Mr.’ Hemans; dited 10th J uly, read during Mr..
Kemp’s absence at Melbourne, he found that they had adopted a 72 1b. rail in lied of & 65 Ib. rail, as given
in Mr. Doyne’s Schedule of quantities’ furnished ,to’ him, and which involves an -additional.. cost of nearly
£5000. 1t was moved by Mr. Green, and seconded by Mr. Webster-—* That the. Engineers be: requested
to explam the cir cumstances ;under wh1ch those, alteratrons had been made That was crried. . '

265. Did the Englneers comply with that Resolution? I have no doubt of it.  Onthe '7th Octobe1
I forwarded a copy of the Resolution to the. Engineers, and I have a minute on thve 13th October of a
1ePly of the 12th, . I will produce, the reply to-morrow. :

By My, Archer --966. From the answer given by you Just now 1t would appea1 that thrs statement
by Mr. Kemp was incorrect, that Mr. Kemp, the official, Commissioner, was not made aware of the
alteratmn in the bridge and rails | M. Kemp says he was not made aware of it? (Lietter 204.) - T believe
T am correct in my former reply, and I am confirmed in that view by the letter of the Engineers (p. 189,
Addenda), in which they say :—* Mr. Kemp was acquainted with thése ' designs long béfore the Contract
with Messrs. Overend & Robb was let, or any orders sent home for iron work. Under these circum-
stances it .did not occur to us to-be necessary to eall the attention of -the Governmént to the fact that the
work could not be. done with tlie weight before named. If necessary at.all, it was:clearly ‘the:duty.of Mr.
Kemp to call the attention of his colleagies to this patent fact, that they mlght advrse the Gover nment as
they thought best.” .

The Witness withdrew.

FRIDAY, SLPTLMBER 24,, 1869.

.Prcsent—Ml Davres (Chauman), ‘Mr. Whyte, Mr. Lew1s, My Swan, Mr. Maclanachan, M. Alchel,
: Colonel Hutchins,” Mr. Kennerley.

. MR. HENRY DOWLING recalled and examined.

By the. Chairman.—267. Do. you now furnish' the reply of the Engmeels to -the 1esolut10n of the
“Board. of Directors of the i6th October, 18687 Yes 5 the reply of the 12th- Octobe1 The. paragraph on
permanent -way is. the answer. c '

(Lette1 marked C., 12th October, 1868, put in.) :

268. When the estimate was first given for the 65lbs. rails, that was in connection with, the first
estimate for the-sum of £850,000 to opén the line for traflic, was it not? I don’t know anythmg about the
-B5lbs. rails of my own knowledge, only as I have seen it-in the published papers.

269 Did the Engineers estimate oﬂic1a11y to the Board of Dirdetois their alterauon from 65 Ibs. to
721bs.? T never heard of aniy alteration’'even’ of the 751bs. in the original Répoit to 651bs., or from
651bs. to 72 1bs., but I see'by the printed papers that such a Report was made to the Commlssroners

By Colornel Hutchins.—270. But the Commissioners did.not authonse the alteratlon” N 0, not to
my knowledge ; it was merely reported by them to'the Government ind uly, 1868 ‘as I gathel ﬁ om the
printed papers ‘

By Mr. Whyte—271. There was a dev1at10n of course? 1 understand s0 f'rom the papels .

: By the Chairman.—272. Have you any doubt,about 1t ? None at all.”

273. Do you know of your own knowledge that thele was a dev1at10n ? Yes 5 that has been stated
in the resolution of tlie ‘5th October, Just read.

' By’ Colonel: Hutchins.~ 274: Then as gual dians of the pubhc funds ought not the Commlssmnels to
be informed of every detail of disbursements? I understood’ they wer e; fully.- e

275. With respect to this substltutron 9 T am not aware of any pa1 tlculal case 5 it is not w1thm my
department.

276. Are you aware, as the Secretary to the Companv, that by t}us depaltlue ﬁom the 65 lbs to thie
72 1bs. rails an additional cost is 1mposed on the Company of ;b5000 2 'N 0, I am: not

s
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By the Chairman—277. But. all these deviations as to the rails have been-carried out by the
Engineers, Messrs. Doyne, Willett, & Co. without. any official communication or 'authority from the"
Directors? There was no direct authority as I am aware, but- I am-aware that sections of all drawings.
were submitted to the Board and Commissioners in March, 1868. o oo .

278. That is'not an answer. to thé question. Are you or are you mot aware, in.your ‘capacity as
Secretary, that this departure and additional expenditure were made without the authority and knowledge
of the Board of Directors? T have no official communicationas Secretary. with regard to-any alteration.

279. Nor the Board? . Nor the Board. . .

By Mr. Snan.—280. Do you know whether or.not the alleged increased weight of the rails will
increase the cost of the line by the sum of £5000?. I am aware it has been so alleged. :

'281.'T want to know if you are aware of it as a fact? 1 don’t believe it. My own opinion is that it
is not right, and that the whole amount of alterations in the weight of iron will not much exceed £5000.

282. Can you tell us precisely what is the difference in cost between the light rails and heavy rails on
the whole line? No, I could not without carefully looking into the matter; it is really not a matter that
should be submitted to me. ‘

283. You have stated that the increased cost of the use of heavier rails would not be £5000: can you
give us information as to how much below £5000 it would be? No, I cannot. I have never made any
calculation in details as to any one particular item, but I have on the whole, and I make it only £5083 on
the whole of the alterations.

284. Alterations as to iron work ? As to the weight of iron work.

By M. Lewis.—285. Were the deviations of the weight in rails, and the consequent increase of that
item in the permanent way, ever brought under the consideration of the Board of Directors and the Com-
missioners? Not previous to the transmission of the orders. Co

286. Then did the Engineers make that alteration without in any way consulting the Board and the
Commissioners ?  Yes, so far as my official knowledge extends they never consulted the Board on engineer-
ing details. :

287. Had the Engineers the option of making the deviation without consulting the Board and Com--
.missioners? Clearly they had. .

288. And could that apply to a larger sum:than £5000 of material or works? It appears to me clearly
it could. ‘

289. What I want to know is, is the Company in respect of construction of this work and the cost of”
it entirely in the hands of the Engineers? I think so, as far as the professional questions go: that the’
Company have, in fact, reposed entire confidence in them as the Engineers of the Company, and that ex- -
presses that it would leave such things to them. ' :

290. Leave them to make such alterations of the plans and specifications as they may deem advisable
at any time? No, I don’t think the Engineers are placed in that position ; but in any serious alterations
in the plans—as, for instance, in the gradient or otherwise of the Line—they would consult the Board.

201. Then the increase in the weight of the rail is a minor consideration as compared to an alteration in
the gradient or a material deviation in the leh%th of the Line? T think so; because in those estimates they
had provided for contingencies a sum of £10,000, and the increase in the cost of rails had to do in some
measure with the increased rate in the market at the time the order was estimated and the time it was
executed.

By Colonel Hutchins.—292. Are we to understand you to say it is discretionary with the Engineers to
make alterations involving additional cost? I don’t wish to be understood .altogether so; but I say, as
professional advisers of the Company, great discretion has been allowed them in questions affecting the
permanency of the Railway ; and in illustration of that I may add, that there are occasional minor altera-
tions as they proceed,—a culvert might be left out in one place and put in another,—and they are reported
to the Board and Commissioners. ‘ _ :

By Mr. Swan.—293. In your estimate of £5080 for increased cost of iron, do you put-thatsum as the
increased cost in the English market, or do you.include freight and charges up to the time of laying the
rails on the Line? I do not include freights and charges ; % confine myself simply to the increased price
of the contracts over the estimates. I may add, if I were to include freight and commission it might make
a difference of £11,250, as stated in the Paper 1st September. Both freights and insurance are very-
largely in excess of the estimates. '

By the Chairman.—294. How many Directors compose the Board?  Fifteen, Sir.

9295. How are they elected? They were elected by Shareholders at public meeting assembled, and
under the rules of the Company.

296, And all of them were elected in public meeting? Excepting in the case of ,1'etii'ement of any
of the elected Members, then they are filled up by the Directors.

297. What is the original number allowed by law ? TFifteen by the rules of the Comi;an)'.

!

298. How long is it since any of those Directors retired by rotation ? They don’t retire by rotation..

299. Then they are a permanent body? They are a permanent body during the construction of the-
Line, I take it. I may state, of course, except in cases of disqualification.

300. By what authority do they remain a permanent body in that respect? By a vote of the Share-
holders in public meeting assembled.

301. Do not the Acts of Parliament provide for the election of the Directors and their retirement by
rotation annually ? No; the Acts of Parliament make no such provision.
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302. Under what law are your Directors elected ? - Under the provisions in 23 Vict. No: 12; known
as the Joint Stock Companies Act, which Act authorises the Company to make rules, among other -things;
for the election.of the Directors, .. - - C o T e

303. Did your Company make rules under that Act ?- Yes, Sir,

'304. Will you read to the Committee the rule authorising the Company to elect their Directors per-
manently, if such exist? Yes. The second special resolution of this meeting is as follows :—¢ It is also
tesolved and agreed that the Regulations and Table B., Nos. 49, 50, and 63, .and the Regulations of
‘Articles of Association, Nos. 12, 16, and 17, so far as they affect the future elections of Directors, shall
cease to apply, and no election of Directors by the Shareholders shall take place until the personal responsi-
bilities incurred by the said Directors are satisfied by the Company ; and the Directors shall fill vacancies

occurring in the Directory by the appointment of qualified Shareholders; and such Directors so appointed
shall hold office until all liabilities as aforesaid shall have ceased.”

305. Then the whole of the body are now rendered permanent till all: the liabilities of the Company
are swept away,—paid off 7 Until all the liability of the Company to them ceases. In this respect my
former answer I find to be incorrect as to their continuance until the construction of the line is complete.

/806. The certificates for .the payinent of the Contractors are brought before the Directors monthly,
are they not 7 Yes. ' '

307. Have a majority of the Commissioners been satisfied with the data furnished by these certificates ?

No.

308. In consequence of that dissatisfaction have the Directors demanded additional data from the
Engineers—1I refer you to the original Resolution .of 25th May last? Yes; at the meeting of the
Directors on that date, it was moved by Mr. Grubb and seconded by Mr. Robertson :—¢ That two of the
Commissioners having absolutely declined to sign the cheque on the last monthly certificate of the Con-
tractors unless the Directors will agree to demand from the Engineers that the data set forth -in the annexed
‘Memorandum of this date marked A. be supplied to the Board within ten days from this date, in
accordance with the Form marked B. also hereunto annexed, and continue to furnish the same with' each
certificate,—Resolved .that the Secretary forward to the Engineers the said demand, namely,—that the data
set forth in the annexed Memorandum, May 25th, marked A., be supplied to the Board within ten

days from this date, in accordance with the Form B. also hereunto annexed,—and continue to furnish the
same with each certificate.” Co . . :

309.. Was any reply elicited from the Engiﬁéel-s to that; and if so,vwill yﬁu produée it? Yes.
(Handed in, marked D., page 96, Paper 24.) .

310, Then Messrs. Doyne, Major, and Willett declined to abide by the request of the Commissioners,
as appears by their letter 2 Yes. . -

311. Did the Directors take any-further action in.that matter? was not that Motion rescinded in
.July last ? It was, on the 20th July last. ~ :

312. Will you read the Resolution? It was moved by Mr. Grubb, seconded by Mr. Gibson,—
¢ That the Resolution of which the following is'a copy was, on the 25th day of May last, proposed to this
Board at the suggestion of Mr. Kemp, with the view, as then distinctly stated by him, of inducing M.
Innes to sign the cheque on the ninth monthly certificate, then over due to the Contractors ; viz.—(vide the

" Resolution, supra.) That upon such Resolution being proposed, a Deputation from the Board, consisting
“of Mr. William Gibson and Mr. Grubb, waited on Mr. Innes at the Office of the Commissioners to
" ascertain from him whether, if such a demand were made by the Directors, he would sign such. cheque;
‘to which enquiry, Mr. Innes, without directly pledging himself to sign it, replied that such demand being’
made would have great weight in inducing him to do so: and the whole tenor of his reply was such as to
_lead the deputation to believe that such would be the result of such demand; that, upon the Deputation
returning to the Board and communicating the result of their interview with Mr. Innes, the said Reso-
tion was put by the Chairman and carried, and such demand on the Engineers was forthwith made by the .
Secretary : that on the same day, shortly after the Deputation left Mr. Innes, he addressed a note to M.
Grubb as follows :— , . : o )
. _ 95th May, 1869.
My pear MRr. GruUss, : - . o e

WHILE the understanding on which you and Mr. Gibson left me is fresh on my mind, I desire to.put it on
paper. 1 distinctly decline to enter into any engagement, or bargain, or consideration of any resolution the
Directory may adopt, calling upon their Engineer to comply with the demands of the Commissioners as to_the form

- of Monthly Certificates to be furnished with the accounts of Messrs. Overend & Robb. - But if, irrespective of any
. understanding with me, the Company require their Engineer to give the.certificates demaunded by the Com-
missioners, the Company having taken that step would be a very strong inducement to me to tuke upon myself the
responsibility of signing the cheque for the last month ; but I reserved my decision on that matter till after my
" feturn to Hobart Town by to-night’s mail. ’ ' ‘ ' : LD
o _ (Signed) ~ F. M. INNES.
That, notwithstanding such demand on the Engineers was so. made by the Directors under the full
impression, founded onhis said reply to the Deputation and his subsequent note to Mr. Grubb, that.he
- would sign stich cheque, he refused and persisted in his refusal to' do so. That, as the sole and avoweéd
object was defeated by Mr. Innes under the trying circumstances aforesaid, such Resolution be now
. expuriged, and a.copy of this Resolution.be forwarded by the ‘Secretary to the Engineers.”” The word
“ expunged” being replaced by “rescinded,” that is the Resolution as earried. o C
313. Was there a division on that ?. Yes.: - IERE S C
: . 314.. Will:you read.the names? . Ayes—Crookes; Button, R. Green, " Grubb; ‘W. Gibson; ‘Bartley.
. Noes—W ebster, Dodery, Scott, Joseph .Archer..: . .. REE e

815. What has been the ultimate result of that rescinding of the resolution, azid tlie Engineers’ . refusal
to furngsh the-data?" The ultimate result ‘was an’ appeal to the Executive, and an arfangement with regard
to the future.



-

18

316. Will you state briefly what was the arrangement?. There was an adjustment of the difficulty,
for which see letters 230 to 240 inclusive, p. 118, No. 24. L . .

317. Those papers explain the arrangement? Yes, taken in connection ‘with the Memorial to the
Government found in the same papers, at p. 94. : ‘

818. Is there any question of dispute between the Contractors and the Company about deductions on
extra works since March last? . The dispute, I take the Chairman to refer to, would rather.be not on
deductions, but on the principle of calculating the extra works under the terms of the Contract, and which
dispute was reported to the Board by the Engineers on the 80th March, 1869, in the form of copies of
correspondence -between the Contractors and the Engineers. (Correspondence marked E. put in.) Thisis
a question that must be ultimately decided by arbitration, the amount being £2685 15s. :

319. By Mr. Whyte—~—Does that refer to one portion of the side cuttings? That was the item then
in dispute. .

- 320. The principle contended for in the correspondence would apply to all the cuttings, I presume?
Only where alterations from the specification took place. ’ : '

By the Chairman.—321. 'What are the powers the Engineers have given themselves in the conditions
of Overend & Robb’s Contract? The powers, of course, are very full. There is a copy at p. 76,
Paper 24.

322. Mr. Theodore Bartley is one of the paid Commissioners, is he not, for the Company ? Yes.

323. Is he not, also, one of the negociators upon applications for compensation for land ? He is the
sole negociator on behalf of the Company. A

324. What are the salary and emoluments of that office? That question has never arisen at the
Board. »

825. Do I understand that Mr. Bartley performs the duty of valuator of the Company gratuitously,
or does he get paid by fees, or in any manner whatsoever? There has been no demand for fees ; my own
opinion is that some arrangement will have to be made.

. 326. Are there any minutes as to the appointment and emoluments ? Yes. On 24th July, 1868, Mr.
Robertson moved, and Mr. Crookes seconded, that Mr. Bartley be requested to act as Negociator in the
purchase of land. That is the minute.

327. Are you enabled to say if that gentleman is acting honorarily or otherwise in that capacity? I
can only say as before, that no question has been raised as to emoluments. But my impression always has
been that there will be some charge for commission made to the Board, but I have never had any commu-
nication with any one on the subject.

By Mr. Whyte.—328. At the present moment it’s an open question what amount Mr. Bﬁrtley will
receive, or whether he will receive anything at all? I consider so.

329. Is any member of Mr. Bartley’s family in the employ of the Company or the Engineers? One
of his sons was employed for a short time in connection with making copies of land plans for the
notices issued by the Solicitors. :

330. He is not employed now? No.

By the Chairman.—331. In the paper, B, you put two items, a trifling charge of £19 18s., and
fees for reference, &c. £160 13s., will you explain what those two items mean? The trifling charge here
referred to has been mostly charges for my own journeys to meet Mr. Bartley and the landowners, and
adjudicate, The fees for references were principally paid, if I remember rightly, to Mr. Goldie and others
appointed by the parties claiming as their valuators. The Chairman is aware we have to pay on both sides.
The Committee will see that, considering the large interests concerned, the Company has been very for-
tunate in the matter of reference ; there has never been a formal deed of arbitration, and the large expenses
of law connected with formal arbitrations have been saved. That, I think, is due very much to the con-
ciliatory conduct of Mr. Bartley.

332. Do you think Mr. Bartley’s appointment by the Company as negociator was compatible with his
position of Crown Commissioner? I do; perfectly compatible. I should be sorry to express any
difference of opinion between the Government and myself on that point. The Government thought so.

333. You have given an estimate to the Government of the additional cost to complete the railway?
Yes, by order of the Board. '

834, In round numbers, your first estimate was £80,000, was it not? Not the first estimate. The
last estimate sent in was 18th August (p. 180).- That was £79,453, but that includes another year’s interest
at 6 per cent. on £300,000, and therefore was not for completion of the Rail, as the Chairman put it.
I beg to refer to my letter 301, (p. 179), which suggests the acceptability to the Government of a year’s
interest being provided.

335, What assurance have this Committee now that your estimate of 18th August is correct; and
how have you arrived at that conclusion? The mode of dealing with it is in the printed paper, 1st
September, 1869. I can give no further assurance than that great care was exercised in the collection
of details, in which I was assisted by one or two men of business on the Board of Directors.

By Mr. Whyte—~336. Is it your conviction that that amount will be sufficient to complete the
Railway ? Yes, and to meet those emergencies which I have stated.

337. And no larger amount will be requisite? As I think.

By the Chairman.—338. Do I understand you to say that, in the event of the money being granted
for completion of the work as required, as requested in your letter of 18th August, no further

application to the country will be made in this matter on that point? I feel satisfied so, and I believe
the Directors generally feel so: the data on. which to calculate these amounts are now reduced to.so



19:

limited a compass, .inasmuch -as-all_the principal . works are’ done: the great. works of the line ip to
Longford Station are really practlcally completed. : As I said in- my paper of - the Ist September, I would

nlpt sp}eak 50 conﬁdently that each item of detail would apply, but - I believe. the gross sum’. would ‘cover .
the whole,, .- . -

839. In your correspondence to. the. Government ‘on. thls pomt the Company have asked for this
additional-advance on the security now in the: possession of.the Government under the Railway Act,
have they not? The Company ask that Parliament be advised to advance the money:on the lien which
the Government have under the 8th Section. There is a letter on the subject (vidé p. 161, Paper No.24.) .

:840, : Have the persons liable for a re—guarantee in the. Railway District been consulted in any way or'
manner on. this new proposal 7 Not:at all; the- Board clearly consider . it the duty of Government to
advance on the lien, or to release the lien, as advocated in the letter just mentioned.

'341. Have the Bodard of Directors made any effort to- dispose of additional Shares for the amount as
required, -or to:raise the remaining capital of £50;000? They are quite aware, from prior efforts and

assertions made by parties, that they have no means of ralsmg the capital, and mo.active effort has been
made by the Directors with that view.

-342, Is it proposed that the Railway District shall be addltlonally taxed to pay the interest of thlS sum.

of money now asked to be advanced to the Company ? The Board have never adopted that vxew, and’
never made such a proposal. . : '

343. And how is it proposed by the Board of Directors that the interest of this proposed advance shall

be met? I don’t remember that the question has been under dlscusswn My own opmlon is.thatit should
come out of the Railway revenue.

-344. Do ‘you think under the re—guarantee Clause of the Rallway Act that those who have e~
guaranteed should have had the opportunity of expressing their opinions as to this proposed additional loan
or advance by the Government? It is a question on.which I have not-formed any opinion ; my own
personal feeling has always been—which is that of the Board—that the Government have not done anytlung
yet, and that they should advance the money on that lien or else release the lien.-

345. When the first proposal by the Promoters was blought under the consider ation of Parliament,
you were connected with it as a Promoter ? Yes; I was President of - thé Promoters.

846. How many’ Directors. was it proposed should constitate ‘the Board at that time? - I don’t
remember that among the promoters that ever arose. When it came to the question of orgdnisation they

named, as Companies generally do, a 1a1 ge body of Provisional Directors, and thev had to consider the
question.

[

847.° Did you not yourself propose, after all the preliminary arrangements-and the Company formed,
that five Directors should be appointed by the Government, and that the whole and sole control of the
management should be vested in them? No; that pr oposal was really the first -submitted to the"publie,
that the Government should advance the money, the Districts consenting to guarantee half the interest, the
Government nominating a certain number of Commissioners and the Districts ‘the others, and that those
persons should constitute the Railway Board as you would have a "Road Trust. But they did not. con-
template the finding of capital by private parties in the district. * The whole sum required was estimated ;
£400,000 (the original estimate by Mr. Alexr. Clerke and others was £500,000); the Commlsswne 8
g0 appomted to manage the whole matter, the Districts paying half the interest, and when the loan ‘should
be paid off the Railway to be the property of the District.

By Mr., Archer.—348. Does not the Act make it necessary that the consent of the Commissioners
and the sanction of the Governor in Council should be obtained before any altération was mdde in the
Contract or estimates for rails and other portions of the said Railway and works, so far as ‘they are-to be
imported from abroad? I don’t read the-Act s50. My opinion on the question will be found very fully set
out in letters written by direction of the Board (in Parliamentary Paper 24), and I shall be able to produce
to this Committee such high-legal opinions upon the views so expressed as T think will satisfy them that
neither myself nor the Board of Directors have made any great mistake in their interpretation of the Act:
the ' Board of Directors have taken the - opinions of.two of the leading Counsel of Victoria: I shall b
happy to produce-these-to the Comm1ttee at then next meetmg . : ’

The Wltness thhdlew

- Moxpay, ‘SEPTEMBER 27, 1869

.Present——Mr Dawes, (Chanman), Mr. Maclanachan, Mr, Kennelley, Mr. Whyte, M1 , Lewis, Mr.
) _ . Axrcher, Colonel. Hutchins, Mr. Swan.

MR. HENRY DOWLING recalled and examined.

‘By the Ckau man.—349. Hive you the Case on which the opinions of Counsel referred to at the Tast
meeting were taken ? Yes, I produce it. The.same Case was put to. Mr. Wilberforce Stephen and Mr.
Fellows, and thetéfore ‘the Case stated in one, of ‘¢ourse, represents both. - Biit the opinions of’ the two
'-Counsel are supphed I put in both, one by M1 Stephen and the other by Mr. Fellows ‘

~(Case and oplmons put in, marked F. )

By Mr. Whyte.—350. As Sec1eta1y you take mmutes of' ploceedlngs of the Meetmgs of the
“Directory, and read them:at succeedlng meetlngs” Yes, the minutes are read m the usual way .at the
ensuing meetmgs c o -

351 :And you 1ead all co1respondence 7. And I read all correspondence.
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352. Have you always been in the habit of reading correspondence at length, or have you at any”
period confined yourself to making a statement of the purport of letters received? To the best of my
belief I have always read correspondence in and out at length. - . :

353. Does the Directory leave to you to frame letters in accordance with instructions, and transmit them
-without reference? 1 have stated before thatin some cases I have submitted drafts where time allowed,
but as a rule I answer communications, and those anwers are read with.the communications in the ordinary-
course at the next weekly meeting. o S o ik

354, So that, in fact, you have been in the habit of replying to' communications without reference to
the Directors 7 Yes; I cannot conceive of the business of a Company being carried on under any other
arrangement: it would be virtually a suspension, in many cases, of the business of-the Company to wait
for instructions. ~ o : T o o

855. Have questions not arisen at the Board as to-whether your communications were authorised or
not, or whether they did not exceed instructions? ‘T think that question will be found fully answered by
246 and 247 of this enquiry.. ' '

356. No; one portion is answered, but not the whole. My question is,” whether you were authorised
or not, or whether you did not exceed your instructions? =~ The only two occasions when such a question
arose at the Board was on the 24th November, 1868, and on 18th May, 1869, as stated in the answer I
referred to. No question of the kind was raised excepting on those occasions. . -

857. What were the communications to the Government which gave rise to action being taken by the
Board condemnatory? The action of the Board on those occasions was not condemnatory.

358. Still, action was taken by Members of the Board : I want to know what were the communica-
tions to the Government which gave rise to that course being taken? The action taken on the 24th
November refers to a letter of the 21st November in reply to a letter of the Colonial Secretary of the 19th.

(Letter read, 21st November, 1868, Paper 24, No. 120, pp. 9, 10, 11.)

359. And you transmitted that letter to the Government without referring it to the Directory 7 1did;
I simply communicated with the Chairman on the question.

360. Who was the Chairman? Mr. Button.

861. Who prepares the periodical reports of the lDirectoryv to the Sharcholders? They were in each
case prepared by Sub-Committees, and submitted for approval and adopted by the weekly meeting of
Directors. :

362. How many Directors composed the Sub-Committee? The first meeting I don’t find any minute
of a Sub-Committee. I find a minute of the weekly meeting of the Board, April, 1868; the minute is;
“ The Hon. Sec. read draft report to the general meeting of Shareholders, which was adopted.” On the
13th April, 1869: ¢ Read draft report and statement of accounts for public meeting, and auditor’s report to
shareholders,—consideration of report,—read seriatsn with statements of expenditure and receipts, which
were approved and adopted.” I remember on this last occasion that I wrote a rough draft; the Chairman
had it for correction, and it was then submitted to a Sub-Committee,—I think, consisting of Messrs. But-
ton, Green, and Crookes, but I have no record of it. The minute is as I have given it. There were
present at that meeting Messrs. Button &Chairman), Crookes, W. Archer (Brickendon), W. Gibson,
Grubb, Kemp, J. Robertson, T. Bartley, Green, Sherwin, Tyson.

363. Were those reports submitted to the Directory and approved of before publication? Certainly,
the minutes show that, inasmuch as the first publication after approval was the reading at the meeting of
Shareholders four days afterwards.

364. I call your attention to the first report. Presuming that the first report was prepared by you,
what is intended by “ compelled to extract £50,000 out of the ordinary channels of productive employ-
ment within those districts, when the money could have been borrowed at 6 per cent., which the Directors
submit was at once injurious to the Districts and the Colony at large.”” Can you give the Committee any
explanation as to that? The explanation I take to be, that if the original proposal of the promoters that
the whole money should be borrowed on the part guarantee of the districts, or, had the Government wished,
on the present security of the districts, they would have released £50,000 of the private money of the
residents of the districts to productive employment within those districts ; and that asking for a subscription
of £50,000 in addition to the security of the districts for the loan, was necessarily injurious to the districts
and the Colony at large, because that money would have been more usefully circulated in the development
of the trade of the districts. .

865. Then do the same objections still exist and stand in the way of the sale of further Shares in the
Launceston and Western Railway Company? Yes: the opinion of the Directory is that the Districts are
exhausted on that mode of investment.

¥

366. How, then, does the Company contemplate meeting the contingency of any sudden and large
expenditure owing to accidents such as a Railway is liable to? That is 2 question I have not considered,
or heard discussed at the Board. '

367. Were you present when the Tender of Overend and Robb was recommended for adoption ?
I was.

368. Are you in a position to confirm the statement of Mr. Bartley—that all the Commissioners,
bein% present, concurred in such recommendation and adoption? I don’t remember Mr. Bartley’s letter,
but I have stated it many times in letters published (Paper No. 24); and I have no doubt in my own
mind at all on the subject. If they had not concurred, or if any objection even had been stated, it is quite
clear to me Messrs. Overend and Robb would never have signed the Contract.

369. When the monthly instalments of the Contractors became due, did Mr. Koemp take exception to
the Certificates accompanying the Accounts? I don’t remember whether he did on the first Certificate,
but he did on the second and onward to the ninth: that is, he took exception to_the form of the Certificate.
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... 870. Did Mr. Innes unite in those objections at that time?. My impression is that he united in those
objections up. to thé ninth ; but he signed the cheques, as he has recently statéd, under elther a verbal or
written objection,

871. Did Mr. Innes ob_]e(,t to the 9th or aﬁer the 9th? I thmk the obJect1on absolutely made to
sign was after the ninth. He objected at the time that he received opinions ﬁom the other Colonies, which
are printed in the Parliamentary Papers.

3872. In the printed Correspondence a Letter of yours to- T/Le Frening AIazl is quoted wherein you
state, ¢ The payments of the works, however, haveJto be authorised by two Commissioners, and Mr. Innes,
after havmor anthorised payments for eight months—thus paying away every shilling of the subscribing
colonists’ money—suddenly refuses: his signature to any other cheque unless the professmnal Commissioner’
be supplied with accounts in a form of his own devising.” Have you any explanation to make regarding
that statement? I think I was correct in making the statement; but, Mr, Innes having given it his most
unqualified contradiction, I am not disposed to enter into a contiover sy with Mr. Innes on ‘that question,
I used the terms “suddenly refused his signature” from the fact that when No. 10 was sent to the Com-
missioners for signature he suddenly- declined to sign it.

873. Has every shilling of the subscribing colonists’ money been “available up to this day" Some
of the payments by the colonists as sh‘ueholdels are not due yet; but the £50,000 pald into the Bank has
been expended.

374. Do they, or do the joint funds of the Company and the Commlsswnels, pay interest on the sum
for which the Bank has given credit? No interest is charged to the Company, or to the Company and
Commissioners : they have no Account on which interest could be char ged.

3%5. Is any.interest glven on the current account of the Company and Commissioners by the bank
here? No. |

: 3’76 Then how does the ba.nk pay 1nterest” The bank pays interest on monthly balance of the
account in London, not on the current account here, which the Board of Directors keep as low as
possible, as we get better interest in London than was found could be obtained in the Colonies.

877. Then it would be a loss to the Railway-account to- draw on the home account sooner than the
money was actually required here? The Board think so, but they could not confine themselves strictly
to the immediate requirements here; they watch the market and draw on London as favorable opportunities-
present, and in view of the requirements of the Contractors.

378. What was the sum actually paid up by 'Shareholders when they celtlﬁed that the sum of
£50,000 had been placed to the credit of the Company and Commissioners as the Law required? I don’t
remember the amount. '

879. Could you procure it by the next Meeting? Yes, I think T could.

380. Are two distinct accounts kept at the bank,—one of the Company and another of the Company
and Commissioners? Yes, I produce the pass book of the Company, the pass book of the Company
and Commissioners was given before.

381. Can you inform the Committee how they stood respectively at the latest date: say the end of”
last month ? I can supply it to the Committee. ‘

382. Who are the Mercantile Agents of the Company in-London? The Mercantile Agents are
Sharp & Terry. Mr. Terry was the actually appointed Agent, but hé took Mr. Sharp into paltnelshlp
You will find it in Paper 16.

383. What are the terms on which they transact the business of the Companyq 1} per cent.

884. Who are their Agents in Launceston? Any ships that have come direct to the Company and
Commissioners with railway iron have come to Crookes & Hudson ; but of course the charter-parties have
been directly to the Company and Commissioners.

"885. Are the goods consigned duectly to the Company and Commlssmners ?  Certainly.

By the Chairman.—386. I presume you mean that all the goods are consigned in the usual
mercantile way, and that Crookes and Hudson are agents for the ship 7 Yes.

By Mr. Whyte.—387. Then no orders have gone from the Comp'my and Commlssmnels to London
thlough Crookes and Hudson? No.

388, Mr. Crookes is one of the Directors of the Company ?7 Yes.

389. Who is the Launceston Agent of the Contractors for the supply of sleepers ? I never knew the-
Contractors to have any. agents of any kind. .

©890. You have fifteen Directors ? We have.
391. Do they generally all attend the meeting ? They do not generally all attend.

392. How many on an average have attended for the last two years ? I am mnot aware for the last:
two years; but I put in a memorandum of their attendance from July, 1868, to July, 1869 : that is, from
the time of the Contract being taken. There have been 57 meetings, an average attendance of ten, and an
average occupation of about three hours.

(Memorandum marked G. put in.)

893. Does Mr. Bartley advise with yourself, or, so far as you know, the Directors or any number of”
them from time to time in any differences between the other Commissioners and himself ? 1 have known
-of occasional convérsations on the subject, and he has always reported his letters to the Government to-
the Board. '

'394. Have letters at any time gone from the Board to the other Commissioners in the preparation of”
which Mr. Bartley has been consulted by yourself or any of the Directors ? I don’t remember having:
consulted with Mr. Bartley on any letter addressed to the Commissioners.
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395. I call your atfention to a letter (No. 267, page 148, Paper 24) of Mr. Bartley in answer to one
of Mr. Innes. Did you see that letter before it was forwarded to the Government ? The first time I saw
that letter was on directing the Accountant to take a copy by the press on the day it was- forwarded, just
beforé thé post left. : ' c ' : -

896. In the last Report of the Directors of the Company, 16 April, 1869, it is stated, on the
authority of the Engineer’s Report of the 16th January, that the number of slopes requiring alteration
was only seven, when the Commissioners, Messrs. Innes and Kemp, allege that when it was guoted for
the information of the Shareholders there were twenty-five completed or in progress. Have you any
explanation to make as to this disctepancy ? That report was made up to the commercial year in April,
1869, and, I believe, was perfectly correct to the time it was drawn. The Board had had no Report at
that time later than the 16th January. : : : :

397. Were you aware that there were twenty-five slopes at the meeting of the Sharcholders ? No, I
Wwas not. '

398. When the certificate was given that £350,000 would be sufficient to open the Line for traffie,
what did you understand by that ? I can only say that the answers 213 to 216 give my own personal
impressions on the subject. '

399. What did you understand by the term ‘“opening of the Line for traffic efliciently 7 What I
understood was a road perfect in respect to its construction as an English Railway, but with only a single
line of rails, could be constructed and opened for traffic, but that the rolling stock included was so much
at the minimum that the working of the traffic would be very heavy on the rolling stock, and cause a
large amount of wear and tear during the first years of the work: '

400. Did Mr. Doyne communicate to you at any time that, notwithstanding that certificate, -£400,000
or more would be required to complete the Railway ? I don’t know that Mr. Doyne communicated it to
me especially, but he always stated it, and often in my hearing, but not to complete the Railway, but to
make it more perfect in its working. - C ,

401. You stated the other day that £80,000 would complete the Railway fully: that it would require .
that amount? No; I said it would take that amount if Parliament desired to have further interest
borrowed to meet the coupons on the £300,000. Lo '

402. If a Railway rate were levied in the place of borrowing at interest you mean that £80,000 would
not be required? Just so.

403. What difference would that make in the amount that you think would be required? I think
the sum of £67,613; £44,613 finishing the Railroad, and £28,000 for additional rolling stock and stations.
I put in a paper of estimates (marked H.).

404. Then how do the Company propose that the interest on this additional amount required to com-
plete the Railway is to be paid: is it to be an additional rate on the districts under the re-guarantee clause?
Noj; they consider it should be paid out of the working revenue of the line; the request made to the
Government being to ask Parliament to sanction a loan on security of the works and revenue of the line
under the lien of the 9th Clause, 80 Vict. No. 28, The application will be found in letter 161,

By Mr, Kenneriey.—405. What is meant by ¢ remaining moiety of the capital of the Company ?”’
The meaning is the £50,000 capital not yet subscribed; the capital of the Company is £100,000.

. 406. Then, as I understand, the proposal is that Government should supply that :£50,000 capital?
Yes ; under the lien of the 9th Clause, or release the lien and let the Company borrow elsewhere.

By the Chairman.—407. Do you mean when you “release the lien” for the Government and Colony
to give up all claim under the 9th Section of the Railway Act? Yes; the lien onthe works executed, not
the re-guarantee of the Districts.

408. Of course, by that you mean that Government are asked to advance the money on the security
they already hold, the Company have nothing else to offer? Clearly, thatis the application of the
Directors to the Government. I have already stated the lien effectually bars the Company from borrowing
any where else. :

409. Do you think the parties now constituting the re-guarantee are prepared to re-guarantec the
interest for this additional loan? I have no means of ascertaining. ‘

410. Will you favour us with your opinion on that point, whether that would be agreed to or resisted:
that is, whether those who have already reguaranteed the Railway Districts will be prepared to incur any
additional liability ? It’s a very difficult thing to express an opinion on that subject. "My -own opinion,
looking at the responsibility of the Districts, is that a majority would not object, regarding it in my own
view that the liability now existing would leave the District without a Railway, and £18,000 a year to pay.

411. By the 3rd Section of the Bill introduced by Mr. Douglas it is provided that ¢such further sum
as aforesaid, both as to the principal and all interest to accrue due thereon, shall be secured, charged, and
made payable, and shall be subject in every respect to the provisions of Section 9 of the Launceston and
Western Railray Act, No. 2,”—is that loan asked for under these circumstances with the concurrence
of the Board of Directors and Commissioners? No; the Board of Directors are not in accord on that point.

412. By whose authority then is that Bill introduced to Parliament? The Draft which the Board
settled did not go on that principle; but is put on the authority of the gentleman who introduced it, ag
far as that point goes. : . ' ' '

413. In point of fact that Bill is not the Bill of the Directors? It is, except so far as that claiise goes.

414. Is not Mr. Adye Douglas, the gentleman who introduced that Bill, the Solicitor for the
‘Company ? The Solicitor for the (Q‘,ompany 1s really Mr. Geo. Collins, his partner; he was .elected and
inserted in the original prospectus, and it has always stood so. o .

415, That is of the firm of Douglas & Collins? Yes.



_416. Are not Douglas & Collins really the Solicitors of the Company" Practlcally they are.
By Mr. .Whyte—417. Tt has been alleged.. that somé of the Shareholders were 1nduced to take

Shares w1th the understanding that they would never be:called on to _pay .their promlssmy notes: is there
any truth in that statement? I heard it alleged once by a defaulter in his defence in the court, but I need
ot say the jury paid no attention to it; the man pleaded that the accountant said he would never be called
‘on to pay ; the accountant on oath said he never sald anything of the kmd the verdict was a(ramst hlm

There was no truth in the allegation.

418. Tenders were called for the erection of the scaffolding for Longfmd Budge, and Mr. Beedle wag
one of the tenderers at £1988 over and above £2915: was Mr. Beedle’s tender given according to the
published advertisement calling for tenders? I don’t remember, but I presume it was.

. 419. On what ground then was it that Beedle did not get. the contract” Slmply because they refused .
the security which the Directors asked.

" 490. 'Was there any reference to secunty when the tenders were called for, or was not pr oposition made .
after the tenders had been opened ? I think it was in the second advertlsement for tendexs ; in the first
instance all tenders were rejected, and I informed Beedle so.

421. Then I am to understand fresh tenders were called for with this addition to it fixing security ?
The persons tendering in the first instance were permitted to have the whole question leconSIdered on an
application of Beedle & Co.

422. What time elapsed between the time when the first tenders were rejected and the second tenders
received ? Twelye.days or more.

423. What induced the Company to accept the high tender and reject the lowez one ? 'The refusal of
Beedle to give the security which the Company required, and the consent of the only other pexson tender-
-ing to give up the whole of the timber to the Company.

424. Will you refer to the month when the proceedings were arrived at ? The first Minute 4th May,
1869, ¢ to refer the tenders of Overend & Robb and Beedle & Co. to the Engineers, and ur, ge attention to
the early construction of this work.”

425. Is it somewhat unusual to ask for such a heavy depomt for the work of that kind? I think so:
it was absolutely necessary in this ¢ase from the great-interests involved; because the non-completion of the
staging would have involved the Company in very serious penalties to the London builder of the bridge.
It was considered so important that Mr. Tyson, one of our most practical men, named the sum of £2000;
‘Mr. Robertson proposed as an amendment £1000, which was carried.

By Mr, Lewis.—426. Then the whole of the timber remains the pr operty of the Company? The whole
of the timber remains the property of the Company : it is to be taken down and stacked by the Contractors.

By Mr. Whyte—427. Do youremember the first estimate of Longford Budtre, £06158 4s, 6d., at the
time it was certified that £350,000 was sufficient to complete the Rallway ? The estimate in the punted
Paper, No. 16, is £6600.

428, Will, you state what the actual cost of the Bridge will be ?  The actual Contract by Mr.
Hemans’ return’is £18,440 ; this includes freight, commissions, and all other charges, but not the staging.

429. I want the total cost,—the difference between the original estimate and the actual amount the
Bridge will cost ? I don’t know that I can give those details. I will try.

430. I want the whole,—everything connected with the Bridge when erected and completed ? T will
give it-afterwards, if I am able; but there seems to be some confusion, in my mind at least, with regard to
the item the Committee desires. If the question refers to the Bridge over the South Esk it will be very
different from the whole Viaduct of the Valley: the estimates referred to just now are only the estimates
for the iron-work of the Bridge.

431. Were you aware that the estimate for the Bridge in the first place was for a Bridge of 200 tons ?
Not from my own knowledge, only from what I have seen in the Parliamentary Papers. I simply know
that the Bridge in the first instance crossed a dlﬁ'elent part of the River, and was small-looking on the
drawings.

By the Chairman.—432. You, said there was a transposition of £11,000 for the Longford Bridge : how
is that 7—how does it arise ; for I think .you had better correct it now ? 7 My impression is that the esti-
mate was carelessly drawn, the price of the Bridge being still very much in excess of that : the whole
estimate is £59,650.

By Mr. Lewis.—483. Who is the Contractor for the construction of the iron Bridge over the South
Esk at Longford ? De Bergue & Co.

434. With whom did that firm make the Contract? With Terry and Hemans, in London; Terry
being the Commercial Agent, and Hemans the Engineering Inspector

435. Were they authorised by the Launceston and Western Railway Company to make the Contract"
The authority is actually to Mr. Hemans by power of attorney.

436. From the Board of Directors ? From the Board of Directors in Launceston.

-437. Does the-Contract include all iron-work and building the Bridge complete? All iron-work,
- freight, commission, and building it complete on the pjers, subject to such test as adopted in Europe undex
the direction of the Engineers, and the test to be continuéd for three months before final payment.

438. Is there any guarantee for its being kept in substantial order for any perlod after completion? I
think not, beyond being subject to the usual tests for three months.

439, What is the amount of the Contract in full? De Bergue’s Contract is £18,440.



By Mr. Whyte.—440. Does that include the carriage to Longford? Noj; the carriage to Longford

was retained in the Company’s hands, fearing that in London they had not sufﬁclent mformatlon as .to rates
of carriage. £1000 is put down for carriage to Longford. Co

441. Ts it probable the Railway will be constructed to that point so as to enable the whole of this
material to be carried on the line? There is now very great probability that it will be carted along the
Line, and by that means save £600 or £700 in cartage.

By Mpr. Archer.—442. What commission does Mr. Hemans receive on the work he has had to do
with regard to the Bridge? He receives 2 per cent. on all inspections, the usual rate being 23 per cent.

443. For the £18,000 odd the Contractors, I think you said, engaged to place the Bridge on ship-
board, is that the case? 7 Yes, it’s free on board at that price.

444, You said just now, in speaking of the first estimate for the Bridge, it only included iron-work
and not freight, did younot? Yes; I say the Engineer’s estimate includes simply the cost of the iron-
work, and not freight.

445. Why then do we find at p. 43 that it is put at 200 tons? Yes; but the working out of the
Jdetails is Mr. Kemp’s.

446, Then those estimates were not furnished to Mr. Kemp by Mr. Doyne’? I have read it that
«etails were given.

447, Because here details are given? 1T see they are.

448, Do you, as Secretary for the Company, receive from Sharp and Terly the invoices of all plant
and goods ordered in England? No, I do not; the Union Bank receives them. I receive duplicates from
Sharp and Terry, and the Union Bank receives the originals.

449. Can you furnish the duplicates? I believe I have cleared the office of every other document
except the invoices ; I will furnish them.

By Mr. Whyte.—450. I call attention to a letter of Mr. Innes in the printed correspondence (Paper
24, p. 181,) in which he says, I have to add that communications have been received from time to time
from England, in which reference has been made to letters from this of the tenor of which neither we nor
the Board had any previous knowledge :” is that correct? I look upon it as a most perverted statement
of a fact which I will explain. The only case I ever knew which bore anything like a construction of
that nature was when extracts from one of Mr. Hemans’ letters to the Engineers were forwarded to the
Board, there was an explanation that a portion of the letter referred strictly to other professional questions
not connected with the Company. I will produce that letter.

451. Did you address a letter in July, 1868, to Mr. Hemans, in that letter acknowledging communi-
«cations from him of 24th April and May pr ecedmg, conveying a recommendation that 721bs. rails should
be substituted for the rate previously contemplated, to which recommendation you acceded? No. I did
not address a letter in July, 1868, on that subject. I think the question must refer to letters from the
Engineers, which I will produce. ' '

452. Was the Board cognizant of those letters? Yes, they were reportéd to the Board.
(Letter to Hemans, 10th July, 1868, produced, marked I.)

By the Chairman.—453. Do I understand you to say the only correspondence in conmection with the
subject Mr. Innes complains of was the letter of July, 18887 I don’t say that.

454. Will you produce all letters in connection with this matter? I havealetter of the 16th July that
avas read with the other (produced); these are copies furnished by the Engineers to the Directors.

The Witness withdrew.

‘Tuzspay, SepreMser 28, 1869.

.Pwsmzt—Ml Davies (Chauman), Colonel Hutchms, Mr. Archer, Mr. Kennérley, Mr. Lewis, Mr.
' Maclanachan, Mr. Swan, Mr. Whyte. :

MR. THEODORE BARTLEY called in and examined.

. By the Chairman.—455. Your name is Theodore Bartley 2. Yes.
456, You are one of the Commissioners of the Launceston and Western Railway are you not” Tam.
457. What are the emoluments of that office? £200 per annum. : : »
458, You are also Negociator as to pur chase of land for the Launceston and Westem Rallway Com--
pany are you not? I am, :
459. What are the emoluments of that office? There is no fixed emolument; no arrangement
whatever has been made. ~ - :
460, What emoluiients do you ant1c1pate to receive for the performance of the functions of Negociator?
-T expect such an amount as shall be a fau compensatlon for the services I am 1ende1mrr to the Company
_ which are not yet completed.
461. Do you expect to be remunerated by a ﬁxed sum or by comrmsswn” : I should rather think by
-4 fixed sum. .

462. Can-you give this Committee an-idea of what ﬁxed sum you- expect to receive? I cannot.

463. Nor an approximation to it? I could not do that, for I have not looked into it. I cannot give
-an approximate amount till I have finished the work I have to do.
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464. -Do you anticipate: to receive £100? We]l, I should certamly expect to receive more than £100.
X anay say at once, I should expect to receive more than that.

465. Would you expect to receive .£500” I should certa,mly expect to receive somethmg between
£200 and £500.

-466. Have your views with 1ega1d to rémuneration as Negoclatm been in any way under. con51derat10n
of the Directors 7 Not,:to my knowledge, in any way.

"4687. Do you think that the office you hold ‘as' Commissioner’ appomted by the Cl own' on the one
‘hand, ‘and Negociator for the*Company ‘on. the other, are compatible ? Peculiarly'so. In my opinion,
it the- Government had the power to make such a stipulation under the' Act 'by which the Commissioners
thold their appointment, it would have been decidedly to the interest of the Company, and all who have an
interest in the construction of the Railway, that one of the Commissioners should either dect as sole
Negociator, or be a'party to every negociation for the purchase of any piece of land required for the Railway:
by that course the Commissioners would have been best able to carry out that section of the Act by which

.they are required to see that the capital of the Company is expended on the Railway and Works.

By Mr. Archer.—468. When you undertook the duties of Negociator for the Company, you did so,
- X suppose, -under the impression that you would be fairly remunerated for the trouble you took? Yes.

469. Leaving it to the Company to remunerate you for your trouble? I was so utterly
-ignorant of what amount of trouble, time, or judgment would be required that I made no stlpulatlon
.whatever. I.had no idea when I took the office that it would involve so much.

-470. The rate of remuneration, then, was never -mentioned? Not in the least, nor have I ever alluded
to the subject. .

By Mr. Whyte.—471. Then the amount of remuneration you expect to receive is entir ely dependent
upon the decision 'of the Board of Directors of the Launceston and Western Rallway and the Com-
_missioners ?  Yes.

472. ‘But, -in the Board of Directory, of that numbe1 the’ Commlssmners would have a very small
voice? They could not pay it without the assent of the Commissioners.’

‘473. The Commissioners could not increase the amount? They could not; it must be a joint act
of the Directors and two Commissioners. Of course I should not act in the mattel, therefore it must be
-the act of the other Commissioners.

By the Chairman.—474. Under-the 6th Section of 30 Vict. No. 28, you are a Duector, and have
:the powers and privileges of a: Director, and a seat at the Board of Directors? Yes, ex officio.

475. Have you in any way or in any manner, found difficulty in asserting your rights as a, Director
“of that Board? None whatever.

476. Are you aware that the Secretary of the Company is of opinion that the Commissioners have
only the power and privilege to act as Directors .when sitting at the Board? * I am not. I believe that
was the opinion, but I believe the opinion of the Attor ney—Genelal was taken on the mattex. I have not
asked the question, but should imagine not.

477. But you found no difficulty? None whatever.

478. You have had ready access to all papers, documents,” and couespondence of every descrlptlon
iin the same way as any other Director? Completely so.

479. Whether sitting at the Board or not? Always.

480. - And has that privilege been accorded to your brother Commissioners ? T thjnk 50, equelly as
anyself.

481. Have you been in the habit of seeing the correspondence addr essed to the Commissioners, or been
‘consulted on that subject before it has been transmitted to ,the Comm1ss1onels ? T have occasionally seen
correspondence in the Office before it came to us. s ‘

482. Have you been consulted with regard to that correspondence ? Noj I have seen it occasionally,
and so have the other Commissioners.

483. . Has the Secretaly consulted you with regard to any particular, on anv points with regard to the
correspondence that has been officially transmitted to you afterwards ? When 1 have gone into. the Office
.and there have been letters opened intended for the Commissioners, Mr. Dowling may have said, ¢ Here
is a letter for you,” and I may have looked at it; but I don’t remember his consultmw me on any .point
-that was to go before the Commissioners.

484. Have you in any manner suggested to the Secretaly the course that any pal ticular conespond—
ence should take to be addressed to the. Commissioners ? I ‘cannot say I ever suggested conespondence to
e addressed to the Commissioners.

485, Can you say in the negative ? - I do not remembe1 ‘that I have so suggested.

486. If you go to Paper 186, p. 13, you will see you furnished the Government, on the 13th January,
1868, with a certificate in connection wlth .your colleague, Mr. Innes, that the Launceston and Western
Rallway could be opened for tiafic for the sum of £350,000 7 We certified it in a qualified manner. I
may say I wrote this report myself: fully aware of the iinmense importance of the Commissioners’ repotts
‘on this question, I undertook, with Mr. Innes’s consent, to draw that report up in the most careful manner
that I could; 'and I accmdlngly did ‘write .the whole of that report, subnuttmg it to' Mr. Innes for his
approval, and he accepted it in its entirety without any alteration whatever.

487. In that Paper (21d par.) you quote Mr. Doyne’s letter addressed to the Comnnssmnels that the
Railway could -be opened for traffic for. a.sum not exceeding £350,000, and this estimate, was based on
liberal prices thr oughout and in addition contains £15,000. for unfmeseen contingencies ? I was merely
guoting Mr. Doyne’s letter, which was annexed.
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488. Now, when you quoted thatletter, did you do so in the belief that the Line could be opened for
£350,000 7 As an unprofessional man, merely relvmg on the opmlon of the Enrrmeex-m-Chlef and having
no professmnal knowledge on the subject. . ., . , .o

489. And on that your report is based ? No; 1t is prmcxpally on our co'ldJutor s report

490. What means did you adopt to satisfy yourself as to the feasibility of the plans? -I said the
opinion was qualified; we say, after referring to the letter of the Engineer-in-Chief, and the report:-Mr.
Kemp addressed to the Governor in. Council; ¢ relymo- upon. such professional information.” I drew Mur.
Innes’s particular attention at the time to the wording of the report,  having availed ourselves of the best
professional information obtainable. by us,” and “relying upon such pr ofessional information ;” and we
therefore threw the responsibility ‘on- the Government, so that 1f they were not satistied with the report, it
was for them to obtain superior or further information. . :

491, Will you favor the Committee with your distinct opinion on Mr. Doyne’s letter with regard to
his estimate for opening the Line: did you conside:r thata reliable document? We fully thought so when
we made that report; we were fully of opmlon such wag ‘the case, but we took care to guard ourselves in
that way. :

492, ‘Are you of opinion that was the O'eneral view of all par ties" mtel ested - In the Launceston and
Western Railway ? Most firmly. , : :

493. The Diréctors, the Chairman and those mterested in the Railway District, that is those who gave
their reguarantee? The Directors, Chairman and Secretary, so far-as- I am able to judge from their
expressions, I believe fully expected the. Railway would be. opened for traffic. for that sum; in fact, I
believe we all did.

424. What do you mean by the expression ‘“opened for traffic?’ Just in the words of the Act, that
it can be opened for-traffic within the amount that was set-down for to commence that traffic.

495. Do you think, or did you at that time think, that “ opened for traffic,” as suggested in M.
Doyne’s letter, meant that the Line was to be opened in a substantial, safe, and proper manner for pubhc
convenience? Most decidedly ; in fact it was to be a perfect Rallway, as we understood.

496. And that was the general belief, .you have said? I firmly believe it, so far’ as T am able to
judge it was the general belief of every one connected with it. .

By Mr. Whyte—497. Why were you so particular in guarding youlself were you doubtf'ul of 'the
amount of reliance that could be placed on the estimate of the Engineers that it could be opened for
£850,000? © I . was, because I saw the immense importance of the report. I had to make in
conjunction with Mr. Innes, particular to_the uttermost. I had full reliance on the Engineers’ estimate,
but at the same time, Mr. Innes and myself bemg unprofessional men, we determined to give no opinion of
our own except based on the professional information we had obtained. -

By Mr. Lewis—498. Have you had frequent conversations with the Engineer in Chief as to the cost
of the Railway ? T cannot say I have; we had itin writing before us.

499. Have you understood that the Entrmeel—m Chief has mever 1ehnqmshed his ormmal position
stated in his Report of 1861, that the Rallway, to be completed satisfactorily, would require £400,000,
and this has never been in the slightest degree concealed by him : "on the contrary, it was matter of dally
conversation between him and the pr mcxpai Directors? No.

By Mr. Swan.—500. Did you consider the sum of £350, 000 would be all the outlay required to complete
the Line in a perfectly efficient state, covering the cost of necessary rolling-stock and all contingencies? I
thought so, cer tfunly, and was fully under the impression that it would be quite sufficient to construect the
Rallway itself in a perfectly efficient state, and to cover the rolling-stock aud other appliances which
were furnished by the estimates of the Engineers to us as the Commissioners; beyond that we could not
form an opinion : there was a certain estimate furnished, our Report embraced that, and we ¢onsidered
that the Line would be made a perfect and efficient Rallway from Launceston to De101 aine, and that the
£350,000 would cover the rolling-stock and other estimated 1equlsltes :

501. That is not what T want from you. What was your own oplnlon” Was it that it was an esti-
mate merely to bring it within the Act, with the full knowledge that it would be much exceeded to make:
it a perfect lemy” When we made this Report I 1magmed the opening for traffic was not to evade
anything. It was tlns,—the ]]nrrmeel furnished to us an estimate of thmgs which he put before us as.
sufficient to meet the requir ements of that Line at the opcmnO‘ We relied on it, and were persuaded the
Line could be opened dc¢cordingly. e

502. Did you consider that rolling-stock sufficient? Mr. Innes and myself, not being professional
men, accepted what was put before us as sufficient. - Co Co

By BMr. Lenwis—503. Will you Took at No. 104 Conespclmvdexice' (paper 16) p- 427 Yes.
504. You sce the statement of estimated cost of constructing the Launceston and Western Railway

(18 July, 1868) ; what was the gross amount.of that estimate? Itis Mr Kemp § estlmate, £337, 908 9s. 4d.,.
leaving a balance for contingencics of £12,091 10s. 84. -

505. In page 45 there is a list signed by. Mr. Kemp (24.J uly) of omissions which he consldeled'
indispensable to meet the requirements after opening the line for public traffic? Yes.

506. Do you know if Mr. Kemp made any estimate of the.-cost of those omlssmns, the articles
comprised in that (supplementary) list? Not to my knowledge: it was not submitted to the Commissioners.

507. Do you know if there was any provision made for electric telegraph in “the estimate of Mr.
Kemp? I don’t remember that there was ;- thére were semaphores and. swnals for safe traffic.

- 508: Did you address the Government on the excess. of the expenditure over the estimate ? I d1d ;
(May 7th, 1869, No. 205, p. 84, Paper 24.)"



. By Mr. Archer:—509. Do you- think the estimates furnished by the.Engineer-in-Chief, including
" the questionable results of the experimental slopes, and exhibiting as they. do the omissions of such items as
telegraph, staging of iron bridge, cost.of cartage, and the great under-estimate of cost .of bridge, can.be
considered .as *‘ a most.careful estimate, and'based on liberal prices,” as stated in Mr. Doyne’s letter, in
which he testifies to the certainty of the Railway being opened for public traffic for a sum not exceeding
£350,0007? - T think those estimates most-decidedly should have embraced these particular items, that they
should have decidedly mentioned telegraph, :if pronounced to be necessary, most decidedly staging for the
bridge, and cartage; and that the alteration in the design of the Longford Bridge should -have been more
distinctly and definitely brought under the notice of .the Directors and Commissioners ; and the estimate
not containing those -things, I cannot pronounce that estimate to be a most .careful estimate. -I am of
opinion that slopes at } to 1 (having gained a knowledge on the subject since the Report. of the 30th
January was sent in), was an experiment-not justifiable, there being only £350,000 to lay out; and T
am myself bound to say that having then no personal knowledge on the question of slopes, with the
knowledge I have since acquired in my office of Commissioner, had I found, the slopes for the whole line
stated at § to 1, I should not have felt myself justified in signing the Report that a Railway could be opened
for £350,000, and would not have done it. And I feel bound further to say that with the knowledge X
haveacquired on this Line from practical .experience as Commissioner, were I appointed Commissioner again
for any Railway containing a number of cuttings, more particularly’ some of them very deep ones, and
required to form an estimate of.its cost, the very first question I -would ask of the engineer to whom I had
to refer for information as to the cost of the Railway would be, ¢ at what slope are the cuttings throughout
that line stated ?” . . o o L
By Colonel Hutchins.—510. Did Mr, Kemp make no remark upon the unusual nature of the slopes
when the specification was laid before you at the time you made your report? I never heard Mr. Kemp
allude in any way to the slopes before or when we made our first report. It was about the time that
the Railway had been commenced that I heard the question of 'slopés raised: it was raised incidentally,
and that induced me to endeavour to get information from the Engineers and Directors. In the letter

of the 7th May, 1869, I distinctly said I would not have signed that report if I had known that the slopes
throughout the line were so estimated. : '

. By the Chairman—>511. Referring to the 5th paragraph of the letter of the 7th May, do you still
adhere to that statement? I entirely adhere to all I said in the 5th paragraph of my letter:—“1I entirely
concur with Messrs, Innes and Kemp in stating that. the alterations in the weight of rails, and in the
designs and cost of the Longford bridge, were not brought under the notice of the Commissioners until
after the orders for such alterations had been forwarded by the Engineers to the Company’s Agents in
London, and that therefore it was altogether out of the power of the Commissioners to prevent the
additional cost occasioned by such alterations, whatever may be the amount, and that they ate not in any
way responsible for the same. I would here desire to call your attention to the fact that Mr. Innes and
myself especially guarded ourselves against such a responsibility in our letter to you, dated 30th January,
1868, forwarded with our Report of that date, that the line could be opened for traffic' for a' sum not
exceeding £350,000. (Vide Parliamentary Paper, No. 16, page 12, No. 33.) :

By Mr. Lewis.—512. Are you aware of the excess of cost occasioned by the heavy gradient to make
the slopes permanent? I should think, so far as I can form an opinion, from £12,000 to £15,000, not
more than £15,000 about £10,000 of which will be absorbed between Longford and Launceston, the other
part of the Line is not likely to take much. : :

513. Have you made any calculation as to the extra cost by the increased weight of the rails? The
Engineers thought about £3000 ; as a matter of calculation it can be ascertained by the Invoice.

By the Chairman.—514. Are you aware that you state in your letter 7th May, that the Engineers
estimate the “alteration of the slopes at £12,000, while Mr. Kemp estimates it at £20,000? Yes, he
estimated it at £20,000 in the letter which mine comments upon. =~ -

515. Referring you to the last three lines of paragraph 6 same letter; at the time you certified that the
work as you described it could be opened to’ public traffic for £850,000, the slopes were not taken into
consideration were they? Not at all by Mr. Innes and myself. :

" By Mr. Whyte—516. Are you aware of disputes between the Contractors and Engin'eexls as to the
mode of ealculating the cost of these slopes? T am aware of one cutting (No. 38 ) which 1s the subject of
dispute. '

By the Chairman.—5617. Do you think your powers as Commissioner in carrying out the functions
of your office are sufficient? I should say so, to the uttermost, for we have the power of refusing to pay
for anything we do not consider properly laid out and expended for the Railway Works,—under the Act
we are bound to do so.

518. Are you not aware that there is no power of reference between the .Directors and the Com-
missioners supposing any dispute arises in regard tothem? I am quite aware there is no power of reference
given to them. - :

519. Do you not think that power of reference should be given, so as to relieve either the Commis-
sioners or the Directors in case of disputes arising ? T think it ismost desirable. I havealways entertained
that opinion since I saw a dispute arise, : :

520. You are aware that disputes have arisen? I.am.

521. And what compromises have taken place in consequence of there being no power of reference ?
1 cannot say that ‘compromises have been effected, but great inconvenience has been experienced by all
parties connected with the Railway, and not only inconvenience but loss. : ‘

522. Do you think that the Board of Directors and Commissioners have sufficient power to d:irect the
Contracting Engineers, Messrs. Doyne, Willett, and Major? I should say most decidedly so. .



28

523. 1 refer you to paragraph & (letter 7th May), do you think that the Engineers exercised more.
power than they should have possesséd in increasing the expense of this Railway, by sending home for
rails of a heavier weight, and altering the plan, and consequently increasing the expense of the Longford:
Bridge, without consulting and obtaining authority from the Board of Directors?’- - As I have already said,.
I think the alteration which occasioned these excesses should have been more clearly and definitely brought
before the Board of Directors. When I asked Mr. Doyne how it was that 72 1b. rails were substituted for-
65 1b. without the knowledge and consent of the Directors, he said he put a -section on the tablé of the-
72 1b. rail and he considered the Directors fully understood it, and were consenting parties. All I could
say was, that I knew nothing of it, nor do I think the .other Commissioners did. ~As far as relates to the:
substitution of design for the Longford Bridge, and consequent large extra cost, I asked Mr. Doyne how
it was that that was not brought under the specific notice of the Commissioners and Directors, and more-
particularly Mr. Kemp; and Mr. Doyne said that, when he got the use of the Town Hall to have the "
specifications and plans showing the alteration in the design of the Longford Viaduct, he thought it
was fully understood. Mr. Kemp was there every day, and he imagined- Mr. Kemp fully saw what the
alteration in the design was from those plans exhibited there. 1 replied, I thought particular attention
should have been called, and the attention of the Commissioners and Directors should have been specifically
called, to an alteration of that sort, and not to have trusted to their seeing it. Mr. Doyne said they
remained there for about a week, and that seeing Mr. Kemp explained those things to the persons who-
were there, he was of opinion he was fully acquainted with the alteration of the design.

By Myr. Whyte.—524. When were the plans exhibited there: was it before or after orders were sent
home for the bridge? I can’t say; Mr. Kemp will tell you.

By the Chairman.—525. But this was all before the contracts were taken? Yes; to the best of my
knowledge. '

526. Can you suggest what further powers the Commissioners should have? I really cannot; except:
the remedy, the power of reference. :

527. Do you think the Governor in Council would be the proper reference? I do.

528. You are aware that the Railway Company are now applying to Parliament for aid to complete-
the Railway? Yes; I am.

529. Have you as a Commissioner made any eéstimate of the probable expense of completing this.
Railway? T have gone over and examined that estimate made by Mr. Dowling, and assisted in compiling-
it as far as my knowledge would extend. I have examined that estimate carefully.

530. Do you think the sum there estimated is sufficient to complete the Railway in the fullest integrity ?°
So far as my knowledge extends I should think it would be ample; but it does not include the interest. I
think with a year’s interest added it would be sufficient. .

531. On what have you based your calculation? In the first place I can form a better opinion on such
questions than when I was first appointed, and the facts which have been under my notice have enabled
me to form a more correct estimate as to the probable cost of completion. I am of opinion that this sum,
with the interest added for one year, will be sufficient to open the line and make sufficient provision for all
requirements. That is my personal opinion.

532. What assurance, -after that statement, could you give this Committee that there will not be-
another application? 1 can give no further assurance than the opinion I have already given; as I said
before, I hope and believe it would be sufficient to secure efficient working of that line for the public-
requirements, with one year’s interest added.,

533. Have you consulted the professional Commisioner on this estimate? e has gone over it in the
office, but whether he entirely coincides in it I cannot say. I have heard no definite expression of opinion .
from him one way or the other. I spoke to him about it.

534. We had before us an answer to a question in these words, “ Mr. Kemp was acquainted with these-
designs long before the Contract with Messrs. Overend & Robb was let, or any orders sent home for iron-
work. Under these circumstances it did not occur to us to be necessary to call the attention of the Go-
vernment to the fact that the work could not be done with the weight before named. If necessary at all,
it was clearly the duty of Mr. Kemp to call the attention of his colleagues to this patent fact, that they
might advise the Government as they thought best.” Do you think Mr. Kemp and the other Commis-
sioners had that knowledge ? No, most decidedly not, as is stated, Mr. Kemp called aitention to the
alteration in the weight of the rail. g

535. Do you consider that the 7th Clause of the Railway Act, No. 2, was violated by the alteration
made without your consent-and that of the other Commissioners in respect of the alteration in the weight of
rails and design of Viaduct? If you ask my opinion, I say most decidedly not; that Clause was not
violated or infringed, and T may say that is indorsed by the opinion of two of the most eminent Counsel
in Melbourne. The Engineers have power under the Contraét to make any alteration they choose to .
order, and as the Contractors are bound to obey, they could make any alteration. A

.By Mr. Swan.—5636.. Do you consider Messrs. Doyne, Major, and Willett exceeded their authority
in ordering the heavier rails without consulting the Directors? 1 think they certainly should have con-
sulted the Directors before ordering heavier rails. : C

By Mr. Archer.—537. And what was the fmpression of the Directors?- I cannot say for the Direc--
tors, but Mr. Kemp said the estimate was 65 Ibs., and that he knew nothing of it till he saw that letter.

By Myr. Lewis.—538. Was there not £12,090 estimated as a balance of contingencies ? Yes.
539. And the increase in weight of rails was part of the contingencies ? That was what was thought.-
540. Have you already found the £12,090 totally inadequate for the contingencies ? - Certainly.

By Mr. Archer.—541. On what basis do ‘you consider Mr. Kemp; as Professional Commissioner, was-
bound to base his estimates and calculations ; and do you consider it was sufficient that he should work out
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the data supplied him by Mr. Doyne, or was it his duty to obtain reliable’ authority, irrespective of Mr..
Doyne’s information, on which to base his estimates as regarded slopes, cost of plant, &c. ? - "My opinion is,
that upon the estimates for .the construction of the Railway furnished by the Engineers to the Commis-
sioners, the Professional Commissioner should have brought all his professional knowledge to bear upon
those estimates—as I presume he did—and from that professional -knowledge to form and convey to his.
fellow-Commissioners his opinion whether that estimate of the cost of the “construction of the Railway so
furnished by the Engineers was to be relied on or-not, so as to enable them to make a report in accoxdancev:
with the requirements of the Act.

By Mr. Whyte.—542. .1 observe from the eorrespondence that Mr. Innes and youlself are at issue-
on some matters of fact 7 Yes, several.

543. I suppose that is not very conducive to the harmonious ‘'working ot the Commlsswn ? l\ot at
all; but I feel bound to say that where there is a difference as to a matter of fact, I stated in-my letter-
my ’ desire to have it enquired into by a Board of Enquiry: the correspondence shows all that.

The Witness withdrew. .

MR. SA\IL V. KEMP called in and ewamined.

By the (Jhawman — 544, What is your name? Samuel V. Kemp. .
545. You are the professional Commissioner of the Launceston and Western Rdllway” Yes

546. Are you aware that an application -has been made to Parliament for addltlonal aid to finishs
the work of which you are a Commissioner? I am.

547, Have you seen the estimates submitted by the Secretary to the Company? Yes, I have. .
. 548. Have you gone into that estimate ? T have.

'549. HMave you made any contra estimate to submit to the Government? Yes, I was called upon.
by the Colonial Secretary to submit it, and have done so.

550, And that is with the Government? Yes.
The Witness withdrew. '

WEDNESDAY, SeprEMBER 29, 1869.

Present—Mr. Dav1es, (Chairman), Mr. Whyte, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Kennerley, M1 Maclanachan, Colonel‘
. Hotchins, Mr. Swan

MR. SAMUEL V. KEMP reralled and ewammed

"By the Clhairman.—551. You yesterday stated that you had addressed a statement showing the -
amount required to complete the works of the Launceston and Western Rallway Line? 1 did.-.
(Mmked K. :

552. Do these documents contain the whole of your statements ? Yes, so far as relates to my
estimate, .

553. Is there not a clerical error there 7 Yes;. I will correct it.

554, When were you appointed Official Commissioner for the Launceston and Westem Rallway ?-I
could not tell from memory; the printed correspondence will show.

" 555. What instructions did you receive from the Government on your appomtment as to your duties 7
They enclosed copies of the Railway Acts; then, on my arrival in Tasmania, I wrote to the Colonial Secre-
tary asking him if he had any further information to give. That is in the printed correspondence already
(No. 16.).  To that letter I received a reply from Mr, Chapman for the Colonial Secretary, that he had
nothing further to add beyond what was contained in the Railway Aects.

556. What means did you adopt to satisfy yourself as to the feasibility of the plans of the Engineers .
of the Launceston and Western Railway ? I was not called upon to be a judge of the feasmlhty of such .
plans : ‘there was nothing of that contained in' the Act.

557. On referring to the Railway Act, 80 Vict. No. 28, did you satisfy - youl self that the Railway -
could be opened for ;5350 0007 You will see. by this Act, 7th Clause, that the Commissioners are called.
upon to examine the plans, specifications, and estimates; we are not called upon to judge of the feasibility
of such plans or such works. . If such had been the case, it would have been necessary for me to have had
an engineering staff'almost as great as that of Messrs. Doyne & Co. I mentioned this to the late Sir R.
Dry, who said no such duty was contemplated by the Legislature, and I must take the Act as I found lt
I have always endeavoured to interpret this Act to the best of my ablhty

558. Refenmg you to tlie 17th Clause there is this sentence: “and in_case the Goovernor in Council
is satisfied by such Report that'such Plans, Specifications, and Estimates as aforesaid are sufficient and
reasonable.” ' How do you interpret those words ;. has that anything to do with the word feasibility? Of"
course it was perfectly feasiblé, and is now, supposmg you had to commence de novo, to make a Line of”
Railway for £350,000, but not on stch an expensive plan as'Doyne, Major, & Willett have since pro-
vided ; the or 1g1na1 plans have been departed from as you will see by the statement I have put in. I refer
to sta.tement No. 8. I may mention also, that I.am debarred from- proving - this, ‘'as the plans furnished
originally by Mr. Doyne to the Commissioners were handed back to him, at his request, to enable him to-
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complete the Contract, These documents have been withlield, and have been applied for repeatedly by
ane, and the statement has been that the Engineers, thinking: they were worthless, have destroyed the
greater portion of them,—but I put in the correspondence between the Secretary and -the Engineers; which
will explain this matter, (marked L.). T was at that time - under the impression, as to-the plans supplied
to the Commissioners, that the Contract was to be let by those plans; but I was afterwards disappointed.
J found that one set of ‘plans were provided for the 'Commissioners, and another for the Contractors.
I refer to the original plans recognised by the Engineers as the Commissioners’ plans.

559. How did your detailed rates of estimates stand in comparison with the rates at which the works
were undertaken by Overend & Robb? My rates, a great number of them, are in excess.

560. And your total estimates give a surplus balance of £12,090 without calculating the premium on
Debentures, did they not? = Yes, £12,091 10s. 8d. S : o

561. Can you name to the Committee the details of estimates in which excesses have arisen, and give
your estimate ‘of the amount of those excesses respectively? T have done so in statement No. 3.

562. The schedule on which you based your first estimate states that the rails were to be G5lbs. to the
lineal yard, does it not? Yes.

563. And the Government and the country were committed to such data and report from the Com-
missioners, were they not? Yes. : . . -

564. And upon the strength of which the Company obtained permission to proceed with the works in
conformity with the Railway Acts ?-" Yes.: :

565. It was after that that the Engineers thought of altering the weight of rails, after the authority
1o commence the works had been given by law? Yes; I hand in copy of the original schedule given me by
‘the Engineers, in October, 1867, and on which I based my Report (marked M.). I may mention that that
was the document which was called the Estimate, and has since been termed the Rough Memorandum.
My colleagues attached so much importance to this document that it was put under seal in an envelope and
deposited at the Union Bank, and was not allowed to'be opened till after the contract was let. 1 point out
that in this document the rails are mentioned as 65 lbs. to the lineal yard (page 7, under head ‘ Permanent
Way”).

566. Was any mention made to you at any time that the Engineers contemplated a heavier rail than
-originally contained in the date you referred to? No; I mentioned to the Engineers at first about the
lightness of the rails, and Mr. Doyne remarked that they had to be economical, and they could not afford a
Theavier rail. - '

567. Were you not informed of the alteration in the rate of rails before the order for plant was sent to
England? No.

568. Nor of the altered character of the bridge at Longford? No. I may mention that the first
dtme I discovered the extra weight of rails was on reading over the Minutes on my return from Victoria.
I think I discovered that the rails had been altered from 65 lbs. to 72 lbs. The discrepancy of weight
of rails was first brought under my notice in October, 1868. The Minute Book says:— Mr. Kemp
brought under the notice of the Board that in a letter of the Engineers to Mr. Hemans, dated 10th July,
read during Mr. Kemp’s absence at Melbourne, he found that they had adopted a 72-1b. rail in the room
+of a 65-1b, rail, as given in Mr. Doyne’s schedule of quantities furnished by him, and which involves an
additional cost of nearly £5000.” I now find this substitution will cost over £7000, as per statement
handed in, The item in the statement (3) is £7521 14s. 64. I must call your attention to this Minute
which states that the rails were ordered on 10th July, whilst the Contract of Overend & Robb was not let
till the 18th July.

5069. Then this ovder for the rails was given prior to the Contract being taken? It appears so from
this document. I will refer to the fact that the Tenders were opened at a Board Meeting of 14th July:
on the 16th July the Tenders were referred to the Engineers for report, which was adopted by the Board
-of Directors, and the Contract entered into on the 18th July. Having ordered the ironwork on the 10th
by his letter, Mr. Doyne on the 18th applied for permission to do so, and permission was granted to him.
T read from letter, 12th October, 1868, from the Engineers to the Secretary :—¢ Permanent way.— The
:Schedule of Quantities which we supplied last year to Mr. Kemp to assist him in forming an estimate,
in which 65 lbs. to the yard is mentioned as the contemplated weight of the rail, was, of course, merely an
approximation, as we had not then fully considered the question. When we afterwards made the actual
«designs, a closer examination into all the conditions of the traffic to be caused induced us to increase the
weight to 75 1bs., and this was the section submitted to the Board in March last. Subsequently, we
directed it might be safely reduced to 72 lbs., and the designs sent to England were altered accordingly.
“The weight of iron in the permanent way.included in our estimate dated hi uly 16th, 1868, is calculated on
this section.” There was a letter from Doyne, Major, & Willett, 16th January, 1869, in which they
acknowledge that there would be an increased cost of rails.

. 870. At the time that you first discovered this alteration in the weight of the rails did you point out to
the Board of Directors that there would be a consequent increase of expense for bolts, fish-plates, &e. ?
Yes.

571. What amount did you fix at the Board then? T said between £5000 and £6000; but since
then I have learned by estimate that it comes to £7521 14s. 6d. If I had been called upon to he a judge of
the feasibility of this undertaking, I should have adopted a 72-lb. rail from Launceston to Longford, and-
have ordered separate engines for this portion of the Line on account of the heavy inclines; and from
Longford to Deloraine I should have adopted a §0-1b. rail, and employed lighter engines to run over this
latter portion where the inclines are very easy. -

572. The first estimate for the Longford Bridge by the Engineers was 200 tons weight, was it not?
-204 tons, .
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1573, Were: you consulted at all by the 'Engineers with regard to the alteration of the plans ? No. -

574. You are aware that there was an alteration, . and_that the Engmeers alleged that the”Bndge
of 204 tons was ot sufficient for Rallway purposes" Yes. . .

575, 1s! it the usnal course adopted ‘by Engmeexs, w1th regard to. worhs of thls descnptlon, to
withhold information as to any material alteration? No: itisnot. . = - . o

576. Have you any information-that you can give to this. Committee with regard to th1s matter of the
alteration of the Longford Br idge.? Yes: I pr epared a comparative statement which I will hand in.” The-
Engineéers have ‘made allusion in the Addenda ‘to the - printed Corlespondence, that a considerablé saving
would be effcted in consequerice of their adopting 2 Spans of 200 feet each in prefelence to the Viaduct-
originally desigried of 4 Spans of 110 feet. This document will contradict the statement made in such printed
Correspondence, and show that the alta ation has conSIdelably incr eased the quantltles (Statement handed
* in, marked N.):. '

By Mr. Kennerley—5717. Wlth 1etra1d to the 7th ‘paragraph in the Addends to Correspondence it is-
stated that Mr, Kemp was acquainted’ ‘with the new designs'of the Viaduct long before the' Coniract with
-Overenid & Robb, or any orders had been sent home for -iron work., Is’ that ‘statement- ‘corréct? Noj
- if I had had any- official informatiori of such-an alteration I should not have failed to notice ity -and’ to' have-
reported to the Government on it immediately. The Engineers have stated in' this couespondence ‘that
this was brought under my notice- at.the-time the plans. were . exhibited at the Town Hall,. Launceston.
Of course the plans and designs were, exhlblted and I, with the general public, had an.opportunity”
of viewing those plans 5 but T could ot 1eco<rnlse anythmg I saw on. the walls at the Town Hall,.
for T was not aware of the object for which they iwere exhibited. And supposing I had done so,
and it turned’ out contrary to the information I had officially before me, of course the Government would
" have blamed me. ' I may mention that there is nothing on "the records or described in any way that ywould
lead any one to the belief that such or such a substitution was contemplated ; and that the Dir ectmy were-
" taken quite as: much by surpnse ds I was when they learned that this bndge was to cost the enormous sum
of. £18 440 in England. - -

578. Did you not observe the dlﬁ'erence in the plans, that ‘there were 4 spans “in the 01101nal de51gns~'
and only two in the:other plans? I did not notice it. * I believe the original plan was exhibited.

By Mr. Snan.—579. Was your attentlon spemally called to any alte1 atlon in the plans f01 the Bz idge-
* in those exhibited at the Town Hall?" No. " °

. By Mr, Lewis.—~580. Do you remember to have seen the original plan of the iron Viaduct over the-
river 7 T-nevér saw thein after theéy left my possession. I have never seen them since, unless as I have:
before stated.

581. Is it youl “opinion that the alteration in the plan of the Bridge would be’ advantaﬂreous to the
Railway ;works and provide lalgel ﬂood-openmos on the river 7, No, it would not ; the ﬁood—opemngs
would be about the same.

582. Would the extra piers offer a greater resistance to timber, &e. runmnw down the river 7, Yes,,
the centre pier would. ’

.683. Is it not much more feas1ble to have two spans, a5 now, than - four ” If I were to answe1 that
question’ I should have to go into the whole measure of the feasﬂnhty of the scheme, and I would rather
not. :

584. That’s in the mere Works themselves 5 but I want to know 1{' the Engmeels were W'manted in.
making such a great difference in the work 7 If I were to answer it, I must go into, the feasibility, of the:
whole:”

By the Chairman.—585. Going back to the plans 1t has been stated that dm ing the time these plans-

were exhibited at thé Town Hall, Lannceston, you were present, and.you explained them to thany persons, ?

I was present, I believe, on two or tlnee occas1ons, and I etpl med the sectlons mme par t1cula1ly than the-
“designs on the wall. ‘

. 586.. Then you did not explam the entire of the plans, but simply a sectwn ? - That’s all.

587." In tlie printed corr espondence which has taken’ place between your self arid Mr. Innes on the one-
side, and Mr. Bartley and Mr. Dowling on the othér; as to your course at the Board when a question.
comes before it to allow orders for materials to be sent to England, have you anything to'say on that now ?
When the subject was brought before the Directory and the Engmeels asked permission to order’ materials
from England, I suggested to the Dir ectory that the proper medium through which orders'should be sent home-
was thr ough the Secretary, and that unless that course -was. adopted gr eat confusion would take place; and
had my suggestion been carried out, these excesses would not have been incurred without the knowledge of”
the Commlssmners, or without. then being made acquainted with them. I may mention that Mr.. Dowlmg
said he hoped these éxtra duties would noi be imposed on him, and the Dnectms decrded that the PIOPEI"
course was to order these materials through their Lngmeels

588. Is there a minute of that? No, there is not a minute; but had the same thlng to go over. agam I
should have made a very strong mmute i’ the JOIII nals, and I hold myselt much to blame for not havmg“
had. it recorded-in the Journals. -

' 589. Thé orders’ for materials have always been sent through the Engmeers, ‘and not tlnough “the
Secretary of ‘the Boald of Dir ectors 7 "Yes. - . -

590. Are you cer tain that you, dld not know ‘the Enounee]s had sent home orders Wlnch d1ﬁ'e1 ed from
the schedule. of quantltles submitted to the Commissioners till after the orders had gone home?~ I am: cer-- -
tam I was not aware till after the orders'had gone home. - : : : :

~.591. . But were you not, recognised by Mr. Doyne as Commlssmner under the Lauiceston and Western
Rallway Act, and as such permitted to seehis: plans in “Melbourne -as: well: as: in Launceston? “Yes; and.
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with reference to that matter I may state that I called at Mr. Doyne’s office in Melbourne on several occa-
:sions when those plans and designs were in course of preparation, that is the original plans and designs, not
the contract plans. I will'read a Letter from Mr. Doyne, 2nd March, 1868, [marked O.]—This letter
throws a new light on the matter; the letter refers to the Contract plans. T was not in Mr. Doyne’s office
more than once or twice, and after receiving that Letter I declined to go. I wanted no personal informa-
tion, as anything laid before me must be official. o T :

592. And it was in consequencecf* that letter that you declined? Yes.

593. Could you infer that the plans of the Longford Bridge that Mi. Doyne intended to put up was a
-structure to cost more than £6000, the amount of his estimate of 18687 There again I should not like to
:-gay, for it was on the quantities and information furnished to me that I based my Report,

594. Is it generally understood to be included in the engaging of engineers of a railway to plan the
bridges required and to superintend their erection? Certainly ; and I presume the fees provided for in the
.contract with Messrs. Doyne & Co. cover all supervision.

595. With your knowledge of the present rate of labour and cost of material would you undertake to
-certify that such a Railway opened for traffic, and interest of money during construction, could be done fora
:sum of £350,0007 If you would say, do you think a Railway can be constructed between Launceston -
:and Deloraine for £350,000 I say yes. ‘

596. A good, substantial, and safe Railway? Yes; for £350,000.

597. Would that £350,000 be sufficient to furnish rolling stock, telegmﬁh, and everything connected
“-with the working of a single line? Everything. . '
598. Can you then give this Committee any reason for the additional expenditure now proposed §except
“what you have given as to the Longford Bridge and Rails), and supposed to be necessary? I don’t
‘understand that question.

599. Setting aside the reference you made to the increased expenditure for the Longford Bridge and
‘the increased cost of rails, how is it that this proposed additional expense is necessary? Because the
Engineers had such absolute control, IfI am to go into reasons, I must go into the feasibility from the
‘beginning. I may say they are now contemplating making a Railway in Victoria, the Beechworth and
Melbourne Line, over much more difficult country for a much less rate per mile.

By Mr Swan.—600. You have told us that in your opinion a Line could be constructed for £350,000 :
‘is your opinion formed from your experience derived trom the experiments carried out in the construction
-of the present Line? Partly it is, and partly from my professional knowledge, leaving the present Line
-out of the question.

- By the Chatrman.—601. As a Director sitting at the Board of the Company, has it not been in your
;power to prevent some of those mistakes which are represented to have been made, and have you inter-
fered to prevent them ? It has been out of my power, and in every case I have endeavoured to prevent
ithem.

602. What do you consider your powers at the Board of Directors to be? When the three Commis-
-sioners and the Directory are present the Commissioners are one to five.

603. And consequently seriously in a minority ? Decidedly so: the Minutes in *he Journals will
-show that I have been standing almost alone as a Director for months and months past. It has been ruled
'by the Directors that the Commissioners are not Directors until there are five duly elected Directors
.present.

By Mr. Lenis.—604. Is it necessary for 5 members of the elected Directory to be present to form a
«quorum ? It is, according to the Company’s rules.

By Mr. Swan.—605. Supposing two Commissioners present and only five of the Directors, would that
_prevent a second one from sitting unless there were ten ? No.

By the Chairman.—606. Have you found any difficulty in asserting your rights as a Director at the
.Board, for the reasons you have given ? I have on many occasions, which the Minutes will show.

607. Has there been any occasion where five Directors, as you have described, have not been present
:and the meeting has lapsed ? Not to my knowledge.

608. Do you conceive that under the Launceston and Western Railway Acts the Commissioners have
-sufficient power to protect the public interests ? They have not ; but that is a question I would rather not
.give an opinion upon.

609. In the event of disputes arising between the Commissioners, the Engineers, or the Board of
Directors, there is no power of reference 7 None.

610. Do you not think that such a power of reference is desirable ? I think so, to the Government.

611. Disputes have arisen, have they not? Yes; on many occasions disputes with reference to
‘information required by me before I signed cheques for payments on Certificates.

612. And those disputes were the cause of considerable inconvenience and expense ? Yes; our only
power at the Board is to withhold' our signatures to the cheques; but you must bear in mind that after a
work has been incurred the Company are liable, and when we withheld our signatures great complications

“resulted. When those accounts had been presented to the Board, and passed by the %irectory for such
large sums as :£10,000 or £12,000, I have objected, and I have had my objections minuted in the
.journals, upon the ground that the Certificate did not contain sufficient information to enable me to say
whether the sums were due or not; and I have been met by the Directory, the Secretary, and the Engineers
saying that was not in my province, and nothing is provided in the Act. I have demanded ‘quantities and
_rates, and failing to get them I have said, ¢ Give me the data, let me see how you arrive at it,” and that has
sbeen withheld from me :_that-allappears in the correspondence. S ‘



By Myr. Whyte.—613. They give the information now, however?. The last certificate I got all the
information I required given me,—the quantities and every information.on every point. ‘
A By Mr. Kensierley.—614. Up to a certain point the Engineers of the Company denied your right
as a Professional Commissioner to interfere with them in the management? They did, and the Directory
also, because nothing is contained inthe Act that would warrdnt my 'interference: that is the ostensible
cause.. I brought this under the notice of the Government. . . e

615.- But.since the disputes the.right has been conceded? The: right has been conceded this month
only ;. previously to that I had to go on the-works and measure myself, and get the information-as I could.

. By Mr. Swan.~—616. Do yourthink other cases might arise in which your usefulness as Commissionér
night be interfered with by the' Engineers or Directors? Yes, it’s in. their power to refuse under the
existing Law. The Engineers have powers, under the Contract between Overend & *Robb and :che
Directory, to order what they think proper; they are absolute, and can order any extra work and materials
they may think proper, and have done so; and the Directors have not been called on to pay for such
.extras until they have been actually incurred, and payment.then was.unavoidable as the Minutes will show.

By Colonel Hutchins.—617. Will you state to the Committee the length of your- experience’ as an
Engineer since the date of your Articles, and to. whom you were articled? . I was articled in 1844 to
Mzr. Taylor, and was transferred through hi§ failure to Mr. Stephenson, Engineer to: Mr.. Tredwell, the
Railway Contractor. . ' ' . . L

. 618. Were you at any time resident engineer of any railway ? I was.employed. in Victoria setting out
lines of railway, supervising their construction and works, for I think, nearly ten years,

619. On what lines? The Geelong and Ballarat, Melbowrne and Williamstown, Melbourne and
Geelong, and Melbourne and Sandhurst. I had the supervision of all the stations  and works. My
testimonials are printed and will show that. My work on the Melbowrne and Williamstown Line included
the general works appertaining to a Railway. . : . T ¥ )
. 620. Can you explain an apparent discrepancy between your memorandum at page 70 (No..24), where
you state the slopes will require £20,000, and your estimate, p. 45 (No. 16), where £6000 is stated for
law costs and arbitrations, and extra earthwork in cuttings, &c.? Inmaking up my estimate in July, 1868,
it worked to £12,091 10s. 8d. for contingencies. It was not until after the contract between Overend &
Robb was referred to the Commissioners that I was first made acquainted with the extraordinary slopes of
2to 1, and I expressed my doubt as to their standing at that batter. You will see, on reference to
p. 45, I say this balance of £12,091 10s. 84. is'to meet *law costs and arbitrations, extra earthwork in
cuttings, the slopes of which are specified to be only 1 to 1, and it is a question whether they will stand
at that batter,” . I may state that they found fault with me for bringing it under the notice of the-Govern-
ment: but I fail to understand your question about the £6000. S

. By the Chairman.—621. That extraordinary slope of } to 1 appeared in the original specification
laid. before you, on which you.made your Report of 23rd January? - I hand in a stdtement which will
explain that question, and I may mention that no ‘word is mentioned in the original data by which I
could understand or arrive at the conclusion that the slopes were 'to be } to 1. If such was the case
it was: withheld from the Commissioners. . ' -

(Comparative Statement put in marked P.) -

By Colonel Hutchins.—622. Do I understand that the slope of % to 1 does not appear in the specifi-
-cation laid before you, on which you based your estimate? Not a word.:

By the Chairman.—623. Are those plans to which you refer the plans that Mr. Doyne says are partially
-destroyed and does not produce? Yes. : ' _

By Mr. Swan.—624. The slope of % to 1 being insufficient in your opinion, what do you think a
proper slope would be? " 1 to 1, and in some cases 15 to 1. ~ ' -

625. Will any slope of } to 1 stand permanently in any part of the works? Through the rock
cuttings it would. Co

626. Are there any rock cuttings at present? There ave'a few. Nearly all the cuttings have been
sloped ; a great number sloped back either wholly or partially. My estimate with regard to the cuttings of
£20,000 provides for the slopes being taken down to the base of the cuttings, and not as now being down at
the sides. -

627. Do you think that any saving has been effected by trying the experiment of the cuttings at % to
1?7 None. . An apparent saving has been effected, but eventually there will be none. '

628, A.preat saving apparently in the first cost might have taken place, but supposing -that some of
those cuttings should be found not sufficiently sloped, but a certain number stood, it is-a question.whether
some would not succeed ? . I don’t know that.there is one instance where, as an experiment, it will succeed
eventually; it has succeeded partially, but in my opinion the whole of the slopes will have to be taken down
to the base, that is all ‘the earth slopes. I have already alluded to it, to the Government, as a recurring
-expenditure from time to time.

By Myr. Lewis—629. Do you think it was a juétiﬁable.e_xpefi’ment to make the slope % to 1 at such a
cutting as at Cameron’s Hill? I would rather notanswer that,as I-should have to touch upon its feasibility.
By Mr. Whyte—630. There are some -matters in‘dispute ‘between the: Engineers and Contractors
with reference to the mode in-which-this work'is to.be calculated, I understand? "Yes: it has arisen on
items in the schedule for side cuttings. T A B '
631. What is likely to De the result? That it will involvé nearly :£3000, which will havé ‘to he

settled by arbitration. .~ -

632. You have taken that into consideration in yi)ur'estimé,’ée of £20,000? T have.
The Witness withdrew. '

[N
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o o " "Taurspay, SepreMBER. 30, 1869. ‘
Present—Mr. Davies (Chairman), Mr. Kennerley, Mr.. Archer, Mr.  Whyte, Colonel Hutchins, Mr.
: T L Lewis, Mr. Swan, Mr. Maclanachan. - - 0 i
: MR. SAMUEL V. KEMP recalled and.examined. - RS
By the Chairman.—633. Yesterday I put this question to yoil,' “Were you not recognised by Mr.
“Doyne as Commissioner under the Launceston and Western Railway Act, and as such permitted to see
“his plans in Melbourne as well as in Launceston?” You replied by putting in a letter, which was read tb
-the Committee, pointing out that Mr. Doyne had objected to your coming. there in the capacity of Com-
-missioner to inspect those plans, but you were welcome as a Director, and you' produced a letter you had
‘received in consequence of which you declined’'to go? Yes. - : :
634. Did you take any steps to communicate to the Government with regard to that matter? No, I
"did not consider it necessary at that stage to do s6, because, on reference to thatletter, I found it was neces-
-sary for the Commissioners only to report upon the plans and estimates prepared by the Engineers after
-they had been laid before the Directory and Contracts entered into. :

635. Did this circumstance take place before or after you had certified that the Railway could be
‘opened for £350,0007 It was after: : ‘ ' ‘

636. By Mr. Archer.—What plans do you refer to,—the original plans submitted to you? These
-must have been the plans on which they contemplated letting the contract,~the contract plans. I explained
to the Board that I was under the impression, when I handed back the plans given me, that they would
have been the contract plans, but I found they were not.

By Colonel Hutclins.—637. Did you calculate the quantities given you by the Engineers as to the
Bridge at Longford ? - I based my assertion on the data originally furnished to me in 1867; and I main-
tained that if a Bridge of 204 tons was sufficient in 1867, a Bridge of 204 tons would be sufficient in 1868.

638. Have you had any professional experience in designing or carrying out any 'work of a similar
character to that of the South Esk Bridge ? . During my engagement on Victorian Railways I had great
facilities of seeing all the designs that were made for all the works, and I saw them almost in every stage
during their erection ;. larger structures than that of the South Esk Bridge.

By Mr, Lewis.~—0639. What is your opinion as. to whether you consider the alteration in the Long-
ford Viaduct especially an improvement of the Railway? Undoubtedly it is an improvement.

640. Do you think the improvement sufficient to justify the extra expenditure? There I amata
(difficulty, for I maintain that four spans would have met the requirements of that locality, and that such
an expensive structure was not necessary.

641. Was the alteration in the Bridge, and the extra expenditure consequent on the part o1 the Engi-
neers, done without the consent of the Directors and Commissioners? In reply to that, I say I think
under any circumstances the Engineers were not justified in putting such an expensive structure over that
river with the limited means at their disposal. _ '

By Mr. Archer.—642. Not even if they found they had committed an error as to ‘the water way
required? No. With the limited means at their command they were not justified -in spending so much
money at this crossing. . )

(The Witness handed in a letter with reference to his certificate on which his estimate of £350,000
was based. Mur. Doyne to Hon. Sec. 27th March, 1868, marked Q.)

By the Chairman.—643. What brought about that letter; was it at the time the Commissioners gave
their Report? The Commissioners were called on-to give in their Report in compliance with the Act. A
question was raised by Mr. Bartley whether other professional opinions and evidence could not be obtained
besides my own. We found that no such evidence could be obtained without payment for it out of the
Company’s funds, and there was nothing in the Aect to provide for it. The Commissioners then decided to
examine Mr. Doyne by evidence, and this is the evidence thus obtained from him. Mr. Doyne repre--
sented that before the Commissioners and the Directors at a Board Meeting, and the Commissioners then
called on Mr. Doyne to put it in writing, and this letter is the document.

(The Witness gave the date of his appointment from printed paper, with letter of Sir R. Dry, 1st Sep--
tember, 1867, marked R.)

By Colonel Hutchins,—644. Do you owe your appointment in any way to the recommendation of
Mr. Doyne ? Not to my knowledge; that paper will explain every thing in reference to my appointment.

By Mr. Swan.—645. Am I correct in the impression that Mr. Doyne having estimated £400,000,
on being asked by the Directors to reduce it to £350,000, replied that he could, but that further money
would be required as soon as traffic commenced on the Line ? That occurred hefore my connection witly
the undertaking. When my appointment was made the then Colonial Secretary sent me a copy of the
Act, and in that the specific sum named is £350,000. I never knew anything as to the £400,000.

646. What did the Directors understand when they found Mr. Doyne had reduced it to £350,000,—
was it the opinion of the Directors that it was to bring it within the requirements of the Act with the full
knowledge that another sum would be required ? My impression is that the Directors received such state-
ment in good faith, and expected the Line would not cost more than the £350,000. I received it in good
faith myself, and I believe my colleagues did the same. (Put in British Trade Journal and English Price
Current, marked 8.), to contradict a statement made by the Engineers, that the increased cost of rail was.
owing to the increased price of iron in the English market.

By Mr. Lewis—647. Is not the price of iron rails regulated by the discount ? Not rails, I think ;.
ii-onmongery, and all carpenters’ ironmongery, is o regulated, but not iron rails. The discount rate

uctuates.
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By ‘tlm ,(“'hazrman —649. 1 dlaw your attentxon to questwn 82 " You obselve Mr Doyne says
« I névér relinguished my or irial position stated i in my report of 1861 that the Rallway, to bé’ completed
satlsfactorlly, would 1equ1re .5400 000; ‘and’ this has néver been'in the’ shghtest degree concealed by miej,
on the contrary, it was ‘mattei of dally conversation' bétween myselt' and thé principal Dir ectors 7. I
should think ‘Mr. Doyne must have f01 rgotten the ex1stence of that lette1 of the: 2 th Mar ch I now hand
in the orlrrmal of the copy just put in. : ‘ i

. 650.. What kind of inspection have.the Engineers glven for the executlon of the Cont1 act of
‘Overend & Robb as to the brick, mottar; ‘and other materials’ ‘used by them, aiid generally as regards the
detail of the works ? "'In my opinion’ they have given very imperfect divect supervision : what I mean by’
that'is; the non-existence of a Resident Inspector-of Works, who' ought to -be constantly stationed -ori the
- works and never allowed to leave it  -As to this‘matter of supervision I'have made a digest of all that has:
taken place between the; Engmeers and Dir ectors and the Commlsswners, and.T will read it and hand it in.

4 (Digest.T. putin.) - B s L

.. 651. Will you turn back to the motion of Mr. Tyson at the Board Meetln 12th V[ay, as to 1e51dent
supelvmon Was the'amendment that.there should be 4 local\mspectm carried 7 Yes: . o '

652. Was that resolution of the Boald of Directors carried “out ?" No; it has “been 1athe1 set atl
deﬁance by the Engmeers

*.653. Then are you enabled to ' state for the 1nf01mat10n of the Committee’ ‘whether’ ‘thére has been any.
1mprovement in supervision in those works? - There lias' been an 1mp10vement “Mr. W. B. Hulland Mr.-
J. E. Day, Civil Engineers, who had ‘Been engaged on-tlie Mairi Line Survey, have been placed on the 1st
and 2nd sections respeotwely H but in my opmlon the superv1s10n now is not sufﬁc1ent thele is a want of
1es1dent Inspectms Covhel TN o TR :

654, How was that 1mp1 oved supel vision broucrht about; Vas' it by the Commlsswners 1efus1ng to-
surn the, cheques ? "No; but by the services of those’ O‘entlemen bem0~ taken ﬁom the Mam Lme Sm Vey.:

. 655, Was that' subsequently to the stoppage of supphes 7 Yes o

656. Then was the stoppage of payment a p11mary cause, of' the 1mp1 ovement in the supervxsmn" I
cannot say that.it was.. .

;. 657.- Are you aware that - Wesms Conway &c T1dey in the employment of the Contractms have been
actmg as supervisors over the works ?-./There has been: no one-else but those- gentlemen, -and they being in
the pay ofithe. Contractors, I have always looked on them as Contractor’s men, not as supe1 v1smg on the
part of the Engineers. u M

, B Mr. Swan.—658. Do you cons1de1 Messrs Doyne & Co have any authouty over Messrs Con—
way and Tidy ?  The paragraph in letter of 24th A_pml 1869,. would infer such.

659.- What do you-consider ?+ . T must say they have no direct control, for the reason that “;no man can
serve two masters.” . If you will allow me, T:willread the paragraph in the Jetter 24th April, 1869, where.the
Engineers refer to those gentlemen. “ We may mention that, in addition to the 1nspect10n by ourselves
and our assistants, Mr:. H. Conway as inspector of brickworl; and Mr. Tidy as. inspector of earthworks
and excavations for foundations, on the part. of ‘the Contractors, ‘have been’ (nrectly placed by the ‘Con-
itractors under our own personal ¢ contl ol and. direction in every respect; and have been instructed by them, '
in Mr. Doyne’s presence, to obey in every respect every oider given by the Engineers without reference ‘to
Messrs. Overend & Robb:: and we feel bound to say that they have given a prompt and willing attention
9 all our orders; which has claimed ﬁom us the fullest conﬁdence i then integrity, and desn'e to-obtain
01ed1t by the result-of their exertions.” :

By Mr. Swan. —660 "Did not the’ Engmeels, Méssrs:' Doyne,’ ‘da]m - and ‘Willett, claim to have
authorlty over them: how do'you reconcile it with the woids, “ Mr. Conway as mspectm -of brickwork,
and Mr. Tidy as inspector of earthworks and excavations, for foundatlons, on the part of the Contractors,
‘have, been -placed .by.ithe Contractors under our own personal control and, d11ect1on in every 1espeot ¥’
~.Such would lead mé to.the belief that. thev claimed the control. ;

: 661.:Then the Engineers 'do- claim "a - control : ‘are: Messrs Conway and Tldy selvants of the
:Contractoi s?" . They are in their pay, so far as'I know. . . .

" By, the  Chairman.—662. I rvefer’ you to Mr.- Doyné’s  evidence (88) M1 Doyne says Messrs.
Conway and Tidy officiate 'as’ Inspectors, which  was for ‘the: Contriactors,” but he was' personally stuper-
vising himself? With reference to this, I may say Mr. Doyne has always contended—and I believe he
:is" upheld by a legal .member, of ‘the Dnectory—that his” Contract states he “shall- by himself, or by the
aid of properly qualified assistants, supervise the Railway works; dnd Le says he has, elected to do'it by
“himself—maintaining that.he does it himself—he has no right to, employ qualified assistants.

663 Did:you oppose this. system: of supervision from. the first? I: may mentlon that I had. some
- delicicy in: reference-to this matter, knowing I alwaysistood ;in a minority ;. and: I had. consultation on the
.subject with my, colleagues, and have, spoken of it : indir ectly on_many occasions ; but the first record in
.the Mmutes was.when Mr.. Innes moved his Resolutlon of the 16th \{al ch 1869.

' By Mr. Archer.—664. Are the engineering works in the a(lJommg, Colonies being. ca111ed ont by
,contract or by the departmental system.? 171 may mention.that. in- Queensland such a system was adopted
"but it has since been, abandened, and they have gone back to the depar tmental, ‘In New South Wales,
New Zealand, and South Austr al1a they always, had the ‘depar tmental system ' '

~665. "Are you aware whether in iQueensland. the. Enwmeens were- allowed o, employ the st vants of the
Contlactms as supervisors’ ‘of their.work 2. .Jam hot.awarei - .

By y the -Chairman. —666: Will you explam ‘to this: Commlttee what are: yom ‘powels A5 a Commls-
sioner : to what do you consider they extend? Our powers are very limitéd: we Liave little:or no' power.



In proof of that, extra works have been ordered from time. to time, and the Directory and Commissioners
have not been called on, to sanction these extras until they had actually been completed or nearly so.
This is in direct opposition to a resolution of the Board. From the minute book it appears that Mr.
Scott moved and Mr. Kemp seconded, on. the. 13th Octobel, 1868, — ¢ That any alterations which the
Engineers may think it desirable to make in connection with the Launteston and Western Railway, or in
the mdeung of any materials for such works, be submitted to the Board for their appl oval before any
action is taken.—Carried.” This resolution was communicated to the Engincers on ‘the 15th day of
October last, This also has been set at defiance.

667. Have you any power as Commissioner to call on the Engmeels to give you certain information
with regard to the number of persons employed, for instance, to supervise? None whatever.

668. Do you ‘think that powers such as to ask for information from Engineers with regard to those
matters already refused should be vested in the Commissioners? I think so, orin the Government.

By Mr. Swan.—669. Do you consider, by your own interpretation of the power conferred, you had
any right to ask Doyne and Company what supervision they exercised? I don’t think we bad. "Taking
the Act as I read it, I must admit we have arrogated those powers to ourselves.

670. Then you think ‘that, havin arrogated to yourselves those powers, your conduct would be
impertinent? No, I didn’t thmk that, for we “had advice, and on the strength of such advice I acted as I
have done. '

671. If you exercised on yom own authority powers which were not conferred by the Act, is not
impettinent the proper term to apply to your interfer ence?, We referred to the Law Officers of the Crown
as to the mterpretatlon of certain condmons, and they have decided the matters which should be within
our power.

By the Chazrman —-672 Wlll you favoul us W1th yom opinion whether you have any power to
inspect the works as they proceed, as Commissioner? I have no power to inspect the works, and I have
felt every time I have been on the works as'a trespasser, -and I believe if it came to a leO'al point the
Contractors have power to put me off; in fact, I am almost certain they have, for it has been determined
I am not a Director e‘ccept at the Boald and ‘as Commissioner there i is no such power to visit and inspect
the works. : : .

673. Do you not think that powers of supervision and inspection as the works proceed should be
vested in the Commissioners ? I think the Commissioners should have a recognised power, and that where
they find the supervision inadequate, their recommendation.should be attended to.

674. Are you enabled to give the Committee any information as to the state of-the works as they
progress in consequence of your answer ? Only from personal inspection; I go once or twice a week.

675. Can you give us your professional opinion as to the progress of the works, and the way in whicl:
they are generally constructed ? "That is a very general question, and I can only ‘answer it in a general
way ; I believe, on the whole, the works have been faithfully carried out: that is my opinion. If I knew
that ’ihgle had - been p10pe1 superwswn, such oplmon would :be: considerably strengthened . by such
knowledge.

676. Then, from the opportumtles you have had, can you give any information to this Committee
about the bricks and mortar and other material used by the” Contractors ; ; and if so, what? During my
visits I have seen many things that have occurred that had I been personally supervising I should have
objected to.

677. I am anxious to understand as to the stability, nature, and quahty of the bricks, mortar, and
materials? I could not speak of them except as before.

678. What was the quality of the bricks, mortar, and cement, and other materials? I have not had
an opportunity of examining and testing,.and can onlv judge from my personal visits.

679. Can you give us no opinion on those points? Only generally.

680. Have you objected, or could you have objected, to the use of any of the matenals if you had
had the power to do so? Certainly. I should have objected to some of the bricks and cement mortar
used at many localities on the Line,—more particularly at Longford Viaduct; but, under the existing
law, I had no power whatever. Had I raised this question before the Dir ect01y, {t would have made
matters more unpleasant still. I have a sample of cement mortar that I took out of the wing wall of the
abutment of the Viaduct on 16th September, 1869, which I produce. I am speaking of the Viaduct over
the river.

G81. VVhat is the quality of that cement? I should pronounce the quality to be very questionable ;
it has set a little more than when I took it out of the work.

682. What is the cause of that crumbling ? On account of there not being the proper proportion of
cement in it to the sand, and that arises, from the want of proper supervision. I will read to you the
provision of the Contract bearing on that. (Specification, 130th Condition, as specified in Clause 29.)

683. Does that cement mortar produced contain in your opinion the necessary quantity of cement to
render it durable, and a proper material to use? It is not in my opinion'in accordance with the description
given in Clause 29 of the specification.

684. Then, had the Commissioners been invested with such power as you tlunk they ought to possess,
this material would not have been'used? No. I may say that during my experience on Victorian Railways
T had a Resident Inspector on every work under my supervision, whose duty it was to see that the con-
ditions in the Contracts were faithfully carried out, and more particularly to judge of cement and materials,
and my duties were then very arduous. I had works of 200 miles extent under my supervision. I refer
-the Committee to Mr, Higginbotham’s evidence, Victoria Parliament, par. 60. J uhan Danvers, Esq.’s
Report on Indian Railways, 1867 and 1868, : ,
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7.685." Can you tell us now what sum was estimated for supervision in this Contract? ' Mr. Doyne’s:

Contract provides for £1’7 600 for supelwsmn, mcludmg surveys, plepalatlon of plans, and everything,
about '£400 per mile. -

* By Mr. Aviher. —686."Is it usual in ‘using sand for.cement work to have it washed, ‘61 to simply

use it'as it is taken from the ground? ‘When you get it from the pit the sand 1equu es to be washed, but
1f ﬁom the’ river the sand is. washed already.

" 687. Do you know where the sand is procured from that is used with the cement for the South Esk
Viaduct piers? No. I donot. Generally speaking it would be necessary that pit sand should be washed
before being used or mixed with cement, but there are exceptions in which sand dces.not require washing.

.688. What length of time elapses before mortar will be thoroughly hard? There are differences of”
opinion on that. It takes a long time before it arrives at maturity. From my experience in these Colonies

T have found it'sets more readily here on account of the dryness of the chmate, and the absence of 1"1osts~
Cement mortar usually sets in 24 hours,

689. Did you 1nspect the Perth Viaduet durlng its constructlon 7 Yes, lepeatedlv

690. Should cement have been used in the entire construction of that work? I don’t think it’s:
absolutely necessary; the Contract only provides for cement in certain portions.

691. Was cement used in that portion of the work throughout the.arches ? . To the best ot' my belief.
yes.

¥ By dMr. Why Jte——692 Have you seen the statement of estlmates and cost put in by Mr Dowhng"
es. .

693. Did you examine that document very carefully 7 I did.
694. That differs materially from the one you handed in? It does.

695. Have you formed your estimates on what you: conceive to be absolutely and necessarﬂv
required ? I have, 1rrespect1ve1y of this-estimate.

696. In your estimate you put down £6000 for extra station accommodatlon and extra apploach

roads,—do-the Commlttee understand that to be absolutely necessary ? .1 think mine amounts to more
- than that, : . .

The W1tness withdrew.

- Fripay, IST Ocroser, 1869.

Present—Mr Dav1es (Chanman), Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Kennerley, Mr, Maclanachan, Mr. Swan Mjy.
Whyte, Mr. Lewis. :

"The Hon. F. M. INNES, Fsq., M.L.C., called in and examined.
B Y the Chairman.—697. Your name is Frederick Maitland Innes? Yes. :

698. You are President of the Legislative Council of this Colony, and you are also a Commlsswner
under the provisions of ¢ The Launceston and Western Railway Acts?” Yes.

699. Have you held your appointment” as Commissioner since the time the Launceston and Western

Railway Acts came into operation? I have been Commissioner from the period that the Act took effect..
I was one of the first Commissioners. '

700.. What instructions did you receive on _being appointed Commissioner under the ‘Launceston and
‘Western Railway Acts?. T received no written instructions. I had copies of'the Acts placed in my hand,
and had verbal communications with the head of the Government at that time, the effect of which was, that
I was looked to to protect the interests of the Government where these were ‘nvolved in the opexatlons of
the Company.

701. By the Government you mean the Country? Yes.

702. Will you inform the Committee what duties have been performed by you in the. capacity of”
Commissioner ? I have made myself acquainted with all the business transactions of the Company of any
moment from the time of my appointment. I have taken my place at the Board of Directors. I have:
from time to time visited the works. I have maintained a corstant correspondence with the professional
Commissioner, who has referred to me in all matters of a discretionary character ; and have been in constant
personal communication with the Government on all matters affecting the Railway and its interests therein..

703. Have the powers of the Commissioners been acknowledged by the Board of Directors ? ? Perhaps
-the powers of the Commissioners as they could be legally established have been recognized ; but the powers.
of the Commissioners under the law do not certainly correspond with those which Parliament contemplated
when passing theé law, and I may add that the disposition encountered by the Comimissioners from the:
Company has been to reduce them to ciphers and make their appointment a nullity.

704. Their powers then, in your opinion, have not been sufficient? - Certainly not for the object
intended by their appointment.

705. Have you arrived at any conclusion from what you have detailed as to what the powers of the-
Commissioners should be; -and if'so, will you favor this Committee with your views on the subject?
Considering that the interest of the Gover nment in the Railway amounts to $ths of the original capital of”
the undertaking, I think that the - Government should have. reserved through the Commissioners a . moxe-

perfect control over the expenditure of the Company a course for which there are plecedents in respect
to the Indian Railways, as well as others.

706. Do you refer to those precedents: have you them with you?: Yes; in connection with the-
Indian Railways, there is a control which commences with.the. very first proceeding in respect-to the
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construction’ of railways.” .The Committee may :be aware that in. India the. railwdys are constructed by
Companies under a guarantee of interest from the Government.. The plans of every railway are not
accepted merely as they come from the engineers of the Companies: they are subject to the revision of
engineers on -the part of the Government, and mo deviations are allowed- unless by the. sanction or
approval of the latter; and in a Board which presides over the Indian Radilways there sits an Official
Director on the part of the Government, who has a veto on the proceedings of the Board. I may add to
the evidence which appears in a letter from myself, 11th June, 1869 (Paper 24), condemnatory of confiding
entirely in the surveys and in the ‘supervision, of contract Engineers, that in the Report from the Select
Commitee of the Legislative Council on Railways in Queensland, dated 4th’ October; 1866, appears the
following resolution :—* Your Committee, whilst believing that the Colony may be fairly satisfied with
the engineering skill of Mr. Fitzgibbon, clearly perceive that a decided mistake was ¢committed in allowing
the surveying and engineering superintendence to be. contracted for, instead of 'being conducted by a
department.”” I would refer also to’the practice in England where the plans of all railways must be
approved by the engineers employed under the Railway Committee of the Board of Trade, and no deviation
{rom the plans which have been approved or sanctioned excepting on the authority of that independent staff.
This applies to all railways. I lay on the table a Railway Report, Board of Trade, for 1867 (marked U.).
On the point:I have spoken to, I refer the Committee to the following heads in the Regulations of the
Board of Trade. ’ o ‘ e '
. If Company contravene statintes, Board of Trade to certify same to the Attorney-General, who
shall proceed against them. C

Obligation as to the description of third-class carriages. ‘

Power reserved to Lords of the Treasury to revise tolls, fares, and charges.

Objection to make returns to Board of Trade-(Hodges, p. 481). .. :

Notice of accidents to the Board of Trade. .

Inspectors of Railways. Appendix, p. 21-2. ‘

See.Memoranda of Important Desiderata, Appendix, p. 269.

707. Having given us the explanation now received, will you express your opinion as to what
shoul'l be the powers with regard to the Tasmanian Commissioners, and how should they be brought
about? 1 may have a cleariview as to what it might be expedient to do supposing there were a clear
field, but while [ think a great mistake was committed in reposing this work in the Company, and that
that arrangement will inevitably be proved to be only temporary, that it must cease, that it will be brought
to an end by circumstances, I also think it would be inexpedient.to precipitate 2 termination of the present
arrangement ; but that a power should be reserved in the general Government, if not in the Com-
missioners themselves, of vetoing resolutions of the Directors, more particularly where Contracts and
expenditure of money are in question. On the defects of tlie present system I may express myself in better
Janguage than I have.now used, which has been applied to a Company similarly circumstanced- to the
Launceston and Western Railway Company, that ¢ a Railway supported by State subsidies, and not
checked by Government control, is a sort of chartered libertine.”  Obviously. it must be seen that the
natural restraints on expenditure are-in the difficulty of getting money ; but if you have a facile means by
which money is to be got, you will have a facile system in its expenditure, A '

708, Then do I understand you would recommend an alteration in the Railway Act of this Company
embodying those powers? I do not see how the Legislature could with any. propriety place additional
means at the disposal of the Launceston and Western Railway Company (and in this I intend no reflection
on the Directory of that Company, I speak of the theory of its position) without retaining more effectual
checks than it has hitherto held over its expenditure. .

709. In the Railway Correspondence (No. 24) you are represented, to have held the opinion that
the appointment of an Engineer as a Commijssioner was not desirable. Are you still of that opinion ?
In my communications with Sir R. Dry relative to the appointment of Commissioners I expressed my

-apprehension that the appointment of two professional men (the professional Commissioner and the Com-
pany’s Engineer) would result either in jealousy and misunderstanding between them, or in such a mutual
good understanding as would defeat the end of the appointment of a professional man as Commissioner ;

_but from the experience I have had I am perfectly satisfied that it would have been impossible for the
unprofessional Commissioners to discharge their duty unless they had had the advantage of the experience
and knowledge of a professional dssociate. : : ' . : :

710. Has not Mr. Kemp’s professional knowledge been of acknowledged advantage to the Directory?
Not of acknowledged advantage by the Directory,—speaking of the Directory as répresented by its
majority,—because the utterance by him of a professional opinion to the Board of the Company has
always been met as if it were an 1mpertinence,—a thing he had no business to give. Mr. Doync was
the professional man of the Company, and Mr. Kemp’s professional opinions weré an intrusion. -

711. Was the contract with Mr. Doyne for his sexrvices as Engineer entered into with the approval
and consent of the Commissioners ? The contract was entered into in May, 1867 : the Commissioners did
not take their seats at the Board of the Company until early in 1868. That contract is divided into two
parts, one providing for the survey on which the plans and specifications of the Railway were to be
- framed in such a manner that they could be carried out by some other Engineer than Mr. Doyne. It was
assumed that the first part of his contract had been fulfilled when the Commissioners had to make thelr
~first Report to the Governmerit. * Perhaps it would be desirable for the Committee to have access to the
« Articles between Mr. Doyne and the Company. - (Articles handed in and marked V.) . '

712. Axe you aware that the plans and specificatiéns to which you have referred are missing ? I am
aware that some documents are missing. I believe certain data put before the Commissioners originally are
missing, for I wrote or prompted an application:for these documents to be furnished to the Commissioners,
to which the reply made was that some of them had been destroyed and others were -in Melbourne, and

- they have not since fillen into the hands of the Commissioners. S - : : C

-'713.. Ave the papers-and'documents you refer to, or were they considered-by you as, original docu-
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ments on which you were to draw your conclusions,? They were among the bases on which the Report of
the Commissioners was made that the Line could be ‘miade for £350, 000

714.. Were the, COIIlmISSIOneI‘S pm ties o the Contract w1th Overend & Robb 7. The questi()ﬁ is a legal
one, and in that pomt of view T am not prepared to give an opinion upon it. " But if the question means
were we present, and assenting. parties to the Contract with Overend & Robb when their, Tender for
the construétion of the Line was accepted by the Dir ectoryy I say “Noy *and I fomfy that statement by
1eferr1ng to the published correspondence (Paper 16, p. 39, Letter 100), ﬁom which it will be seen that
exception was taken by Mr. Kemp and myself, in a leiter of 18 J uly, 1868, to a condition in that Con-
tract on which the opinion of the Attorney-General was not elicited until the 215t J uly, after the Contract,
had been entered into. It is therefore not to be presumed that the Commissioners were, simultaneously with
the Directory, parties to the Contract while a question was in  suspense, and referred by’ them to the Law
Officers of the Crown, affecting that Contract.” That letter.of the 18th July; 1858, is signed only by M.
Kemp and myself; but I hold in my hand a letter from Mr. Baltley, of July 22nd in whlch in reference
to- that letter, he writes :—. .

As you'and Mr. Kemp signed'the letter you refer to as transmitted by you to the Colonial %ecretary, I think it
is hardly worth while to intimate my concurrence by a separate leiter ; but, if’ convenient, and you approve of such
a course, you.might let your signature appear to the letter as for yoursell and T. Bartley, which I hereby authorlse
you to do
Furthermore, I have before me 3 Mmute Book of the - Proceedings of the Commlssmners kept by Mr
Bartley, from which I will read the following extract :—.

July 15th, 1868.—This being the day appointed for the opening of Tenders for the constructlon of the whole of"
the Line in one Contract, 9 (mne) Tenders were sent in and opened in the presence of the Board of Directors and all
the Commissioners, a list of which, setting forth the names of the respective Tenderers and the amount of each
Tender, was made by Mr. Kemp as they were opened. The Tender of Messrs, Overend & Robb, of Melbourne,
amounting to £207,325, was found to be the lowest, and was by the Board referred to the Enginecrs of the Company,
Mr. Doyne, who attended at thie Board and handed in their Listimate for the whole of the Works comprised in the
Tenders, the amount of such Estimate being £ * . The Engineers, after conferring with Messrs, Overend
and Robb as to making certain alterations in the specifications which reduced the amount of their Tender to
£200,671 8s. 8d., reported to the Board upon such amended:Tender and recommended its acceptance, which report
ardxd recommendation was adopted by the Board, the Commxssmners taking mo pait in such recommendation and
adoption.

’ PJuly 18.—A duly executed Contract entered into between the Directors and Messrs. Overend & Robb.
The words “ taking no part in” being underlined by Mi. Bartley. I may add that, as a general rule on

questions coming before the Directory in which I had a separate action asa Commlssmnel I have abstained
from taking any action as a Director.

715. Was any objection made at the date of the Contract with Overend & Robb to the form of the
Certificate provided therein for progress payments? None whatever.

By Mr. Kennerley.—716. Were ob_]ectlons taken aftel wards by the Commissioners to the sufficiency
of that Certificate ? Yes.

By the Chatrman,—717, Did any dispute arise in consequence ? Yes and that was the ground on
which a fuller certificate, and: one more satisfactory to the Commissioners, was called for. It was not on
the provisions- of the Contract-with Overend & Robb, but the provisions of the Contract between Mr. Doyne
and the Company that the Commissioners took their stand. I will explain ::—Under the Contract of Mr.
Doyne it was provided that he should act as the Company’s Engineer-in-Chief; and it was contended by
the Commissioners that among the duties of an Eng‘meer—m—Chmf was this, that if it were demanded of him
by the Company that he should furnish a Certificate more ample than the one he was willing to give, he
should furnish it, ..If reference were made to the correspondence originated by myself—which was trans-
mitted by the Colonial Secretary to the Governments of the neighbouring Colonies, and the answers,
received,—it would be seen that the demand of the Commissioners was based on the obligations of any
Eng"meer, whether employed by the Government or by a Company.

718. In the Conespondence published by order of Parliament there is a letter from Mr. Dowling, in.
which he states that you suddenly refused to sign cheques,—have you any explanation to make on this
statement ? I lost no time in contradicting that statement: I did so on the evening that it appeared. I
signed cheques for a month or two, while I was in doubt on the question. I then consented .to do so
provisionally until I should receive satisfactory answers from the neighbouring Colonies. Mr. Dowling
fully understood that arrangement—fully assented to it—and I can ploduce a letter from him, if required,
in which he acknowledges that to be the understanding. As to the subscribing Colonists’ money bemng all
expended at the date of my getting the replies from the neighbouring Colonies—that was an accident, and
had no influence whatever on my.proceedings in the matter; but I .deny that the subscribing Colomsts
money had been all expended at the time.

719. Can you inform the Committee what is the present state of the Company’s accounts, and has the
£50,000 been paid up ? The £50,000 had not, on the 8lst August of the present year, been paid up.
Thele are two accounts kept—one of the Commlssmnels and Companv, and one of the Company,—by
which it appears that on the 81st August the Company’s account was upwalds of £11,0600 overdrawn.
I hand in that Account.

C«sh Statement Company’s Account, 3lst August, 1869.
£ s d
To Bank, 1st and 2nd years, as per balance-sheet «couuvvercena e 32,790 10 O
. Amount pald in from 16th March to the Slst August civeerrecnenas 6074 12 5

N £38,865 2 &
BalanceduetoBanL'LsperBankBooL R PR I £11134 17 7

AmOuntofcredlt ouooo-u.-c-oo.o-'o-.o'to-uu-o--o-on.n--.----£50000 0o 0
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‘Company and Oommi,sjs"{o?z"e;rsff 'Accou;né asper “Béank Book,3lstAugust,1869 o

. Balance to credit, of this Account for expenditure, after covering over- _ £ s d. .
4 draft ofi’ Compiny’s Account soviveeeiviusyeerianivasayiianies 580181978

117720, In one of ‘your létters'you quote ‘évidence given before thé' Queensland ‘Législature by Mr.
Doyne,—can you produce that?- T find' I made 4 mistake’ ‘the minutes of eévidence were printed by order
of the Queensland Parliamerit, but thé evidence "was. evidence takeir licfore a' Cominission. T
~ (Bvidenceputin.). L. . L e o

721. By whom were you made.acquainted with .that evidence? .By no one: I had been reading on
Railways and nothing else for a.considerable time, so as to inform me on questions I was likely to meet
with, and T alighted on that evidence. - Perhaps I may add, in justice.to; Mr.; Kemp, that he never saw it
until I showed it to him.. .~ = . oo L o 4

722. From the experience you have had in the discharge of your duties as-Commissioner, have you
.come to any conclusion of the course desirable to adopt for the. completion of the Launceston and Western
Railway ?. With respect to the completion. of the Railway, .I think it-would ‘be very inexpedient to
withdraw it from the Directory of the Company ; but I think-the Commissioners -should:-be -invested with
powers to accomplish the ‘end of their appointment: I say the end of their appointment, for Parliainent
meant to invest the Commissioners with more power than they have. - ST, -

723. Did you or your Co-Commissioners concur in the appointment of Mr. Dowling as Secretary at
"£600 per-annum? .- I did so actively : when there was a question .in the Directory as to one or other rate
-of salary to Mr. Dowling, I contended -warmly for’ the larger rate;-and, in doing so, I’ieferred to the
importance and laboriousness of the office he had undertdken, and to his acknowledged zeal and ability in
-discharging its duties; but I did so also on another ground, which led, when brought foiward by others, I
think, to" the ultimate decision of the Directory. r. Dowling at that time claimed from the Company
the fulfilment of a_promise or resolution of the Provisional Directory which preceded the mature formation
«of the Company, that he should receive a certain number of Shares for- past.services, When the present
Directory was formed, (the Members of which were not all Members of thé previous one), at its first or
second Meeting a general Resolution was passed affirming’ the Resolutions of the preceding body, in which
was of course included, but without being specifically mentioned, the Resolution in favour of giving Mr.
Dowling so many Shares. I did not think the tiansaction was one that should bé recognised, but that it
was dublous in character, and if acknowledged it might entail upon the -Governmient, in contingencies
liable to occur, the obligation of buying up his Shares the same as-if they had been actually paid for. In
granting a liberal salary it was understood that the Company would hear no more- of the claim to Shares
on the part of Mr. Dowling. ; S o : , s

724. You certified in January, 1868, with your brother Commissioners, that a Line could be opened
for public traffic at £350,000? Yes,—basing that Certificate on the professional Estimates.

725. Are the Committee to understand that when you signed that Certificate to the Governor in
Council, and from enquiries you made,.that you were under.the impression that the Line was to be opened
in a substantial and proper manner for that amount?. Yes, certainly,—including rolling stock and every-
thing necessary to the efficient opening of the Line, and not the mere formal opening. I had no conjecture;
«of any distinction between mere formal and efficient opening of the Line. . c , :

726.- Then you wish the Committee to infer-that you were deceived into giving that Certificate ?-
" No, I am disappointed ; but deception implies that some one had intentionally deceived. I don’t wish
#o imply that. From all I have -learned of antecedent proceedingsin framing estimates of what the
Railway would cost, I believe the Company had arrived at the mature conviction that the work could
be done in an efficient manner for £350,000. - o . ' o o

727. The basis of your certificate that you speak of,—was that broilght to, bear on you by -any
«certificate from the Company’s Engineers? Certainly; and ‘it is so stated in the joint letter of Mr.
Bartley and myself in January, 1868. " = S :

' By Mr. Kennerley.—728. Had the Company arrived at that conclusion, in' your opinion, on the
Engineer’s'certificate? In my opinion”they had; not on the certificate but on his feport (estimate and
]t)'lllans) to the Company. By the Company I mean the Shareholders and Directors, at least the majority of

em. ' : ' . ’ ' Lo o
‘ By the Chairman.—729. But Mr. Doyne gave a certificate that a Railway could be opened for
public traffic for £350,000? Yes. .. = . . ' T
730. Are you aware that Mr. Doyne never relinquished his original position that £400,000 was’
indispensable to finish the work? I have heard Mr. Doyne has said so, but I expected nothing of the
kind. He never said so to me. o — : 4 - ’ .
731. But were the Commissioners-acquainted with these views of Mr. Doyne at the time they gave
their certificate that the line could be opened for- traffic for £350,000? I can speak for myself; and I
think for Mr. Bartley with whom I was much in communication: I am morally satisfied that very man
-of the Directors had no suspicion that the work would not or could not be executed for £350,000.
I am morally satisfied, and don’t hesitate to say as an unprofessional Commissioner, that the moral
satisfaction on their part ivas an element int the satisfaction of my mind on the question.
732. Have you seen the estimate forwarded to the Parliament by the Directory for the increased
expenditure, signed by the Hon. Secretary? . .I have seen it. A -
733. And have you seen-also the estimate 'of the Official Conimissioner o1l the samé subjéct? Yes.

734. Have you taken the trouble to make yourself acquainted with the details of those estimates ?

Yes. o S L
785. Will you favor the Committee with your views on the relative documents ? I draw attention to
the paper by Mr.. Dowling, and point out.to the Committee the difficulty which.the form of this account
gives to any .one who desires to compare it with the estimate of Mr. Doyne in 1868 (No. 16 Paper, p. 46).
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-In the estimate for completion of the Railway in 1868 there is a different distribution of items, and it is:
:embarrassing to any one to compare the one statement with tlie other, because the elements appear under
-different denominations in the two. “But I point out one or two things in this explanatory report of Mr.
Dowling, In the second page under “ London Contracts™ it says : “ The Engineers’ estimate for contracts
for girders, their erection, freight, &c., was given at p. 46 Correspondence at £59,650.” Now, I don’t
admit the correctness of this, I bég the attention of the Committee to p. 46, Paper No. 16, by which it
-will be seen there is not one word to be found in p. 46 about ‘‘erection” of the bridge. Had the erection
“been really introduced into the elements of calculation accepted by the :Commissioners on 16th July,
"1868, they would have been compromised in respect to a question which subsequéntly has arisen in respect’
ito the cost of erection of that bridge: in other words, it is made to appear that in July, 1868, the Commis-:
:sioners had before them an estimate for the cost of ¢“érection” of the Longford Bridge. I draw attention
‘to the estimate of slope of cuttings,-the latter part : ¢ The principal works in this condition are between
-Launceston and Longford, and most of’ these being finished,—at least, to thé extent the Engineers propose-
to flatten them,—it appears safe to take this extra at £12,000.” ~ The signification of that 1s, that the cost
Jincident to the mistake in respect to the slopes estimated by Mr. Dowling at £12,000 is an estimate which
igmores the subsequent expenditure required on those slopes. ' I draw attention to the estimate of ¢ additional
-rolling stock,” in which 1t is said, in reference to the proposed additional rolling stock, ¢ This arrangement
-would therefore greatly diminish the risk of the districts being called upon to pay a Railway rate.” I
submit to the Committee my own opinion that there is no question about that risk at all, and scarcely can
‘be: it is a moral certainty. I call attention to the note in these terms, that Mr. Kemp, the Professional
-Commissioner, in his Report, 24th July, 1868 (Paper 16, p. 45), said the cost of additional rolling stock.
and other items enunferated by him would involve an additional expenditure beyond £350,000 of an -
. ‘amount at least equal to, if not more, than that of £23,000, as estimated by the Company’s Engineers. The
inference is drawn : ¢ The Government, therefore, in deciding to sanction the construction of the Line upon
the Commissioners’ Report with such addenda, must be supposed to have fully calculated upon such
additional sum being required as would provide for such additional rolling stock, &e. :” in other words, the-
Government is represented to have committed itself in receiving the Report of Mr. Kemp on the Railway
to the further expenditure of £23,000, whereas the law gave no power to the Governmerit to withhold its
sanction, affords no power to the Comimissioners to approve ; the sole power of the Commissioners being to
“report.” I desire to refer to the history of the legislation which resulted in the Government placing itself”
in its present disadvantageous position. ' The original Act provided that the Commissioners should report
on the plans, estimates, and Contract for the Railway, and the Government was to give or withhold its
approval. But in 1865, I think, a eorrespondence was opened with the Whyte Administration, by.the
Promoters, for the purpose of getting amendments in that Act. Ministers left the question to be initiated
by these parties in Parliament, where among other amendments carried was one by which the Commis-
sioners had to certify upon estimates, and not upon a Contract or Tender, at what cost the Line could be
‘constructed. By this change in the law Government was deprived of all power of vetoing the construction
of the Railway at that period when, but not sooner, reliable data in respect to cost would come before it.

, 786. With reference to the estimate of Mr. Kemp, have you examined it sufficiently to say whether-
you believe that the.sums mentioned in his estimate are sufficient to complete the work in a substantial,
proper, and satisfactory manner ?7 I believe so,—but I am an unprofessional person,—from the care which
I know he has bestowed on the matter; for there has been constant communication between himself and
myself for several weeks before he matured the estimate which was sent in to Government last week: but,
in giving this opinion, I desire to guard myself against accidental expenditure which may arise in the .
future working of the Railway. The Works executed may or may not be found good. I do not
«qualify as respects the estimate drawn up by Mr. Kemp, but as regards defects of original plan or its-
execution. '

By Colonel Hutchins,—787. Can you indicate how the powers of the Commissioners can be enlarged
under the operation of the existing Acts ? By giving them a veto on expenditure on the part of the
~ Company,—a veto, if necessary with an appeal to the Executive Government.

By the Chairman.—738. But is there no such power now ? Noj; in fact, they have no power.

739. What you propose is, that the Law be amended conferring those powers ? The position of the
Commissioners under existing. Acts is that of Inspectors without power. I don’t hesitate to add that I
have not been nice as to what 1 construed my legal powers in velation to the Company to be. I thought
the public interests required that, pending a reference to Parliament, we should assert powers which Par--
liament intended to confer.

740. Have the Engineers of this Company sent to England orders to expend m oney without the-
knowledge or concurrence of the Commissioners and Directors 2 My .answer to that is,that expenditures,
not understood beforehand or calculated beforehand either by the Commissioners or Directors, at least
‘many of the Directors, have been incurred at home in consequence of an unbusiness-like arrangement by
which the Engineers were entrusted with the duty of transmitting Orders to the Engineers at home instead
-of the correspondence passing through the Board. On this point, I desire to call the attention of the-
Comumittee to pp. 162, 153 (Paper 24). Mur. Bartley, under date 17th July, 1869, impugns a statement.
in my letter of 11th June to the effect that an unbusiness-like arrangement for the transmission of Orders-
to England through the Engineers of the Company, which had been sanctioned by the Directory, was
opposed by Mr. Kemp and myself, and he refers to the meeting of the Directory on July 21st, 1868,.
when the Orders for the Bridge were assented to, as an occasion on which I was not even present at the-
‘Board, and when Mr. Kemp was a ‘ consenting party’” to the proceedings adopted,—as disproving my:
‘representation. In rejoinder to this contradiction I refer to the Minute Book of the Directory for 20th
July, from which it will be seen, in the first place, that I was present at the Board on that day; and,.
gecondly, that on that occasion the iron-work for the Permanent Way was ordered. The iron-work being.
the first material authorised to be sent for, naturally it occurred before transmijtting that first Order, that.
the business arrangements in connection with it, and with future Orders, should be then considered, and



42

‘having been determined, that such arrangements should continue in force, It was then, when the iron-
work for the Permanent Way was authorised to be sent for, that Mr. Kemp remonstrated against Orders
being sent otherwise than direct from the Board, either through the Secretary or Chairman, the Engineer
‘supplying details in the first instance, and I seconded him in the views which he urged. I have as vivida
recollection of the circumstance as if it occurred yesterday, and of Mr. Dowling deprecating having the duty
imposed upon him, his duties already being as much as’he could get through. I have to add, that I did
not defer till my letter of Juue to bring: before the Government the unbusiness-like arrangement in
.question. I did so in a letter to the Colonial Secretary on the 29th April, in the first and final passages of
that letter (pages 71 to 78). Moreover this letter, as it now stands, word for word, was the greater part of
it read over to Mr. Bartley in presence of Mr. Kemp, before it was sent, as he himself acknowledges
{page 84 of the Correspondenceg; and although he arrested the reading of other portions of the letter to
-express his dissent, he never questioned the correctness of the statement on which he has since sought to
throw discredit as to the “ unbusiness-like arrangement.” Nay, more, the letter of 29th April was on the
-30th sent by the Colonial Secretary to Mr. Dowling and by him handed to Mr. Bartley, who replied
thereto in a letter of three pages and a half (pages 84-7) in which, from beginning to end, is not one word
-impeaching the statement,—which, in the most insulting terms, he has impugned in his letter of the 17th
July written in vindication of the Secretary, Directory, and Engineers of the Company. It is not imma-
terial that I should add, that this letter of 29th April, which I have already said was forwarded on the
-30th to Mr. Dowling, provoked no contradiction from him at that time, although his promptitude in
.questioning inconvenient representations is manifest on the face of the published correspondence. He
reserved his denial till the 2nd of July (page 127), when, in a letter which purports to be “a further
:acknowledgment” of the Colonial Secretary’s of April 80, he ¢ positively” denies the statement of Mr.
Kemp and myself. By the 2nd of July, my letter of June 11th, in which the disastrous consequences of
the ¢ unbusiness-like arrangements” are stated, was before Mr. Dowling.

741. You are aware that Mr. Doyne, the Chief Engineer of this Company, repudiates the power
-of the Directors, including the Commissioners, to interfere with him in giving orders for materials ? I was
not aware.

742. But you are aware that all orders for materials have been given without the sanction or knowledge
-of the Directors? Without their passing through the Directory.

743. But deviations have been made in the orders first submitted to the Directors without their authority
.or knowledge? Without the authority and knowledge of the Commissioners and the Board of Directors —
many of them : yes, I may say the bulk of the Directors, on the ground that the Directors have, on two
different occasions, passed Resolutions directing the Engineers to give an explanation as to discrepancies
between the orders sent Home and the data placed before the Directors, in respect to rails, and material of the
Longford Bridge. On that matter of the Bridge Mr. Bartley accuses me of making a statement “in every
respect at variance with truth” in alleging that the Directors were in ignorance of Mr. Doyne’s instructions
in regard to the Longford Bridge until the answer to them arrived from England, I willingly correct an
inadvertent inaccuracy on my own part. I should have said that the purport of Mr. Doyne’s instructions
was not known till the instructions were irrevocable. I expressed myself In more strict accordance with
the facts of the case in letter (p. 71) of 29th April, 1869, in these words :—

““The result of the arrangement (that is the unbusiness-like arrangement) decided on has been, that on
two occasions the Board, surprised by finding orders in course of execution in England involving a
-departure from the Plans, and considerable additions to'the. Estimates to which they had given assent, have
passed Resolutions enquiring of their Engineers how this came about? In one case, for rails of 65 lbs.
weight they have found the Company saddled with the cost of rails of 72 Ibs. ; and, instead of an iron
bridge estimated to weigh 204 tons, and to cost £6600, that they were required to meet the expense of one
whieh would weigh from 700 to 800 tons, and likely to amount to or exceed £22,000.”

Upon which.statement, under date 7th May, 1869, (p. 84, Correspondence), Mr. Bartley wrote to the
«Colonial Secretary :— -

T entirely concur with Messrs. Innes and Kemp in stating that the alterations in the weight of rails,
:and in the designs and cost of the Longford Bridge, were not brought under the notice of the Commissioners
until after the orders for such alterations had been forwarded by the Engineers to the Company’s Agents in
London ; and that therefore it was altogether out of the power of the Commissioners to prevent the

-additional cost occasioned by such alterations, whatever may be the amount, and that they are not in any
way responsible for the same.”

For what purpose, after the above ample admissions, Mr. Bartley in his letter in vindication of the
.Directory and Engineers proceeds to state that at a weekly Meeting on 6th October, all the Commissioners
Deing present, gthese words are italicised by Mr. Bartley), a copy of the letter dated 12th September,
-of instructions from the Engineers to the London Agents, including the specification for the iron-work
-of the Longford Bridge, was read, fully deliberated upon and approved, I do not understand. On the
«6th October it was too late to recall orders which had been sent by the September mail: these orders are
«duly reported by the London Engineers, under date 23rd November, as having been already executed.
If therefore there be a distinction between my statement,—acknowledged as inaccurate,—that the Board
-did not know the purport of Mr. Doyne’s instructions Home till the answers to those instructions reached
the Colony, and the more correct statemeat of the case, namely,—that the Board did not know till after
‘the instructions had gone Home and could not be cancelled,—I submit that there is only a distinction,
not a practical difference—nothing to justify the imputation of a departure from ¢ruth, to which the
:attention of the Government, the public, and the Legislature should be invited by Mr. Bartley !

By Mr Whyte.—744. As Commissioner and Director you have had occasion to call in question the
:sufficiency of the supervision provided by the Engineers Messrs. Doyne, Major, & Willett? In visiting
the works I was much struck by the circumstance, that while there were minute conditions in the Contract
-of Overend & Robb, there was'no one on different portions of the works to see that those conditions were.
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enforced. I-refer to some of the conditions in the Specification of Works. ‘Wrought timber used in certain:
places was to be painted three times; bricks were to be laid and bonded, the work grouted, &c. in &
manner which is minutely set forth; the character of the stone and the uniformity of it are specially
provided for, also the character of the mortar, cement, and the concrete used in the foundations. ¢ In:
closing up an embankment to a bridge, or in carrying it over a culvert, -the greatest possible care both in -
filling and pounding was to be observed so as to avoid any injury to the masonry.” The timber work in
bridges or viaducts was to be “ wrought perfectly true at all surfaces which are in contact, and all mortices-
and tenons, housings, houselets, &c., to be well and truly formed and fitted, and made with white lead and
0il.” A portion of- each pile was to be charred to a depth of three-eighths of an inch, &c. These
conditions, it appeared to me, if of any value, as they undoubtedly were, required the presence of overseers,.
quite independent of the Contractors, to enforce them, but there were none. Finding this, I brought the. -
circumstance under the notice of the Secretary. I asked him, who supervises the details of the Contract; he
said, why do you ask, because I will speak to Mr. Doyne. Some time elapsed ; I saw the same thing going
on, and I then brought the question under the notice of the Directory at the Board. Some of the Directors:
thanked me for what I did, and communication was opened with Mr. Doyne upon it. The unsatisfac-
tory results are shown in the Correspondence published by order of Parliament this Session. The

Engineer of the Company had engaged the paid employées of the Contractors to supervise the execution of”
their employer’s Contract. I was particularly struck in visiting Longford Bridge by the absence of

- supervision ; that being a portion of the work where it was of the very greatest importance, as defective: .

work there would be hid, while the consequences would be the most serious. I subsequently applied to:
the Government on the question, and pressed, irrespective of considerations of cost, that the Government,,
considering its large interest, should sanction the employment by Mr. Kemp of additional hands to
supervise the execution of the work. .

745. Are you aware that Mr. Doyne insists that himself and partners supervise their own work, and
that there is no other supervision of the work excepting that which I mention? I am aware the Engineers.
contended for the sufliciency of their supervision ; but I am aware . also that their supervision, as regards
details, is not of a character with which the Commissioners on the part of -the Government ought to be
satisfied, and in saying that, I would quote to the Committee that all opinion wherever Railways have
been constructed attaches very great importance indeed to the efficient supervision maintained in the
construction of Railway Lines. I will quote the view expressed in the last Report of Mr. Julian Danvers,,
the principal Government Director of Indian Railways, where, notwithstanding the utmost care in
supervision, works of the most .costly and gigantic character have suddenly collapsed. There is one
instance which he quotes of a bridge which fell at a crash :— . :

¢¢ While describing what is being done it is necessary to refer to some works on which, instead of progression,
there has unfortunately been retrogression. On the 19th July last, without any immediate apparent cause, the
great viaduct on the Bhore Ghat incline of the Great Indian Peninsular Railway, consisting of eight arches ot 50
feet span each, suddenly collapsed, and in a few minutes became u heap of ruin. Happily, -no loss of lile or personal

injury ensued. A careful examination, which was at once ordered, of similar structures, both on the open and
unopen lines, showed that several of them were insecure. ® * # * %

" These failures appear to be due chiefly to the faulty character of the masonry. To what extent this has resnlted
from an unwise economy, from imperfection of design, from the iailure to secure the proper adaptation of the
materials of the country to the purposes for which they were intended, or from lax superintendence, will be better
known when the inquiries now in progress are completed. The lesson to be learnt from these disasters is, that true-
economy in the laying out of important works of this kind consists in using such materials and adopting such
principles of construction as will produce the strength and solidity suitable for the permanent performance by the .
railways of the services which they are intended t6 render ; also, that too much thought cannot be bestowed upon:
the preparation of plans, or too strict an inspection established- while the works are in course of execution.”

The Witness withdrew.

Tuurspay, OcroBer 7tH, 1869.

Present.—-Mr. Davies (Chairman),'Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Kennerley, Mr. Maclanachan, Mr.
. Archer, Mr. Whyte, Mr. Swan., - .

MR. SAML. V. KEMP récalled and examined. '

By Mr. Whyte.—746. You made an estimate of what you considered necessary to finish the Railway ?
Yes. : ‘ R

- - 747. An estimate in detail? I handed in such an estimate.
748. 1 find in that estimate £20,000 for alterations in slopes? Yes.

749. Do you feel quite confident it will take that amount? It will eventually, to flattén the slopes in a.
perfect manner, so as to render them perfectly safe. I may say I brought the flattening of those slopes
under the notice of the Directory after one of my visits to the works, and they determined on examining-
Mr. Doyne on the estimate he made, and he informed them the contemplated expense would be trifling ; to-
which I replied, that if the slopes were carried back from % to 1 to-1 to 1'such an alteration would involve,
an outlay of several thousands. That statement was pooh-pooh’d by the Engineers, but they subsequently °
admitted to £5000, then £8000, then £12,000: and I am fully convinced they will come round to the same-
as mine £20,000, because there is now in reality only £5000 difference between Mr. Doyne’s estimate and.
mine. . : : : : o

750, And the item of £22,483 for Station accomimodation, is that absolutely necessary ?° . Absolutely
necessary ;- and I have not arrived at that estimate by any hasty conclusion, but from actual detail, worked
out and come to that amount. If you refer to Statement K.S. you will see a detail of each Station as given
of what I conceive necessary to meet the requirements after opening the line for public traffic.
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-~ 751. You estimate in all that £107,000 will be required to complete the Railway now? Yes, without.
interest on the £300,000 Debenture capital, and on the extra amount required, which will make £407,000.

752. Do you think any important saving might be effected in any of the works now in cowse of
construction ? I believe some thousands might be saved by reducing the quantity of ballast between
Longford and Deloraine. If you desire it I will make out a statement and hand it to the Committee.
The ballast is specified to be wider than in my opinion is absclutely necessary, and I think the depth might’
be reduced by an inch. This carried out in that portion of the line would effect a saving of some thousands
without interfering with the efficiency of the line. :

753. Do you think any saving might be effected in the viaduct over the South Esk at Longford? I
-am afraid the works are too far advanced for any suggestion of saving to be of any practical avail.

764. Did you apply to the Directory or Engineers to be furnished with a list of alterations, substi-
tutions, and concessions that had been ordered by the Engineers? I.did not apply to the Engineers, for,
they decline by letter to have intercourse with me, directly or indirectly, and repudiate my authority to ask
for information ; but after the recent dead-lock and my return to Launceston I demanded to be informed
what extras had been orderéd, and it was granted with the accompanying statement. I will also read two
letters, one from me to the Secretary, 22nd June, 1869, and the reply of the 9th August.

[Put in, marked respectively W. X. Y. Z.]

755. 1 call your attention to a letter of the 7th May, 1869, from Mr. Bartley to the Colonial Secre-
tary (No. 205, Paper 24, p. 84), in which Mr. Bartley inferred that you were acquainted with the extra-
ordinary slope of % to 1, and put all responsibility on you,—will you give some explanation regarding it 7’
Yes: Mr. Bartley is in error when he comes forward as my accuser for not having expressed any doubt as
1o the increased slope to the cuttings of § to 1 standing, when the Commissioners had to frame their report
to-the Governor in Council in reference to the practicability of constructing a Line of Railway from Laun-
ceston to Deloraine for £350,000. He might as well accuse me of not informing him that the Viaduct at
Longford was to cost £33,000 instead of £6600, as estimated by the Engineers. The schedule of quan-
tities and other data put before the Commissioners no more suggested that an ¢ experiment” of a slope of a
} to 1 was proposed than no slope whatever, and the extravagance of the proposal precluded suspicion.
The first time that I learned that such a slope was projected was when the Cortract with Messrs. Overend
& Robb was brought under the notice of the Directory, when the only power left to the Commissioners
was to ““report” upon it to the Governor in Council (see Clause No. 7, 30th Vict. No. 28), which I did
by expressing my doubt as to the slopes standing at such an inclination. It would be a waste of time to
enter into controversy with Mr. Bartley as to the purposes of the Government in appointing a Professional
Commissioner. If, however, as he represents, a Professional Commissioner was appointed for the special
purpose of his judging of the Engincering feasibility of Messrs. Doyne & Company’s plans, specifications,
-and estimates to be submitted to him by them, I can only say that the conditions attached to that appoint-

“ment by the Act of the Legislature under which it was made are such that no-man-of common prudence.
would have accepted it. Not one farthing was to be paid to any Commissioner unless the Railway was
proceeded with ; and the Professional Commissioner could not have qualified himself to pronounce any but a
superficial opinion as to the feasibility of the most eéxpensive portion of the plans, &ec. submitted to him,
unless his examination of the country to be traversed by the Railway was about equal to that of the Engineers
who framed the plans and estimates, and without incurring the cost of the prosecution of such an Engineering
Survey. It was, however, quite practicable for any one who possessed professional experience, if ke had
reliable data put before him, to estimate approximately what a Line planned on such-data would cost: and
this I endeavoured faithfully to do. For excesses, the consequence of the adoption of plans which have
proved not feasible,—because not consistent with actual conditions, which Mr. Doyne should have pro-
perly ascertained,—I repudiate the respomsibility which Mr. Bartley seeks to fix upon me; and while T
concede to Mr. Bartley the right as a Commissioner to his own_opinion on all questions which the Rail-
way Act refers to us, I deeply regret that in these instances, in which he has been in a minority among
his fellow-Commissioners, he should have thought it befitting to proclaim his dissent, and urge his oppo-
sition to them in the Directory, so as to aggravate instead of removing difficulties. And further: I have
some difficulty in understanding the views propounded by Mr. Bartley in such letter, when taken in con-
nection with the statement made in the printed estimate turnished by the Directory of the 1st September,
1869, which Mr. Bartley is theauthor of, and is to the following effect; viz.—¢ With reference to this
estimate of the Company’s Engineers that to provide such additional rolling-stock, &c., as above enumex-
ated, will require a further sum of £23,000, particular attention is directed to. the fact that the Professional
Commissioner, Mr. Kemp, in his report to the Governor in Council of 24th July, 1868, that the Line.
could be opened for public traffic for the sum of :£350,000,—upon which report the unprofessional Coms=
missioners based their reports of that date to the same effect,—stated in a .memorandum appended to his
sald réport that he considered it would be indispensable to meet the requirements after opening the Line
for public traffic,’ that certain rolling-stock and other items enumerated by him should be provided. The
cost of such additional rolling-stock and other items so enumerated by Mr. Kemp will involve an
additional expenditure beyond the £350,000 of an amount at least equal to if not more than that of
£23,000, as estimated by the Company’s Engineers. The Governmeént, therefore, in deciding to sanction
the construction of the Line upon the Coinmissioners’ report, with such addenda, must be supposed to
‘have fully caleulated upon such additional sum being required as would provide for such additional
rolling-stock, &ec.” T mention this to show the inconsistency of Mr. Bartley’s allusions, for Mr. Bartley
himself was the author of that paragraph. ' '

756. Can you inform the Committee who is the author of the conditions of the Contract ? The prin-
cipal portion of the Conditions are a reprint from the Conditions used in Victoria,. with alterations and
amendments to meet the requirements of this Colony. = The conditions for ordering extras and omissions
were prepared by the Enginéers, and submitted to Counsel, Mr. Wilberforce Stephen, in Melbourne, for
his opinion. And the Engineers have, with the consent of the Directory, arrogated all the extraordinary
powers in such Conditions to themselves. S :
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- 757, Will you inform the Committee whether.the works of Overend & Robb’s Contract were adver tised
_m one or two sections? Before the works were advertised I, with two or three members of the Directory,
-advocated advertlsmg the works in two or more sections, as a test only, leaving to the Directory.the power
of determining the best and cheapest mode of letting the works. This was opposed by the Engineers and
Secretary, and the majority of the Directory decided in their favour, and thus shut themselves out from
some valuable information. Had the work been let in sectlons, or advel tised in sect1ons, it would have
‘been-let at lower rates. : .

By the'Chairman.—758. In your examination you stated that there was a departure from the ongmal
Contract, and that 2 ft. iron piping had been substituted for 3 ft. brick culverts ?  Yes, 2 ft. iron pipes
have been substituted for 3 ft. brick culverts. '

759. Has this deviation mater ially altered the expense of laying down these culverts, beneﬁtmg the
Contractors or the Company? It is benefiting the Contractors.

. .760. Does it in any way.deteriorate the stability of the work? I maintain that 2 ft. iron pipes are not
S0 lastmg and durable as 2 ft. brick culverts. o

761. Then do I understand the alteration is a disadvantage ? Yes, a slight dxsadvantave

. 762. Were the Directors and Commissioners consulted with regard to this deviation? No, I knew
nothing whatéver of it.

763. Are the Committee to understand from this statement dated 25th Septembe1 1869 that the sum
named will finish the work in a substantial, complete, and proper manner, providing sufficient rolling
stock, station accommodation, telegraph, and every thing necessary to render it a safe and complete
Raﬂway ? T have estimated for all that you have stated, and in my opinion such sum would be required
to complete the line and render it efficient fo meet all the requirements after opening the liné.-

764. And you think that sum is not in excess? I am certain it is not; if any thing it is rather under

765. Do I understand from that that another application. is likely to be made? No, I should think
~not. I think with that sum at their disposal they should complete the works in an eﬁicwnt manner, and
render them perfect in every way for the requirements of the traffic.

766. In this sum of £107,000 that you have submitted to the Govelnment for the completlon of the
work you have not provided for the interest? No, I have not.

767. Then the additional £107,000 will add to your estimate £6420, making £113,000 in round
numbers? And adding interest for twelve months on the £300,000 will make my estimate £131,420.

768. Can you inform the Committee how it is your estimate is so far in excess of that Mr. Dowling
submitted to the Directory? No, I cannot; nor can I give an opinion as to the great discrepancy. -

- By Mr. Archer.—1769. Speaking of the alteration in the amounts stated as likely to be required for
rendering the slopes safe, can you show by written data that the several sums you mention were asked for
at different times, first at £5000, then £8000, then £10,000 or £12,000, and now £15,000? I think
there are written statements for some of the amounts, and others were velbally mentioned at the Board.

By the Chairman.—770. Are you aware that some of the culverts and timber bridges are not in
strict conformity with the specification, and that the arches and culverts in some cases are built in mortar
instead of cement? I believe there are some deviations of that kind.

771. Does that materially affect the durability of the work, mortar being substituted for cement?
The durability is not materially affected ; but where a substltutlon of that kind is made, a corresponding
reduction should be made from the bulk sum of the Contract. But all these alterations and substitutions
have been mcuued by the Engineers without any authority or permission by the Director ry or Comumis-
sioners,

; 772. But i is this deviation of material profit to the Contr act01s ? Undoubtedly, the dlﬁ'erence between
lime and cement is considerable,

. 773. Are you aware that there is a difference in the carrying out of the Contract with regard to the
timber bridges as well as the culverts? No, I am not.

774. The Director of Public Works points out that'the culverts and timber bridges are not in strict
. conformity with the specification? There are some instances in the bridges where they have made local
adjustments, such as a bridge of one span less in one locality and increased span in another.

775. That is bringing the spemﬁcatlon, as far as quantities are concerned, to the same thing? To the
same thing; but I always maintained that these ad_]ustments should have been made hnown to the
Directory and the Commissioners.

776. The head stocks and timber br 1dges, can you give an opmlon on that pomt Whether thele is
not a great deal of heart in the wood ? Yes, a great deal;-and that might have been prevénted by pr ope1
supervision.

777. Are you aware that those head stocks are in some’ cases “rert, split? In some cases where
shrunk: by the sun.

778.-To what do you attubute that" It is 'on, account of the timber not havmg been ploperly
seasoned and thén exposed 'to_ the sun.  ~

779. Would a Jarge quantity of heart in this timber be in any way the cause of those 1ents" It
wonld ; the principal cause. -

X 780. And are those rents of a cha1acte1 ‘to aﬁ'ect in any way the durablhty of the w01k ? Thev are,
1o a certain extent. :

781. Explain what you mean by a certain extent? Whele healt tlmber s used 1t IS not so dur able
as where tlmber is used w1thout healt .
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782. Are you aware that the use of timber containing heart is interdicted by the specification?  Yes,
it is one of the conditions in the Contract (Clause 7, specification), ¢ That all timber used for the purposes
-of this Coniract shall be- of the description specified for each particular work, and shall be thoroughly
seasoned where possible, sound, and straight, free from sap, large or dead knots, or other imperfections;
all sawn or split timber must also be free from heart wood.”

783. Did you observe during the course of construction that this heart wood was beingAused? I did.

784." Did you take any steps to draw attention to this departure from the specifications? No, T did-
not, as I knew I was perfectly powerless under the law ; and even if I had done so, no notice would have
been taken by the Directory.

785. The Government were, of course, equally helpless in the matter? Yes, the provisions in the Act
. are of the most slender character. There’s nothing that would imply that it was within my province to
supervise or find fault with any material or work. : '

786. Can you say whether the head stocks of the timber bridges are made out of sawn timber? They
are either sawn or hewn ; some of them of large logs are hewn, not sawn. ~ No word is mentioned in the
specification of hewn. The whole of these head stocks are scarred with heart lett in. :

By Mr. Kennerley.—787. Do you consider that kind of timber is according to Contract? It isnot;
because there are round logs that have been scarred, and all the hearts retained in them. Had these-
timber structures been carried out in strict conformity with the conditions it would have added materially
to the cost of them, as some of the said timber is specified as 12 x 12, and had they to cut these out
without heart wood large trees would have had to be used. '

By the Chairman—788. The using of timber in the way you describe must have effected a large
saving to the Contractors? Certainly.

789. Has there been any drawback or allowance made by the Engineers for the benefit of the Com-
pany in consequence of this departure from the specification ? Not to the Commissioners’ knowledge ;
if there has been an adjustment of that kind it is only known to the Engineers and the Contractors.

By Mr. Archer.~—790. Is it not of great importance in the construction of a line of railway that
ballasting should be well and sufficiently provided ? Yes, it is, more particularly in the curves for keeping
the road in line; but the road and gradients and curves between Longford and Deloraine are very light,
and, in consequence, a considerable saving may be effected by reducing the quantity of ballast as-before
stated. : . :

791. Without any chance of impairing the efficiency of the Line ? Yes, I consider it may now be
effected. :

By Mr. Lewis.—792. Do I understand there is the some quantity of ballast throughout the Line,
depth and width, heavy gradients and Iight ones ? Yes, the same quantity. The width of the ballast is
specified on the top at 12 feet by 1 foot 6 inches depth ; that would make the bottom 13 feet 6 inches the
width of the ballast at the bottom. :

By the Chairman.—793. You wish to qualify an answer to a question at the former examination as
to mortar 7 Yes. When I handed in the sample of cement mortar taken from the abutment of the
viaduct over the South Esk River at Longford, I did not wish to convey the impression that I condemned
the whole of the Works because I discovered a portion of the work had not been carried out in strict
accordance with the specifications; and I should be sorry to blame Messrs. Overend & Robb, who have,
in my opinion, endeavoured to carry out the Works faithfully, for an act that might have happened through
the carelessness of their workmen. But I maintain that if proper supervision had been given from the
first, not only on this part of the Works, but throughout the Line, it would have had a very salutary
effect in keeping all workmen up to the mark, and establishing greater confidence in all concerned.

794 And you have a statement to make as to the Longford Viaduct? Yes. The estimate of 204
tons for the iron work of the South Esk River Viaduct was supplied to-the Commissioners in October,
1867. (See copy of Schedule handed in and marked .) And I maintain that it was again referred to
by the Engineers in their estimate of July, 1868 ; and the amount estimated by them was £6600: and as
such amount so closely approximated to my estimate I could not suspect any change of plan. Of course,
with the public generally, I had an opportunity of viewing the plans when they were exhibited by the
Engineers in the Town Hall, Launceston; but plans framed for exhibition appeared to me not to supersede
the basis of my report I had made and the data furnished to me expressly with the signature on each page
of Mr. Doyne to enable the Commissioners to comply with the conditions of the Railway Act. Andif
the Engineers’ proceedings were of the open and ingenuous character which they seek to make it appear,
how came it that not the Commissioners only were misled, but the Directory were taken by surprise when
the discrepancy between the estimate furnished by the En%ineers for the cost of such ironwork, &ec. and -
the actual liability incurred on such item became known? The journals of the Directory’s proceedings
show by resolution that they were taken by surprise, and that they demanded an explanation from their
Engineers which has not to this day been satisfactorily answered. And this leads me to advert to the
unbusiness-like character of the arrangements of the Directory in respect to the orders for materials, &c.
from England. Supported by my colleague, Mr. Innes, at an early stage of the proceedings of the
Directory I contended that all orders from home should pass through the Board, and we transmitted by
the Secretary an arrangement under which the Engineers would have framed their requisitions,—and
these would have been checked by the'Board. To this, however, objections were urged on the score of
the Secretary’s time being fully occupied, &c. ; and the result has been that, on two occasions, the Board
has stood in the inconsistent position of having to demand—too late for the information to be of any. prac-
tical avail-—the circumstances under which orders have been given by the Engineers largely in excess of
their estimate sanctioned or known of by the Directory or Commissioners. And in one of these instances,
that of the Longford Viaduct, has been incalculably enhanced by the introduction of a condition which at
the same time relieves the Contracting Engineers, Messrs. Doyne & Co., of one of the most critical re-
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sponsibilitics undertaken by them,—the condition of making the Contractors in England for the Viaduct
responsible for its erection in this Colony,—indeed, four out of the ten manufacturers declined to -tendér
under such unusual conditions. And the result of this has been, that the Company has been saddled with
an additional cost to meet such conditions; which I think was not warranted, considering the limited
means at their disposal. . -

The Witness withdrew.

L 4

MR. FRANCIS BUTLER called in anci examined.’

By the Chairman.—793. Your name? Francis Butler.
796. You are Director of Public Works of this Colony? Yes. .

797. You proceeded, by direction of the Executive Government on behalf of this Joint Committee, to
inspect the works of the Launceston and Western Railway? Yes.

798. And in consequence of that inspection you have furnished this Committee with a Report? Yes.
799. The first reference you make in that Report is to the Hunter’s Mill Bridge? Yes.

800. And there you say * the whole of these works, except the pointing the fossics, are finished;”
will you explain what the pointing means? The filling up the outer points with cement, as always has to
be done after the centres are struck.

801. Then do you wish the Committee to understand that there’s a deterioration in the value of the
work from the fact of these fossics not being completed? No; they are in progress of completion,

802. You speak as to the culverts and timber bridges in this Report? Yes.
803. And you make a reference to the fact that mortar has been substituted for cement? Yes.

804. And to the fact that it is a departure from the original specification? In my opinion it is so;
but I think the specification in that particular might be read hoth ways; the Contractors consider they
‘have built them according to the specification, and I consider they are described to be built in cement, as
one clause of the specification says ‘ all arches are to be built in cement,” and the rings of culverts are
decidedly arches. :

805. Would the substitution of mortar for cement deteriorate the stability of the work in any way?
The cement would be better work, more lasting, stronger, more durable.

- * 806. In your Report you speak of the head stocks of the timber bridges containing heart in the centre ?
es. ;

807. Does that exist to a considerable extent? I think it is universal; I did not notice any that had
not heart wood in them.

808. Is the substitution of heart wood for sawn timber of material consequence to the construction of
the works? The timber would certainly be superior if free from heart.

809. Do the Contractors benefit to any extent by the substitution of the timber you speak of for sawn
timber free from heart? Oh! yes, certainly; timber free from heart would be more expensive, as it must
have been cut out of large logs.

810. You also describe the head stocks of the timber bridges to have been rent ? Yes.

811. And you describe that as having been occasioned by a departure from the specification 7 Itis -
from the fact of the heart being used it always rends in drying. '

812. Do these rents deteriorate from the stability of the work ? It is less lasting, certainly.

By Mr. Swan.—813. For such work as you speak of is it not usual for the Contractors to use such
- wood ? It depends upon the specification ; of course the Contractors would use it if allowed.

By Mr. Lewis.—814. Is the timber you speak of hewn logs ? No; sawn timber.
815. Then the log is cut into four ? No; the heart is in the centre of the scantling.

By the Chairman.—816. Is it usual for professional engineers to pass work of that description,
where the material is so contrary to the specification ? If the-Engineer considered it contrary, he cer-
tainly would not have passed it: this is an instance in which I think the specification and drawings may
be read in two ways ; but still I think my reading is correct. The specification says, ¢ The whole of the
sawn timber is to be free from heart, sap, and defects.”” This is part of sawn timber and has heart in it
but no sap : it cannot be according to specification. The drawings, on the other hand, show this particular
timber as having heart in them. ) :

817. Do the Contractors work from the drawings? They work from what they are told to work
from, either drawings or specifications.

818. Do you think it likely that the Contractors would be misled by the drawings ? Not if they had
read the specifications carefully. ‘

819. Youstate in your report that *the mortar, the cement more particularly, in the South Esk
Bridge, is of good quality, and I believe in exact conformity with the specification ; the bricks are first-
class, the stone of good quality,” &c. You see that specimen ot cement mortar before you,—I want to
ask your opinion with respect to that, and if that is the description of mortar you refer to as being of good
quality ? This is lime-mortar, I should not say this is cement-mortar; but I should not think it 1s of
good quality. T would wish the Committee to understand that my report is taken from the exterior of the
work only. I should say this is not the description of mortar I should certify for. -
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“has been used, escaping your observation ? It was impossible for me to try every joint of brickwork ; all'T
'did try washard as a rock—not only‘the finished but the unfinished portions,—nothing could be better
“than the mortar I did try, where it was dry. - o o o o

821. What period of time does it generally take for cement-mortar or common mortar to become
rigid and dry ? It depends entirely on the body of the work done; in the case of piers and abutment
walls of the South Esk Bridge there is a large thickness of work ; the whole of the bricks were well
svetted previously to being used, and would take. a long time to dry; I don’t think the interior work is

Iy Now. -

822. You had no opportunity of inspecting the interior of the work ? No. ,

823. You examined the bricks and pronounced them to be first class? . Yes, the best bricks I have

_ seen in this Colony. : : - ' S

By Mr. Swan.—824. What is the effect on the quality of the bricks when green wood is used in the
burning, and. when coal is used? I don’t know. : o

825. Do you think it is merely prejudice on the part of brickmakers that induces them to reject green
wood? -No, I think bricks would get more thoroughly burnt by using dry wood, but I shéuld judge of
the bricks after they had been burnt. ' .

By Mr. Lewis.—826. At such a place as Longford, don’t you think it would cost more to burn bricks
with wood than coal? I don’t know the relative value of wood and coal at Longfoid. o

By the Chairman.—827. But you are quite clear these were good bricks? Perfectly, as good bricks
as ever I have seen in this Colony. . : oo ,

828. Taking your- inspection-as a whole you pronounce. the works to be generally of a satisfactory
character? Yes. . N S ,

829, Such works as you, in your capacity of Inspector of Public Works, would have no objection to
certify to? I should have no objection if called on, but as I said before, I have had no means of judging
of the interior works. . X : ‘

: 830. But if you had had the supervision of the work would you object? I should not give a certi-
ficate till those points were remedied that I speak of,—the timber and the culverts generally. :

831. Had you had the supervision of these particular works would these defects have occurred? No.
Certainly not. . _ _

By Mr. Swan.—832. You have judged and reported on the works from external appearances only ?
Yes, all my observations are from the external appearance of the works. In reference to a previous
question, I may say that another person reading the specification differently might pass the work as it is.

838. Then those qualifications you have made are very important? I should consider them important,
more especially as regards the culverts. :

" The Witness. withdrew.

MR. W. T DOYNE recalled and examined.

By .the Chairman.—834. On your last examination you said you would prbduce the estimate on
which the £850,000 was based in detail, do you do so? I have not got it. I have nothing except what
is-in print. ‘ , N o _

825. Have you seen the estimate of Mr. Kemp and Mr. Innes for the completion of the Railway
Works? No. A . .

836. Looking at that estimate now handed to you, No. 1, you see that Mr. Kemp’s estimate to com-
plete the work of the Launceston and Western Railway is £107,000? Yes, but it would require some
consideration before I offered any opinion on it. :

837. The estimate sent in by Mr, Dowling, are you enabled after looking at that Statement No. 1 and
this document to. explain to the Committee wherein lies the large discrepancy, can you explain it in any
way? I have not studied it; I never saw it, nor any of the particulars it contains. , )

By Mr. Whyte.—838. Do you consider £67,000 will complete the Railway? It’s my own estimate
and I should not have putit down if I did not think so. I am responsible for the engineering portion of it.

839. Do you think that estimate is sufficient for the f]lziurpose of finding sufficient rolling stock, telegraph,
stations, and generally to render the line complete and efficient in every possible manner for the purposes
intended by the Colony, an efficient Railway in every respect? I cannot answer that question, it’s a very
wide one; a Railway is never complete; it would be sufficient to complete it in a most efficient manner for
all present purposes. It will be opened effectually, but in a very short time will require more outlay to
supply things necessary. ’ . )

840. Are you aware that the head stocks of the timber bridges on the line contain a certain amount
of heart wood, or has the timber for the bridges generally been in their construction in accordance with the
specification? It has. - - : .

841. Are you aware that in this specification there is a prohibitory clause against using heart wood, or

_wood containing sap? I am ; I wrote the specification myself. - : o
842, Then if you wrote it are you prepared to say there is not a large amount of heart wood used in
the construction of these bridges? There is a very large amount. ' ' :

843. And that is not contrary to the specification? Not on my reading of the specification ; wherever
whole timber is used there must necessarily be heart: piles, girders, and wherever whole timber is used.
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-844. But does not the speclﬁcatlon contam a pxowso that all. sawn: tlmber shall be free ﬁ-om heart ?
Yes- PR : . “

845. Is that the case ? Whel ever it is possuble in our opmlon heart is not allowed but Where tlmber
is of large dimensions-it’s impossible to escape it. -

846. Are you aware that in the construction of culverts there’s a departule from the orlgmal speclﬁ-
cation, and that lime mortal has been substltuted for cement mortar? I am not a.ware of it; it has not
been 'done. .

" 847. Then do you adhere to the statement that™arches of culverts have been built Wlth cement in -
-accordance with the specification? I am not aware they are specified to be cement, I don’t think they
-are. “Without lookmg at the specification I could not say. :

"848. There has been a departure in the drainage, 2 ft. iron pipes substituted for culverts? I cannot
say without 1efe11mrr to an exact case.

849. Has there been & substitution at-all of i iron pipes for culverts? Yes, on several occasions.
850. That's an alteration from the original specification ? Yes.

851. Is that alteration a benefit to the Contractors? Not that I'm aware of.

852. Is it adverse ? That is a most extensive question, I .cannot answer it. -

853. Has there been any adjustment between the Contractors and the Company with regard to the.
alteration of these culverts, this drainage piping? I don’t know what you mean.

. 834. You have said there’s a departure from the original spe01ﬁcat10n, -and that on several’ occasmns
iron pipes have been substituted for culverts? Yes. .

855. I have asked you whether that is of pecuniary benefit to the Contlactms, Overend & Robb, and
.you replied you cannot say? Pecuniarily it is of no advantage to them, on the contrary it is a loss.

-856. Then has there been any adjustment of the. difference between the original specification and the
alteration so as to recoup the Contractors for its loss? There has not been.

857. Nor any demand made ? None whatever; ; it is a matter of agreement for tlie accommodation
-of both parties. 'We found in several instances that it would cause great loss of time to build these culverts
«of bricks, as they had to be carted over bad roads, and the Contractors had the pipes on hand; and we
allowed them to use them instead of bricks. We obtained from the Contractors the invoices of the pipes
which showed to us that it was a loss to then pecuniarily instead of a gain, but it was indirectly a benefit to
them as a matter of mere convenience, and therefore they were satisfied to pay the difference. ‘

858. Would a 2 ft. iron pipe, such ‘as laid down, be an efficient substitute for a 3 ft -«culvert? Yes, in
* the places in which they have been used.

By Mr. Kennerley.—859. 1 presume in such cases 3- feet culverts were unnecessar y, and Z-feet pipes
would answer; who decided the point ? My firm,—the Engineers did.

860. Then the Engineers incurred that responsibility 7 Yes.
861. No reference to the Directors of the Company ? None whatever.
862. Then it was a matter of detail on which the Engineers consider they had power to act? ? Yes.

By the Chairman.—863. Can you produce the original plans and specifications on’ which the Con- -
tract was taken? It is in possession of the Secretary.

864. The original plans and specifications on which the quantities were. taken,—those submitted to
the Commissioners ? Yes; they are attached to the Contract.

865. I mean the original ones, on which the Commissioners’ certificate was based” I have ‘not got
them. ,

866. Can you say who has them? T believe they are not in existence ; a portion of them has been
torn up and used as waste paper.

867. Then do I understand you to say those original plans were of no use whatever after the Com-
missioners had given their certificate on them? Not any.that I know of. I attached no value to them ;
but I will explain the circumstances under which they were made. There were no specifications and no
-estimate, but there were plans on which the Commissioners gave their certificate. :

868. No estimate of quantities : how else did the Commissioners cer tify,—that s, on What data did the
Commissioners give their certificate ? We did give an approximate estimate of quantities to Mr. Kemp,
but I have not got it with me—nothing but the contract. Once the contract drawings were completed,
I attached no importance whatever to the documents; they did not in any way affect the value of
that Contract, and consequently they have not been preserved: a portion of them only, I believe, are in
existence. -

By Mr. Whyte—869. The Contract, in fact, was not taken on the plans submitted to the Commis-
sioners ? No; our plans were not all matured at the time they were submitted to the Commissioners; we
intended alone to convey approximate plans which could be carried out by var ylncr the details accordmg
as our views on each guestion became matured.

By Mr. Lewis.—870. Was -one set of plans provided for the approval of the Commissioners and
another for the Contractors ? There was a set of plans made to enable the Commissioners to make an
approximate estimate, pending-the preparation: of working drawings, which were not made for several

months afterwards; 5 and those drawings, when complete, were submltted to the Commissioners before the
Contract was let. -
By Mr. Archer.—871. With or without information to the Commissioners that the original plans had

been altered, or that the plans submitted to the Contractors differed in any way from those originally sub-
mitted to the Commissioners,—was it, -in point of fact,  with the knowledge of the Commissioners that
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these "alterations took'piace ? Mr. Kemp had every access to all the drawings, and was acquainted with-
all the circumstances; and with regard to the alteration of the plans, the approximate plans were put aside
altogether, and new. plans made.. - S - : S :

By Mr. Whyte.—872. Did not you offer to let Mr. Kemp see-the plans on which the Contract was
taken as Director, but not as Commissioner, and he declined it ? I refused to submit them to him officially
as a Commissioner, but he was in and out the office while they were being made. I had no authority
to submit them to the Commissioners or any one else; he saw them every day: was constantly at my office,
and saw what was going on.” Every thing was thrown open to him, but I declined specially to submit
them to his approval. ' ' ' o

By the Chairman.—873. But did you'not write a letter inviting Mr. Kemp as 2 Director to. inspect
the plans, but declinihg to permit him to do so in his capacity of Commissioner under the Railway Act ?
Yes; I wrote some such letter. ‘ :

874. Can you say, after writing a letter of that description, whether Mr. Kemp ever visited your-
office to inspect those plans?  I.cannot establish any date, but Mr. Kemp was exhibiting the plans at the
Town Hall, Launceston. o )

By Mr. Lewis.—875, Were the plans you furnished to the .Commissioners in the first instance-
handed back to you at your request to'enable you to complete the Contract, and were they withheld although-
Mr. Kemp repeatedly asked you for them, on the ground that they were worthless and partly destroyed?
They were not intentionally destroyed, but we did not think it worth while to preserve them, and we have
not done so. '

By the Chairman.—876. Then you did not strictly adhere, in carrying out the working drawings,
to the plans and-specifications you had originally prepared? ‘We did not attempt to adhere to the plans
strictly, they were merely approximate. '

877. I understand you to say there was no estimate originally submitted? No detailed estimate, only
in parts as Mr. Kemp asked for them: we supplied to Mr. Kemp as fully as possible all the information

- he asked us for.

878. Looking at Mr. Kemp’s examination, Question 592, can you say after reading Mr. Kemp’s
answer whether Mr. Kemp had the opportunity of seeing the plansat your office in Melbourne, in his
official capacity as Cominissioner? I cannot say, but he did see them when they were hung up in the
Town Hall, Launceston, subsequently, and- previous to the Contract being let. It is not corectly stated
that he was not in my office more than once or twice; he was frequently in my office: during the time the
working plans were being prepared, constantly looking at them. :

By Mr. Lewis.—879. Was the 7th Section of the 80th Victoria, No. 28, where the Commissioners.
are instructed in reference to the obligation of the Company and the Engineers to the Government, fully
complied with? Fully.

The Witness withdrew.

Fripay, Ocroser 8, 18609.

Present—Mr. Davies, (Chairman), Mr. Maclanachan, Colonel Hutchins, Mr. Archer, Mr. Lewis, Mr.
Kennerley, Mr. Swan.
MR. HENRY DOWLING recalled and examined.
By the Chairman.—880. There were one or two questions at your former examination that you
undertook to answer? Yes.

881. Do you now produce an answer to the interrogatories of the Hon. Mr. Whyte? I do; with
reference to the cost of the South Esk Bridge, and state of the Shareholders’ Accounts :—

"Cost of Bridge.—Estimate of July, 1868. "

£
Iron-work, exclusive of freight and all other expenses........ PP 6600
To which has to be added—

Cartage to Longford, say ....oevas. B 1000

Staging, the timber to be the property of the Company ........ . 2915

Contract price of piers and abutments. ... .. SR NI 6000
London freight, insurance, and commissions, and cost of erection of the
iron-work in the Colony, which would have been incurred had the iron

merely been shipped to the Colony, say.ceeesesasns sreeseeasasrees 7000

£23,515

Actual Cost:— : ———
Iron-work, including freight, commissions, insurance, and erection in

the Colony by the manmfacturer........... Cheebarerreiaonns 18,400

Company’s Agents’ fees in London......... Ceevea Creeeerasenas 650

Cartage 10 Longford.....c.vveveeeiiecereeemneoncannascsanss 1000

Staging, as above .. ..ouvivineasan ceeteanannan Cieseesesaaens 2015

Contract price of piers and abutments.c.vsveeeesossaenaseeceess 6000

£28,965

\ £5450

Diﬂbl‘ence_ R N I N Y I e N X e
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" Thé fair commercial view to be taken of estimates in my opmron, as T have stated in ev1dence, is to
‘have regard -to'the total estimated sum, and resulis arrived at by actual contracts; and by this test the

+Company have exceeded their estimate for rails, South Esk girders, locomotlves, rolling stock &e:, bought
in/ England by only £5083

P Skareholdere .Account

On the 14th September, 1869, they had paid £39 153 the promlssoxy notes are not all due untll
) December and March next.’

" At the date of the Commissioners’ Certificate and payment of £50,000 into the Bank, I do not
~find that any moneys had been paid by Shareholders.

© 882. Do you also furnish the information requested by Mr Archer? Yes; I produce the London
“invoices as desired.

883. Have you seen the estimate of the Official Commlsswners in regard to the completion of the
‘Launceston and Western Railway? I have seen it just now.

'884. Will you state upon what data you base your estimate for the completion of this work, in the
_paper put in by you? I don’tknow that I can add anything to the paper, the paper explains that.

885. That is the only information you can afford to the Committee on that subJect” That is the only
. general explanation I could offer. I have]stated in my evidence I was assisted in that by some men of
-business at the Board.

886. Do you believe that sum is sufficient to complete the Railway in an efficient and proper manner,
including rolling stock, stations, telegraph, and all other matters pertaining to a Railway, that is for the
_purpose of opening it for traffic with safety and convenience to the public benefit? Yes, I do; but I must
ask the Committee to bear in mind the fact that I take the total sum named as sufficient, but I don’t pledge
myself to say that each item is correct, and I guard myself, for I find a disposition to confine an estimate
-of one item strictly to that item, but we may be wrong in one item. I may just explain that thé -£1000
put down for cartage to Longford may in part be saved, but the saving on that may be redistributed. In
the paper put in I Thave stated that the object of the statement is to show that the total sum will be necessar y
to the Railway being opened and safely and economically worked from the commencement, but not limiting
in any case the appropriation of the several sums to the item represented, as some may cost more and some
less-than stated. :

~ 887. You see the estimate of Mr. Kemp before yeu? Yes.
888. And you see the amount, without the interest' stated at £107,000?7 Yes.

889. I presume you cannot glve us any reason for the great discrepancy between that and your own?
No; I cannot.

890. Can you say whether the 7th Section of the 80 Vict. No. 28, 1espect1n0~ deviations and alterations
has been strictly complied with by the Directory and the Engineers ? I think so.

891. And will the records of the Colonial Secretary’ s Office bea1 out that statement ? I 'don’t know
~anything of the records in the Colonial Secretary’s Office.

892. Is it not part and parcel of the proceedings that the same should be submitted ; namely,—“ No
deviation from the terms of any contract in which the said Commissioners have repmted shall be lawful
without the consent of the Governor in Council ?” I am not aware that any breach of the 7th clause has
been committed by the Directory in any case.

893. Do you produce a copy of the Contract between Overend & Robb and the Company, as you
undertook at your last examination'to do?  The Committee will find, by reference to my examination, that
T was asked to produce the conditions of the Contract and they will be found printed at pp- 76 to 80,
No. 24 Parliamentary Paper. '

By oy M. Kennerley.—894. Have you a copy of the Contract with you? Yes, I have a copy of the
- form of Contract, but I will furnish an"exact copy to the Committee.

By Mr. Archer—895. On your former examination you were asked (Question 382) who were the
Mercantile Agents of the Company, in London and you. replied, Sharp & Terry ; and you mention M.
Hemans as being EnO‘meelan‘ Agent, was not that the case? Yes, but the proper designation of Mr.
Hemans 1s Inspecting Engineer. . - : '

- 896. Then are we to understand that Mr. Hemans receives 2} per cent. on the whole of the plant,
brldges, &c. imported here from England? Mr. Hemans has received 2 pér cent. on all goods inspected ;
but a question has arisen between the Directory and Mr. Hemans as to this charge, and correspondence is
now in ‘course upon it with Sharp & Terry; that is as to Commission 1ncrdent to commercial charges.
Mr. Hemans claims that the professional practice entitles him to 2 per cent. on all commercial transactions,
inasmuch as, in addition to his inspection, he is made a party to the credit with the Bankers, and the
responsibility attaches to him mutually with Sharp & Terry on the commercial items of the.transactions.

897. By the whole of the transactions you embrace rails, locomotives, and the South Esk Viaduet, I
: suppose %. The invoices will show that every business t ansactlon of the Company in London is embr: aced
by the commission. S

898. Then in reality the Company pay 35 per cent. on all orders sént to England? Yes, and thlé.
was by a special arrangement by which Mr. Hemans comission was reduced fromi 2% fo 2 per cent., and
Sharp & Terry’s from the ordinary. commercial commission to 13 per cent. .on account of the largeness of
the mercantile. transactlons. The Dn ectors. thought they had made a ve1y economlcal arrangement by thls

:agency P :

' By Mr. Lewis. —899. The usual com1n15s1on 1§ 5 pe1 cent. is it not ? The usual commission on

~01'dmary transactlons is & per cent. : : o S
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- By Colonel: Hutchins ~—900. Has the arrangement. for:the erection of: the: South Esk. Bridge by the-
manufacturers the approval of the Board of Directors?- Yes, I think they. do.fully. approve, but I will
refer to the minute book. : ' . e

901. Is it considered an economical arrangement? Yes, in every respect, not only with regard to the
cost of commission, but with regard to the permanence of the work, as the builder is bound to have it sub-
jected to the usual test adopted in Europe before final payment. .-

By Mr. Lewis.—902. Do I understand that the plan and speciﬁé:;.tion of .the Longférd Viaduct was
sent through you to the Agents in London, or were they sent by the Engineers to the. Agent in London for
execution ? Not through me, but by the Engineers. :

903. Was not that transaction of the Engineers a very irregular one? It was. the practice of the
Company. Thé drawings were submitted to the Board and their consent asked to send forward the orders;.
that was done by the Engineers, who reported the orders in due course to the Board. The papers I put ir
the other day show that. : ‘ : .

904. And was the same course adopted in reference to the alterations in the weight of the rails? I
stated before that I never heard of any communication as to the weiglit of the rails; the drawing of the
rails was submitted with a request that they might be allowed to send forward the order; on the day, I
think, that Overend & Robb’s Contract was taken. Mr. Doyne applied for consent of the Board..to order
the iron for permanent way, that is the rails, and it will be found in my former evidence he was instructed
to send it by the mail to-morrow.

905. But did the Engineers inform the Directory that it would involve them in such a very large
amount of extra cost? No. I have stated before no information came before the Board on that subject.

908. When did this information come hefore the Board? Information came before the Board when
the Engineers reported copies ot his instructions to London, and on the motion of Mr. Green the Engineers
were required to explain the circumstances, which they did to the satisfaction of the Board.

By the Chairman.—907. Have you the Minute by which that approval was expressed ? There is no
Minute that I remember, I speak from general recollection.

908. Can you state or give any information to this Committee, any matter or thing respecting the
original plans and estimates on which the Commissioners were called on to furnish their Certificate before
the Contract was taken ; can you say what has become of those documents? No. I recollect Mr. Kemp
leaving a portion of one of the plans with me, but I presume I must have sent it on to Melbourne.

909. Can you say whether there was any important alteration made in the plans and estimates on
which the Contract was taken from those submitted to the Commissioners to obtain the certificate? I
could not speak from my own knowledge; but I could explain to the Committee my knowledge as far as
it goes with regard to these plans and the object of them,—what I call the Commissioners’ plans. I have
no doubt that considerable alterations in details were made, because Mr. Xemp himself told me that they
would be required. . . '

910. Can you say whether the alterations you speak of from what you call the Commissioners’ plans
involved any additional expense 2 Not of my own knowledge. '

The Witness withdrew.
[A letter from Mr. Doyne put in explanatory of portions of his evidence.]

The Hon. F. M. INNES, Esq., recalled and emamined.

By the Chairman.—911. Do you wish to add to or explain any matter given by you in your previous
evidence ? In answer to question 703, ¢ Have the powers of the Commissioners been acknowledged by
the Board of Directors,” I stated that ¢ Perhaps the powers of the Commissioners as they could be legally
established have been recognized.” I wish to qualify that by referring to the correspondence of this Session
(No. 24), where it will be seen that on different occasions the legal powers of the Commissioners were
questioned ; but on reference to the Attorney-General they were sustained. I refer to their powers as
Directors, and of withholding their assent in certain cases from expenditure.- - In answer to questions 705
and 706, by which I was requested to state my views on what the powers of the Commissioners should be,.
T perceive, on reading over my evidence, that I introduced two matters on which I wish to hand in a
more detailed answer. I refer to Railways in India, article Quarterly Review, July, 1868 :—

ConpirioNs oF . GovERNMENT AI1D.—The Contracts with the Bast Indian and the Great Indian Peninsular
Companies were signed in August, 1849, The salient points in these first contracts, which became the model of
those subsequently concluded with other Companies, may be thus briefly stated :—The Government made a free
grant of the Jand required for the rail and the works and stations in’a leage for the term of ninety-nine years, and
guaranteed interest at the rate of five per cent. for the same period on the capital raised with their concurrence, té
commence from the date on which the sums were successively paid into the Treasury. * LA S SN ®

In return for these important concessions, the following arrangéments were accepted by the two. Railway Com-
panies :—The. mails and post bags, and post-office servants, were to be conveyed free of charge. European Military
Officers were to travel in first-class carriages at second-class fares ; and troops and European artizans on-the public
establishments in second-class carriages at the lowest fares. All public stores, civil and military, guns, ammunition,
carriages, waggons, camp equipage and equipments, were to be conveyed at the lowest rates, and Government was.
to have a’ priority over the public for the carriage of them. Government was also to be invested with poiwer to
regulate the route and direction of the lines, the weight and strength of the rails, the number of trains, the period’
for starting, the rate of speed, and all the conveniences'and accommodation deemed necessary by its officers. The
rolling-stock was to be made adequate to the services of the line to the satisfaction of the officers of the state:
The fares for passengers and the tolls for goods were in the first instance to be fixed by Government; but no subse-
quent- reduction could be made without ﬁle concarrence of the Company, until the net proceeds of the line exceeded
ten per cent. The whole undertaking was, in tact, placed under the jurisdiction of the State by~ the following com~
prehensive provision :—
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.. 1, The said Railway Company and théir officers,. servants, and agents, as also their accounts and affairs; shall in:
all things be subject to the superintendance and control of the East India Company,-as well in England' as else-,
where-; and, in particular, no bye-laws, contracts, orders, directions, proceedings, .works, or undertakings, ‘acts,
matters or things whatsoeyer, shall be made, done, entered into, commenced; and prosecuted by or on the part of”
the said ‘Railwvay ‘Company, ‘ufiléss previously sanctioned in writing by ‘the East India' Company ;, and no money
shall be raised, and no extension of the number of shares, or of the amount of its capital, shall be made unless sanc--
tioned by the East.India .Company.:. o e S

.. An ex-officio Director was to attend all the meetings of the- Boards, with a right of veto, on . all proceedings
whatsoever, except in regard to communications with the legal advisers of the Company. No expense was to be in-
“curred’in Englard or in India without the authorisation of Government. All sums received on both sides the water-
‘were to be paid, ‘without any deduction, into the public Treasury, from which every farthing required for expendi--
ture-was to be drawn., When thé returns were beyond four per cent., one-half the excess was to be passed to the

credit of the State until the interest which had been advanced was repaid, and the other half was to belong to the-

Shareholders. At the end of ninety-nine years the whole Line. was to become the property of the Governinent ;
but,the Company could, intermediately, surrender.it, and demand back their capital. After the lapse of twenty-five:
years the Government could claim to purchase the Line; or if default was made in raising funds, or executing the-
works, or managing the Line to the satisfaction of the Governor-General, he might assume possession of it, repaying
the capital. In France, Belgium, Prussia, and other Continental States the Railways established by private Com-
panies—both in their inception and subsequent management when completed—are subject to Government interference..
In France, plans in detail are submitted to a public department which, it it approve, retains copies of the pluns, and
appoints an Engineer from time to time to see that the works are constructed in accordance therewith. Every bridge
and all the details are submitted to the Government Engineer ; and in case he finds the work is being carried on at
variance with these plans, itis ohjected to and must be altered ; unless, upon hearing what the Company’s Engineers-
have to say upon the subject, the Government Engineer comes to the conclusion that the substituted plan is. better
than the original. '

After a Line is in operation, Government functionaries can step in, if need be, and require repairs or improve--
ments to be effected, or can have them executed at once and recover the cost by summary process.. And the expeuse
of such superintendence is defrayed by the Companies. The amount paid on this account by the Company, being
the Paris and Rouen Line, a few years since, was at the rate of 207,526 francs, or £8300 per annum. '

I hand in two Parliamentary P'apersl illustrative of the kind of interference which takes place under the
Board of Trade in regard to Railways in England. These papers show proposed works of private Com-
panies disallowed on the reports of the Engineers under that Board.

The system which has been so far allowed in connection, with the Launceston and Western Railway of
exemption from Government interference may have had a bad precedent in Queensland, but is quite an
exception to general rule. ‘ : _

" As regards the Directorial management of the Launceston and Western Railway Company, it has
hitherto been so anomalous in principle that it is difficult to propound any change in it which 1s not liable
to be misinterpreted as being an assent to that principle ; or, on the other hand, so radical as to be incon-
sistent with the view I have already stated to the Committee; namely, that no radical change should be
precipitated. 'When I say that the powers intrusted to the Company are anomalous, I mean that they are
so considering the small sum contributed by the Shareholders compared to the total cost of the Railway,—
a seventh only of the estimated capital, less than a ninth ofthe probable actual outlay. The necessity under-
which the Company now lie, of coming to Parliament to find means to carry on the Railway, recalls the
nearest case to a parallel one with which I am acquainted, and the course therein adopted by the Govern-
ment of New South Wales. The Sydney Railway Company found itself brought to a stand-still ; it had'
to seek direct pecuniary assistance from the public funds, in addition to the gnaranteed minimum dividend'
on the paid-up capital of the Company, which it had previously obtained ; and the Legislature consented to
an advance being made to the Company in the proportion of three-fifths to-every two-fifths of that capital,
on the distinct understanding that the Gtovernment should possess, and should exercise, an efficient control
over the proceedings of the Company.. For.this purpose the Government was empowered to nominate-
one-half the number of Directors ; and in the.event of there being an equality of votes in the choice of a:
President, the appointment was vested -in' the Governor. Such an equality of votes happened,—Mr..
Merewether, the Colonial Auditor, and Mr.. Charles Cowper being the opposing Candidates,—representing,
respectively the Government-and:the Shareholders. The former was then appointed, in pursuance of ‘a
résolution on the part of the Executive previously announced to the Company ; namely, ¢ to maintain an-
efficient control over the direction so long as it continued to advance from the Public Treasury so large a
proportion as three-fifths of the amount estimated to be necessary for the execution of the work determined-
wpon.,” .- L : X . o ‘ S ‘

In citing this case I merely intend to show-the-precedent which it affords to the Government here in
the present juncture in the affairs of the Launceston and Western Railway Company, for requiting ¢ an
efficient control over the direction of that Company ; but I do not think it would be advisable to seek to-
realize it, especially at the present time, in the same manner as it was done in New South Wales. 1 would,.
however, refer to the powers previously stated as reserved by the East India Company over the proceedings-
of the India Railway Companies, as, with some qualification, powers which should be reserved by the-
Government over the future acts of. the Launceston and Western Company.

In answer to 739 I stated, that I have not been nice as to what I construed my, legal powers in relation
to the Company to be. I thought the piblic interest required that we should assert powers which
Parliament intended to confer. I mean by that, I endeavoured, asifar as'I cotld, to’ enforce thosé" ¢hiecks .
on the proceedings of the Company which I knew. to-have been contemplated. by Parliament in-providing -
for the appointment of Commissioners; but which, as I previously stated, the law has not explicitly
invested them with. S » - . o

912. You have, in conjunction with Mr. Kemp the Professional Commissioner, handed in to the-
Government an: estimate of the probablé cost of completing the Railway, have you not? Yes.” .

913. Will you be good enough to.state. for the information of this Committee ' the . grounds; on, which

you hbase ‘your “estimate? In so far as this ddditiorial estimate représents the excesses which have already-
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‘been incurred, or are now in progress, such as the cuttings at the ' White Hills, the -alteration of rails, the
.altered character of the Longford Bridge, and also the compensation for land, the dmount is pretty well
ascertained ; that represents the:excess incurred, amounting to-about one half the total estimated excess.
‘The other half represents estimates for stations and material in respect to which I rely on the details as

«calculated by the Professional Commissioner. ' , . . .
914. Have you seen the estimate of the probable cost of completion put in. by Mr. Dowling? Yes.

915.. Can you in any way explain the large discrépancy between that and the one you just referred
t0? At once, by the principle that the estimate put in by Mr. Dowling postpones expenditure, whereas
the other contemplates the expenditure. It postpones the expenditure on the slopes of cuttings. The letter
which accompanies the estimate contemplated future expenditure not provided for here, but contemplated
in the estimate sent in by the Commissioners; and at the present time, in respect to the actual expense already
incurred, a controversy is going on between the Professional Commissioner and the Engineers of the
Company : and it will be seen by the very first line of this paper of Mr. Dowling’s it is given only as
:approximate ; and I would refer to the previous estimates from the same source, which have been gradually
augmenting, while in respect to the estimate given in by Mr. Kemp, I know that it was approximately
«calcnlated to the amount as now submitted by him many weeks since, although until further enquiry
he would not finally commit himself to it. I may refer also to the last page of Mr. Dowling’s statement in
which it is said—¢ The object of the present statement being to show that the total sum named will be
required to open the line, not merely for public traflic, but also to ensure it being safely and economically
worked from the commencement ; but not limitiug, in any case, the appropriation of the several sums to
the items represented;” which shows that the estimate, as a whole, cannot have been a very carefully
framed estimate.

916. Then do I understand you by the expression ¢ postponed expenditure” that the estimate con-
templates a further application to Parliament for money? I believe it involves that as a necessary
-consequence; for I do notthink that any one’s faith in the income to be derived from the Railway, especially
in the first instance, amounts to this, that it will be adequate to meet any extraordinary demands on it.

By Mr. Lemis.—917. Were you present at the Board of Directors when the plan for the 721b. rails
:and the Longford viaduet was placed before the Board ? I may state that the first time that an estimate
‘based on the 721b. rail was brought before the Board I was present, but that 721b. rail was represented in
the total weight of the iron work, not in the details, and' in the printed correspondence I report to the
Government to that effect. (No. 24, page 14.) '

918. Would that apply to the bridge? Yes. I never knew that it was to exceed £10,000 or
thereabout till the receipt of the correspondence from home. '

By Mr. Archer—919. Did you understand that to -embrace the erection, freight, &c.? The total
-calculated was something like #£10,000 ; the items were partly blended with other items of expenditure.

By the Chairman —920. Have you any further explanation to make to the Committee? I hand in
ithe clause providing for the report to be furnished to.the Commissioners that the Railway could be con-
structed for a certain sum, as contained in the original Act, and the clause as it was amended in the second
Act under which the Commissioners made their report :— Provided always, that, before any Bonds are
issued and interest guarantecd thereon by the Government, Commissioners shall be appointed by the
‘Governor in Council,. who shall be empowered to examine the Plans and Specifications and the Contract for
the construction of the said Railway and Works, and shall report thereon to the Governor in Council, upon
whose approval the Works may be commenced and proceeded with; and the said Commissioners shall
subsequently ascertain if one-fourth ofthe Contract cost of the said Railway and Works has been paid up
to the Treasurer of the said Company, or actually expended upon its construction.” Sec. 67, Act 29 Vict.
No. 24. “ Before any such Guarantee is given, such Commissioners shall examine the Plans, Specifications,
and Estimates of the said Railway and Works, and such Commissioners shall report thercon to the
Governor in Counecil, ®oo0® # # # Provided, nevertheless, that- before any such
Works are commenced or proceeded with, the Contract or Contracts for the construction-of the whole of
the said Railway and Works so far as the same are to be.constructed within the Colony, and the Estimates
for Rails and other portions of the said Railway and Works so far as they are to be imported from abroad,

_:shall be submitted to the said Commissioners for inspection, and they shall from time to time report thereon
to the Governor in Council ; and no deviation from the.terms of any Contract on which the said Commis-
.%(;ners lr;ave reported shall be lawful without the consent of the Governor in Council.” 20 Vict., No. 28,
«Clanse 7.

The Witness withdrew.

MR. JOHN SCOTT called in and examined.
By the Chairman.—921. Your name is John Scott? It is. I
922. You are a Member of the House of Assembly? ‘Tam.
923. And you are also a Director of the Launceston and Western Railway Company? Yes.
924. And have been so since the formation of the Compény? Yes. :

- 925. Have you been regular in your attendance at the meetings of the Board ? T have be‘enl as
Tegular in my attendance as ‘the nature of the official duties I had to perform in other public positions
permitted. : o : : o '
- 926. Have you had ample opportiinities as a Director of observing the manner in which the business
is transacted at that Board? Yes, -~ =~ -~ ‘ S '
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927. Have you, as a general rule; been satisfied with the method adopted at the Bo’ardv'?' No: o
. 928. Will you, as concisely as possible, state to the Committee the causes of your dissatisfaction? I
considered that the business of the Company, the details of management, and the carrying out were placed’.
too much in the hands of the Secretary and Engineers of the Company, and in support of that I refer to.
my opinjons placed on record in the Minutes. ' e : o

929. Will you read them? Yes. I found it necessary it consequence of important correspondence:
having been. replied to-at different times without consulting the Bodrd, that it was desirable that some:
opinion should be placed on record; and I moved the following resolution at a meeting of the Board 15th
December; 1868, ““That the Secretary shall refer all correspondence in connection with the Launceston and
Western-Railway Company to the Board of Directors at their weekly or.special meetings before replying -
thereto.”” That was not seconded, but it placed on record my opinion that the mode of conducting the-
business of the Company was irregular. '

930. Have.you any other matter to state in connection with this subject? My opinions are recorded :
in-the Minutes on general questions, but I wish to hand in a paper sent in, in the form of a protest I made-
at the outset as to the construction of this Line on a motion with respect to advertising for tenders for the
works, on. which I moved as an amendment that the works be tendered for in two sections ; the amendment:
was put and lost. I then gave notice of protest, and- handed it in. Thi§ document I now put in. -

. PROTEST against Decision of the Board qf Directors, Launceston and Western Railﬁ:ag/ Cmﬁpany, with reference:
to advertising for Tenders for the Construction of Main Works of the Line.

Ist. I consider the Works ought to have been tendered for in Two Sections, the responsibility of making such-
division of the Works to'have rested with the Engineer-in-Chief.

2nd. That Advertisements should have been issued inviting Tenders for construction of Work in Two Sections,.
and as a whole.

3rd. The supposed object in advertising for Tenders is, that competition may be created among contractors.
The decision of the Board to advertise for the construction of the whole Works in a lump suin contract defeats that
purpose to a certain extent, as it reduces the number of competitors by shutting out contractors of moderate capital,
and placing the Company in the hands of large capitalists: whereas if Tenders had been called for in the mode
referred to, it would have acted as a check upon the large contractors, and tended very ‘much to lessen the cost of”
construction.

4th, The advertising for Tenders in Two Sections would have given the Directors an insight into the relative
cost of the different portions of the Line reliable for present action and future guidance ; they therefore ought to have-
had this information before them in order that they might have been in a position to judge for themselves as to which
in the interest of the Shareholders would have been the wisest course to have adopted, either letting the Works as a
whole or in Two Sections. . ,

For the reasons stated, I beg respectfully to place on record my Protest against the decision of the Board with
reference to advertising for Tenders for Construction Main Works, Launceston and Western Railway, in one lump-
sum Contract. .

JOHN SCOTT,
: 14¢h April, 1868..
H. Dowwine, Esg., Hon. Sec. Launceston and Western Railway Company. R

I also call attention to proceedings at the Board with reference to opening Tenders, and a resolution pro--
posed by me and carried. . At a subsequent meeting & motion was brought forward to rescind it, and a
proposition that a Sub-Committee should be appointed to co-operate with the Engineers, but my resolution
was adhered to. I tabled that resolution because it followed up what I conceived to be the right mode of”
proceeding for the interests of the Company. October 6th, 1868, there was the motion on furnishing a
Progress Report. On the first progress payment, involving some thousands, a bare certificate was pro--
duced, not accompanied by any Progress Report informing the Directory as to the method by which the
works were being carried out. I felt it necessary to submit a resolution to requirve the Engineers to furnish-
the Board with a Progress Report to accompany the Monthly Certificate. Mr. Scott moved, and Mr..
Kemp seconded, ‘that the Engineers be instructed to furnish to the Board the Progress Report, -with
quantities of all works, on giving a Certificate to the Contractors.” That was carried. At various times.
during the progress of the business of the Board discussions arose on questions in connection with the action
of the Engineers of the Company ; and I refer to a resolution, 20th October, 1868, when Mr. Green moved,.
and Mr. Crookes seconded, “ that Mr. Doyne be requested to attend and make those explanations he had.
been previously requested to make.” Mr. Scott moved, and Mr. Tyson seconded, ¢ That whatever verbal
explanations may be given by the Engineers to the Board on questions affecting the Launceston and
Western Railway be reduced to writihg for the information of the Divectors, and as a record for after:-
reference.” A division took place. Ayes: Scott, Dodery, Tyson, and Grubb. Noes: Sherwin, Webster,
Robertson, Green, and Crookes. That resolution with reference to the quantities, after a considerable
amount of correspondence, was not complied with by the Engineers. I call attention to the question of”
alteration of slopes. On the 1st December, 1868, Mr. Doyne having submitted a report comprising various
matters, Mr. Scott moved a resolution referring to the alteration of slopes, ¢ that that portion of the Engi-
neer’s report referring to alteration of the slopes does not give the full information necessary, and the .
Company is being committed to a large expenditure without knowing under what arrangement the extra
disbursement is being carried out, and that therefore the Engineers be requested to report further on this-
subject at the next meeting of the Board.,” I wish to show by the Minute Book of the Company that
records the whole proceedings of the Directory, that action has been taken from time to time to arrest the
unbusiness-like proceedings by which the affairs of the Company were being carried out. -

931. Have you had an opportunity to make observation as to whether the powers of the Commis--
sioners were sufficient? Ample opportunity.

932. Will you favor the Committee with your opinion as to whether you think they have sufficient:
powers for the protection of the public interests? They have not. : -
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933. Do you think it necessary that'the powers of'the Commissioﬁers'should be .extended, and if so,
«can you say to what extent? I think the question you put involves large .consideration, and it will be
necessary for me to explain. . I can reply to the first part, I think the powers of the Commissioners should -
‘be enlarged.” : o , e S . o

934. You made a statement to the House of Assembly with regard to the cement used by the Con-
tractors on the Railway Works at the Longford Viaduct? I d'}d. ' e
935. A’ to the general character of the material ? . .1 made a statement with ‘respect.to the character of”
the mortar being used in the construction of the brickwork, cement mortar, s o

986. Are you possessed of sufficient-knowledge of material of that character to favour the Committee
with anything like what may be considered a reliable opinion on it? Not being an Architect or Engineer
I cannot give what might be called a reliable opinion, but simply what common sense points out; that
from observation, and from testing it by removing some of the bricks, I found a quantity of the material at
the piers of the Bridge at-Longford, in my judgment, very defective in quality, inasmuch that I removed
the bricks very easily, and on enquiry I.ascertained that those bricks were supposed to be laid in cement
mortar.. I produce a sample of the cement mortar I took from beneath one of the bricks that I removed.
The same has been in my possession for a month. -I took it from what I considered the works that were
completed. I removed half'a dozen bricks and this is the result.

The Witness withdrew.

ADDENDA TO MR. W. T. DOYNE’'S EVIDENCE.

Hobart Town, 27th September, 1869.
‘S1m, '
Ox the last occasion on which I had the honor to be examined before your Committee, I was requested
by one of the Committee (Mr. R. J. Archer) to furnish answers to the following questions on my next
meeting the Committee :—

1. What is the total width of water-way in the Longford Valley between Mr. Clerke’s hill and
Wellington-street ? ‘

2. What is the elevation of the highest arch in the brick viaduct above the highést flood ?

In endeavouring to answer the first of these questions, I must premise that the width of water way in
the valley, at any time, depends upon the level of the surface of the water at that particular time. At
-ordinary summer level the water is confined between the river banks, and is, at-the point at which we
cross it, about One hundred and seventy (170) feet in width. As the water rises it overflows the banks,
-and flows down various channels, which are not, in the ordinary condition of the river, water carriers. As
it-increases in height it extends its width over the whole valley, until at the extreme elevation, of which I
have a record, it covers a total width at the surface level of Two thousand nine hundred and seventy
(R970) feet. At-thislevel the total width of openings that we have provided for amounts to Seven hundred
and twenty-eight (728) feet, and the obstructions by bridge piers and embankments to Two thousand two
hundred and forty-two (2242) feet, making together the before-named total, Two thousand nine hundred
and seventy (2970) feet. , '

I have endeavoured to answer this question literally as it has been put to me, but I fear that my
-answer does not convey any useful information on the point which I imagine was intended by the enquirer.

I presume that Mr. Archer sought to ascertain what were the relative proportions of water-way
through the valley unobstructed by our works, and that which will obtain when our works are completed.
With a view to giving that information clearly I vénture to put the question in another form, viz.—
“ What relation éxists between the hydraulic capacity of the valley in its natural condition, and that which
will obtain when obstructed by the Railway Works? Or, in other words—What is the sectional area of
the water way under the first and second conditions?”” To this I reply that, when the works are completed,
the hydraulic capacity will be in round figures about one half that which it would be without such works;

-and after repeated and careful consideration on all the information we have been able to obtain, we (Doyne,
Major, & Willett) hope to find that this will prove ample.

- In studying a problem of this description it must be remembered that the hydraulic capacity of any
-conduit depends in a very much larger ratio on the depth of the stream that passes through it than on the
width over which it extends. . In the former case the hydrostatic pressure increases in a large ratio with the
increased depth, while the friction is also largely reduced. - :



., In designing these-works.we have kept these axioms clearly. in view, and have placed all the openings
* at the deepest points of the valley, and the obstructions at the highest pomts. . .

. 2. The question as put is not definite. The helght of an arch,” without deﬁmng what pomt of that :

arch is meant, is an indefinite term; and, therefore, in endeavourmg ‘to give a definite_reply. which will
convey 2 practlcal fact, I reply. that the sof‘ﬁt of the highest arch is 8 feet’ above’ the’ hwhest known ﬂood
and the average springing of those arches is at the level of the said ﬂood

. :_ If desired by the Committee, I can give further detailed. explanatlons as to.the character of the openings
and obstructions which-our plans have provided for. :

I have the honor to be,
- Sir;
Your obed1ent Servant, _

' W. T. DOYNE, Emgmeer-mroluef,
: . S Co Ty Launceston and Western Ratlway.
The Honorable the Chairman of the Joint Commiiitee appointed. . ,

to enquire into all matters connected with the construction

of the Launceston and Western Railmay. .

g, -
: Hobart Town, Tth October, 1869.
Sin, ‘ '
SincE my examination by the Committee to-day, it has occurred to me that some of the questions
which were put to me (the bearing of which I did not understand at the time) indicate that there is an
impression.on the minds of some of the members that the culverts are specified to be built in cement mortar.

Such is not the case. The’arches of bridoes only are interided to beé set in: cement, the culverts in lime
mortar ; and the prices at which they are pald for differ accordmgly, as can be seen by 1eference to the
Contract Schedule .

I have the honor to- be, <
Sir, : '
Your obedient Servant

. ' W, T. DOYNE Engmeer-m—Chzef,
' . Laum-eston and Western Railway.
The Honorable the Chairman of the Joint C’ommzttee appomted
to enquire into all matlers connected with the construction
of the Launceston and Western Railmway.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS‘ ON THE LAUNCESTO‘\T AND
WESTERN RAILWAY. :

. Office’ qf Publw Works, Hobart Tewn, 6tk October,' 1869.

Sir
In conformlty with your letter of the 30th instant, as Chau'man of the Joint Committee of both Houses-
of Parliament now sitting to enquire into all parnculars connected with the management, &e. of the
Launceston and Western Railway, I proceeded .to Launceston and placed myself in communication
‘with the Contractors, Messrs. Overend & Robb, from whom I received, in my mspectwn and examination
of the Works, such information and assistance as they could poss1bly aﬁ'01d

'

I have now to report for the information of your Committee the- result of such mspectlon and exam-

ination.
Hunter’s Mill Vzaduct

The whole of these Works are finished with the exception of the pointing to the sofﬁts of some of the
Arches. Three centres of the Arches were struck, and ‘the fourth was eased. I could not detectany sign of
settlement in them. They are well and substantlally executed ~and the whole 1s bullt w1th hme mortar,
except the Arches and Coping, which are in cement.

Viaduct, South Esk

This work is finished—the centres of all the Arches struck, and the soffits pomted It is well and
substantially executed, and in a manner similar to the Hunter’s, M111 Viaduet.

South Esk Bridge.

The Abutments and Pier are as yet unfinished. The work so far as it has progressed is well and
substantially performed. Cement mortar has been used throughout.

The lime and cement mortar used is of %ood quality, and, I believe, in_exact conformity with the
Specification. The bricks are first class. e stone is of good quality, though not as provided for in the
Specification, of an even and uniform colour.



' I was enabled to make general mspectron and examination of the’ Einé from' the Liffey: Bridge to

Longford, and from Launceston to about 20 chains béyond the site of the. Patterson’s: Plains Station, and ‘X
_am of opmlon .the Works are well and substantrally executed

.A$ to Culverts and Timber Bridges, they afé not in strict conformrty with the Specrﬁeatlon The
Atches of the Culverts sliould have been I)ullt in cement mstead of mortar, and the soﬂits are not pomted, as.

prov1ded for. -

The head—stocks of the Timber Brldges, i my oplmon, "contain heartwood, though the Specification
provides that they and all other sawn timber should be frée - thetefrom. This departure from the Specifi-

cation is the cause of their being rent.

I carefully examined the whole of the Culverts m the portrons of the Works hereinbefore described,
and in one mstance only was there the shghtest settlement discernible.

I am not-able to say: that the entire Works are (with the above exceptions) carried out in strict
conformity with the Specification, the time: at my dlsposal not bemg suﬁicrent to enable me to. make -the

1equ1s1te examination,
I have the honor to be,
Sir,
" Yot very obedient Servant,
FRANCIS BUTLER, Director of Public Works.

The Chairman Joint Commitiee Launceston and Western Railway.

- - ADDENDUM TO- MR. DOWLING’S EVIDENCE.

THIS CONTRACT made the enteenth da,y of July, in the yea.r of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and sixty=
eight, between John Robb and Best Overend, of . Brunswick, in the Colony of Victoria, Contractors, at' present of
Launceston, in Tasmania, hereinafter and in the Documeénts forming the Schedule hereto called ¢ the Contructor” of
the first part, and the Launceston and Western Rurlway Company (Lxmlted), Tasmania, hereinafter and in the said
Documents called “ the Company”’ ‘of the ‘second pait

WITNESSETH. that the said Contractor for liimself, his heirs, executors, and administrators, her eby covenants with
the said Company, and the said Comp‘my hereby. covenants with the said Contractor, to perform, observe, and fulfil
all and singular the conditions, stipulations, anil Tequisitions expressed and contained in, or-reasonably to be inferred
from the Specrﬁcutron and General Conditions hereunto-annexed, and: by and- on the part-of the:said: Contractor and
Company respectively to be performed, observed, and fulfilled, whlch Specification and: Conditions; with the Tender
of the Contractor and the Schedule of Quantities and Prices upon which such Tender was based or calculated, are
the Documents forming the Schedule hereto:- And it is also mutually covenanted that if the party hereto of the
first part shall consist of two or more persons, the term’ Contractor herein and in the Documents forming the
Schedule hereto, shall bind- such. persons jointly.and severally, and their respective heirs, executors, and adminis-
trators, and such persons’ shall jointly bBe entitied to the ‘benefit-of thls Contract, and’ ‘these presents and; the said
Documents shall be read and construed accordingly. - :

Slrrned sealed, and. delivered by the above-named: John, Robb) JOHN ROBB. (L.S.)
and Best Overend (havmg been first duly stamped). - i
In presence:of George Collins, Sohcrtor, Launceston:, BEST OVEREND. (L.S:)

The Seal of thie Company was aﬂired heréto iri the presence’ of
' thie undersigned Clinirman and two of the Members of the S o . L
Board on-the ¥6th day of July, 1868: : : . o . (L.5.)
The Schedule to which the above Contract refers arinexed. ' s Co S
W. 8. BUTTON,. Chairman.
ISAAC SHERWIN, Director.
ALEXANDER WEBSTER Directors

We have exammed thlS COI%X w1th the Original Contract,
and certify. that it'is a true opy thereof..

Dated at Lauuceston, this Sth day of October, 1869.
WirLiam CoLvrins, Solicitor, Launceston.
W. J. Norwoop, Launcesion. -
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APPENDIX.

(A)

o C . (See Letter printed in Evidence, page 5.)

(B.)

BETURN of Ouwners of Lands taken ; Amounis claimed for Purchase and Campensatwn paid
: . -or awarded ; and Law Costs, both Parties.

Name. Area Amount claimed. Awarded. Law Costs.
R A, R P £ s d. £ s d. £ s d
Atkinson, John - - - 6 0 4 143 0 O 75 0 0
Adams, J. & C. .- A 2 0 2 259 17 0 140 0 O 31 8 0
Bonney, John - - - 13 3 6 280 0 O 280 0 O
Benjamin, Joseph, 1a..1r, 23p asked — 100 0 0.

Company took 8 acres - - -8 00 — 120 0 © 1211 6
Brooke, Mrs. - - - 3 317 70 0 O 70 0 O 3414 8
Bird, Joseph - - - 2 113 100 0 O 70 0 0 11 2 2
Butler’s Representatives - - 11 210 240 0 0 . 210 06 0 . 21 9 4
Brookes, Thomas - - - 1 01 50 0 O 2 0 0 15 7 2
Cox, Olivia, Tract, (houses) - 1 o021 ‘350 0 O 250 0 O 24 19 8
Croome, George - B - 0 010 Gift
Clerke, Alexander - - 16 1 382 1060 5 4 400 0 O 3013 6
Clayton, Joseph = - - 0 0 6 10 0 O 10 0 O 919 4
Clancey, George - - 107 166 2 6 3 0 0 22 7 0
Cooper, Challes - L - - 1 114 . 2 0 0 20 0 0 1116 2
‘Cameron, Robert - - 8 334 132 0 0 132 0 0O 1317 1
:Callaghan, Henry - - - 0 239 60 0 O 60 0 O 1914 2
College Trustees - - : 18 337 250 0 O 250 0 0 33 5 6
-Dyson, Jeremiah - - - 0 014 10 0 0 10 0 0O
Duggan, Mrs.. - - - 12 116 1480 6 6 180 0 0 2412 6
Dry, William - - - 5 010 658 2 6 424 0 0
Dry, Sir R, - : - - 6 213 210 0 O 210 0 O
Duggan, Thomas - - - - 0 3 8 .80 0 O 30 0 0
Dunn, James - - - 4 116 80 0 0 800 0 13:6 2
Duncan, Mrs. - . - - 0 020 156 0 0 15 0 0
Dryden, John - - - 2 127 2 0 0 .2 0 0 24 411
Dodery, Willlam - -+ = = : - 14 021 83210 O 550 0 O 24 5 6
Douglas, R. H. - - 11 2 8 220 0 0 220 0 O
French, Samuel, Trustees - - 1 322 200 0 O 130 0 0O
Fu]lerton Ann - 2 2929 60 0 O 60 0 O L
Tloyd, William (Perth) - - 0 013 50 0 0 3 0 0 1011 3
Field, T. W. - - - 21 0 8 1260 0 O 600 0 O
Fleld John ‘- - - 6 021 93 0 0 93.0 O
Gillam, Mrs., - - - 1 012 100 0 0. 40 0 © 171911
Gougl’s Estate - - - 4 0 8 200 0 0 200 0 0
Grant, Charles - - 2 035 183 5 & 120 0 © :
Greenhil, J. R. = - - 4 22 15070 0 ° 100 0 © 31 3 4
Horne, Leslie - - - 2 292 40 00 40 0 0 28 1 6
Horne, Robert - - - 3 123 50 0 0 -850 0 O 3 79
Halliday, J. o - - 0 033 80 0 O 10 0 0
Houghton, F. J - - - 1.123 187 0 © 20 0 0 i1 7 ¢
Hingston, J. T.. - - 1 223 23 0 0 23 0 0 18 15 10
Isaac, John~" = - - - 1 087 150 0 0 3710 0 12 7 9
Judd, — - - ~ 1 122 40 0 O 40 0 0~
Innes, Mrs. - - - - 4 129 178 0 0 75 0 0
Keane, James = - - 8 236 287 0 O 230 0 O 37 0 0
King, W. H. - - - 6 021 . 220 0 0 220 0 O 17 8 0
Loone, John - - - 4 321 ° 217 13 3 150 0 0O 3210 8
Lawrence, 0.V, = . = - 6 01 300 0 0 230 0 0 32 210
Milligan, A, M. ’ .1 09 65 0 O 65 0 0O 1314 6
Martin, Edward, for la. 11' 39p asked - T e 60 0 O

Company took 2a. 2r. Op for - 2 2 0 - . 65 0 0 241 6
Maskill, John - . = - .- "1 90 8 - 60.0 O 60 0 0O 910 2
WIartm, John - - C - . 0 129 Gift —_ 1814 2
-Molloy, John R 033 | 8 0 0" 30.00 1810 7

-5 287 41070 0 1 320 0 0 ‘131 6

'Martm, Thomas - = . .
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DEear SIR, :

Launceston and Western Railway, Engineer’s Off
124% October, 1868,

©y

Name. Area. Amount claimed. Awarded, Law Costs. '
. . A. R, P.. £ s d. £ s d £ s d
Morris, Isaiah - - - 0 011 15 0 0 10 0 0 11 0 8
Martin, Henry - 5 217 84 0 0 84 0 0 27 9 1
. Martin, John {Perth) - - 00 8 10 0 0 10 0 0 7 6 8
Martin, William - - 5 111 7911 0 7911 0 24 11 10
Martin, Francis - - - 6 032 11310 0 11310 0 2110 5
Nixon, Joseph - - - 4 223 205 0 0 120 0 0 31 12 0
. Ditto - - - 0 310 13915 0 0 00 } =
Noake, Eliza - - - 2 212 46 0 0 46 0 0 1616 9
Murray, David - - - 0 128 25 0 0 9% 0 0
Murfett, D. - - - 0 220 " 3 0 0 3 0 0
Ozanne, Joseph (new buildings) - 11 2 4 329 6 0 329 6 O 35 11 10
Parker, T. F. for 2a. 1r. 28p. asked - — 110 0 O
Company took 10 acres for - 10 0 0 — 8 0 0 1211 2
Peck, Thomas - - 1009 17 0 0 17 0 0 15 1 0
Ransom, J. D, - - 2 933 395 0 0 920 0 0 2 0 6
Rudd, Z. (cottage) - - 0 316 200 0 O 175 0 0 916 8
Richardson, Dr. ~ - - - 6 210 100 0 © 100 0 0 28 1 4
Russell’s Estate, (gates) - - 0 0 3 15 0.0 15 0 0
Ritchie, George - - - 5 2 4 36010 O 210 0 O 50 13 3
Ro})erts; T. W, - - 0 312 150 0 0 75 0 0 28 5 7
Reibey, James H. - - - 17 38 20 21318 0 21313 0 30 14 11
Reibey, Ven. Archdeacon’ - 6 023 . 10 0 O 100 0 0O - 32 3 2
Smith, John - - - 0 184 15 0 © 15 0 0 12 19 10
Scott, James, (Selby) - - 4 317 513 16 3 300 0 O z 3314 6
Scott, James, (Perth) - - 2 2929 280 8 9 100 0 O
Stancombe, George - - 10 1 39 477 10 0" 325 0 0 } 94 5 8§
Scott, George, senr. - - 6 326 637 0 6 200 0 0O -
Synod Trustees - - 6 026 175 0 0" 175 0 0 |1} 51 3 9o
Solomon’s Trustees - - - 4-0183 70 0 O 70 0 0 s -
Thirkell, R. - - - .. Gift. -
Thirkell, R., (Perth) - - 1 011 3 0 0 35 0 0 17 7 6
Thomas, D. - - - 1 210 40. 0 O 40 0 O
Thompson, Eliza - - - 4 1 5 191 0 O 9 0 0 3314 0
‘Williams® Trustees . - - 01 8 25 0 0 710 0 14 16 10 -
Wentworth’s Trustees - - 3 320 387 10 0 180 0 O 19 8 0
‘Wilmore, John - - 4 2 38 193 15 0O 170 0 0 3414 O
Whitmore, — - - - 3 2 2 28 0 O 28 0 O 2019 6
Westbury Municipality and exchange of ' e
lind of equal extent - - 1149 7 6 260 0 O
396 2 11 .e 11,823 0 O 1417 7 8
Claims unsettled. : - Estimated at—
Dunlop’s representatives . - 0 214 3 0 0
Longford Municipality - - ie . 150 0 O
Weston, Edward - - - 3 329 980 0 © 300 0 O
SUMMARY. -
£ s d
Amount of Claims awarded, 8396a. 2r. 11p. - - - - 11,823 0.0
Amount of Claims not awarded, (say) - - - - - 485 0 O
Amount of Law’ Costs paid ’ - - - - - 1417 7 8
Amount of Law Costs.on further conveyances - - - - ' 450 0 O
Amount contingencies, (say) - - - - - - "550 0 0
Tenants’ claims - - - - - - - - 1060 6 6
Travelling charges - - - - - - 19180
Fees, references, &c. - - - - - - 160 13 ©
General Law Costs, (additional) - - - - - 225 18 2 -
£16,192 2 4

e S———

ce, Launceston, Tasmaenia,

W= have to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 7th instant, and the enclosed copy of resolutions.

We have noted the resolution having reference to the carriages and trunks, and we shall pre'pnre the plans as

the Board wish; but it appears to us- that your Board need not.deley advertising, asking for tenders until these *
plans are prepared, as contractors can inform themselves fully of all dimensions and quality of the rolling stock by

examining those of the Melbourne and Hobson’s Bay Railway.
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In selecting the Melbourne and Hobson’s Bay carriages we have had in view the avoiding of all unnecessary
-expense. The interior fittings of the carriages on that line are very plain, and much inferior to those of the same
-¢lass.on the Government:line in Victoria..

Permanent Way.~—The Schedule of Quantities which we supplied last year to Mr. Kemp to assist him.in

. forming an estimate, in which 65 lbs. to the yard is mentioned as the contemplated weight of the rail, was, of course,

-merely an approximation,-as-we had' not then fully considered the question. “When we afterwards made the actual

designs, a closer examination into all the conditions of the traffic to be carried induced us to increase the weight.to

“75 1bs., and this was the section submitted to the Board in March last. Subsequently we decided it might be safely

.reduced to 72 lbs., and the designs sent to England were altered accordingly. The weight of iron in the Permanent
Way included in our estimate dated July:16th, 1868, is calculated on this section.

Certificate for Works.—We beg most respectfully to point out that by this resolution your Board is asking a
-more detailed Certificate than it is usual to give according to English practice, according to which practice Mr.
"Doyne took his contract. Your Board must be well aware that it cannot put any confidence in the quantities
which we supply, if it refuses to accept the money value of these quantities.

We respectfully submit to you that we think it would be of advantage if your Board would permit the
-attendance of one of the members of our firm when any engineering question is under discussion. T
‘We are,
Dear Sir,
Yours faithfully,

, o DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT.
‘HeNRY DowrINg, Esq., Secretary. : o

®)

Launceston and Western Railway, Engineer’s Office,
Launceston, Tasmania, 28th May, 1869, . -~
‘DEAR SIR,
'WE have to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 26th instant enclosing two “ forms” marked respectively
‘A, and B,, and furnishing us with a copy of . resolution-passed by the Board on the previous day (25th May),
-which contains a demand that we shall, within ten days thereof, furnish to the Board the data required under Form
.A. in accordance with Form B. *

In reply we have to observe that the points now raised have already been fully met by the explanation given
‘in our letter of 26th October and our Memo. of 20th November, to which we respectfully call the attention of the
Directors.

We need now only repeat that any pretence on our part to furnish detailed quantities of cuttings and many
.other works while in a state of . progress, and importantly altering in amount every hour, would be to practise a
deception, which we, are sure the Directors would not desire.

Mr. Kemp’s persistent demand that we shall provide. these details proves one of two facts: that he is incom-
petent to judge in such matters, or that he wilfully determines to misrepresent facts, and to place ¢aptious difficulties
in the way of the undertaking. . C S :

In our ¢ Progress Report” of the' 15th instant ‘we stated that we were preparing to measure up all cuttings.
zas they were completed, and would furnish the results to the Board as quickly as we could do so with accuracy :
:this promise we shall strictly perform as circumstances will permit. C : '

Much of the information demanded under Form A. we shall be able to furnish to the Board shortly, and it is
«our anxious desire to do so as quickly as possible ; but we respectfully submit that such mere ‘‘forms’’ are of less
-moment than the close supervision of the works in progress, which make such urgent demands upon our time and
:thoughts, and which if neglected or handed over to others may not'be carried out in such an efficient manner as to
secure to the Company and the Colony those permanent benefits they have a right to expect at our hands, and
-which we are confident we can secure to them if we are met with reasonable confidence, and are relieved from the
systematic persecution and. waste of our time to which we are subjected. We further respectfully submit that,
;pending our final report on the question referred to, the Colony and Company are—under the form of certificate
that we furnish monthly, in contormity with the 27th condition of the Contract with Messrs. Overend & Robb—
. perfectly secured against the possibility of an over-payment to the Contractors, either by fraud or accident : and
this fact must be patent to any business man who will take the trouble to study the principle of our Contract, and
-to comprehend the form of Certificate,—two conditions which Mr. Kemp appears to have neglected.

Under these circumstances, whilst recognising the difficulties of the position, we regret that any course of
mere policy on the part of the Directors should have-induced them to have made a ‘dem.and upon us which prior
“knowledge of our opinions ought to have prevented, and thus force us to 'a refusal of compliance. This we re-
- spectfully now do ; and beg, if the Directors are dissatisfied with the course we have taken, to refer them to the
--clauses of our Contract, which provide for any such differences of opinivn as those now indicated.” - :

We are,
Dear Sir,-
Yours very truly,
: . : DOYNE, MAJOR, AND WILLETT, Engincers.
yHeNRY DowriNg, Esqg., Secretary. S S
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(B)

Launceston and Western Railisiiy, Engineers’ Office,
Launceston, Tasmania, 30th March, 1869.

DEar Sir, L ‘ o
OVERLEAF we beg to hand you copies of our correspondence- with Messrs. Overend & Robb, on the subject of”
payment for extra work and side-cutting, for the-information of the Directors. S . .-
o . ‘ ' B - ‘We are, Dear Sir, ‘ )
. Yours very truly, -.;: . . .. R
o S DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT..
Henry Dowiineg, Esq., Secretary. . e )

v

- 1L

(Copy.) T .
ZLaunceston and Western Railway, Engineers’ Office,
Launceston, Tasmania, 19th Lebruary, 1869.
GENTLEMEN,

Wz herewith furnish to you a copy of a Memorandum which we have sent to the Secretary of the Company,
explaining- the principle upon which we have acted in making you payments on account of side-cuttings therein
reteérred to, the value of which will have to be deducted from the amount of extra works before we finally certity
for them, ' ' e '

Our object in sending you this information now, is to assist-you in forming an opinion upon your financial
position, and to show the grounds upon which our final certificate will be framed.

We are, Gentlemen,

Your obedient Servants,
. . (Signed) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT, Engineers.
Messrs. OvErExD & Ross, Contractors.

. -+ [1 Enclosure. ] . : . Tl
(Note.—The enclosure here referred to, was'a copy of our Memorandum dated 16th February, 1869, and attached to-
R ‘ our letter to.the Secretary of the same.date.) ' o

2.
(Copy-) s T -
Launceston and Western Railway Contractors Office, Railway Wharf,
William-street, Launceston, 20tk February, 1869. - .
GENTLEMEN,

Wz have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 19th instant, with enclosure of copy
of Memorandum sent to the Secretary of the Company explaining the principle upon which the payments on side-
cutting forming items Nos.[266, 267, 268, and 269 in the Schedule Rave been made, and also stating in what form the-
final Certificate with reference to these items will be made out. In reply, we beg leave most respectfully to record
our dissent in the strongest possible manner from the principle therein set forth, and also especially from the mode in
which it is intended to make out the final Certificate on these items,

* We have, &c.,

: (Signedy OVEREND & ROBB.
Messrs. DoyNE, MaJoR, & WirLLerT, Engineers. .

3.

ZLaunceston and Western Railway, Engineers’ Qffice,
Launceston, 2nd March, 1869. ~ -

GENTLEMEN, ] ) . . .
. REFERRING fo .your letter of the 20th February, recording: your dissent to'the principle upon which the pay-
ments on side-culting forming items Nos. 266, 267, 268 and 269 'in the Schedule have been made, and. also to the
mode in which it is-intended to make out the final Certificate on these items, we have to request that you will favour
us, at your earliest convenience, with a statement of the grounds on which your objections are based, and with an
expression of your views generally upon the subject. b

We are, Gentlemen,
Your obedient Servants,

| e (Signed) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT,'Engz'necrs.
DMessrs, OVEREND & Rose, Contractors. o . :




(COPY') : il | "I :'::'4‘.“’ N e R R I AT P S I ! .
cSe Tt Loinceston and Western- Railway, Contractors’ Office, Railway Wharf,
. Launceston, 15th March, 1869, ' " -
GENTLEMEN, .

!1VYE ng,lé&,w'eJ';‘t.'(‘)‘,.jﬁclﬁﬁoivlt:dg‘é_‘,f}xé i‘ec)éij)f of : your _letﬁteiﬁ io‘f i t_im 2nd mstant,l‘equgstmg us to statethe gféunds
of our dissent from your views upon payment for side-cutiing, items Nos, 266, 267, 268, and 269, and asking
our views generally upon the subject; and in reply we beg leave to say :—

" ist. We think it cannot be sustained that the contract gwes the f)b\vér £6 the ‘E'ngipbei"s" to decide’ i:poﬁ the
position from which side-cutting shall be taken, the whole responsibility of procuring and purchasing land for side-

s

cuttihg being thrown upon us. o

. 2nd. The' order-for.extra slopes to the cuttings. mentioned was.given onthe 4th December, while -the order to
take the side-cutting from the extra material was not received until the 16th February, when a large portion of the
Banks had already been made: .. .. ., .., . . .., - . Ln -

§ s vl

.- 8rd. The extra material has been to the Banks at considerable additionﬁ_l ékpeﬁéé; fi‘oiﬂ'incr"e;iée'd,l'ength of lead,
laying down greater length of rails, and certain disidvantages in‘working the cattings, So that if the principle sought
to’be enforced could be'carried out it would result in placing us'in & far-worse position’ thanif' we had procured land

and éxcavated the side cutting, * i \ :
Lo N N S S G TR P T A O S

4th. Tt is we believe clearly laid down in the Contract that we are to.make all the cuttings and embankments
shown on the Plans and Specifications for the bilked ‘sui of the” cuttings and side-cuttings taken together, the
distribution of the material from cuttings, the quantity of side-cutting necessary, and the procuring of laud for side-
cutting dnd spoil, being entirely thrown upon us: ‘if thereforé 'the Engineers establish the principle'that they have
power to “order-the disposition of theé miaterial, the placs from Wwhence it is'to be'taken, and to make deductions at
certain places, they would turn this part of the Contract into a schedule of quantities, and we should in that case be
entitled to be paid for the exact quantity of side-cutting, &c. executed in the construction of the Line, . -

l R
Dl

. We have, &e,, ‘ T '
S .. .. .. .. . . (Signedy . OVEREND.& ROBB.
Messrs: DoyNE; MATOR & WILLETT, Engineérs, ‘ ' S
* " Launcéstor and Western ‘Railway. >~~~ = = '

L R gy e
CASE
" For the Opinion of M. Steprex, and Mr. Ferrcws. *

. v Y Lo ' RO

E T BT B T L LA .
- The following Documents are forwarded herewith :— et
. 1..30 Vict, No. 28: Railway A¢t No.2. =~ o o C o
2. Conditions of Contract between thé Launceston and Western Railway Company and Messrs. Overend and
C O Rebb. T ‘ T , . - LT
3. Parliamentary Paper, No. 16; 1868. o

.. LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY, (LIMITED), .

The Legislature of Tasmania, by the Railway Acts 29 Vici. No. 24, 80-Vict. No. 28, and 81 Vict. No, 43,
sanctioned the ‘construction of a Railway. from Launceston to Delordine. to bé called the Launceston and.Deloraine
Railway, provided the said  Railway could be opened for traffic.for a sum nof exceeding £330,000, of which
£50,000 was to be subscribed by a Company. (I e L , e .

.. The Company was formed under the Joint Stock Companies Act."

The sum of £50,000 was paid as required by The Launceston and Weslerp Railway Act, 30 Viet. No. 28,
Séetion 7, which is as follows:— ~ -~ 0 L o0 U oo
¢ Before any such Guarantee is given, such Commissioners shall -6xamine the plans,. specifications; and
estimates of the said Railway and Worlks, and such Commissioners shall report thereon to the Governor

‘in ‘Council, 'ahd shall also repor: whether' tlie said sum of £50,000 has been subécribed and paid into

" a bank as hereinbefore provided, and whether the said Railway can’ be opened for traffic for a'sium

' not'exceeding £850,000; and in cast’the’ Governor in’ Coundil is satisfied by such report that such
* plans, specifications, and estiatés, ‘as ' aforesaid dre sufficient and reasonable, and ’thg_t the'said sum’
v "of £50,000 has been subscribéd and ‘paid’into’d bank as aforeseid, and’that'the Railway may' be
" opened for traffic for 4 sum not exceeding .£350,000, then the ‘Governor in“ Council shall signify his
" approval'of the said Railway and* Works being commenced, and thereupon the, Company may com-
mence and proceed with the said Railway and Works; and the Governor in"Couneil shall; al the
request of the Company, guarantee the payment by the Company of the principal and interest

** secired by any such bonds as iforesaid’s. and- such guarantee shiall bé given by endorsing: én ‘each
“ such bopd the words ¢ Guaranteed in pursiiahée ot the' Launceston and Western Railway-Act, and
by thé Govérnor Signing  silch ‘éndorsement : Provideéd, nevertheless, that before ‘any such ‘Works'
are-commenced or procéeded withi, the Contract or Contracts for the construction of the "whole'of the-

.
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said Railway and Works, so far as the same are to be constructed within the Colony, and the
estimates for rails and other portions of the said Railway and Works so far as they are to be imported
from abroad, shall be submitted to the said Commissioners for inspection, and they shall from time
to time report thereon to the Governor in Council ; and no deviation from the terms of any Contract
on which the said. Commissioners have reported shall be lawful without the consent of the Governor
in Council.”’ - ‘

By Section 6 of the same Act the Governor in Council is empowered to appoint. three Commissioners, whose
duties are defined in Section 7 of the same Act as above'set forth, and are further referred -to in Section 11 of the
rame Aet.: - T S

By these Sections it will be seen that the Governor in Council is empowered to. appoint' three .Commissioners
whose duties should be to report— s : ’ o ' o '

First.— Whether the said Ruil“’my could be opened for public traffic for a sum not exceeding-£3505000;
(Seet. 7.) :

Secondly.—~Whether the said .sum of £50,000 had been subscribed-and paid into a Bank 1o the credit of
the Company. and-Commissioners. . L ‘ ’ _
Thirdly.—To see that the said sum of £350,000 was ‘“expended upon the Railway and Works with their

approval, and not otherwise.”

And fourthly.—To have ¢ the Contract for the construction of the .whole of the said Railway and Works,
so far as the same are to be constructed within the Colony, and the Estimates for the Rails and other
portions of the said Railway and Works, so far as they are to be imported from abroad, submitted
for their inspection, and to report thereon from time to time to the Governor in Council.”

The Commissioners were appointed by the Goyernor. in Council.

The Commissioners reported tothe Governor in Council that the said sum of £50.000 had been so subscribed
and paid into a Bank, and that the said Railway could be opened for public traffic for a sum not exceeding
£350,000, o . B

The Governor in Council, as authorised by the before-mentioned Act (30 Vict. No. 28, Sect. 7), signified his
approval of the said Railway and Works being commenced.

The Tender of Messrs. Overend and Robb for the construction of the whole of the said Railway and Works
within the Colony for the total sum of £200,671 8s.8d. was, subsequently .to such approval, submitted to the
Directors of the Company,—all the Commissicners, in their capacity as.Directors, being present. (See Section 6
-of 80 Vict. No. 28.)

The Tender was carefully deliberated upon, and finally unanimously accepted by the Board; and a Contract, in
accordance with such Tender, was likewise submitted to, deliberated upon, and unanimously approved of by the
Board, and finally sealed with the common Seal of the Company, and executed by the Contractors,—the Com-
missioners, in their capacity as Directors, being present at the acceptance of the Tender, and at the execution of the
Contract by the Company and Contractors, which Contract was subsequently submitted to their inspection, as
Commissioners, in accordance with. the provisions of the before-mentioned Act (Sec. 7), and respectively reported
apon by Mr. Kemp, the Professional Commissioner, and by Messrs. Bartley and Innes, the other two Com-
missioners, as required by the before-mentioned Act. '

Amongst the General Conditions of such Contract, Clause 27 is as follows :—“Payments will be made to the
‘Contractors every month of the amount which' the Engineers may certify by estimate from the Schedule of Prices
«as the price or value of the work performed during the preceding month, together with the value the Engineers shall
place on any suitable material that shall be delivered upon the Works, less 10 per cent. upon such certified
-amount,” : :

No exception was taken either by the Board of Directors or any member thereof, or by either of the Com-
issioners, to the foregoing distinct and definite condition, nor was any suggestion made by Mr. Kemp (the
Professional Commissioner) that the Certificate so to be given should furnish Schedule of Quantities, or any other
information than that required by such Condition. ' ’

Clause 28 of the said General Conditions terms such payments as ¢ progress payments.”’ It clearly regards
them merely as payments on account of certain defined Works contracted to be performed for certain defined or
fixed amounts, and accordingly provides ¢ that, notwithstanding the giving of any Certificate that portions or the
whole of the Works have been satisfactorily performed, the Engineers may require the Contractors to remove or
amend at any future time, previously to the final payment on account of the construction or maintenance of the
Works, any work that may be found not to have been performed in accordance with the Contract.””

The Directors, relying with implicit confidence upon the professional and personal reputation of their Engineers,
(Messrs. Doyne, Major, and Willett), have, as above shown, absolutely and unreservedly confided to them, and zo
them alone, the very onerous and responsible duty of estimating the monthly amounts due to the Contractors, and
-of furnishing such Certificates for the due payment of such amounts; and to this arrangement the Directors hold the
-Commissioners to have been consenting parties.

After such Contract was so accepted and duly executed as aforesaid, Mr. Xemp and Mr, Innes, (two of the
‘Commissioners), without the knowledge of the Directors, applied for the opinion of the Law Officers of the Crown
with reference to two Clauses of the said Conditions, viz.—6 and 6a of said Contract; and obtained such opinion,
but did not then, or at any. time thereafter, raise any question with reference to the said 27th Condition of the said
‘Contract ; but reported to the Governor in Council, in accordance with Section 7 of 30 Vict. No. 28, without raising
any question as to the 27th and 28th Conditions ; and, indeed, without any reference whatever to the said opinion
on the said Conditions 6 and 64 of the said Contract. = (See Commissioners’ Report of 24th July, 1868, pp. 41 to 45,
Parliamentary Paper No. 16, Session 1868.)

In the opinion of the Directors the Commissioners are bound to accept the Engineers’ Certificates, and to unite
with the Directors in fulfilling the provisions of the 27th Condition of the Contract-as to the mode of payment to
the Contractors, viz.—to-sign the Cheques given by the Company for the amounts certified by the Engineers (in
atrict accordance with such provisions) to be due to the Contractors, as the 27th Condition of the Contract may be
termed the mainspring upon which the fulfilment or repudiation of such Contract altogether depends.
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The Commissioners were, as:béfore mentioned, in their capacity as Directors; present at'the Board of Directors
when the Contract with Messrs: Overend and Robb was deliberated upon; approved, and finally unanimously
assented to by the Board, and when the said Contract-was executed as aforesaid. * .~ : A

If the Commissioners, or: either of them, .disapproved -of the 27th Condition. of such Contract, by which the
Engineers were absolutely and solely entrusted by the Company to prepare and furnish Certificates of the monthly
amounts payable to the Contractors, and by which Conditions the Company were legally bound to pay the amounts
so certified,~—irrespective of any other data or.vouchers whatever than that furnished in such'Certificate,—it was, in
the opinion of the Directors; clearly.the. duty of the Comumissioners, and more especially of the Professional
.Commissioner, previously to the Contract being wnanimously approved of and assented to by the Board of Directors,.
of which they were then members—and certainly before : the ‘Contract was executed—distinctly to have intimated
to the Directors and to the Contractors their disapproval of such 27th Condition ; and that they could not unite
with the Directors in acécepting the Certificates thereby ‘prescribed, and’ in paying the amounts so- certified, unless
other vouchers or ‘data were supplied, which -wou}'d in all:respécts satisty the demands of the Professional
Commissioner, - No -such intimation was, however, given. Had any such intimation' been given' by the Commis-
sioners, the Contract would not have been entered into by the Company or the Contractors. ~Not by the Company :
for they certainly would not have become legally bound to the ‘Contractors to make, under certain prescribed
Conditions, monthly payments amounting in the whole to upwards of £200,000, if any third party whatever,
whether a Professional Commissioner or otherwise; could claim and exercise an arbitrary and absolute veto to their
making such payments. And most certainly not by the Contractors :-common sense, apart from any other guiding
motives, would have determined them absolutely to refuse to enter into a Contract for the construction of a Railway
for a suin exceeding £200,000, to be paid to-them by the Company, by monthly payments under certain
‘prescribed Conditions, if any third party could; under any cifcumstdnces whatever, arbitrarily prevent the Company
from making any or all of such payments. =~ " - S C : o

The Company, when they entered into a Contract by which they became legally bound to pay the Contractors
the amounts certified to be payable to them upon the monthly Certificates, were fully cognizant of the fact that the
funds from which such payments were to be made were ut the joint disposal of the Company and Commissioners,
and that such payments could 2ot be made unless the Commissioners were approving and assenting parties to such
. Contract and to such legal obligation on the part of the Company.

One of the Commissioners (Mr. Bartley) entirely coincides with the views of the Directors, and has reported to
the Governor in Council that he considers himself and fellow Commissioners to be approving and assenting parties
to such Contract, and bourd to unite with the Directors in signing the cheques to the Contractors, and, in pursuance
of the terms of the 27th Condition of the said Contract, has always united with the Directors in signing such
cheques for payments on account to the Contractors, and has further reported to the' Governor in' Council that he
will continue to do so. : S SRR : L ce

By Section 7 of .80 Vict. No. 28, it is provided, ¢ That no deviations from the terms.of any Contract on which
the said Commissioners. have reported shall bg.lawful without the consent of the Governor in Council,’ T

Two of the Commissioners assert that ary omissions in, additions to, or substitutions for the Works contracted
for, “or any item or portion thereof”’ (see Conditions 5, 6, and 6.A of the Contract) found desirable by the
Engineers, and carried out by the Contractors in pursuance of notice from the Engineers to that effect, as provided
under terms of Conditions &, 6, and 6 A of the'Contract, come under the ¢‘ deviations from the Zerms of the Con-
tract” contemplated by Sect. 7 of 80 Vict. No. 28, as not lawful without the consent of thé Governor in Couneil.

The Directors and one of the Commissioners entertain the opinion that such omissions, -additions, or sub-
stitutions so carried out under the provisions of the said Conditions (5, 6,. and 6.4) are not.: ¢ deviations from the .
terms of the Contract,”” but.are so. carried out.in accordance with the terms of the  Contract of which the said
- Conditions form part. - C S - e : .
Counsel is requested to advise :— . )

First.— Whether the conduct and proceedings of the Commissioners (1) by assenting as Directors to the

: acceptance, of Overend & Robb’s Tender, (2) and to the terms and conditions of the Contract founded

on such Tender, and to its due execution by the Company and Contractors, (3) and by reporting
thereon as Commissioners without raising any exception to or question upon any such terms and con- -
ditions, did not constitute them assenting parties to the said Contract so far as they could be under the
provisions of the said Act, 80 Vict. No. 28, and that by such conduct and proceedings they did not
absolutely signify their approval of the expenditure of the said sum of £200,651 8s. 8d. under the
said Contract with Messrs. Overend and Robb contemplated by Section 4 of the said Act.

Second.—Whether the Contractors, upon the production of the Engineers’ Certificate so furnished in
accordance with the 27th Condition, are not entitled to payment, by the Company and Commissioners,
of the monthly amounts so certified by the Engineers to be due to them on account of the total
Contract sum, and whether the absolute right of the Contractors to such payment upon the production
of such Certificate can in any way depend upon whether the Commissioners are or are not furnished
by the Engineers with schedules of ¢uantities or any other information whatever than that supplied by
such Certificate in strict accordance with the terms of the 27th Condition of the said Contract, or
whether the professional ComniiSsioners’ estimaté of the amount due to the Contractors agreed with
the estimate of the Company’s Engineers or otherwise.

Third.—If the Commissioners refuse to sign the cheques for the monthly payments to the Contractors in .
accordance with the Certificate furnished by the Company’s Engineers, what course ought to be
adopted and proceedings taken to compel the Commissioners to sign such cheque ?

Fourth.—Are such omissions, additions, or substilutions so carried out under such Conditions (5, 6, and 6A)
"¢ deviations from the terms of the Contract’’ as contemplated by the 7th Sect. of 30 Vict. No. 28, and
as such requiring the consent of the Governor in Council to their being so carried out.

Fifth.—Do not the Conditions (5, 6, and 6 A) form a portion of the terms of the Contract.

And generally upon the whole Case. T
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1. IN my opinion the answer must be given, without refereiice to the conduct of the Comniissioners except so
far as they uzcted in-accordancewith their powers under.the Act...;If they acted ultra vires, no rights or liabilities
would be thereby created. But as far as I can see they acted legally and in accordance with the powers conferred
upon them, and in the exercise of the discretion thereby given to them; and thereis no reason why the Contract
with Messrs. Overend and Robb should not be considered binding and valid'in all respects. '

. 2. T think the Contractors were entitled to payment of the monthly. amounts as certified by the Engineers;
and I do not think that the Commissioners-had any right to require the Engineers to furnish them with Schedules
of quantities or any other information -beyond the -Certificate.. In my. opinion the Commissioners were bound (in
the absence of any fraund or collusion suggested) to act upon the - Certificate..given in accordance with the Contract,
and in reliance upon the skill and competency of the Engineers. ’ :

8. T am inclined to think that the Commissioners- may be considered as Trustees, of the fimd, and that they
might be compelled to execute the trusts by a Bill in Equity, in which perbaps either the Company or the
Contractors might be Plaintiffs. Perhaps a Mandamus might be obtained, but as-to this'I express no opinion.

4. and 5. I think that Clauses 5, 6, and 64 are already part of the contract as reported upon, that is I presume
approved by the Commissioners; and the ¢ omissions, additions, and substitutions’’ are not really deviations from the
terms of the Contract as are contemplated by Section 7 of the Act—and which would require the consent of the
Governor in Council. I think it is perhaps more open to doubt whether fresh Clauses ought in strictness to have -
been inserted in the Contract, having regard to the 7th Section. But on the whole I think it was a Jegitimate
exercise of discretion, and within the powers of the Commissioners,. permitting the introduction of those Clauses,
which are certainly usual, and I should suppose necessary in such a Contract,—of course, they ought not to be
abused. If under colour of them the whole nature of the Contract was to Dbe altered, the Commissioners would
certainly be justified in objecting to such a course. ,

J. W. STEPHEN,
32, Temple Court, 19th August, 1869.

1. I po not quite understand what is meant by assenting ¢ parties’” to the Contract, as I do not suppose that
there were any parties to it except the Company and the Contractors. If the Commissioners were parties and
executed it, they were of course ‘“assenting parties;’’ but if they were not parties they have nothing to do with
the matter. It was submitted to them, as required by the 30 Vict. No, 28, Sect..7, *for inspection,” dnd as the Act
was in that respect complied with there can be no question as to the validity of the Contract. :

2. The Contract seems to me very clear : ¢ Payments will be made every mouth of the amount which the
Engineer may certify as the price or value of the work performed during the preceding month.”” The objection of
the Commissioners amounts to saying that “ Payments will not be made so.”” There is no Contract requiring
the information as to quantities, &c.; and however usual and convenient such Returns may be, there is no pretence
“for withholding payment on account of their absence. Co . ' ' ' -

3. It appears to me that a Bill in Equity could be filed against the Commissibners, treating them as trustees

bound to exercise their powers reasonably. "(Robinson v. Chartered Bank, Law R. 1 Eq. 82.)

4. Unless “ performance’ of a Contract can be considered a ¢ deviation” from it, it is impossible to contend
that alterations, additions, or deductions which are expressly provided for by the Contiract are deviations from it.
I can, however, understand an Engineer using the expression * deviations from the Contract” when he means
“¢ deviations from the plans or specification.”” This, however, is not an interpretation which a Court of Law would
adopt. : ‘ ' ‘

5. Most uriquestionably yes. What else can they be ? '
: ' : THO. HOWARD FELLOWS.
34 Temple Court, 1 Sept. 1869.
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-MEMORANDUM of Attendance of 'Membe\rs& at Board Meetings, July, 1868, to July, 1869.

1868.
July 15.

16.
21.
24.

28,

Aug. 4.

Sept. 1.

Oct. 6.

Nov. 8.

Dec. 1.

1869.
Jan. 5.
19.

206.

Feb. 1.
8.

16.
23.
March2.

9.

16.
23.

April 6.
13.

20.
27.
May 4.
11.

18.
25.
3l.

June 8.

29,
90,
July 6.
13.

Present.—Button, Crookes, Tyson, Kemp, Dowling, Robertson, Bartley, Green, Harrap, Scoit, Innes,
: Sherwin, Gibson, Webster, Dodery, Jos. Archer. (16.) : c
Present—Button, Green, Robertson, Sherwin, Scott, Webster, Tyson, Bartley, Innes,” Kemp," Crookes,
. . Dowling, Harrap. - (13.) S - L
Present.—-—B]l;tton, Crookes, Gibson, Green, Sherwin, Robertson, Tyson, Scott, Dowling, Kemp,: Webster,
artley. (12. ' :
Present.—DButton, Green, )Rohertson,' Crookes, Kemp, Bartley, Sherwin, Dowling, Webster. *(9.)
Present.— Button, Bartley, Kemp, Dowling, Green, Webster, Robertson, Sherwin, Crookes, J. Archer,
W. Archer, Tyson, Dodery, Harrap. (14.) ‘
Présent.—Button, Kemp, Bartley, Robertson, Green, Webster, Tyson, Dodery. (8.)
Present.—Button, Robertson, Kemp, Bartley, Tyson, Green, Webster. (7.)
Present.—Button, Green, Robertson, Tyson, Grubb, Webster, Scott, Bartley. (8.)
Present.—Button, (ireen, Robertson, Grubb, Tyson, Bartley.. (6.) .
Present.—Button, Green, Robertson, Tyson, Gibson, Kemp, Grubb, Bartley. (8.) ...
Present.—Button, Grubb, Bartley, Kemp, Green, Robertson, Gibson, Dodery. . (8.)
Present.—Button, Green, Harrap, Tyson, Dodery, W. Archer, Bartley. (7.) . . .
Present.—Button, Bartley, Kemp, Scott, Green, Robertson, Dodery. (7.) C e T
Present.—B(utton, Green, Robertson, Dodery, Scott, Kemp, Innes, Bartley, Tyson, Grubb, Sherwin.
1L.) . -
Present.—Button, Green, Tyson, Webster, Scott, Bartley, Kemp, Innes, Sherwin, Grubb. (10.) - -
Present.—Button, Crookes, Green, Dodery, Tyson, Robertson, Grubb, Scott, Kemp, Bartley. (10.)
.Present.—B:Bt:on, Robertson, Green, Scott, Kemp, Bartley, Tyson, Grubb, Sherwin, Webster, Crookes,
odery. (12.) . o o i . . ) o
Present.—Button, Crookes, Green, Sherwin, Dodery, Grubb, Bartley, Scott, Kemp, Innes, Tyson,
Gibson, Robertson. (18.) = | o . o S
Present.—Button, Crookes, Kemp, Bartley, Innes, Scott, Tyson, Robertson, Green, Webster, .(10.)
Present,.—Button, Green, Grubb, J. Archer, Scott, Crookes, Innes, Kemp, Dodery, Bartley, Robertson.
(11.) . L . . . S
Present.—Button, Green, Tyson, Grubb, Scott, Dodery, Sherwin, W. Archer, Kemp, Bartley.. (10.).
Present.—Button, Crookes, Green, Robertson, Grubb, Bartley, Tyson, Kemp, Scott, Webster, Sherwin,
Dodery. (12.) i L : .
Present.—Button, Green, Crookes, Gibson, Grubb, Scott, Kemp, Bartley, Harrap, Sherwin, (10.)
Present:— Button, Green, Kemp, Bartley, Scott, Dodery, Sherwin, Crookes, Grubb, Robertson. (10.)
Present.—Buiton, Green, Robertson, Sherwin, Grrubh, Scott, Dodery, Bartley, Kemp. (9.). -
‘Present.—B‘l;x‘;ton, Crookes, Green, Dodery, Gibson, Bartley, Kemp, Sherwin, Tyson, Grubb, Scott,
ebster. (12.) o ) : . . ) S .
'Present.—B(utto)n, Green, Sherwin, Grubb, Dodery, Bartley, Kemp, Gibson, Robertson, Crookes, Tyson.
11. L . . v o

\Present.—Button, Green, Bartley, Innes, Kemp, Sherwin, Gibson, Crookes, Dodery. (2.). - L

Present.—B(uttc;n, Green, Gibson, Bartley, Kemp, Sherwin, Grubb, Tyson, Webster, Dodery, Robertson.
11. .

Present.—Button, Gibson, Sherwin, Grubb, Dodery, Bartley, Kemp, Innes, Green, Webster, Robertson.
(11.) ' o o

Present.—Button, Green, Grubb, Innes, Bartley, Kemp, Tyson, Sherwin, Webster, Robertson. - (10.)

Present.—Button, Bartley, Kemp, Green, Sherwin, Dodery, Gibson, Tyson. (8.) . o

Present—Button, Green, Grubb, Gibson, Tyson, Bartley, Kemp, Robertson, Webster, Dodery. (10.)

Present.—DButton, Sherwin, Gibson, Green, Tyson, Kemp, Bartley, Dodery. (8.) :

"Preserit,.—Button, Sherwin, Green, Grubb, Dodery, Kemp, Bartley. (7.)

Present.—Button, Green, Kemp, Innes,. Bartley, Gibson, Tyson, Crookes, Dodery, Webster, Sherwin,
Robertson. (12.) .

Present.—Button, Crookes, Bartley, Kemp, Innes, Gibson, Dodery, Robertson, Grubb, Sherwin. (10.)

- Present.—Button, Crookes, Gréen, Robertson, Grubb, Keinp, Bartley, Innes, Sherwin, Webster, Tyson.

(11.) . : ( S
Present.—Button, Crookes, Gibson, Roberison, Green, Bartley, Kemp, Grubb, Dodery, Sherwin. (10.)
Present.—Button, Crookes, W. Archer, Gibson, Giubb, Kemp, Robertsor, Bartley, Green, Sherwin,

Tyson. (11. o T
Present.—BuStlton, Crook)es, Gibson, Robertson, Grubb, Sherwin, Webster, Kemp, Innes, Bartley: (10.)
Present.— Button, Crookes, Gibson, Grubb; Robertson, Dodery, Tyson, Kemp, Innes, Bartley. (10.)
Present.—Button, Crookes, Green, Gibson, Webster, Dodery, Tyson, Kemp, Grubb, Bartley. (10.)
Present.—-B‘}ltii({n,hCrookes, Gibson, Robertson, .Green, Grubb, Tyson, Scott, Kemp, Bartley, Dodery,

. Archer. (12) - = - ' :
Present.— Button, Crook(es, Green, Gibson, Robertson, Grubb, Scott, Innes, Kemp, Bartley, Tyson. (11.)
Present.—Button, Crookes, Green, Gibson, Robertson, Dodery, Scott, Innes, Bartley, Kemp. (10.)
Present.—Button, Gibson, Green, Robertson, Dodery, J. Scott, J. Archer, Kemp, Bartley, Grubb,

Webster, Crookes. (12.) : : : , .
Present~Button, Crookes, Grubb, Scott, Robertson, Kemp, Bartley, Innes, Webster, Green, Gibson,

Tyson. (12.)- o C
Present.—Button, Gibson, Crookes, Green, Grubb, Robertson, Scott, Kemp, Webster, (9.)
Present.—Button, Green, Grubb, Robertson, Crookes, Scott, Kemp, Bartley, Tyson, Gibson. (10.)
Present.~—Button, Green, Crookes, Robertson, Scott, Bartley, Kemp, Webster, Grubb, Gibson. (10.)
Present.—Button, Crookes, Gibson, Green, Tyson, Dodery, Bartley, Kemp. (8.) )

52 Meetings, average attendance 10 Members.
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(H.)

LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY.

STA TEMEN T of Estzmates and Cost (actual or approzimate ), showing difference of Estimates,

and the various Heads under whick Ertras have arisen ,or ‘may arise durzng the construciwn

of the Works.

)

London Contracts.

The Engineers’ Estimate for Contracts for ‘materials in Englend, including
iron budce girders, their erection, freight, &ec., was given ut p. 46, Cm—
respondence, 1

And the making of carriages, then intended to be built here, was estimated in

addition, 8t J.eeveieniiiiiiiiiaaii N ereseacanas ‘
Total,ievuiiennnnidiiinnnrieinnnnnns
_ : : : h o - £ s d.
But the actual Contracts are reported to have been token at,... 69,733 0 0
(Including the Luilding of' carrmges in England.)
A few items, as turntubles, sets’ points - 2nd cr ossings, and
water cranes and tanks not yet ordered, but included in Esti- .
mates, (see p. 46 also) (say}...... tetueesreoectrnarntsannn 1700 0 O

Gives a total extra on this item, London Centracts, of si..eeee

50,650

6700
66,350

71,433

; ’ ) Istimate, Original Cost Extra
Items. ) ek July,|| o t? n(: 56 on original
e S 1869, stimate. | ac. or ap. | “poi o
Contracts for materlals from England comprising rails, girders £ £ £ £
for Longford Bridge, rolling stock &e., including freight, insur-
ance, and commissions.. ... ceasecnrsnaenss |- 85,000 —_ — —
To which add Melbourne expenses not mc]uded ................ 3000 — — —
And purchases not yet adv1sed from London, but’ included in
original estimates .....ei . 00 ... Sesenisecesarentaianns #1700 —_ — —_
Same contracts, exclusive of frelghf &e. ..ouinl e tacesenetaans . 66,350 71,433 5083
Commlssmns, msurunce, and trelghts. T S 12,100 18,267 6167
: ' s , : 89,700 78,450 89,700 11,250
Lands taken, and Law costs thereon ............ P reesenas 15,000 5000 15,000 10,000
Engineering (£5000 to be paid-in shdres) ........ eeenieeriieeas 14,000 14,000 14,000 —
S8 o) o feranens 4000 4000° 4000 —
Overend & Robb, contract, 1658 TAINEONANCE +vvivrs cver enens, 194,218 194,218 | 194,218 —
‘Maintenance first year by Overend & Robb, included in contract: : :
£200,761 ...ovvenennn Cerhereaienes ceecserrenaritranans .. 6543 6543 —
Slopes in cuttings ..iveveenannnns deessssieceetenrans ceresaenas | 12,000 12,000 12,000
Telegraph throughout ...... voov..oieinaenee. eeeterenns ceae 2000 . 2000 2000
Staging for construction South Esk deuct. cresensnes cesarenens 2500 —_ —_ —
Add value of timber......cu.uevesannann. Cessereareian ey %400 2900 2900
Cartage of iron to Longford from Launceston. ..., ..... wesans e 1000 - 1000 1000
Extra agricultural ¢érossings and gates. . ii.eaaas eeesesteeineans 1000 .. 1000 1000
Office management and Commissioners «..v.ecveeeroeee oua. 5000 4000 5000 1000
Amount expended prior to letting contract, mc]udlnrr £3600 for
contract plans and drawingS..e...cveveiiivnrnenes B 6830 - 6719 6830 111
Additional rolling stock, stauons, and workshops—say ....... veen 23,000 .. 23,000 23,000
Interest, tWo years...u.i vt tiieeetacas iviiioanattnaaiaians 36,000 36,000 36,000 —_
Contmgencles £5452, estimate of Ji uly, 1869, partly taken in '
T %£400 and *£1700 85 8DOVE. .+, ruee.ss ceeerianeieas ceteniael . 3352 .. 3352 3352
' ‘ 410,000 848,930 416,543 67,613
Dxﬂ‘erence between estimate of July, 1869, and present estxmate,
is for maintenance......... bessenentesaareari e esstrnennns . 6543 - — — —
Difference original estimate and approximate cost cenees R 67,613 — —
£416,543 || 416,543 | 416,543 |. 67,613
EXPLANATORY REPORT.
£ s d £ s, d.
The total Estimate furnished to the Parliament in 1868, (p. 45, Correspondence), was
inround DUMDETS ¢ vuu.iet L i i i et et e iteian s sireeaae e 342,387 0 0
But this was exclusive of maintenance for one year after opening, deducted at p. 46,
but included in Contract with Overend and Robb, at .veevieurnvns... encones 6543 0 O
Being a total sum Of weneni il veee —————— £348,930 0 O

5083 0 O
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Preights, Insurances, and Commissions were taken at prices which the Directors,

from past ‘commercial experience, had redson to believe wonld be sufficient, -

putting dead weight at 80s. per ton, at a totalof (.i....uvu...s.

. : \
semsssscese

Bat from the high rates demanded for direct shipments, which were necessary to -

ensure early delivery, with scarcity of prompt vessels to Melbourne, as well
as from an increase in weight of iron, it is now'found that the cost must
be PUt ab (SAY) «veeenrrerirereniieeennens aronaroannsanns ciriecenenas

Causing an extra on thisitem of.....0c0uuusn.

: Total extra...... ...
Land Claims. :

The purchase ot Land and Law costs, the price- being put at £12 an acre -

throughout the Line, was estimated at.......vveeiiviiieineiicseincianens
Bat the large amount demanded for compensation, outside the cost per_ acre for
land taken, swelled the ‘claims,” by owners alone, to mnearly £20,000: of
which awards bave'been made’ and-paid to the extent of £10,079, and to
tenants amounting to £1060. Several Accounts have yet to.-be settled ; and
therefore, with the Law charges and other expenses on ‘both sides, which all
fall on the Company, this item of land will reach, Say ..cvievireaenceaensins
co Forming an extra of ,..eveeivienenriencaneen
Slope of Cuttings.

In consequence of the earthworks in some of the cuttings having proved bad, -

and not standing at } to 1, which, from the nature of the soils taken out of the
shafts, (one of which was sunk at the centre of all important cuttings), was
thought by the Engineers might stand, it is now estimatéd that ‘the sum-
ot £12,000 will be required for extra slopes. "The principal Works in this
condition are between Launceston and Longford; and, most of these being
finished—at least to the extent the Engineers propose to flatten. them—it
appears safe to take thisextraat .....cc0uv..s e :

There re;nain to be noticed some other items, omitted from former Estimate;
namely—
Telegra.pyh wire and Instruments, by means of which the Line may be worked
safely and more economically, estimated at the sum of........ccvunn.n. cees
Staging necessary for erection of girders at Longford, constructed on the drawings
supplied by the Contractors for the iron-work: the timber in which remains
the property of- the Company, being taken down and stacked at the expense
of th(z. Contractors; and worth from £400to £500, forms a present extra
SUMOf wev tiet tiiireei it it
Cartage of the iron-work of the girders, which the Company have to cart to
Longford : the rails not being laid in time will necessitate cartage by ordinary
CONVEYANCES, SAY 4. vseeenrocnnnvorsnarosensnonanses
Crossings and gates are required to meet extra demands of farmers and others,
beéyond the number provided by Contract with Overend & Robb, and included
in the principal sum, say......00.cve. ...
Office management and Commissioners’ salaries, rent, and other expenses, were
put down at ....iiieiiiiii i ittt e
But, to prevent disappointment, it is deemed desirable to provide for this at
the nominal sum of ....... «..iviiieiiiiiiiiiiianen,
Being an approximate extra of ..., ..... ... Cereeennaiianes
The amount expended prior to the Contract being let was put downat .........
But the actual sum expended Was .. . .veiieeerteneienocersnrronannnssons.
Forming an insignificant discrepancy ; but, for the purpose of this Report,
assuming the nature of an extra of .. ..i.cieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie il
Contingencies ...ovvvireeienarnrrateivastrrnceseinienes

Total of all extras on the original Estimate ...,
Additional Rolling Stock.

“The Engineers recommend that further Rolling Stock shall be at once provided,
to secure economy in working the Line: one of the principal features in which
would arise from the ‘“ wear and tear’’ of engines, carriages, &c., being spread
over a longer period, and not, therefore, faling altogether on the * working
expenses” in the early existence of the Line, before traffic had been developed ;

. and this arrangement would therefore greatly diminish the risk of the Districts
being called upon to pay a llailway Rate.

It is proposed to spend on additional Locomutives, Carriages, Waggons, Horse-
boxes, &c., extension of Stations, Workshops, &c., a total sum of............

Being the total of .....c.0vuiiieeiniieinnaes.

£ s d £ s d

12,100 0 0; - -

18,267 0 0 .
' 6167 0 0
.ot £11,250 0 O
5000 '0: 0

15,000 0 ©

—— 10,000 0 0

. 12,000 0 0
. 2000 0 0
. 2900 0 0
. 1000 0 0
. 1000 0 ©
4000 0 ©
5000 0 0 _
: 1000 0 0
6719 0 0 '
6830 0 0
— e 11 0 0
.. 382 0 0
. £44613 0 0
.. 23,000. 0 0
£67,613 0 0

With reference to this Estimate of the Company’s Enginéers, that to provide such additional Rolling Stock, &ec.
as above enumerated will require a further sum of £38,000, particular attention is directed to the fact that the
professional Commissioner, Mr. Kemp, in his Report to the Governor in Council, of 24th July, 1868,* that the Line
could be opened for public traflic for the sum of £350,000, upon which Beport the unprofessional Commissioners
based their Reports of that date to the same effect, stated, in a Memorandum appended to his said Report, that he
considered ¢ it would be indispensable to meet the requirements after opening the Line for public traffie,”” that
certain Rolling Stock, and other items enumerated by him, should. be provided. The cost of such additional
Rolling Stock and other items so eniimerated by Mr. Kemp will involve an additional expenditure beyond the sum
of £350,000 of an amount at least equal to, if not more than that of £23,000, as cstimated by the Company’s
Engineers. The Government, therefore, in deciding to sapction .the construction of the Line upon the Commis-
sioners’ Report, with such Addenda, must be supposed to have fully ealculuted uwpon such additional sum being

required as wonld provide for such additional Rolling Stock, &e.

# Vide Parliamentary Paper, 1868, No. 16, p. 45.
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A SummaRry of Extras will show in which department they have arisen, and under what circumstancess and I
desire especially to guard against the impression that the several items are to be accepted, as regards each work, as
anything but approximate. - The object of the present Statement being to show that the Zofal sum named will be
required to open the Line, not merely for public traflic, but also to ensure it being safely and economically worked
from the commencement; but not limiting, in any case, the appropriation ot.the several sums to the items
represented,—as some may cost more, and some less than stated.

The Extras on the Engineers’ Estimates are-—

£ sd £ 5. d
". On the total purchases of materials in England......c0o0cuuenn.. 5083 0 O
On the failure in standing of slopesat 1 to1......... tereeeesse 12,000 0 O
On the staging for Bridge at Longford «....ceevievivnrenannass 2900 0 O
On the cartage by common 10ad....cevevs cvvrrnnrosceanasans 1000 0 O
S 20,983 0 0
The Extras in the Estimates of the Directors are—
On land purchases, severance, and {enant compensation.......... 10,000 0 0
On freight, insurance, ard commissions, ... eeeeeieeesn. veeeive 6167 0 O
On agricultural crossings and gates ......... crreeenenen ceeraes 1000 0 ©
On office and Commissioners’ charges ......vcvuvvsereeieacean, 10000 0 0
On moneys.expended before Contract. .. .ovevvreceeesaccsnnssss 111 0 O
—_———— 18,278 0 O
Contingencies ...covcevesrennennnes .. 8352 0 O
And Extras arising from new recommendations by the Engineers—
For extra Rolling Stock, &e............ v eeerie... 23000 O O
For Telegraph throughout ......ceesiiiiioiiiiiiiiiniennans 2000 0 0
25,000 0 0
" Being the tothl of .. .vveveenienrnnnen. . £67,613 0 0

By Order of the Board,

. o H. DOWLING, Secretary.
Launceston, 1st September, 1869.

@€y

(Copy.) - A ' . _ o Melbourne, 10th July, 1868.

LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY, TASMANIA.
DEeAR SIR, o . . . . :
Wz have to.acknowledge your letters of April 24th and May (without date), and to thank you for the information

contained in them. We have also received your book parcel containing photographs and tracings as specified in -
your last letter. . . A 3

The box containing the gauges has-not yet reached us; probably it will come by the next mail.

" Our gauge will be that of Victoria, viz,, 5 feet 3 inches (this was given in Mr. Doyne’s first report in error as
5 feet 6 inches). We hope to gain some advantage by the adoption of -that gauge in being able tn supplement our
plant from Victoria when we happen to be short in supplies; and as we shall -have to commence with a very limited
amount of rolling stock; this may prove very importaut. -

We agree with you as to the desirability of having only one type of rails and engines. We haveadopted a
72 1b. iron rail of the form you recommend, and shall send you our views in detail by the next mail. We go to
Tasmania on the 14th instant to let the contract for earthworks, bridges, &ec., all of which are to be completed and
the line open for traffic in 20 months (twenty) from the time of signing the Contract.

We have but one iron bridge at.Longford, and we have decided to have that on the * Warren’’ principle, all
wrought iron, two spans each 200 feet on brick abutments, and brick central pier, continuous girders fixed on
centre pier, and contracting and-expanding on both abutments by Mr. Doyne’s pendulum motion, of which you can
see o model at the Institute, C.E. The details ot this work we shall send to you by next mail, or the one following.
We have given up the intention to use turned bolts as in the Charing Cross Bridge, and instead shall use rivets with
drilled holes, as we find by experience that a very high class of workmanship at home enables us to erect the work
here at a greatly reduced cost, labour being so very expensive. We have also decided that the ironwork shall be
erected here by the English Contractor, as that gives us the best guarantee we can have for good workmanship; but
we shall erect the staging, and send you every paricular as to the cost of labour, &ec. necessary to enable him to
estimate the cost. . . '

With regard to Messrs. Quick and Allsop, we shall send you instructions when we have had an opportunity of
consulting the Board,

You will be left to exercise your own judgment in the letting of contracts under general instructions which we
shall convey to you when we send you the orders,

Our traflic will at first be light, especially towards Deloraine; the main traffic will be agricultural produce,
carried for shipment at Launceston, and ultimately a considerable mineral traffic in the same direction. We expect
the passenger traffic will be important, and about equally distributed both ways, but more local than through. On
the whole, we consider that we may safely commence with three locomotives, one more to follow each six months
until we have a total of six engines. The breaks we spoke of in the long incline were not introduced for the purpose
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of facilitating the working of the engines, but for stations and reduction of earthworks over one of the large ravines.
We fear we may not be able to have a watering station half way up the main incline; but we shall have a good
supply at the 4thand 11th miles. So we think we can work the traffic with ordinary tank engines with four wheels
coupled, and thus save the weight of tenders.

On these points we shall write to you more fully when we have let th:cavpre'sent Contract.

‘We consider the climate of Tasmania highly favorable to the adhesion of the locoinotive wheels ; snow is searcely
known, fogs are very rare, the atmosphere is eminently bright and clear, so that we may safely trust to moderate
power. E : - s ]

The carriages and waggons we intend to build at Launceston, you sending us out the whole of the ironwork, which

~ we shall specify shortly. .

A PR ' .

None of the long saloon carriages which have come out to these colonies have been satisfactory. They are too
elastic in the framing, and are very dangerous in collisions and shunting. We have therefore determined to use the:
ordinary length of four-wheeled carriages, a mixture of saloon and first and second-class cowmposite, so that the
wheels and axles, springs, buffers, &c. may be sent.out in sets to suit any form of carriage that we may on
experience elect to use,

The sale of our Debentures has been so favoralle as to place us in a very good financial position. The Govern-
ment give us the product of £800,000 worth of these Debentures, the interest on them being a first charge on the
receipts of the Railway after working expenses havé been defrayed, and any deficiency which may arise is to be
recovered by a rate to be levied on the property in the Railway' District, assessed by Commissioners to be appointed
by the Government. The Company—which is composed of the owners of property—has to subscribe a capital of
£50,000. This has been done, and our bankers (the Union Bank of Australia) have agreed to advance us the amount
on the security of bonds signed by the principal Shareholders. So we start on_the sound basis of having our whole
capital in hand, and being able to pay ready money for everything. We shall pay the interest during construction
out of capiral, and afterwards, if necessary; lovy a rate. Our total capital now in hand exceeds £350,000. We
estimate that the Contract for earthworks, bridges, ldying permanent way, &c., to be let on the 15th instant, will
mot exceed £200,000. Thke purchase of materials in England and freight we put down at under £100,000. So you
will see that, while. we have enough to open the line for traffic, we have nothing to spare, and the most rigid economy
must be exercised.. We shall probably have, within two yeurs-after opening, 0 increase the capital by about
£50,000; but this we can easily raise when the Railway is an accomplished fact. We expect to proceed with the
surveys of the line to Hobart Town during the present year, but whether the works will be commenced at an early
date is yet very uncertain. ' C 4 : -

S We are,

- Dear Sir,

Yours truly,

(Signed) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT:
G. W. Hemanxs, Fsq., 1, Westminster Chambers, Victoria-street, London.

P.S.—When you send us any parcel, such as the gauges, please to send also a shipping note or bill of lading, as
otherwise we have difficulty in getting the articles. : _

(Copy.) -

DEar SIR,

WE have to inform you that a Contract for the construction of this Line of Railway has this day been accepted
by our Board, and we have received instructions to order the'ironwork for the permanent way. ) '

Launceston, 16th July, 1868.

By this mail we sénd you a tracing of the permanent way drawing, and have to request that you obtain tenders
from (say four) manufacturers. We have informed our Board of your last quotation (£6 10s. f. 0. b.), and it appears
to us, in the present state of the iron trade, this price should secure us a good rail. We prefer to have the rails of
Staffordshire manufucture, but on this point we rely on your judgwent. : '

We shall require 47 miles of permanent way; fifteen per cent. of this quantity should be 15 feet rails, the
remainder 18 feet and 21 feet in equal proportions. S :

We think at present 13 sets of points and crossings will be suflicient, the lead of these not to be longer than
75 feet. . L . . :

We have to suggest that you call for tenders at once for the rails, so as to be in a position to accept an offer on
the arrival of the October meil, by which we hope to send you full instructions on all the points raised in your last
letter, and also on the mannar in which funds will be made available. '

We understand that you have been informed that Mr. Terry has heen appointed the Commercial Agent, and we
understand that he is a gentleman in whomw you can place the greatest confidence, and who will be able to afford you
much assistance in all commercial matters. Your powers as to the selection of the manufacturer, the mode of
manufacture, the quality of material, and inspection ‘will be absolute ; but on all other points involving commereial
considerations, such as negotiating, mode and time of payments and freight, you will co-operate with Mr. Terry.

We are,
Dear Sir,
Yours very sincerely,

(Signéd) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT.
G W. Hemans, Esq., London.
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Hobart Town, 25th September, 1869.
S1R, ’

"YW have the honour, in compliance with your request, to furnish our estimate of the cost of ‘excesses above the
sum of Three hundred and fifty thousand Pounds which have been incurred or will result from the deviations of
the Launceston and Western Railway Cowmpany from the data supplied to us, and on which we reported to the
Government in January and July, 1868; also the excess in the purchase and compensation for land. And we
forward at the same time our estimate of the expenditure required on account of station accommodation, &c. ; ; also
of the sum which, after opening the Line i in accordance with the 7th Section of the Launceston and Western Rail-
way Act, No. 2, it will bé necessary for the Company to expend in the purchase of rolling-stock, &c., for the efficient
workm" of the Line.

In forwarding our estimates, we desire to guard ourselves against future blame, should it be lef‘t in the power of
the Company’s Engineers or of the Directory to determine expenditure irrespective of the limits as to detail in these
estimates, and without any restraint upon their discretion in that respect being enforced by the Executive

Gover nment
We havo the honor to.be,

Sir, -
Your obedient Servants,
SAML. V. KEMP,
FREDK. M. INNES,
) - Commissioners under the Launceston and Western Railway Acts.
The Hon. the Colonial Secretary.

STATEMENT No. 1, showing the Amount that will be required to complete and work the Launceston
and Western Railnay Line after opening.

) : £ s. d.
Amount brought forward from Statement No. 2 - - - - - 41,468 7 10
Estimated amount required for alterations to Slopes - - 20,000 0 O
Estimated amount required for Station accommodation, Workshops, and App1 oach Roads, as per
accompanying Sheet of Particulars marked E. - - 22483 0 O
Estimated smount for Rollmg Stock after the Line is opened for traﬂic as per Sheet of Partxcu]arb
marked F. - - - - - - - - 14,554 8 0
Estimated cost for addltlonal crossing and occupation Gates - - - - 1500 0 ©
Alteration of incline at 38 Cutticg - - - - - - - 350 0 0O
Estimated cost of Telegraph - - - - - - - 2000 0 O
. 102,355 15 10
Contingencies (say) - - - - - - - - 4644 4 2
Total - - - - - - - - £107,000 0 ©

SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9. 69.

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT, No. 2, showing the original and present Estimates of the
" Launceston and Western Railway.

DESCRIPTION. . Original Estimate. | Present Estimate, Excesses.
' £ s d. £ s. d £ s d
Overend and Robl’s Contract, £200,671 8s. 8d., less :
maintenance for one year £6458 5+. 4d. - - 194,218 3 4 200,671 8 8 6453 5 4
Messrs. Doyne, Major, and Willett’s Contract - - 17,600 .0 O 17,600 0 ©
Amount spent in forming Company, &ec., £6830 5s, 6d.,
as per annexed Particulars marked G., less amount
paid to Engineers, £ 3600 - - - 8230 & 6 32380 5 6
Interest on borrowed Capital for 2 years’ - - 36,000 0 0 36,000 0 0
Land taken, compensation, &c. - 5000 0 0 15,000 0 © 10,000 0 ©
Permanent’ Way, - Rails, &c, as per Sheet of Detmls
marked A. - - 46,181.12 6 53,703 7 0 7521 14 6
Two Locomotives, as per Sheet of Detmls markp(l B. - 5151 0 O 5532 12 6 381 12 -6
Tronwork for Viaduct crossing the South Esk at Longford,
as per Sheet of Particulars ‘marked C. - , - 6165 4 O 28,277 0 O 17,111 15 6
Rolling Stock Ironwork, £7348 18s.; Bodies and Frames
to be made in the ()olor_ny, as per Sheet of Particulars
marked D., £5440 - - - - 12,788 18 0 12,788 18 0
Turntables, not ordered yet from England - - 774 8 8 774 3 3
15 sets Points and rossings, only 6 ‘sets ordered - 5356 18 9 556 18 9
Water Cranes, not ordered from England - - 9388 6 938 8 6
Commissioners’ Salaries and Allowances - - 2600 0 O 200 0 O
Oflice vxpenses and Salaries - - - 2704 0 ¢ 2704 0 O
Stations, as per printed Estimate (see Parlmmentary
Papers) - - - 4000 0 O 4000 0 0
Contingencies, as per prlnted Estmmte - - 12,091 10 8
£350,000 0 0 £379,376 17 2 | £41,468 7 10

SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9. 69.
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STATEMENT No. 3, showing the Excesses of Euxpenditure incurred or required,
owing to departures from the original Data supplied to the Commissioners in Oclober,
1867, and upon which their Reports of January and July, 1868, were based ;" also,
the Emcess on account of Land Purchases and Compensation.

: £ s d
To_extra Amount- required to meet the Expendlture of substltutmg 2 72 Ib.

Rail and Fastenings for a 65 1b. Rail and Fastenings . - - - 732114 6
To.extra . Amount required for the Longford Viaduct occasmned by ‘the Engmeers

substituting the Iron-work of a Bridge weighing 744 tons for-one of 204 tons-. 17,111 15 6
To extra Amount required to meet the alterations of ﬂattenmg the Slopes from

} to 1; asspecified, to 13 to'l; and1tol ; - .- - - 20,000 0 O
To alteration of Incline at Cuttmcr 38 - - - - - 350 0 0
To extra Amount required on account of Land purchased and Compensatlon, as .

per partlculars furnished by Mr. Dowhnar - - - - 10,000 0 O

Torarn - - - - £54,83 10 0

T—
'

SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9. 1869,

: A. S
STATEMENT skommt] ‘the-detailed Cost of the Permanent Way, Materzals, Rails,
L Fastenings, §c. ordered from.En, _/land :

Cost of Rails, &e. as per Statement furnished to the Directory by
the English Agents, Messrs. Sharp and Terrv and Mr. Hemans,
March, 1869—

5316 tons of Rails, 72 Ibs. to the yard - - - 36,015 18 0
108 ,, Fang Bolts - - - - 1228 0 O
72 ,, TFish Bolts - - - - 810 0 O
88 ,,.  Spikes - - - - 3415 0
240 ,,. Fish Plates - - - - 1560 0 O

5774 Total Weight.

Add 10 per cent, error in price upon 218 tons of Tastenings 109 0 0

"40,107 18 ©

Insurance, (say) 3 per cent. on (say) £60,000 - - - — 1800 0 0
. Ereight on.5774 tons, at 32s..average - - Cm e .o— . 0238 8 0
51,146 1 0

Bills of Ladmg, Entry, Clearing, Pohcy Duty, Melbourne Agénts,
and Wharidve, (say) - 13 per cent
Mr. Hemans, 2 per cent.; Sharpe & Co 1} per cent. 3l

»

5 per cent. . Co
5 per cent. on £51,146 1s. - - . - - — . 257 6 0

Total Cost of Rails and Fastenings - - — £53;’-7-0'} 7.0

SAML. V. KEMP.
25, 9. 1869.

B.
STATEMENT showing the Cost of Two Locomotives ordered from England.

£ s o d

Cost in England as per latest advice from English Agents - - - 4000 0 ©
Two Bogie Frames, £50 each . - - - 100 0 0
Carriage to Shipping Port, £50 each, (say) - - - 100 0-0
Freight and extras connected with (say) £300 each - - - 600 0 O
Insurance, (say) 24 per cent. on £5700 - . - - - 145 0 0
Charges as detailed above, 5 per cent. upon £4945 - - 27 5 0
Extra Labour and temporary Tackling for dlschargmg from the Slnp 8 Slde, (say) 200 0 0
Cleanmg and erecting, &c., (say) £70 each - 140 7 6
Tolal Cost qf Two Locomotives - .- - £5532 12 6

SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9. 1869.
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C.

STATL'JV[ENT showing the Cost of the Iron-mork of the.intended Viaduct over the
' South Esk at Longford order ed from E?lgland

: oo ' £ s d £ s d
Messrs. De Bergue’s Contract for the making, shipping, and
erecting in the Colony . - . -- 18,440 0 O
Charges as detailed before, 5 per (,ent on £18 440 - - 922 0 O '
19,362 0 0
Scaffolding to erect the Iron- work upon said to lmve been om)tted .
by the Engineers - "2015 0 O
Carriage of Tron-work from the Shlppmg Port to the site of
erection at Longford, alao onutted by the Engmeexs : - 1000 0 O
S 3015 0 O
Total Cost of Iron-work and erecting same - .. £23,277 0 0
SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9. 1869.
D.
STATEMENT showing the Cost of the Rolling Stock ordered from England.
£ s d
As per advices from Enrr]and from the English Agents - - - 7000 0 0
Estimated freight.on same (say) - - - - 3000 0 O
Extras on ditto (say) - - - - 500 0 0O
Insurance, 60s. per cent. on (sav) £13, 000 . - .- - - 390 0 0
Charges as before detailed, on £10, 890 at 5 per cent. - - - 644 10 ©
Landmg, cleaning, setunrr up, erectmg, and re-painting (say) - - 1334 8 0
, Total Cost of Rolling Stock - .. - £12,788 18 0
SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9, 1869.
E.

DETAILL’D L’sttmatc qf Cost of Stations that will be raquzred bejbre and after
opening the Line for traffic. .

LAUNCI‘STON STATION. £ s d £ s d
Passencer Station to include Booking Office, First and Second Class .
Wamng-rooms, Ladies’ Rooms, Refreshment Room, Guard and
Porters’ Room, Lamp Room, Station Master’s Quarters (4 rooms),.
Secretary’s Room, Engineers’ Room, Board Room, &c., (all of

. wood), (say) - - - - - - 1100 0 O
Wooden Passenger Platfor: ms, &e. - - - ~. 1000 -0 O
Roof over Platform to answer as a Carriage-shed - - 1000 0 O
Carriage and Horse Docks and Bumpers, (say) - — -, 250 0 0
Furniture, Water and Gas Fittings, (say) - - - 80 0 O
Forming, mctallmo- and draining approach Roads to Passenger Station 350 0 0
LT —_ 4050 0 0
GooDs STATION.
Goods Sheds and Platforms, 350 feet, at £6 - - 2100 0 O
Office Furniture and Fittings, W emhmnr Scales, &e. (say) - 20 0 0
Outside Goods Platforms for heavv goods (say) - - - 20 0 0
Semaphores, Advance Signals, Welghbrldues, T ravexsers, Pomtqmen
Boxes, Tool-boxes, &c., (say) - - 800 0 O
Goods Cranes, £300; Gas and Water Fxttmgs £100 - - 400 0 O
—— 3700 0 O
Engine and cleaning Sheds, Coal Platforms (suy) - - 500 0 ¢
Ash- pus, £100; Laying on Gas and Water, £50 - - 180 0 0
- 650 0 0

Forming, metalling, and drammg appronch Roads to Engine’ and ‘
Goods Sheds - - — 500 0 ©
Workshops, Sinithy, Envme and Generul Storproom, Steam Engme

House, Boiler and Fuel Sheds (say) - - - 2000°'0 O

Machinery, Forges, and Fixing Benches, &c., (sny) : = 150 0 ©

Tyre Furnace and Shed with Bending Appar atus - - 80 0 0

Screw-cutting Lathe, £280 ; Double-wheel Lathe, £700 - - 980 0 O

Planing Machine, £350 Sh'lpln“’ Machine, £100 - - - 450 0 O

Dnlhno- Machine, £150; 5 Serewing Machine, £80 - - 230 0 0

~ Two <mall Lathes, £60; Boring Bars for Cylinders, £100 - - 160 0 O
Solid Foundations will have to be made for all these Machines in the

Swamp (say) - - - - - - 1000 0 O

) ’ ’ —_— 5320 0 O°

Total Cost of Station requirements at Launceston - .- .. 14,220 0 o
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S7. LEONARD STATION. £ s d £ sd
Passenger and Goods Platform, Passengers’ Shed and Office, 3-roomed
Lottaue for Station-master and Gate-keeper (say) - - 880 0 0O
One Semaphore and Lamps, £80; Approach Roads, £40 - - 120 0 0
: ——— 500 0 O
WmrE HILLS Su'rxom
Same as the above - - - - © - 880 0 O
Approach Roads (sa;) - - - - - 100 0 ©
I ' 480 0 0.
' EvANDALE ROAD STATION.
Same details as the St. Leonards - - 30 0 0
Horse and Cart Shed, £20; Appmach Road £50 - - 70 0 0
450 0 O
PerTH Sm'non.
Same detalls as the St. Leonards - - 380 0 O
Horse and Cart Shed, £20; Ladxes Room, £60 - - - 80 0 O
Approach Road - .- - - - 80 00
5§10 0 ©
LONGFORD STATION.
Passenger Platform, Paseengel Station Booking Office, Waiting-room, .
Passenger Shed, Station Master’s Office, Resxdence, &e., (say) - 650 0 0O
Goods Shed and Platfoxm, Crane, Semaphore, Approach Road &e., ~ ’
(say) - - 600 0 O
—_— 1250 0 O
BISHOPSBOUBRNE STATION. ]
Same details as St. Leonards - - - 3880 0 O
Goods Shed, £100; Approach Roads, £70 - - - 170 0 0
— 550 0 O
OAxs STATION. ‘
Same details as St. Leonards - - - - 388 0 O
Approach Roads - - - - - - 50 0 0
—_—— 430 0 0
GLENORE STATION.
Same as the Oaks Station - - - - - — 430 0 O
HagLEY StATION.
Same details as St. Leonards - - - 38 0 0O
Goods Shed, £200; Approach Roads, £100 - - - 300 0 O
' 680 0 O
WESTBURY STATION.
Same details as St. Leonards - - - 880 0 O
Goods Shed, £250; Approach Road, £50 - - - 300 0 O
—_—— 680 0 0
ExTon STATION.
Same details as St. Leonards - - - - 380 0 O
Approach Road - = - - - - - 50 0 0 _
—— .430 0 O
DELORAINE STATION.
Platform, Passenger Statxon, Booking Office, Waiting Rooms, Covered
Sheds, Station Master’'s Office and Residence, 4 rooms, (say) 700 0 O
Goods Shed and Platform, Crane, Semaphore, Lamps, Approach
Roads, &c., (say) 600 0 0
Engine Shed and Pits (say) - - - 230 0 O
Covered Roof over Platform to answer for a Ca1 riage Shed (say) - 200 0 O .
1760 0 O
MISCELLANEOUS.
100 Tarpaulings, £900; Clocks, £100 . - - - 1000 0 O
Guards and Enome-dnvers’ Time-keepers, ‘£30; Ticket Cabinets,
£100; Dating Machmes, £70; Signal Flags, £10 Lamps, £50 - 260 0 O
20" extra Sets of Points and Crossmgs, £37 each - -7 740 0 O
Another Mile of Rails and Fastenings for Sldmgs . - - 1123. 0 0
Stores of all kinds (say) - - - 1000 0 O
4123 0 O
26,483 0 0
Less amount provided for in former Estimate—see Parhamentmy , ,
prmted Papers - - - - - — 4000 0 O
£22483 0 0

SAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9, 69.
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DETAILED _Estzmate of cost of addztzonal Rolling, Stock and L'ngmes wqmred for
- the efficient 'n;orlcmg of the Line after opening.

. £ sd Es 4
Two Locomotives (for details see original sheet)- - - .. 8540 0 O
One Tirst-class Carriage, cost in England - - - 333 0 0
All charges on same, ere(,tlon in the Colony, (say 60. per cent. upon '
the Englwh cost) - - - 19916 0
. —_— 53216 C
Three Second Class Carriages; cost in England, each - - 29 0 0
All charges, &c on same, (say 60 per cent. ) - - - 161 8 0.
Maultiplied by three- - - - - 430 8 0 .
: -— 1201 4 O
One Composite class Carriage, cost in England - - - 8% 0 O
All charges, &c., on same, (say 60 per cent.) - - -.20112 ©
——  537.12 O
. One Brake Van, cost in England - - - - 188 0 ©
All charges, &c.. on same, (say 60 per cent) - - 11216 0
’ ——— 30016 o0
Three Horse-boxes, estlmated cost in England, each - - 150 0 0
All charges, &c., on same, (say 60 per eent.) - - - 9 0 0
Multiplied by three- - - - - 240 O O
- 720 0 O
Two Carriage Trucks, estimated cost in England each - - 100-0.0
All charges, &ec., on same, (say 60 per eent.) - - - 60 0 O.
Multiplied by two - - - - . .-160 0.0 )
—_————— 320 0 0
Torty Goods Trucks, cost in England, each - - - 8 0 0
All charges, &c., on same, (say 60 per cent.) - - - 4916 0
Multiplied by forty - - - - 13216 0
: _ —_— 5312 0 0
) 1 . "
- Total - - - - £14554 8 ©
- BAML. V. KEMP.
25. 9. 69.-
G..

LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY (LIMITED;)

STATEMIENT Qf Expenditure prior to Iettmg Contract fm C’onstnwtwn incurred

in forming the Company, d&e.

Cheque No. 1, for Sundry P'\yments, from 16th M arch, 1866
to 5th Februar y, 1868 ; viz.—
For Printing and Advertlsme;, K Ex'unmex,”
¢ Chronicle,” 75,5 ¢ Times,” £3 7s. -

- ¢ Mercury”’ - -
“Times,””.10s. ; Banner,” £4-16s. 9d.-
John Step‘henson, Printing - -
¢ Examiner,” £10 11s.; *Times’’ 2s. -
“Times,” £5 1s.; “ Chronicle,” £1 l1s.-

9s'

John Stephenson - - -
¢ Examiner” - -
John Stephenson - -
¢ Launceston Times” -

John Stephenson = -
¢ Mercury,” 10s.; ¢ Times,”” 15s. 3d.
John Stephenson - -

“ Examiner,” 13s. 6d.; ¢ Chronicle,”” £2 12s.
¢ Examiner,” £2 12s,; « Chromcle,” £] 18s.
John Stephenson -

[
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Feb., 4.

April 8.

May 29,
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.Far Petty Cash Ezpenditure—
Car hire, 3s.; Institute £1 5s.

Sundries, .£9 ’10s. 6d.; Smith & Poole, 4s. 4d

Dltto, £8 3s. 84.; ditto, £2 16s.-~-

Ditto, £4 1s. llci Smith & Poole, 3s.

Institute, Hire of Rooms -

Irvine, 10s. 6d.; W. & E. Norwood 2s. 6d.

E. Davies, Horse-hu‘e -
Telegrams, - -

.. Davies & Rankln Horse-hire
Bookbinding, 2s. ‘6d. s Carpet £1 1s.
Institute Rooms. -

For Stationery and Stamps—

Hudson, 10s. 64.; Walch & Co., £2 3s.

Hudson, £9 9s. 14. ; ; ditto, £3 15. 8.

Walch & Co., £7 65. Gd. ; Hudson, £2 2s. 3d.
Hudson, £12 7s. 9d. ; ditto, £2 18s. 9d.

" Sands & Macdougal, Books
Walch & Co. -
Hudsoq T S -

For Office Expenses—
Matting, Smith & Poole
Salaries * -

Travelling Expenses

Rent -

Sulary, £22 10s.; Coals, 163.
Ditto, £30 ; Seal £3 12s. 6d.

Reolstrutxon of the Company

balarles, £27; Duty, 11s. -

Fares, Tasmaman Steam Navxgatxon Comp'my

Salaries -
Messenger and Office cleanmg .
Coals, 18s. 6d. ; Gas, £2 16s. 11d,

Rent, £30; Travellmg Expenses, £7 3s. 9d.
CO'l]S, £1 5s 6d. Sa.lanes, &c, £70 ls.

‘Window-blinds -

Travelling Expenaes -
" Salary - . -
Petty Expendlture -

Fares, Tasmanian Steam Navxgatlon Company

Gas Company -

Rent, £30; Coals, 8s. 6d. -
Sunduea, £4.7s. 6d.; Rent, £30
Coals, 16s.; Salary £30 -

Engineering.

n account of Contract for Resurve), Plans,

of Line, &e. - -

Construction— Preliminary.
Trial Shafts in Cuttings -
Titmus & Baker’s Contract-

Sadler - - -
Davy - - -
Conway - -
A.J. Green - -
Saunders - -
Marrison & Swift- -
Ackerman - -
Smith & Povle ~ -
Broadfield - -
Commissioners’ Salary -

W. T. Doyne, account Surveys, &e.
Ditto, Travelling Charges

Commissioners’ Salaries -

Law Costs, Douglas & Collins

Commissioner’s Salary

Office Expenses, ditto

Petty Cash

Petty Cash, expendltme -
Ditto cheque for expenditure

Printing and Advertising.

Chronicle - -
Ezxaminer - -
Launceston Times- -
Argus - - -

_Sydne Y Herald -
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£ s d
W. T. Doyne, balance of Survey Contract - - e 500 0 0
Launceston Timmes, Advertising - - - . 217 6
Waleh & Co., Stamps, &e. - - - - .- 316 6
John Drysdale, Mounting Plans - - - . 318 0O
July 7. Office Expenses.
Rent - - - - - - 30 00
Gas - - - - - - 110 0
Salary - - - - - - 6560 0
Clerical Assistanc - - - - 9 00
e 106 10 ©
John Stephenson, Printing - - - - - 1 20
‘Walch & Co., Stationery - - - - .. 213 9
Douglas & Collins, Law Costs - - - .. 8313 0
Union Bank, ditto - - - - - .. 15 5 2
H. M. Government, Expenses of Polling Districts - .. 564 19 11
T. M. Innes, Travelling Charges - - - 43 8 6
S. V. Kemp, Salary - - - - 18710 0

—_———— 23013 6
15, Qffice Furniture, §e. )

Richards & Sons - - . 34 17
‘Williamson & "Chomas - 21 5
Sundries - - 012

Cornwall Insurance Company
Iron Safe and Table, &e. -
‘Wm. Hills, Drawers, &c.
Geo. Oliver, Table, &c.
W. Tyson, Doors, &e.
‘Walch & Co. -
James Jones, Chairs

RN
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——— 109 18 11

. TOTAL. - . £6830 5 6
Less Amount paid to Mr. Doyne for Surveys and Plans - .. 8600 0 0

£3930 5 6

This Return was supplied to me by Mr. N orwodd, the Accountant to the Launceston and Western

Railway Company. ’ SAML. V. KEMP
25.9.69.

(L)

(Copy.) ) .

DEear Sirs, : .

I smaLL be glad if you will, without delay, forward to this office all the sections, plans, and papers that were
originally supplied to the Commissioners to enable them to make their calculations on which they had to report that
the Line could be opened for the sum named in the Railway Act, No. 2,

26tk April, 1869.

Yours truly, )
. (Signed) H. DOWLING, Secretary.
Messrs, DoxNEg, Major, & WILLETT. ‘

(Copy.) . .
ZLaunceston. and Western Railway, Engineers’ Office,
. Launceston, Tasmania, 301/ dpril, 1869,
DxAr SIm, '

‘W= fear that the plans referred to in your note of the 26th instant have been in part destroyed, as we attached
no value to them after the Contract drawings were made. What remains of them is not in our office here, and,
therefore, not available at present ; but we will see what there is on our first visit to Melbourne.

We are, Dear Sir,
Yours very truly,
(Signed) DOYNE, MAJQR, & WILLETT, Enginecrs.
To HENRY DowLING, Esg., Secretary. -
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(M.)

LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY,

ESTIMATE.

(Signed) W. T. Do¥NE,
October, 1867.

3 mlles Grubbing and Clearing.

3500 double chains of Fence. ) ‘
348,397 cut yards Cutting to Embankments.
131,377 ditto to Npoxl (40 000) (Ballast).

244 649 ditto Side Cutting to Embankments.
3500 double chains of Side Drains.
113 lineal yards Culvert, 8 feet diameter..
131 ditto ditto, 6 feet ditto.
8 ditto ditto, &5 feet ditto.
154 ditto ditto, 4 feet ditto.
259 ditto ditto, 3 feet ditto.
- 94 ditto ditto, 2 feet ditto.
80 ditto ditto, 1} feet ditto. ’
828 linear yards Cﬂst Iron Pipe, 12 inch ditto.’
20 Public Road Level Crossings.
80 Occupation ditto ditto.
North Esk Budge, 11 spanb, No. 1.
Ditto, 7 spans, No. 2
Dxtto, 150 féet span.
_ Hunter’s Mill Viaduet.
4 spzns, 110 feet eac : :
7 dII)tt o, 50 feet each h } South Esk Longford Crossing.
"River Liffey, 800 feet Tlmbel Gearing 6 feet high,
Quamby Brook.
47 miles Permanent Way. .
Stations.
Rolling Stock,
Engineering.

Land.
Contingencies.
Maintenance.
Longjord Viaduct. 350 feet Span.
Description, Quantity.

Quantity in 4 Spans of 50 feet each

Total Ironwork in Superstructure .... 81-69 tons.

Total Timber in Platforms......veou.. 867% cub. feet.
Stone in Foundations ........vve 4u.e 100 cub. yds.
Stone in Impost and Coping ......... 600 cub. feet.

" Brickwork in Abutments and Piers ...

Longford Viaduct. 110 jfeet Spans.

Description, 4 8pans, Qil:.mtity.
Total Ironwork in Superstructure. ..... 204-40 tons.
Total Timber in Platform .......c..... 8652 cub. feet.
Total Stone in Foundations.......... «. 100 cub. yds.
Stone in Impost and Coping .......... 1600 cub. feet.

Brickwork in Abutment and Piers 700 cub. yds.

Launceston and Western Raifway Culverts.

. Desecription. Length yards.

1 ft. 6 in. diameter Calvert......covecereenes 24
2 feet ditto ditto...... N . 94
S feet ditto ditto.......ca.ve P .. 260
4 feet ditto ditto.,.cvvvrnenvenrnsnns eeeaes ver 152
5 feet ditto ditto........ rveessewviiaseiniies 11
6 feet ditto ditto. .ceveeneevanann. viesseaesss 131
8 feet ditto ditto...... B T SR A 3 £
) - S e e - Lid, yds

Cast Iron Pipes.......... Ceeresrsectarians . 328

Gates.

Description. Number.
Public Road Gates ...... 20
Occupation Gates ...... eeesesrecenns veeaen 30

This Paper gives the total of the Culverts, Gates, and Pipes
between Launceston and Deloraine,

- Ironwork in bolts, straps, &e. siaennn

1118 cub. yds. °

Timber Gearing.
Total Quantity in One Span of 20 feet. -

. Materials. Quantity.
. Timber in Piles and Superstructure .... 426} cub. feet,
. 776 Ibs. :

MEMO.
Level Crossing.
Gates—15 feet opening,
Fencing.
Three rails and one wire.

one pair of Wickets.

_ Side’ Drains.

One-third cub. yard per lineal yard.

. Culverts— Description of Fronts.

1j ft., 2 ft., 3 ft.,, and 4 ft. will bave no wing walls ;
they will be faced square at the ends.
5 ft., 6 ft., and 8 it. will have wing walls and a roughly
p]t(,hed apron where necessary. The wing wall will
only be small, as in every case where these Culverts
are placed the water cannot overflow its banks.
North Esk Bridges.
Nos. 1 and 2 Crossings.—I sent you a plan (timber
gearing) and quantity in one span of this.
No. 8 Crossing.—We have determined to use at this
Crossing 14 spans of the timber gearing.
Hunter’s Mill Viaduct.
Same as the 50 feet span iron girders plan of which you

have.
Acreage, Town and Country.
Town..... ebessaraeennes . 82 Acres.
Country...coooeeecernnnans 860 ditto.

This is a full estiinate of the Land, as many of the Land- -
holders have promised to give their Land. And also,
"the Company have only to purchase one Station
Ground, the others having already been gunaranteed
by the Government.

) 7 s ¢ 4 spans.
South Exk Bridge § 7 gitro, Plan only shows 4 spans.

The extra three spans are on the Longford side of the
river, and are of the same constr ucnon,——namely

© 50 feet span.

River Lyﬁy

. A Timber Gearing 300 feet in spans of 20 feet.

Quamby Brook. ]
Three spans of Timber Gearmg, 60 feet.

Permanent Way.
Quantity of Bdllasi:—" cub. yards per yard forward,
Weight of Rail—65 Ibs. per lineal yard.
Ditfo of Fastening—4 tons per mile.
Ditto of Fish-plates-and Bolts—4 tons 18 cwt. per
mile. -
" Size of Sleeper—9 ft. X 9in. x 4} in.

. Stations. . .
There will be four Shuons, and ﬂlEIO will be six Plat-
forms for taking up Passengers at.

Rolling Stock.
No. of ENgines ..uveeenseerarenoenns s 8
Ditto Carnages ....... teeeereaaanien 10 mixed.
Ditto Goods Wagons +oevvuen... erees B0

Ditto Brake Vans .. +...... I |
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EARTHWORK.
CUTTINGS. BANKS, N CUTTINGS, BANKS,

. Average | Average | Average From Average | Average | Average From From
Mool i | eng | Rt Lo gpont || mo. | i | S - | wou | wiier | Sider | over < |-To spat | Nou | G | Side

20 chns, | 40 chns. | 40 chns. . Cut. -* : 20 chns. | 40 chns. | 40 chns. ut.
c7| ¢c7 c7 Cc17 Cc7 c17 c17 ci| €7 C7 ok C17 Cc17 c1
1| 4604 . 1| - 4604 | 18,884 | -71 | 14,268 71| 10,048
2 903 2 245 72 2942 72| 6706 3416
3 284 3 658 3181 73 218 73] 5910
4 50 |. - 4} -834] 8146 74 691 | - 4988 { 74 441
5 6018 1210 | 5 6018 ' 75 104 . 175 .259
6 2872 6 1115 76 643 76 185
7 841 70 2098 97738} 77 2926. 77{ 969 . 2155
8 30 | 9027 130 || 8| 9027 78 648 78 231 .
) 539 130 1| 9 30 79 1603 79| 1417 949
10 1053 10° 539 80 |- 1698 80y 22062
11| 1984 11| 18037 | 2306 | 81| 2618 g1 676 |
12 802 12 800 | 38,929 | 82| 2238 82| = 2146
13 244 13 246 |- 83 | 1204 83 2767} 2406
14 | 2241 14| 2241 | 2033 | 84 867 84 900 [ 2308
15 | 2458 15| 2458 ( 3988 [ 85 170 85 637 383
16 50 16 50! 13178 | 86 24 86| 2093 | 17,341
17| 1781 171 1781{ 3862 | 87 677 87{ 1720
18 85 18 883 16| 88| .362| 418 88 362
19 1533 19 890 89 252 .89 14
20 1151 155 20 1151 90 295 625 | 1969 90 463
21 3284 21 642 91 1323 675 91 1029
22 1405 22 4047 3891 92 764 92 294
23 118 23 4960 6161 93 73 03] 1683
24 1518 | 4566 24 1518 o4 181 | 1924 171 6339 || 941 1753
25 1275 276 25 1275 95 267 95 181
268 180 26 73 96 92 102 || 96| 438
27 1286 18,194 || 27 393 97 807 244 97 92
28 1030 1426 || 28 | 1830 98 84| 185 98 807
29 131 . 29 1040 99 833 g9 34
30 1040 © 5357 || 30 194 100 739 1o0| 1562 | - 3gse
81 4674 a1 137 101 73 101 512 1748
92 4732 g9 9406 1839 | 102 483 | 3991 102| 3991
33 ! 19,855 33 963 ) 103 1575 103 583
34 | 44,953 34 | 60,195 | 11,360 | 104 1269 104 1750
35 573 35 | - 3650 - 105 1467 105| 2461 941
36 | 15,771 36 | 22,696 106 160 106 356
87 705 518 37 705 107 106 196 176 || 107 106
38 | 29,490 5834 | 12364 || 88 | 29,490 108 . 46 735 | 108 46
39 3641 624 9937 || 39 1318 109 241 816 | 109 241
40 1038 40 2207 110 872 246 || 110 872
41 49 41 1154 111 938 146 || 111 153
42 152 42 825 112 848 1654 112 185
43 736 Y 785 113 911 113 848
44 123 128 || 44 23 114 161 114 189
45 446 45 266 115 1140 115) 1604
46 248 46 327 116 4962 116| 6073 2609
47 194 47 201 1429 | 117 296. 117 962 824
48 741 48 194 5383 118 842 118 1138 3563
49 8599 49 2241 1021 | 119 885 119 502
50 48 50 2099 1834 120 130 120 381
51 609 51 48 202 | 121 5414 | . . 121 7191
52 1113 52 1128 1487 | 122 1884 | 2025 | 03850 | 122 1884
53 1003 53 594 123 280 019 | 123| 1280
54 10 54 1013 | 88,511 | 124 536 124 286
55 18 55 18 1066 { 125 1423 125 1672
56 24 56 24 22 | 1926 408 126 555
57 431 57 154 127 719 127 670
58 6950 58 4277 2744 | 1298 379 | 2956 25 || 128| 38145
59 18 - 59 2968 8722 | 129 2128 1756 || 129 379
60 3021 60 496 130 389 1416 | 130 2128
61 597 781 || 61 2738 181 502 1332 || 131 389
62 459 . 62 35 132 580 81 132 502
63 508 701 || G3 808 133 122 133 502
64 42,322 | 48,652 || 64 508 184 320 134 200
65 97 (ballast)|| 65 | 42,322 135 778 135 1179 148

7 1641 :

o = o b 137 1.37 1641 492
69 85 69 651
70 785 70 142 251,146 | 41,945 |56,256 (131,877 348,386 {244,649




of crossing the South Iisk River at Longford ; also showing ‘the Scheduled Details for the same Work
of the Ironwork to be imported from England ; and the acknowledged Qmissions-of the Engineers.

(N

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT showing the Original Data furnished by Messrs. DoYNE and Cohpang/ to the Commissioners, to enable ihem 1o estimate the Cost

Copy of the Original Data supplied to the Commissioners by Messrs. Doyne and Company,
and upon which they based their Report, in complianee with “The Launceston and

Western Railway Act, No, 2.”

, from Messrs. OVEREND and RoBB’s Contract; ulso the Cost.

Statement showing the total Cost of the Longford Viaduct ‘occasioned by the altération of the
Design originally submittted.to the Commissioners. ‘

VIADUCT OVER THE SOUTH ESK AT LONGFORD, 4 SPANS, EACH 110 FRET.

N . N . .
VIADUCT- OVER SOUTH ESK AT LONGFORD, 2 spans, EacH 200 FEET.

Description of Works. Quantities, | Rate. - Amount, Description of Work. Quantities. | Rate. :_'Amount.
£ s d Details from Messrs. Overend and Robb’s Contract,— £ s d.
No provision made for this item - . Excavation ,..ccvqeeness. Ceeeensnan Cerrreeirianns 2418 c. yds. [ 10s.. 1209 0 0O
{ Ditto .. oiianinnn. heeen .. .. - .. CONCrete wveveevusoersenceronaenns PR wreess.| 2367 yds. | 20s. 236 6 0
Brickwork in Abutment and Piers...... Ceveseeaieeas 700-c. yds. | 60s.-| 2100 0 O Brickwork in mortar, altered to cement ,,.,...c.\.0.. 2483 c. yds. | 45s. 6396 15° 0
' ‘ No provision made for this item . A Dry Filling (Walling) «.oevvvevevenn. Creeeeneans .| 114 c yds. | 8s. 4512 0
Ditto ..... visennes eeee . Clay and Puddle ...........000. eeesnteesresaanns 125 ¢, yds. |4s.6d. 28 26
Ditto ........ Sieess cees - T . Stone Girders ...eevivercervneons A .| 1344 c. ft. 7] 20s, 1344 0 0
Stone in Impost and Coping ..+ eiiiiiiiiiiienen,an, 1600 c. ft. | 6s. 480 0 © .. Ditto Quoins, &, +.vveiviiariiioenian cee-ee.| 2649 ¢ ft. | ds 529 16 0
. ' No provision made for this item [ o . 11 Chisel Draft ... . civeverirevaenenass, PR e..| 898In.ft, | 1id.: 512 8
Ditto ........ . Contingencies .oo.cev.no.. Crererareessararanans e . 265 0 0O
"Total amount of Messrs. Overend and Robb’s portion . 10,039 17 9
. . . o . : £ s d
Stone in Foundations...vevseersiedisseensiosnsaseresss] 100 c. yds. | £6 600 0 O Cost of the Ironwork, as per -Messrs. De Bergue’s Con- .. .
Timber in Platforms ...... cheeans Ceeraes cerenes heresens 365 c. ft. 4s, 73 0 O tract (including erection) ......ouvvievennciainanns ©. 18,440 0 O-.
Total quantity of Ironwork in'Superstructure ............ 204} tons. . 6165 4 6 Agents’ charges in England, &c., 5 per cent. .vvavenees 920 0- 0
(For Details of this, see my printed Estimate, July, 1868.) : ' : —— | 19,360 0 0O
: . ) Scaffolding (omitted ‘by the Engineers), according to . B
- Messrs. Overend and Robb’s Contract ...ecvvveenaee 2915 0. 0.
Cartage of Ironwork (omitted by the Engineers) ....... 1000 0 O
, _ : —_———— | 3015 0 0
£9418 4 6 Total cost of the present Viaduct coveerveceorsonss .

£33,334 17 9

SAML. V. KEMP.
27, 9. 69,

I8
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82, Collins-street West, Melbourne, 2nd March, 1868.

- LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RAILWAY.
My DEAR SIR, )

I expECT to go to Launceston by the Tasmania on the 10th instant, to submit the plans and draft conditions of
the Contract for this work to the Board of Directors, with a view to receiving final instructions to prepare for letting
the Contract for the main works.

These documents I shall be happy to go through with you before I leave for your personal information, with
the clear understanding that I do not do so in your capacity as a Commissioner, but only as a member of the Board
‘of Directors. . :

The Act does not require the Company to submit any Contract documents to the Commissioners until the works
are about to be commenced, and therefore anything that passes between us on this question now must be held to be
without prejudice to any action the Board may think right to take hereafter under the provisions of the Act.

If you can make it convenient to call at this Office at 8 o’clock on the afternoon of the 6th instant, I shall have
every thing ready for you.

Yours very truly,
W. T. DOYNE.

8. V. Kenr, Esq., C.E., Collins-street West, Melbourne.

(P

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT showing the Quantities of Earthwork provided for in the original
Schedule supplied to the Commissioners in October, 1867, and the Quantities of Earthwork
provided for in Messrs. OVEREND & RoBB's Contract in July, 1868.

Quantities of Earthwork scheduled in.the original data | Quantitics of earthwork scheduled in Messrs. Overend
supplied ‘to the Railway Commissioners in October, and Robb’s Contract, and in which it was first dis-
1867, and in which data no mention is made of "the - covered that slopes of 2 1 to 1 were provided for.
slopes of 1 to 1.

cubic yds, cubic yds,
Quantities carried from cuttings to embank- Quantities carried from cuttings to embank-

MENtS. . i etveroanonsnarscssnsoncanns 848,397 TCNES e veereoneenoarionse cesacraannes 456,819

Ditto from cuttings to spoil heaps ..... 131,377 Ditto from cuttings to spoil heaps...... —
Ditto from side cuttings to embankments 244,649 Ditto from side cuttings to embankments 117,509
Total cubic yards..eeees.eeee 724,423 Total cubic yards......c.e... 574,328
. : cubic yds.
Total quantity scheduled in October, 1867 ...viveeieeiitennnrnneecrnnas teateetecsrtacvetensaane 724,423
Total quantity scheduled in Messrs. Overend & Robb’s Contract in July, 1868 ....ccvseeeevasnceanns 574,328
Total difference cvuveviioaraceccsaionnns 150,095

Nore.—This comparison shows that in the schedule estimate of 1867 a different slope was contemplated from that provided
for in the Contract with Messrs. Overend & Robb in July, 1868,
' SAML. V. KEMP.

27. 9. 69.

Q)

(Copy.) Launceston and Western Railway, Engineers’ Office,
) Launceston, Tasmania, 27th March, 1868.
DEAR Srr, .

Witk reference to our conversation yesterday on the subject of the cost of construction of the Line, I have no
objection whatever to repeat in writing what I said to the Directors at the last Board Meeting, that I can open the
Line for traflic for a sum of £300,000 (Three hundred thousand Pounds), and that this sum includes about £15,000
(Fifteen thousand Pounds) for contingencies; leaving, therefore, some £50,000 (Fifty thousand Pounds) towards
interest and other expenses,

You must allow me to remind you that this can only be done, as I have always said, by cutting down the station
accommodation to the lowest possible degree, and limiting the rolling stock to the smallest quantity consistent with
the requirement of the Act. I shall be very glad to learn that eventually—by the premium on sale of Debentures,
or from any other sources—a larger sum than £300,000 may be placed at my disposal, as I feel confident the trade
of the Company will soon profitably employ more rolling stock, and require increased facilities for working. But I
desire to remark that I feel it incumbent upon me, in the interest of the Company, to confine myself to this general
estimate. It would be most injurious to those interests that I should give any details of my proposed expenditure.
These, as I have always proposed, will be carefully prepared, and placed in a sealed envelope, for the guidance of the
Directors after they have opened the Tenders. .

T am, Dear Sir, '
Yours faithfully,

. (Signed) = W. T. DOYNE, Engineer-in-Chief.
Hexry Dowrine, Esq., Honorary Secretary. ’
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5 ‘ N L Melboume, Merclzants’ Olzambers, Collms—street West llth March, 1867.‘
IR, .
“HaviNG learned, by a perusal of the Amended Bill for the Launceston and Western Rallway Act that Com-
missioners are'to be appomted to see that the conditions provxded for in the said Act are faithfully carried out ; 3 and
from the nature of the duties that they. are to perform I conjecture that one of their number must be a professional
man and possess a practical knowledge of Railways. Under this assumption I beg to inform you that, in the event
of any such appomtment being m’lde, I'should be glad to accept the post, providing that there Is a fair remuneration
attached to it: "I further beg to énclose copies of testimonials from Mr, Darbyshlx'e, the late Engineer-in-Chief, and
Mr. Thos. Higinbotham, the present one, of this Colony.

"1 have the honor to be,
Sir, .
Your most obedient Servant,

) 4 SAML. V. KEMP.
To.Sir Ricuarp- DRy, Colonial Secretary, Tasmania.

v t “

i

Temple Court Melboume, July 24, 1860.

MR- 8. V. KEMP was employed as Engineer and Architect on the V1ct011an Rallway under my supeuntendence, from
June, 1855, until M'ly, 1860. .

Mr. Kemp, i in addition to being a thoroughly qualified professional man, is possessed of very supeuor busmess quahﬁcatxons 5
and I have great pléasure in bearing testimony to his integrity in every capacity in which I had occasion to employ him.

In 1860 1 resigned my position as Engineer-in-Chief, and therefore was not brought into professional communication with
Mr. Kemp afterwards ; but he continued in the employment of the Goyvernment Railway Department until the commencement of
the present year, when, on the completion of the works on which he had been employed, he left the Public Service.

(Signed) GEO. C. DARBYSHIRE.
True Copy.

S1pNEY S, NUGENT, 11¢h.March, 1867

Engmeer in-Chief’s Office, Razlway Depar: tment Melbourne, 24zh, July, 1865.

Mr. 8. V. KEMP was employed in the Engmeer in~Chief’s branch of the Victorian Railway Department from 20th July,
1855, to 31st December, 1864, and was engaged principally in superintending theé very large station works that weré carried out
durmg that period on- the Geelong and Ballarat and Melbourne and Sandhurst Railways. Mr. Kemp has a thorough knowledge
of building opexatwns in all their details, and has had much experience both in the arrangement and construction of station
works. . .

Mz. Kemp showed gx eat enero'y and ablhty in the performance of his duties, Whlch were dlschawed to my entlre satisfaction.
Prekusly to my connexion w1th the Railway Department M¢. Kemp had been engaged ‘on the prehmmmy surveys for the

lines, and in the construction of the general works of a portion of the Williamstown Railway.

(Signed) T. HIGINBOTHAM, Engineer-in-Chief.
True Copy. ' -

SIpNEY S. NUGENT, 1144 March, 1867.

. Tasmania, Colonial Secretary’s Qffice, 12th April, 1867.
S1R,

I mave the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of thé 11th ultimo, on the subject of the appoint-
ment of Commissioners to see that the conditions provided for in the amended Biil for the Launceston and Western
Railway Act are faithfully carried out ; and in reply to inform you that, in the event of the Government deeming-it
desirable to avail themselves of the ser vices of a professional man as.one of the Commissioners, your application will
be promptly considered.

I have, &ec.,

. For the Colonial Secretary, B. TRAVERS SOLLY,
' ’ . Assistant Colunial Secretmy
8. V. Keare, Esq., Civil Engineer, Melbourne, o ‘ ’

Colom‘al Secretary’s Offfice; 25tk Jul_/, 1867.

Sin, '

I =AvE the honor to enquire if it will be agreeable to you to accept the appomtment of Commissioner under the
Launcebton and Western Railway Company. .

T:enclosea copy of ‘the Actand the Amendment for your information as to the n'tture of the duties which will
appertain to the office ; -and fully appreciating your skill and ability, I shall be glad to hear. that you are prepared
to undertake thelr dlschax e,

" The amount of salary ‘has been fixed at .£750 per annum.
: I have, &e.,
- L : ‘ RICHARD DRY.
S. V. Kemwp, Esq.; Civil Engineer, Merchants’ Chambers,. '
Collins-street West, Melbourne, Victoria.




84

Melbourne, 76, Collins-street West, 81st July, 1867,
SIR,

Wrrs reference to your letter of the 25th instant, wherein you enquire if it will be agreeable for me to accept
the appointment of Commissioner under the Launceston and Western Railway Company, and in reply thereto, I
have the honour to inform you that I shall have much plea:ure in accepting _tl_le,’apyomtment-; ond beg to tender you
my thanks, and to say that I shall endeavour, at all times, to carry out faithfully the duties that the Act imposes
upon me, . o o < : ' »
I have thg honor to be,
‘ ir
” Your most obedient Servant, -

- SAML, V. KEMP.
To Sir Ricnard DRy, Colonial Secretary, Tasmania.

Tasmania, Colonial Secretary’s Office, 7th August, 1867,
Sir ' : '
’{ mave the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 81st ultimo, and in reply to inform you that
His Excellency the Governor has been pleased to appoint you a Commissioner uuder the Launceston and Western
Railway Act, at a salary of £750 per annum.

The appointment to take effect from the 1st proximo. .
. i * I have, &c.,
RICHARD DRY.
8. V. Kene, Esq., Merchants Chambers, Collins-street West, :
. Melbourne, Victoria.

(S.)

STATEMENT showing the Price of Rails from August, 1867, to February, 1869, copied from the British Trade
: Journal and English Price Current.

£ s d. £ s d

August, 1867, Rails ........ 6 0 0 per ton. June, 1868, Rails.......... .. 610 O per ton.
- September, 1867, Rails ...... 6 0 0 ' July, 1868, Rails....... veers 910 O
October, 1867, Rails ........ 515 0 August, 1868, Rails ........ 510 0
November, 1867, Rails ...... 515 0 September, 1868, Rails ...... 515 0
December, 1867, Rails ...... 5156 0 October, 1868, Rails ........ 515 0
January, 1868, Rails ........ 86156 0 November, 1868, Rails ..... 515 0
February, 1868, Rails- ...... 515 0 December, 1868, Rails ...... 815 0
March. 1868, Rails......... « 5156 O January, 1869, Rails ........ 615 0
April, 1868, Rails .......... 515 0 February, 1869, Rails ...... . 600
May, 1868, Rails............ 515 0 , .

’ S. V. XK. .

29. 4. 69.

(T.)

PARTICULARS connected with the Supervision of the Launceston and Western Railway.

Mr. Innes moved a series of Resolutions having reference to the number of persons employed on Tuesday,
16th March, 1869. :

A Jetter was sent by the Secretary demanding this information on the 18th March.
A letter was received from the Engineers in reply, dated 23rd March, 1869, Copy annexed.

7 Tuesday's Board Meeting, 23rd March, 1869.—¢ Mr. Innes’ Notice of Motion.”
¢ The information having been supplied as read in the correspondence, long discussion ensued.””

Mr, Innes moved and Mr, Robertson seconded—¢ That, without designing to prefer any charge whatever against

the Engineers, it will be satisfactory to the Board to know what Staff is employed under them for the purposes of
_-supervision of the works.”” :

This was communicated to the Engineers on the 24th March, 1869. On the 13th April, 1869, at a Board
Meeting held on that date, Mr. Kemp called attention to there being no reply given to the letter from the Secretary
of the 24th March to the Engineers. It was ordered that the Secretary request an immediate answer; and at the
same time inform the Engineers that it has been brought under the notice of the Board by Mr. Kemp, and minuted
-at his request,—¢ that on visiting the works at Hunter’s Mill Viaduct on Wednesday last, the 7th instant, he found
no one that represented the Contractors or the Engineers upon the works.” '

This was communicated by letter to the Engineers on the 15th April, 1869. At a Board Meeting held on the
20th April, 1869, a letter from the Engineers of the 17th April was read (copy annexed). At the same meeting
Mr. Innes moved and Mr, Robertson seconded—* That the Secretary be instructed to reply to the Engineers,
that the information requested in the Secretary’s letters of the 24th March and 15th April was requested by the
unanimous vote of the Directory, and ‘to repeat the request that the information therein desived may be supplied.
"This was communicated to the Engineers on the 27th April, 1869,
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"' - At a Board Meeting held on the 27th April, 1869, & reply was read from the Engineers, dated 24th April, 1869.
Copy anmnexed. ~- S o . DT
. At which meeting Mr. Bartley moved and Mr. Gibson seconded—¢ That the Secretary: be instructed to.write
to the Engineers in reply, informing them that the statements made to the Board of Directors, that there was a want
of due supervision on certain portions of the Railway Works, were not so made by. only one person, as seems to be
assumed by the “Enginéers in the letter referred to; and’ that such statement, as it appears to tlie Board, did not

emanate from any unscrupulous or vindictive opposition.”” Carried, . BRI . o

_ At a Board Meeting held 4th' May, 1869, a letter was read from Messrs. Kemp.& Innes. with reference to the
Engineers’ letter on Supervision, 8rd May. (This letter has been forwarded to the Engineers, 7th May, 1869.)
. Messrs. Kemp and Innes’s letter on Supervision. .

- Mr. Bartley moved and Mr. Gibson seconded—¢ That the letfer of the Engineers, of the 24th ultimo, having
reference to the supervision exercised by them over the Railway Works throughout the Line, be taken into con-
sideration next meeting in connection with the letter of the 8rd instant from Messrs. Kemp & Innes now read, in
order that the Board then determine whether the nature of the supervision deseribed in such letter from the Engineers

is satistactory to the Board or otherwise.”. . ]
At a Board Meeting held 11th May, 1869.—Consideration of Engineers’ Supervision.

Mr. Green moved and- Mr. Webster seconded—* That the statement of the Engineers as'to their supervision.
exercised over the works is satisfactory.”’ ' : ' .

“Mr. Tyson moved an Aiﬁgmqment, and J. Archer seconded—¢¢ That it.is the conviction of this Directory that no
_supervision can be satisfactory with reference to such important works as the water culverts, viaducts, and bridges,
&c., which falls short of a resident Inspector stationed on the spot at all hours when the workmen are employed.” .

Mr. Dodery moved and Mr. Scott seconded—¢ That the Board is not in a position to decide whether or nota .
proper and sufficient supervision is maintained by the Engineers, until the information. requested by this Board, as. .
intimated to the Engineers in the letter from the-Secretary of the 18th ultimo, be fully supplied.* oo

After a long discussion, Mr. Tyson’s Amendment was carried. The substance of this Amendment was commu-
nicated to the Engineers on the 12th May, 1869, . - '

. At a Board Meeting held 18th May, 1869, a letter was read from the Engineers, dated 17th May, in .reply to
the one from the Secretary of the 12th May, copy of which is hereunto annexed. ' ' ’

. ) . Supervision of Works. ‘ - . ,
After a long discussion on the Engineers’ letter of the 17th May, 1869, Mr. Crookes moved, and Mr. Tyson

seconded—¢¢ That Messrs. Green, Tyson, Grubb, Webster, and Mr. W. Archer, of Cheshunt, be a Committee to con-
sider the whole question, and to report to this Board.”

To which Mr. Scott moved an amendment, and Mr. Scott seconded—¢¢ That the reply of the 'Enginee.rs to the
Board, under date of the 17th instant, with reference to the supervision of the Launceston and Western Railway, is-
unsatisfactory ; and in order to determine whether efficient supervision is being carried out in accordance with the-
terms of the Contract between Mr. Doyne and the Company, in connection with such works, it is desirable that the
whole matter be referred to arbritration, as suggested by the Engineers in their said letter, without delay, as pro-
vided for in the agreement between the Company and Engineers.” : . '

_ The amendment was lost, and the original motion was carried.

This was communicated to the Engineers on the 21st May, 1869.

At a Board Meeting, held 25th May, 1869, a letter was read from the Engineers dated 92nd May, 1869, and
which letter (a copy) was forwarded to you by last night’s post. ' ’

No action‘was taken upon this letter, ini consequence of ‘the important matter of witliho]ding .my . signature to-
the Contractors’ ¢heque, which, when settled, the other matter will have to be brought forward.

SAML. V. KEMP..

Launceston and Western Railway, Engineers’ Office,
Launceston, Tasmania, 23rd March, 1869.
Drar SIR, )

I reply to your létter of the 1 8th instant, we desire to say that the course.pursued seems a departure from the-
usual practice, but as you think an early reply will facilitate business, we hasten to afford it. '

1. Return of persons in our employ.—We cannot admit the right of any person to demand such returns from us,
and we must therefore decline to establish a precedent which might be construed into such an admission. If]
however, the Board of Directors has any charge of neglect against us, as the motion would seem to imply, we shall
be quite prepared to meet it when it ismade.

9, ‘Sub- Contracts—We have no official ’knowledge of any sub-contracts having been let, and none have been-

reported by us. We look upon all persons we find on.the Works as the agents of the Contractors, and deal with
them under Clause 25 of the General Conditions, ’ - :

8. Extension of Time.—As a matter of course we should not take so important a step without first consulting-
the Board. : R : . } ) . .

4. Culverts.—In most instances we require that the earthwork shall be carried over the Culverts immediately on-
their completion. * We introduced the clause referred to into the specification to give us power to use our discretion.
1t is merely intended to enable us to prevent the.embankment being unduly tipped upon, the Culverts while they. are
green, and to empower us to have the earth carried over them in such a.manner as to prevent them being injured by
the hlows received from earth -thrown upon them from a great height. ' By laying gently upon them several feet-in .
depth of earth by means of barrows and carts, they are materially supported, and protected.from the action of the
weather, as well as being relieved from the impact of the tip, 'We may add; the course we have pursued has been in-
every instance eminently successful, since none of the Culverts have sustained the’slightest injury, but are all’
perfectly sound and good. . - -

‘ ER . We are, dear Sir,-
-+ Yours very truly, T L o
> VR ... (Signed). DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT.. -
Hexny Dowring, Esg., Secretary. R o . " ~
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) Zauncestpn and Western Railway, Engineers’ .Qﬁ‘ice,
' ’ * Launceston, Tasmania, 17th April, 1869.
Dear S1r, ' : C , T .
WE regret the Directors should have had to call attention to yourletter to us of 24th ultimo being yet
unanswered. : T o T
‘We note your letter of 15th_inst§int, and the new matter it introduces at the instance of Mr. Kemp.

We wish to observe, and particularly remind the Board of Directors, that we have always shown a desire, and
endeavoured to meet their wishes on every point submitted. to, us by them, and even when not submitted to us,
to advance the interests of the Company by every means in our power when this could be done consistently with the
relations subsisting between us. ’

It was impossible, however, to conceal from ourselves the fact: that the Notice. of Motion stated in ‘your letter of
24th ultimo was made at the instigation of Mr. Kemp, and your letter of 15th instant proves.the correctness of that
opinion. ] . - : .

We most respectfully ask the attention of the Board to our answer of the 23rd ultimo, which we now repeat ;
viz.—* We cannot admit the right of any person to such Returns from us, and.we must therefore decline to establish
a precedent which might be construed into such admission.” ] .

While we re-assert this determination, we wish it to be clearly understood that it has been arrived at solely in
view of the attitude-towards us adopted by Mr. Kemp, whose right of interference with our. proceedings we absolutely
repudiate, and deny his ability to become our censor in the professional questions into which he so recklessly plunges;
we protest against bis pretexntions to superior knowledge in professional watters, and deny that his antecedents give
him any claim to such pretentions. o

In the Railway Act the duties of the Commissioners are very clearly set forth, and there is no doubt whatever
of the meaning of the law in this respect : they have simply to see that the money placed at the disposal of the
Company by the Governmert is not misapprop:iated, and any attempt on their part to interfere with the detuils of
the Board’s management amounts to an impertinence and an unlawful proceeding. '

We are always prepared and are most desirous to show to the gentlemen representing the Shareholders in the
capacity of Directors that-our supervision of the works has been thoroughly efficient in every respect, and that the
agreement with the Contractors is being honestly carried out by them under our directions ; .and for this purpose we
are prepared to meet the whole of the gentlemen referred to, or any committee of that body they may appoint, either
on the principal works or elsewhere, as may be most convenient to them, when we are confident that we can tully
prove to them that our contract with the Company to superintend the Construction of the Railway in a thoroughly
efficient manner is being most -scrupulously fulfilled. ' ‘

We take this opportunity of placing on récord our opinion that- Mr. Kemp constantly travels outside his
legitimate duties as Commissioner, and that his whole course of action appears’to indicate a desire on his part to
grasp powers he has no right to, and to take the management of the Company’s affairs out of the hands of the
Company’s Directors ; and that not having been permitted to do so, he endeavours to avenge himself on their Officers
and Contractors by a systematic course of obstruction, annoyance, and traducing of character : in fact, for reasons
best known to himself, he appears to wish to make himself an element of discord and danger in the management of
the Railway affuirs. ’ ' - : :

In conclusinn, we respectfully remind the Directors that our labours in superintending such important works are
by no means light, and that it is absolutely necessary our time and thoughts should be kept as free as possible for
close personal inspection, and not have tiiem wasted by the necessity of constantly writing long Reports in our own
defence, against the frivolous and groundless insinuations and accusations brought by Mr. Kemp.

It must be evident to the Directors, that the course pursued can only prove to be seriously detrimental to the
interests of the Company ; and we respectfully express a hope that they will support us in our desire to fully discharge
our duties, and endeavour by a determined course of action to relieve us from the incubus we now labour under.

With these remarks we now express our determination to decline all further communications with Mr. Kemp
directly or indirectly. We consider that under the Railway Act he has no right to correspond with us through the
medium of the Secretary; that if he hag anything to com|lain of it is clearly his duty to report in coujunction with
his colleagucs to the Government, and ours to reply to such Reports when they are referred to us.

‘We have the honor to be,
Sir,

Your obedient Servant,

(Signed) - DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT.
Hrnry Dowring, Esquire, Secretary. ' . .

Launceston and Western Railway, Engineers’ Qffice,
Launceston, Tasmania, 24th April, 1869,
Dzar SiR, : o
Ixreply to your letter of the 22nd instont, we have to state that we think we perfectly understood your letters
to us of the 24th ultimo and 15th instant, and we thought we had made ourselves understood by our reply of the
28rd ultimo, end reiterated on the 17th instant. . ’

Our Contract with the Company is most explicit: it provides that Mr. Doyne shall ‘¢ superintend the construction
of the seid Railway and Works in a thoroughly efficient manner, either by himself or by properly qualified and
competent assistants.’”” This Contract we are in course of most scrupulously fulfilling., -

The Directors must see how impossible it would be for us to méet the statements you refer to, statements wholl y
untruthful for the most part, circulated in all kinds of forms, and emanating from one unscrupulous and vindictive
source of opposition. : : )

But, as before said, if any of these could be put in.a tangible form before the Government or Directors, we should
then be afforded an opportunity to reply thereon,.and we are willing and anxious to have such opportunity afforded
to us, S ’

We can now say generally, for the satisfaction of the Directors, that the principal works at Longford and the
Viaduct at Hunter’s Mill have never been committed to the charge of an assistant Engineer, much less toan ordinary
Clerk of Works: they have had the almost undivided attention of Mr. Doyne or Mr. Major, either jointly or
‘separately. The excavatioas, once opened out to their satisfaction, have never been left until the foundations have -
been securely got inm, and the brickwork well advanced under their strict personal supervision, and then each work



87

"has been visited, and closely inspected, by one or other of the members of our firm—and frequently by both on the
-same days—with a closeness 'of attenddnce not usually given to works of even greater magnitude, by the principal
Engineers of Railwdys'in England. * "~ ' ‘ : e
_ We are also in a position to prove that these works, as well as the culverts, timber bridges; &¢. -erected in the
-earlier’ portion-of” the construction of the Line, have been most closely inspected by ourselves, and bave been, on, the
whole, carried out by the Contractors with a*degree of faithfulness most creditable to them and to their workmen.

. 'Wemay mention that, in addition to theinspection by ourselves and our assistants, Mr. H. Conway as Inspector of
Brickwork, and Mr. Tidy as Inspector of Earthworks and Excavations for foundations, on.the part ot the Contractors, - -
have been directly placed by the Contractors uinder our own personal control and direction in every. respect; and
have been instructed -by them, in‘ Mr, Doyne’s presence, to obey in every respect every ‘order given by the
Engineers, without reference to Messrs. Overend & Robb ; and we teel bound to ‘say that they have given a prompt
and willing attention to.all.our orders, which has claimed from-us the fullest confidence in their integrity, and desire”
to obtain credit by the result of their exertions. ™ . o Vo

In the same way every timber bridge has had similar, though not equal, attention from ourselves, besides being
ander the close inspection’ of assistants who remain constantly on the works, and report progress'to ‘us wéekly, ‘and
refer to us at any time that our personal direction is needed: The fencing and-all ‘other works have been similarly
treated ; indeed we are in a position to challenge the closest scrutiny-of the works, and of our course of procedure

:and direction. S :

.. 'We respectfully take-our stand on this fact,—that, in the manner e have described, we are thoroughly, we are.
-thoroughly and -efliciently superintending the construction of the Launceston-and Western Railway works, in strict
-accordance with the terms of our.agreement, and we have construed that agreement in a liberal manner.: -~ -

. We here wish toremark that, having found it impossible to.supply a high class of assistants to superintend the
principal works, and in view of the necessity for our honorably complying with the conditions of our'agreéement with
ihe Company, we have had no alternative but practically to abandon our-business prospects in the ‘other Colonies,
and for the present reside here. We have further to remind the Directors that, without any assumption of egotism, -
-our own personal services may be considered of more value than those of ordinary Inspectors: that to place ordinary
Inspectors over the persons employed by the Contractors—whom they would not recognise as having « right to
-exercise authority over them, whose qualifications they would possibly. question—would probably produce serious
dissensions and references to the Board and to us, which must prove dangerous to the undertaking. S .

We beg most respectfully to repeat that we are prepared and anxious to meet the wishes of the Directors in
-every way consistent with the business relations existing between us; and we point to the whole course of Mr.
Doyne’s services to the Company, and to his:and our own deep personal and professional interest in the success of
the undertaking, as forming no ordinary claims upon the fullest confidence and protection of the Directors in the
prosecution of our really arduous duties. C
We are, Dear Sir,

Yours truly,
(Signed) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT, Engincers:
Hexry DowLiNG, Esq., Secretary. , :

Launceston-and Western Railway, Engineers’ Office,
. - Launceston, Tasmania, 17th May, 1869,
Dzar Sir, RN N
In reply to your letter of the 12th instant, enclosing a Minute of the Board passed at the Meeting on the
‘previous day, expressing a conviction that our system of supervision is not satisfactory, we beg leave to remark,—

. 1., That such a'mode of precedure on the part of the Board is most unjust and unreasonable; unjust because we
are practically declared at fault without any fair investigation, notwithstanding our repeated requests that there -
should be one: unreasonable, because it is the decision of Jay men on a professional question, of which professional
men of large experience alone can rightly judge. -

2. That to bring these general accusations, couched in innuendo drawn from rumours which have really.no
foundation in fact, is a most unusual and improper tampering with the characters of professional men.

3. On reference to our letter of the 17th April, the Directors will be reminded that we have soughf éntjuiry by
them into our mode of managing the works; and we now think.that we have a right to complain that such a-resolu-

tion should have been placed on record without any such enquiry having been made.

4, We reiterate that our inspection of the works is complete and efficient in all respects, ard-fully up to the
letter and spirit of Mr. Doyne’s Contract with the Company. If the Directors think otherwise, we beg respecttully
to remind them that the Contract provides the machinery by which such difficulties must be settled. ‘

A prompt determination of the vexed question will confer a benéfit upon the Company, by allowing that portion °
of our time which is now absorbed in fruitless correspondence to be devoted to the real interests of the uadertaking.

oo o : ~ -We are, Dear Sir; : ) o ‘

’ Yours very traly, - i .
(Signed) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT, Engineers.

Hexry DowriNG, Esq., Secretary. S U N ‘ .

. . v
PEREN . L. ] i o
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(Copy.)
Launceslon and Western Razlway, Engineers’ Office,
" Launceston, Tasmania, 23nd May, 1869.
Dzar Sin,

WaILE acknowledamg the recelpt of your letter of the 21st instent, accompanvmg a resolutxon of the Board,
passed on the 18th instant, to the effect that a Committee be appointed to consider the whole question. of supervxslon,
we feel bound to make the following remarks in our own defence as professwnal men:—

1. When it was first intimated by your letter of 18th March that it.was thought wWe were in some mamner
neglecting the interests of the Company, we stated that if the matter were put in the shape of a distinet and definite
charge we should be prepared to meet it. In reply we received an assurance that no charge of neglect was intended

2. We then respectfully requested that the Board would meet us, ¢ either on the principal works, or elsewhere,
as may be most convenient to them, when we are confident we can fully prove to them that our Contract with the
Company to superintend the construction of the Railway in a thoxoun'hly eﬂiclent manner is being most scrupulously
fulfilled.” (7 April, 1869.)

-8, To this fair and reasonable request we recelved no reply, but were mstead informed of an arbitrary minute
passed on the 11th May, ¢ That it is the conviction of -the Directory that no supervision can be satisfactory with
reference to such .important works as the water culverts, viaducts, bridges,” &c. which falls short of a resident
Inspector stationed on the spot at all hours when the workmen are employed »

. .4. As we were quite pre;iared .to show that our supervision 'had hitherto obtained the most satisfactory results
(and.we contend that by the results alone can any fair conclusion be arrived at), we felt it our duty to protest against
this action on the part of the Board, and the Directors tken resolved to appoint a Committee. (17 April.)

5. We contend, with the greatest respect, that while the Minute of the Board of the 11th instant remains on
record we are debarred from entering into the question at issue before that body, inasmuch as it states, in general
terms, that our supervision is uneatlstaclory, and it is scarcely reasonable to suppose that we can accept an enquu'y
made by those who have already committed themselves to an opinion.

6. The resolution of the 11th instant asserts an opinion on the _part of "the Board whlch we cannot accept The-
alternatives are, therefore,—that the Directors witndraw that opinion, and refer the question to a Committee of their
own body for report, or fall back upon those clauses of the Comract with Mr. Doyne which provides for the
settlement of such differences of opinion.

. ‘We beg to remain,
. Dear Sir,
Yours very truly,

(Signed) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT, Engineers..
Henry Dowring, Esq., Secretary. o

(U.)

REPORT by the BoArD ox TRADE on the Applications made in the year 1866, cnder the < Railways Construction
Facilities Act, 1864, and of the Proceedings of the Board of Trade with respect thereto.—( Presented pursuant
to Act of Parliament.)

AppricaTions under the “Railways Construction Facilities Act, 1864,” for certificates to authorise the construction
of new Railways, were made durmg the year 1866, in four cases, viz. :—

1.—The Promoters of the Holywell Port Razlwa Yy

‘Who applied for a certificate incorporating 2 Company under the name of the Ho]ywell Port Rallway Com--
pany,” and authorlsmo' them to construct four leways in the county of Ilint, viz. :—

No.'1. A Railway 2 miles 4 furlongs 1 chain in length, commencing in the Parish of Holywell, by a junction.
with the authorised line of the Holywell (No. 1) Bmlw'xy, at the north end of the bridge now in course of construction
over the Chester and Holyhead Railway, and terminating on the 101 eshore of the river Dee.

No. 2. A Railway 2 furlongs 3 chains in. length commencing in the p'\rlsh of Holywell by a _]unctxon with the:
Company’s intended Railway, No. 1, and terminating by a junction with the authorised line of the Holywell (No. 8)
Railway at'a point 7 chains to the west of the crossing of the public road leading to the wharves, in the same parish..

No. 8, A Railway 3 furlongs 5 chains in length, commencing in the parish of Whitford by 2 junction with the
intended Railway, No. 1, 1 mile 5 furlongs from its commencement and terminating at the bridge under tlie Chester
and Holyhead Railway at Llanner ch-y-Mor, in the same pm ish.

No. 4. A Railway 1 furlong 8 chains in length, commencmg in the parish of Whitford by a junction with the-
intended Railway, No. 1, ata pomt 1 mile 7 turlongs from its commencement, and terminating by a junction with
the intended Railway, 2 No. 3, at 2 point 1 furlong 6 chains from its commencement.

To create a capital of £40,000, in 4000 shares of £10 each, and to borrow on mortgage £183,000.

The Inspecting Officer of the Board of Trade, to whom the plnns, &c., had been referred, having reported that
the proposed junction of Railway, No. 1, with the authorised line of 'the Holywell (No 3) Railway would be
objectionable on engineering grounds, and that the construction of Railway, No. 2, in the manner proposed, would
be dangerous, and those objections not having been removed to the satistaction of the Inspecting Officer, the Board
of Trade did not proceed with the settlement of the certificate.



i '_II,;qulSwaﬁégd Vale a:hd._Nedtk_‘and .B"rz'ar::mi Junction Railway. Company, . - -

s Who,aﬁplied: for a cégﬁﬁcate'autl‘gorising‘them to-construct two Branph Railiays, viz, i R

.. No. 1. A-Rﬁilwﬁy-2’ niiles 1 furioﬁgﬂ and 8-chains in ]é'ngtb, commencing ‘by a jiinction with the Wernplemis
Branch, of the Swansea Vale Railway, and terminating by a junction with the Company’s authoriséd branch to
Abercrave.- . . . - A o . T AR -

. No. 2. A Railway 4 furlong‘sz‘i-chéins in iength, commencing at a point on Railway No. 1, and terminating by a
Jjunction with the authorised main line at a point where it would cross the Brecon Forest Tramway. o

. To aban'd'on, the formation (_)f:such. 1‘)0'rtion‘,'of the Abercrave Branch authorised by the Company’s Act’ of- 1865,
between éhe Company’s original line and ‘the termination of Railway No. 1, as'would be rendered unnecessary by
this certificate. . .

To raise for the pixrposeé of the certificate £18,000 by'ordinary sharés, and £6000 by borrowing.

In thie case the promoters, anticipating that they would be unable to complete':their arrangements for the
purchase of the required land before the time specified for settling the certificate, resolved not -to proceed at present
with their application. - BT . ' el : e
IIX.—The Barry Railway Company,.

" Who applied for a certificate authorisin:g them to construct a branch Railway 1 mile 4 furlongs and’185-yards
in length, commeneing by a junction with the Barry Railway, in the parish of Cadoxton-juxta-Barry, in the county
of -Glamorgan, and terminating upon-Barry Island, in-the parish of Sully, in the same county. R

To raise £30,000 by brdinary shares, and £10,000 by bclJlrrowing on mortgage.

‘IV.—The Worcester, Dean Forest, and Monmouth Rd;'lwzrzj/ Comp'ané/,'

. Who applied for-a certificate authorising them to construct a deviation of the Railway, No. 8, authorised by the
original Act of 1863, in length 4 miles 4 furlongs, commencing by a junction therewith, in the parish of Newland, in
the county of Gloucester, and terminating by a junction therewith on the Tramway, No. 12, in the parish of Dixton,
in the county of Monmouth. ) - . ' -

With reference to the applications of the Barry Railway Company, and the Worcester, Dean Forest, and
Monmouth Railway Company respectively, the Board of Trade were satisfied, in each case, by proofs being duly
given in a form similar to that adopted in the case of Railway Bills, that the Promoters ‘had contracted for the
purchase of all the lands required for the Railway, and ‘had complied with the requirements of the General Rules
respecting deposit and notice, and with the provisions of the Act generally.- '

No objection respecting either of the applications was brought before the Board of Trade.
No notice of opposition by a Railway or Canal Company was in either case lodged at the Board of Trade.

These apﬁlicétionsnhaving ‘been made by previously - existing Companies incorporated by speciaI"Act, ‘the
Board of Trade in each case required and obtained satisfactory proof that the members of the Company had duly
approved of the application. - '

The Board of Trade having referred the plans, &c., and estimate; of each of the Railways in respect of which -
they were proceeding to settle a Draft Certificate to one of their Inspecting Officers for his report upon the proposed
works, he recommended. in each case certain alterations in the -deposited plans. These alterations were effected
to the satisfaction of the Board of Trade, and the Draft Certificates were accordingly settled, and have this day
‘been laid before both Houses of Parliament, in the following cases; viz.— : ‘I

The Burry Railway Company. . . .
"The Worcester, Dean Forest, and Monmouth Railway Company.

If neither House of Parliament, within the period of six weeks from this date, shall think fit to resolve that
either of these certificates ought not to be made, then, at the expirv of the said period, the Board of Trade will issue -
in each case 4 cestificate in conformity with that now laid before Parliament, for publication in the London Gazette.

, 4 . ROBERT G; W. HERBERT.
Board of Trade, 31st May, 1867. . . : .

W)

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT made this first day of May in the Year of Our Lord One thousand eight hundred
and sixty-seven, between WirrLrax Tmomas DoynE, of Melbourne, in the Colony’ of Victoria, Member of the .
Institute of Civil Engineers, of the one part, and Tur LAUNCESTON AND WESTERN RarLway ComMpANY, LIMITED,
hercinatter called the Company, of the other part: Whereas the said William- Thomas Doynie has agreed with the
said Company to muke and complete a Re-Survey of a Line of Railway from Launceston io Deloraine; to prepare
Plans, Specifications, and all other documents necessary for drawing up the Contract for construction of the said
Railway ; to superintend the construction of the said Railway in an efficient manner; and to do and perform all
other acts and things hereinafter particularly specified upon the Terms and Conditions hereinafter mentioned :* Now
therefore these Presents witness that the said William Thomas Doyne doth hereby. for himself, his heirs, executors,
and administrators, covenant with the Company; and the Company do hereby, for themselves, covenant with- !
the said William Thomas Doyne, his executors and administrators, as follows ; that is to say,— ’
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2. The seid William Thomas Doyne.shall perform. the work following ; .that is, to- say;—He shall act as the:
Company’s Engineer-in-Chief;-hé *shall ‘compléte ‘2’ Re-Survey’ of the said intferided Line of Railway; set out
accurately on the ground all the.curves, gradients, .and -lines :of: fencinig;. prepare. detailed plans: of __ail,upirivate
Pproperty to be purchased or obtained by the Company for purposes of the Railway or Works; he shall prepare
working sections, take out quantities, make detailed working plans.and drawings ‘of all: bridges, ‘culverts, stations, .
and.all other work, incidental, or negéssary for:the complete construction of the saidl. Railway and Works; prepare all.
documents, drawings, and specifications necessary for drawing up the Contracts, (except station plans, drawings,.and

. specifications, which are to be executed, when required, by the Directors, during the construction of the Line, or
earlier,. if. necessary) ; to_ satisfy.the: Gommissioners under the Act of Parliament= 80 Vict. No. 28 ; employ the:
necessary staff; superintend the construction of .the .saidRailway and -Works. inr a. thoroughly - efficient mannety.
either by himself or by properly qualified and competent assistants—to extend over the whole period of the
construction’of the said- Railway ‘to-the time.of opening of the whole of theLine for ‘public traffic—and for the term

of  twelve calendar months after the same shall have been opened: for traffic as aforesaid.. -

3. The said William Thomas Doyne to provide, at his own costs and charges, all travelling and hotel expenses,
and all necessary-office . accommodation, drawing paper.and general.stationery, and all necessary ‘office and field
instruments and equipment.’ o R

+-4.The éhid,WiiIiamiThomdé,D>('I)y:ne to’ éniplé.y and pay all ‘Eng'in'ee.'i'é,' Sﬁrveyoré,’-Dr-aftsnieni Clerks; Labourers,
and all other persons necessary to be employed by him to carry out his part of this Contract in an' éfficient manner.

- 5. To provide all necessary information concerning the material§, machinery, and rolling stock to be obtained
from England, or:any of'the Australian Colonies, for the coustruction and working .of the:said Railway: - '

6. When trial shafts are necessary on:the sites of cuttings,.or .boringsin foundations have to be made, the:said
William Thomas Doyné t6 provide such supervision as ‘may be necessary to enable hin to advise and report on the
results of such trials. } e I Tt o : '

7. And to do and perform all other. acts and things necessary for a thoroughly efficient.engineering supervision
of the Railway Works during their ‘constriction and maintenance by the'Contractors, such as will ensure satisfactory
results to;the said Company, both in the economy and stability with-which the Works are to-be-executed. co

. 8. The Survéy of the said Line of Railway, ;dn‘d-;l_;“_'la:xis ;:;xid;;‘_s,pé.tl:'iﬁc‘;ﬁt'i_('iﬁs,..and- other doenments necessary to-
endble the Company to accept Contracts for the construction of the said Rallway, to be.completed by. the said
V}’il\l&iam ‘Thomas Doyne in an efficient and proper manner, within Six calendar Months from the fifteenth day
of May last. . s - o T IR T N

" 9., In the event of the death, or incapacity to act, of the.said Willinm | Thomas Doyne,. prior to the completion
of the Work ;.and, in the event of his heirs, executors, or administrators failing to complete the Work hereinbefore
specified: then all plans, drawings, specifications, and' other. documents prepared by the sail Wilijam Thomas -
Doyne, having reference to the said Line of Railway, shall be the property of the said Company. B

10. If aterm of twelve months shall elapseé from the time when the engineering survey, plans, drawings,
specifications; and all other matters necessary to enable the Company-to accept Contracts for the construction of the
seid Railway shall have been completed by the said William Thomas Doyne in a thoroughly efficient manner, prior
to.the acceptance of Contracts for. the construction of the same, the.said Willinm Thomas Doyne may, if be thinks
fit, refuse to act as Engineer for-superintending the construction of the said - Railway; and this Contract, so far as
relates to the engineering superintendence of con-truction of the 'said Line, shall be considered at:an end; and the
said Willinm Thomas Doyne shall be entitled to receive payment, in manner hereinafter specified, for the work then
done by him : provided that, in-the.evént of such refusal by the said Witliam Thomas Doyne, he shall on ‘the due
payment to.-him of the sum of . Three thoiusand six hundred Pounds, as hereinafter mentioned, provide the Company,
at his own cost, with true and accurate copies of all drawings and other documents that have been:prepared by the
said William Thomas ' Doyne, and necessary to enable the'said Contracts to be efficiently superintended by another
Engineer. In the event of a delay in proceeding. with-the construction -of. the said-Railway and ‘Works occurring,
of more than Six calendar Months from the completion of the said survey, plans, and drawings as aforesaid, the
said William Thomas Doyne is to receive Three Monthg’ notice to proceed with the enginéering supérvision, when
required te do so; and, in any case, to receivé One.Month’s notice from’ tlie said Company. ‘

" 11.. Tn consideration of the due performance of the work heréinbefore niéntiqneq,' and the fulfilment of his part
of the Contract'by the said William Thomas Doyne, the Company agree to.pay ‘to the said William Thomas Doyne,
his executors'und administrators, the sum of Séventecw thousand six hundred Pounds, in mannet following; that
is to say,— '

12. The sum of Two thousand six hundred Pounds, in six equal monthly instalments of- Four hundred -and
thirty-three Pounds Six Shillings and Eight-pence each,—the first of such monthly paymecnts to be made on the
fifteenth day of May, One thousand eight hundred and sixty-seven; and the five remaining instalments on the
same day in each succeeding month ; the further sum of One thousand Pounds within Three calendar Months after
completion of the said survey, and all plans andsdscuments ‘necessaryfor the Company to accept Contracts, and
plans uecessary to enable the Company to purchase on the said Line for the construction of the said Railway.

13. The above sums of Two thousand six hundred Pounds and One thousand Pounds to be received by the said
William Thomas Doyne in full for his part of this Contract; so far as the same relates to the Engineering Survey,
and preparation of all Plans and Documents, to enable thé.Company to accept contracts for the constraction of the
said Railway, and for the disbursements made by him in reference thereto.

14. The sum of Thirteen thousand four hundred Pounds, in.and by Twenty-four equal Monthly instalments of
Five hundred.and fifty-eight Pounds Six Shillings and Eight Pence each; the first of such instahibents to be paid .
by the Company to the said William Thomas Doyne within Teu days after the acceptance by the Company of a
contract or contracts for. the construction of the said Railway, or any part thereof, ur the signing of such contract or:
contracts, or the commencement.of any portion -of the works of the said. Railway. - The remaining Twenty-three
equal Monthly instalments.to be paid to.the said. William "Thomas Doyne on the same day of exch succeeding Month
after payment of the. first. instalment. And the said Willilam Thomas Doyne agrees to take Shares in the said .
Company. to theé amount of Five thousand Pounds, which sum of Five thousand Pounds -shall be deducted from
the paymenrts. due to the said William Thomas Doyne under the-second part: of this Agreement; that is to say—
Monthly, the sum of Two hundred. and eight Pounds Six Shillings and Eight Pence, until the said sum of Five
thousand Pounds be paid; such sums to be applied by the Directors to the payment of the said Shares.
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15, Provided nevertheless, that if the said Railway and Works shall be completed and opened for traffic in less
than Two years from the date on which the first instalment becomes due as aforesaid, then in such case any balance
of the said sum of Thirteen thousand four hundred Pounds, remaining, unpaid at the time of completion and
opening for traffic of the said Railway shall be paid to'the said William Thomas Doyne within Ten days after the
said Railway shall have been completed and opened for traflic : Provided further, that should any delay aiise during
the construction of the said-Railway and ‘Works, 'in conséquence of any financial or commercial circumstances of the.
Company, or arising from the default of any contractor or contractors, then the Company shall.pay to. the said
William™ Thomas Doyne- such: compensation as ‘may be agréed upon between him and the Directors for the time
being for- every' Month beyond theperiod of Two yeais during which. he continues the supervision of the ¢onstruetion’
of the said Railway and Works' as aforesaid, in "consequence of “afry delay as ‘atoresaid. - The sum’of Six handred.
Pounds (being the residue of the said sum of Seventeen thousand six hundred Pounds) shall be paid to the'said’
William Thomas Doyne, by Four equal quarterly payments during the Twelve months next succeeding the opening
of the said Railway for traffic. The first of such quarterly ‘payments to be made at the expiration of Three calendar
months from the opening of the said Railway for traffic.

16. All questions arising between the Company on the one hand and the said William Thomas Doyne on the
other hand touching the construction, intent, effects, incidents, consequences, or fulfilment of this Contract as before
mentioned, or otherwise than as before mentioned, shall be referred to and determined by Arbitration in manner
following, (that is to say); euach of the parties in difference shall appoint an Arbitrator, and the two Arbitrators
so appointed shall, within ten days after the appointment of such one of them as shall be last .appointed, appoint an
Umpire ; but if either of the parties in difference shall refuse or neglect to appoint an Arbitrator for the space of ten
days after being requested so to do by the other party, or shall’appoint an Arbitrator who shall refuse or neglect to
act as such Arbitrator, then the Arbitrator chosen by the party making such request shall appoint an Arbitrator on
behalf of the party who, or the Arbitrator named by whom, shall refuse or neglect as aforesaid ; and the award of the
said two Arbitrators, or of their Umpire as the case may be, shall be final and conclusive between the parties in
difference, and all such things shall be forthwith done, omitted, and suftered, as by the award shall be required..

" The Arbitrators or Umpire may, if they or he shall think proper, make several awards, and every such award
shall be binding and conclusive as to all matters to which it extends, and as if the matters awarded on were the
whole matters required.; ‘ ' ' s S

The Arbitrators or Umpire shall have full power at their or his discretion’ to examine the pians, specifications,.
documents, and all other papers of the parties in difference respectively, relating to'matters réferred, and to examine
their respective officers, servants, and witnesses on oath or affirmation, of statutory declaration in lieu of oath.

The Arbitrators or Umpire may prc;ceed in the reference as they or he think fit, and, after notice to both parties,
in the absence of both or either of them.. : . L T

The costs of the reference and arbitratibﬁ and the award shall be in the discretion of the Arbitrators or Ulﬁpire;
and if they or he shall not'otherwise award the costs of the arbitration and of the award, then the parties in difference
shall bear their own costs. . ‘ ’ : T

The submission to referénce made by these Présédts_m’ay at any, time be made 2 Rule; of -any Court of Law or
Equity, on the application of the parties in difference, or either of them, and the Court iay remit the matter to the
Arbitrators or Umpire, with any directions the Court may think fit,

Full effect shall be given under ¢ The Common Law Procedure Act” of this Colony, and every other Act from
time to time in force applicable in that behalf to the provisions of these Presents touching Arbitrations.. ..

In witness whereof the said Company have hereunto set their Common Seal, and the said William Thomas
Doyne hath hereunto set his hand and seal, the day and year first before written.

(being first duly stamped.)

W. T. DOYNE, (LS.)
In the presence of George Collins, Solicitor, Launceston.

Signed, sealed, and delivered by the said William Thomas Doyne,}
The Common Seal of the Company was affixed hereunto in presence of
o * W.S. BUTTON, Chairman.
H. DOWLING, Secretary.

W. DODERY, - - ‘
ALEX. WEBSTER, } Directors.
W. TYSON; .. - .. o

I have compared. the foregoing with the attested Copy made
" by Messrs., Douglas & Collins, and I certify that it is correct.

‘W, J. NorwooDp."
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e PARTICULARS OF EXTRA WORKS, .
A PY ) "Railway Commissioners’ Office, Launceston, 22nd June, 1869,
Sir, . - Ce o R
' ’.I "AVE the honor to request that you will be pleased to -furnish me-with a list of .all -alterations, additions,
subsfitiitions, deviations; or concessions that have taken place up to.the present date, stating fully- the. terms. on
which all “such alterations, additions, substitutions, deviations, or concessions have been made, either distinctly
under thie head of cost, or that of saving, o - L AR .
1 beg.to point out that a great saving of time will be effected by my having this information. as early ng possible,
ag I am.-desirous' that no time shall be lost in paying the Contractors the amount of No. 10 Certificate.

T have the honor to be,
Sir, . : .
Your obedient Servant;
’ o ‘ (Signed). SAML. V., KEMP.

To the Secretary of the Launceston and Western Railway Company. S ‘

(X.)
(Copy.)

Dreir SIR, ~ ' ST ) }
" Wrreturn herewith Mr. Kemp’s Memo. and statement of alterations which you have referred to us, to which.
we have added the information required. ‘

The Returns of alterations, &c. lately furnished by us were prepared for the general -iriformation of. the Board,
in ‘pursuance of an intimation-expressed in former Reports. We call your attention to this in order to avoid future
misapprehensions, as Mr.- Kemp appears to be under the impression that they were prepared SPECIALLY “in answer
to his réquest of the 22nd June last.” (See his Memo. herewith.) They did, however, we believe, afford the answer
to that request. - o L T :

We may take this opportunity of pointing out that the object of these Returns—which we shall eontinue to
furnish as occasion may require—is at present the current information of the Board, and the regulation of payments
on account. ‘But it should be understood that they do not constitute the documents upori which the final settlements
will .be made, although' they may be considered tolerably close indications of what those will probably be. In
accordance with the usual practice, it will be for the Contractors at the completion of the work to send in 2 list of
extras, setting forth in the fullest details all the extra work for which they claim payment. And rkis will conatitute
the basis upon which the final settlement of accounts must be effected. . '

Engincers’ Qffice, 9(h August, 1869.

‘We are, Dear sir,
Yours very truly, | .

R '(Sigped) DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLITT, Engincers.
Henry Dowring, Esq., Secretary. - ' C

—

(Y.)
MEMO.

I smaLL feel obliged by your submitting the enclosed sfatément to the Engineers for their report and remarks
upon the items not included in their Returus of the 19th ultimo, which is in answer to my request of the 22nd June
last. L

All the items marked in pencil thus ¥ are admitted by them in such Returns; but I beg to be informed under
what arrangements a 2 feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted for a:‘3:feet brick' culvert, And if the Contractors

have agreed to all such alterations, substitutions, and additions upon thevbasis and at the rates set forth in the
Engineers’ Returns of the above-named date.

Lo SAML. V. KEMP.
o ‘ o 2 8.69. °
To the Secretary of the Launceston and Western Railway Company, Launceston.

ReFERRED to Engineers, and to be returned with enclosure.
H. DOWLING, Secretary.

MEMO.

2 feet cast-iron pipes substituted for 3 feet culverts. Allowed in o few cases (See Return to the Board L-84),
and paid for without reduction, in view of the large number of 2 feet culverts altered in the same way at a greatly
increased cost to the Contractors. (See our letter of the 19th ultimo.)

2, Yes, as to substitution of pipes for culverts. No, asto the rest. See Clause 5, General Conditions, and
Note to our Board Return marked L-31.

DOYNE, MAJOR, & WILLETT.

5. 8. 69.
Hexry Dowring, Esq., Secretary.
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STATEMENT shoning, the Alteratwns, Substztutwns, Dematwns, and, " Euxtras connected with the
Launceston and Western Railway, up to June, 1869 . .

1st Crossing, North Esk River,
‘Wooden Viaduct.

At 0 miles 55 chains .

Cutting No. 1.....c0vvunen cee
Cutting No.2.....c00veevn..n
Cutting No. 8....... ........
At 1 mile 46 chains...........
2nd Crossing of the North Esk
River, Wooden Vladuct

Cutting No. 5 N
Cuttmg No 6.vunn

2 miles 74 chains ..., ..

At

¢ Milligan’s Water-hole,
3 miles 10 chains.
At 3 miles 25 chains.

at

At 3 miles 29 chains.eesesee..

(‘uttmg No.9..;. sose
Embankment No. 10 .

At 3 miles 60 cha_in‘_s.:'.._....

Cutting No. 11 ~
At 4 miles 1 chain..

Cutting No. 13
Cutting No. 14 ......... teeen
At 4 miles 46 chains ceasae e

Cuttmn' No. 15 ....
At 4 mxles 56 chams

Cutting No. 16 .....
At about 4 miles 66 chains . .a..

Cutting No. 20 ......
Cuttmg No. 22 ...

Cutting No. 28 ....
Cutting No. 24 ..

Cutting No. 25 .....
Cutting No. 26 ...
Cutting No. 27 ..
Cutting No. 29 ......
At 6 miles 43 chains

Cutting N0, 30 ....vce0evnen.
At about 6 miles 74 chains ....

Cutting No. 81 .....cuvunnnn..
Cutting No. 32
Cutting No. 33 ...
Cutting 84 v.ecveueaammoree

Cutting 35 ........
At 8 miles 28 chains...ve.v...

Cutting 36
At 8-miles 53 chams

Cutting 37
Embankment, No. 38 ........

Cutting 88 ceecvesocerrcaas.

Cutting 40 cecereonnacenccnss
Cutting 41 .......
At 10 miles 14 chains eeeesss.

.{ Both'sides havé been extra sloped ........... .

The specification deseribes and the plan shows 13 bays, each
'23 feet, The work has been carried out with' 14 bays ..., ..

An 18-\inch culvert has been built here.
. plans or deseribed in the specification.

Both sides have been sloped ........ eerieass cees

Both sides have been sloped c.coveereevnvieeenaaian

Both sides have been sloped...... teeeeeetenatanatinaians

A 12-inch cast-iron pipe has been inserted. Nothing shown

or described for this,

The plans show and the specification describes 7 bays, each 20
" feet, The work has been carried out with 6 bays only

Nothing shown on the

.| Both sides have been sloped.
.| Both sides have been sloped.
| A rough rubble culvert has been substituted for a 12-inch

. cast-iron pipe .. ... ... sere

.1 A 2-feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted for a 3-feet brick

culvert., )
A quantity of 12-inch cast-iron piping has been inserted.
Nothing shown on plans.
A '2-feet cast-iron pipe, has been substituted for a 3-feet brick
. culvert.
Approaches have been made for an occupation crossing, and
" pipes ‘insertéd under the western approach. Nothing is
shown or described for this ee.eceveecsacessvancenss

‘Both sidés have been sloped.
A.12-inch cast-iron pipe has been inserted under this embank-
ment, Nothing shown or described for this work

‘Both sides have’ been extra sloped .
A 2-feet cast-iron pipe has been substltuted for a 2- ieet brick
 culvert.’ )
Both sides have been extra sloped sessesresae
Two 9-inch earthenware drain pipes have been mserted.
" thing shown or described.

Both sides have been extra sloped ........
Both sides have been extra sloped......
A 9-inch earthenware drain pipe has been mse1ted here. N othing

" ‘shown or described.
Both sides have been extra sloped -...

No-

.| A 2-feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted for a 2-feet brick

. culvert.
Two 9-inch earthenware drain pipes have, beeu mserted here.
" Nothing shown or deseribed.’
Both sides have been extra sloped
Ditto. -
Ditto.
" Ditto.
" Ditto.
Both top sides have been extra sloped oﬁ'
DLitto.

.| Both sides have been extra sloped.

Two 6-inch cast-iron pipes have been inserted. Nothing shown
or described.......vveunnn ceseinen

Both sides have been extra sloped.

A 2-feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted for a 2-feet brick
culvert.

Both top sides have been sloped.

.{ Both sides have been exna sloped.

Ditto.
Both sides have been extra sloped ...e.c..oveevrecncreannan.
Ditto. , L A
A 2 feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted for a 4 feet brick
culvert.
Both sides have been extra sloped.
A 2 feet cast-iron pipe has been sabstituted for a 2 feet brick
culvert.,
Both sides have been extra sloped. ...
Alteration of gradient has been made here, 12. 7. 69, o.ec.ces.

Both sides have been extra sloped. Alteration of quantities and
gradient have been made, 12. 7. 69

etsesessssmto-sescncnes

Both sides have been extra sloped.s....
Ditto seveneniiiiieceacisssonacnnoeces

A double 3 feet brick culvért.has’ been substxtuted for a double
4 feet brick ‘culvert,

Local ad_]ustment No altera~
tion in cost.

Not ordered.
Not ordered.

.| Not ordered.

Local adjustment; No altera-
tion in cost.

Must be a mistake:. No sub-
stitution or alteration here.-

. Extra crossing arranged for by

* Mr: Bartley- aud the Com-
pany.

Not orderéd.
Not ordered.

Authorised.
Not ordered.'

Not ordered,

Authorised.

9-inch earthenware pipes as re-
ported. No 6-inch cast-iron
pipes on the line.

No increase in Schedule
quantity.

Authorised.
Reported to the Board, 19th
July, 1869.

Slopes only authorised. Re-
ported to the Board, 19th
July, 1869,

Authorised.

No increase in quantity.
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Cutting 42 secesriacnsnenanss
At 10 miles 65ch§1ins

At 11 miles 22 chains.e.eess.|
At'11 miles 05 chains .o... ..
At 11 miles 25 chains ..... .es
At about 11 miles 32 chains ...
At12 milesbf’.chnins
At 13 miles 21 chains..ceven..

At 13 miles 46 chaing..vveuu..

Under embankment, No. 54

Cutting 37 ...-. cenne
Under embankment, No 60

At 15 miles 18 chains svee....
At 15 miles 57 chaing «vcouas.

Cutting. 63 ..... Craeesaes
At 11 miles 76 chams .

At 23 miles 23 chains oo eeess.

At 25 miles 10 chaing «.eeeses
At 25 miles 30 chaing ..ovvaas

Cutting 68 ecoeerrvaenconanss
At 34 miles 64 chains ....

Embankment 80 .....ovnnoe
Cutting 100, eceevescrarvocans
At 37 miles 9 ‘chains...ve:ven.

At 37 miles 19 chafns

Both sides have been extra sloped.
A 2 feet cast- -iron plpe has been substltuted forad feet brick
culvert.

‘A 2 feet cast-non pipe has been substltuted for a 2 feet buck .

culvert.

A'2feet cast-iron pipe has béen substituted” for a 2 feet brick
culvert.

A 12 inch cast-iron pipe has been inserted ; nothmg shown or
described.

A 12 inch cast~iron pipe has been inserted ; nothmg shown or
described.

A2 fl‘eet cast-iron plpe has been substituted for & 2 feet brick
culvert.

A 2 feet cast-iron pipe Lias been substxtuted for a’ 2 feet brick
culvert..’

A 2 feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted ‘for & 2 feot brick
culvert.

-| A 12 inch cast-iron plpe has been msexted hothing’ IS shown

or described for this

veaeupseene

Both top sides have been extra’ sloped .......... eeeeeereaaes
A 2 feet cast-iron pipé has been inserted ; nothing is shown or
described for this.........

9 inch earthenware drain pipes have been inserted. Query—
under appr oaches, or not ?

A 2 feet cast-iron pipe has been substituted for a 2 feet brick
culvert vo.... .

Both t6p sides in progress of béing sloped off.
A 2 feet brick culvert has been omitted.
Query—A 12-inch pipe been inserted

A 2 feet brick culvert has bcen substltuted fora 4 feet brick|"

culvert coooveeenenes

Payment has been made for a 4 feet culvert .o.e.eeveerenn..

A double 2 feet brick culvert has been substituted for a smrrle
3 feet brick culvert, -

A double 2 feet brick culvert has Dbeen substituted for a single
3 feet brick culwr_t. o

AY feet culvert has been omitted. A progr ess payment of £13
has been made upon this item .eeesseeessiensesearas

A 9-inch earthenware drain pipe has been inserted under this
embankment. Nothing shown or described.

Both sides have been extra sloped .

A 4-feet brick culvert has been substituted for a 2-feet brick
culvert ...

A 2-feet brick culvert has been substituted for an 18-inch brick
culvert ......

Sessesettret st resst st teas e nbeo T

JAMES BARNARD,
'GOVERNMENT PRINTER, TASMANIA.

Authorised.

.| Shown on original drawing and

included in the Contract.
(This is an omission in the
* lithograph). -
Not ordered.

Shown and described as a 3 feet

“culvert.  Altered to 2 feet
pipe. Accidentally omitted
in Return.

Accidentally omitted in Return,
No alteration in price.

12-inch pipe considarea suffi-
" cient ; difference deducted.

And a 3 feet for a 2 feet at 22
miles 64 chaivs.
Payment for a 2 feet only.

Progress payment was made for

bricks.  Culvert has since

" been ‘abandoned at 34 miles

64 and put at 33 miles 53, in
place of Item 93,

Not ordered.

Part of an arrangement not yet

" completed. See future Re-
port.

Allowed but not ordered. No
extra cost

'SAML. V. KEMP.
: 2. 869 -



